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l Key Financial Indicators

Deposit (Rs.incrore) | Operating Profit (Rs. in Crore)
30,225.53 75584
23,338.84 966.31
19,922.71 481.76
16,089.92 1734723 355.08
I I 254,84 I
20202021 20212022  2022-2023 2023-2024  2024-2025 20202021 20212022  2022-2023 2023-2024  2024-2025
Total Expenditure (Rs. in Crore) Loans and Advances (Rs. in Crore)
22,322.02
1,920.88  1,903.72 18,586.81
16,755.62
1,588.36 15,505.38
1,380.77 13,517.32
1,052.76 I I I
2020-2021 2021-2022  2022-2023  2023-2024  2024-2025 20202021 20212022  2022-2023 2023-2024  2024-2025

2 @® 315T ANNUAL REPORT 2081/82 (2024/25 AD)



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & NOTES

O o= 3= e

EVEREST BANK

Consi Strong & D

LIMITED

Dividend History Capital and Reserve (Rs. in Crore)
14.00 3,193.95
13.00 2,780.48
2,537.17
10.00 1953  10.00 2,279.46
7.68 2,068.36
6.00
4.32 I I
2020-2021 2021-2022  2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025
W Share Bonus % M Cash Dividend % 2020-2021 20212022  2022-2023  2023-2024  2024-2025
Net Profit (Rs. in Crore) Return on Equity (in %)
16.20%
483.99 14.03% 13.93%
370.32 1.36%
336.21
9.01%
247.94
177.09
2020-2021  2021-2022  2022-202 2023-2024  2024-202
020-20 vzi-20 D22-2025 2025:20 D24-2025 2020-2021 2021-2022  2022-2023 2023-2024  2024-2025
Book Net Worth (Rs. In Crore) No. of Branches
3,193.95 123 127 128 133
2,780.48
2,537.17 105
2,275.46
2,064.36 I
2020-2021 2021-2022  2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2020-2021  2021-2022  2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025
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Total Income (Rs. in Crore) Earning per Share
37.39
2,469.98
2,402.51 2,324.06 31.43 31.47
26.30
1,735.59
2020-2021  2021-2022  2022-2023 2023-2024  2024-2025 2020-2021  2021-2022  2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025
Return on Total Assets (in %) NPA (in %)

1.47%

0.38

0.12

2020-2021  2021-2022  2022-2023  2023-2024  2024-2025 2020-2021  2021-2022  2022-2023  2023-2024  2024-2025

Base Rate (in %) Price Earning Ratio (in %)
37.06

5.36
18.76

2020-2021  2021-2022  2022-2023 2023-2024  2024-2025 2020-2021  2021-2022  2022-2023 2023-2024  2024-2025
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Chalrman]

Respected Shareholders, Board Members, Regulators,
and Bank Colleagues,

Namaskar and a warm welcome to the 31°* Annual
General Meeting of the Everest Bank Limited. On
behalf of the Board of Directors, it gives me great
pride to present to you the Bank's performance for the
fiscal year 2081/82 (2024/25) and share my thoughts
on the socio-economic landscape of Nepal and the
global macroeconomic environment shaping our
journey ahead.

Performance of Everest Bank

This fiscal year the Bank has demonstrated a
remarkable resilience and responsible progress.
Despite a challenging environment, the Bank has
achieved a healthy growth across key financial
indicators:

» Deposits grew by 28.26%, reaching NPR 302.25
billion, reflecting continued customer confidence
in Everest Bank.

« Total loans and advances expanded by 20.10%,
standing at NPR 223.22 billion, with a strategic
focus on productive sectors, SMEs, and retail.

. The Bank recorded a net profit of NPR 4.84 billion,
an increase of 30.69% compared to the previous
fiscal year.

« Our Non-Performing Loans (NPL) ratio
was contained at 0.38%, the lowest in the
banking industry, highlighting our prudent risk
management practices.

« The Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) stood at 13.17%,
comfortably above the regulatory requirement,
ensuring financial stability and resilience.

« Qur earnings per share (EPS) improved to NPR
37.39, with a proposed dividend of 20% for our
valued shareholders.

Alongside financial performance, the bank has
also deepened its commitment to innovation. Our
digital platforms now account for over 89% of total

_ 31T ANNUAL REPORT 2081/82 (2024/25 AD) EVEREST BANK LIMITED @ 5
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transactions, demonstrating strong adoption of
mobile andinternet banking solutions. The expansion
of QR-based payments and agent banking outlets
has significantly improved customer accessibility
and convenience.

Nepal’s Socio-Economic Context

Nepal today stands at a crucial juncture. Remittance
inflows crossed NPR 1723 billion this year, providing
stability to foreign exchange reserves and supporting
domestic consumption. Yet, challenges remain. The
trade deficit widened to NPR 1527.09 billion, exerting
pressure on external balances.

While inflation averaged around 4.69%, households
continued to face rising costs of food and
beverages for FY 2081/82. Growth in the services
sector, particularly tourism, has been encouraging,
with over 1.14 million visitors recorded in 2081/82.
However, investment in manufacturing and large-
scale infrastructure remains subdued, constrained
by political & policy uncertainty, continued economic
slowdown and structural bottlenecks.

The outflow of youth continue to be pressing
concerns. As a leading financial institution, Everest
Bank recognizes its responsibility to finance
entrepreneurship, promote job creation, and support
the government’s development agenda.

Global Macroeconomic Factors

Globally, economic conditions have been shaped by
three main forces:

« Monetary tightening in major economies, aimed
at curbing inflation, has slowed global growth and
increased borrowing costs.

« Geopolitical tensions and conflicts have disrupted
trade flows, driven volatility in energy markets, and
influenced investment sentiment.

- Technological transformation, especially in Al and
fintech, isreshaping financial services, demanding
banks to rethink business models and enhance
cybersecurity.

6 ©315T ANNUAL REPORT 2081/82 (2024/25 AD) EVEREST BANK LIMITED _

For Nepal, these global shifts translate into both
challenges and opportunities. On one hand, volatility
in global oil and commodity prices impacts our
import bills. On the other, the growing integration of
digital finance opens new avenues for innovation and
inclusion.

Way Forward for Everest Bank

Looking ahead, Everest Bank is committed to three
strateqic priorities:

1. Sustainable Growth - Strengthening our balance
sheet, diversifying our lending portfolio, and
focusing on sectors that generate long-term value
for Nepal's economy.

2. Digital Acceleration-Expanding secure, innovative
digital platforms to meet evolving customer needs
and stay ahead of regional banking trends.

3. Inclusive Development - Supporting MSMEs,
agriculture, and entrepreneurship, while widening
financial literacy and
communities.

access across rural

Acknowledgements

| would like to extend my deepest gratitude to our
shareholders for their trust, to Nepal Rastra Bank for
its guidance, to our Board for its stewardship, and to
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As we enter the new fiscal year, Everest Bank stands
ready to embrace challenges, seize opportunities,
and continue delivering sustainable value to our
stakeholders.

Thank you.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT
TO THE 31* ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF THE BANK

Ladies and Gentlemen

It gives me a great pleasure to welcome you to the
31t Annual General Meeting (AGM) of your Bank. | have the
privilege of presenting the Balance Sheet and the Profit
& Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for the year
ending as at 32" Ashadh 2082 (16™ July, 2025) as well as
the Auditors' report made there on.

Performance Review

| am happy to share the performance of your bank over
the period of last five years. As per the table presented
below, you will notice that Bank has made significant
progress across all parameters over the period. Total
shareholders’ funds have increased by 71.37% during the
last five years from Rs. 1,863.74 crore to Rs. 3,193.95
crore as summarized below:

(Rs.incrore)
Particulars ‘ 2076/77(2019/20) ‘ 2081/82 (2024/25)
Share capital 851.02 1294.47
Share premium 23.85 23.85
Retained earnings 179.30 489.31
Statutory general reserve 431.83 m.i10
Exchange equalization reserve 3.51 6.98
Corporate social responsibility reserve 3.04 763
Reserve for Staff Training 1.03 3.70
Regulatory reserve (NFRS) 97.87 185.30
Investment adjustment reserve 0.27 0.27
Capital Adjustment reserve 476 111.64
Assets revaluation reserve 96.89 97.14
Fair value reserve (NFRS) 68.06 71.65
Actuarial gain (4.03) (21.13)
Debenture Redemption reserve 97.51 136.58
Other reserve 8.82 8.86
Total Shareholders' Fund 1,863.74 3,193.95

The table clearly reflects the progress made by the Bank
over the last five years in business as well profitability.

The total deposits have reached Rs. 30,225.53 crore
recording growth of 108.84% whereas the loans and
advances (net) stood at Rs. 22,322.02 crore showing
growth of 87.47% in last 5 years. The deposit and the
advance figures have shown a healthy growth of 28.26%
and 20.10% respectively during this fiscal year.

31ST ANNUAL REPORT

1. Other Major Performance in Business & Profitability

a) Business

(Rs.incrore)

Particulars 2076/77 2080/81 2081/82 | OverPrevious | Over5year's
(2019/20) | (2023/24) | (2024/25) |  Year(%) | period(%)

Deposit 14,472.83 | 23565.28 | 30,225.53 28.26 108.84

Loans & 11,906.92 | 18,586.81 | 22,322.02 20.10 87.47
Advances (Net)

b) Profitability
(Rs.incrore)

2076/71 2080/8] 2081/82 | OverPrevious | Over5year's
(2019/20) | (2023/24) | (2024/25) Year(%)| period(%)

Total Income | 1548.66 | 2,469.98 | 2,324.05 (5.91) 50.07
Operating 358.27 566.31 734.84 29.76 105.1
Profit

Net Profit 251.62 370.32 484.00 30.69 92.35
after Tax

The Bank has earned operating profit of Rs. 734.84 crores
with a net profit of Rs. 484.00 crores which is higher by
105.11% and 92.35% respectively over the profits made
five years ago.

The Bank has also paid additional income tax this year
of Rs. 29.74 crores (previous year Rs. 25.34 crores)
regarding pending tax litigation cases under different
courts essentially to save interest and penalties levied
by the Tax Office.

2.  External & Internal Factors Impacting Bank's Activities

During FY 2081/82, the banking industry remained
highly liquid as remittance inflows continued to
rise while credit demand stayed subdued. Private
sector credit grew by 8.4% (NPR 563.8 billion),
while deposits expanded by 11.2% (NPR 711.1billion),
lowering the credit-to-deposit ratio to around 75%.
The banking industry now holds surplus loanable
funds in excess 1,000 billion which is much higher
than the projected 12% private credit growth
set out in the latest monetary policy. Meanwhile,
Nepal's foreign exchange reserves are expected
to reach a record NPR 2,650 billion, providing a
comfortable import and service coverage for about
15 months.

2081/82 (2024/25 AD) EVEREST BANK LIMITED @ 7



O usrr= 3= e

EVEREST BANK LIMITED

Strong & D dabl

In recent month, Nepal has undergone severe
political and social unrest, triggered by the so-
called “Gen Z protests” which began as opposition
toagovernment ban on social media platforms and
quickly expanded into a widespread movement
against corruption, bad governance, lack of
economic & job opportunity, and perceived
inequality. The unrest escalated dramatically:
parliament and the presidential residence were
burned down, government buildings attacked,
clashes with security forces resulted in dozens of
deaths and over a thousand injured, and large parts
of Kathmandu and other cities were paralyzed
under curfews. In response, the government lifted
the social media ban, the Prime Minister (K.P.
Sharma O0li) resigned, parliament was dissolved,
and Sushila Karki, formerly Chief Justice, was
appointed as Interim Prime Minister with elections
scheduled for 5 March 2026.

Nepal's economy faces mounting pressures, with
high youth unemployment, persistent income
inequality, a large informal sector, and heavy
reliance on remittances. Recent political instability
further threatens commerce, investment, tourism,
and capital flows, weighing on growth prospects.
These challenges are compounded by Nepal's
placement on the FATF “grey list” in February 2025,
which raises the cost of international financial
transactions, deters foreign investment and aid,
and places additional compliance and operational
burdens on banks and financial institutions.

Forthe banking sector, currentinstability translates
into higher credit, liquidity, operational, and
compliancerisks, alongsideregulatoryuncertainty.
While interim leadership and upcoming elections
may gradually restore confidence, the overall
economic environment remains fragile, requiring
banks to strengthen capital buffers, tighten
compliance, and adopt robust risk management to
withstand short-to medium-term headwinds.

Regional and global developments are adding
further strain to Nepal's economy. The United
States’ steep tariff hikes on Indian exports and
India’s subsequent GST rate cuts are reshaping
trade flows and consumption patterns, with
potential spillover effects on Nepal's economy.
At the same time, ongoing geopolitical conflicts-
including the Russia-Ukraine war and the Israel-
Hamas crisis—along with broader economic

8 @ 315T ANNUAL REPORT 2081/82 (2024/25 AD)

instability, are influencing interest rates, inflation,
and financial market dynamics, thereby impacting
banking sector profitability and risk profiles.

Activities of the Bank and Future Plan
Operations

The Bank continues to strengthen its digital
strategies and modernize its IT infrastructure to
provide customers with seamless and efficient
services. Leveraging world-class core banking
software “Finacle,” which is scheduled to be
upgraded to version 10.x in the current financial
year, all branches are integrated through a
centralized database supported by a Disaster
RecoverySitelocatedoutsidethevalleyinadifferent
seismic zone. These investments are designed to
enhance resilience, improve operational efficiency,
and sustain a competitive edge in the market.

Aligned with evolving customer aspirations
and technological advancements, the Bank has
introduced innovative service delivery channels,
including virtual credit cards, to enrich customer
experience. Additionally, KPMG India has been
engaged to support the implementation of the
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model under NFRS 9
through a specialized software solution, further
strengthening the Bank's risk management
framework.

Our strategic focus remains on sustainable
profitability, prudent balance sheet growth, asset
quality improvement, and capital strengthening.
Guided by a robust business model, the Bank is
committed to responsible expansion, ensuring
customer satisfaction while also reaching
underserved populations and supporting retail and
small businesses nationwide. To further enhance
convenience, the Bank continues to expand its
digital and online banking services, enabling
customers to conduct both financial and non-
financial transactions smoothly and securely.

The Bank has strategically deployed ATMs at 168
locations across the country to ensure convenient
cash withdrawal services for its valued customers.
Bank's ATM terminals facilitate acceptance of main
global card brands, account-based Card-less cash
withdrawals and e-Sewa wallet based Card-less
cash withdrawals.
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The Bank has maintained a comprehensive card
portfolio, with over 2.70 lakh Debit cards, 9,700
Credit cards, and 7,600 Prepaid Dollar cards,
currently active. The bank is issuing Debit cards
in two brands; UPI (Union Pay International) brand
cards with local SCT co-branding and Visa brand
cards. Visa Debit and Credit Cardholders benefit
with e-Commerce capabilities and cross-border
access in ATM, POS & e-Commerce platforms in
India while Visa Prepaid cards are accepted in
Visa terminals worldwide. Further, Bank has also
enhanced its Digital Services by delivering card
related services like card activation, block, PIN
change, generate statement, display limit of Credit/
USD Prepaid cards via Bank's mobile Banking
Touch24 Apps.

Bank has introduced Fonepay Virtual Credit Card,
which can be accessed through bank's mobile
Banking Touch24 Apps and are enabled with QR
based payments in more than 1.7 million Fonepay
OR merchants. This Fonepay Virtual Credit Card
carries all Credit card features and benefits like
up-to 45 days interest free credit period, minimum
payment option of 10% to 100%, monthly Billing and
monthly Payment service etc. Eligible customers
canapply and get Virtual Credit card instantly via the
EBL Touch 24 Mobile Banking App.

Human Resources Development & Per
Employee Business

Qo= 3= fafras
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Branch Expansion/Outreach

As of FY 2081-82, the Bank operates a network of 133
branches nationwide, including five newly opened
branches in last fiscal year, and an additional 32
government revenue collection counters. To expand
financial inclusion, the Bank provides Branchless
Banking services through internet and mobile
banking agents, alongside 168 strategically located
ATMs for cash withdrawals.

Customer Care

Bank has dedicated Customer Care Center where
the valued customers of the Bank are being
facilitated to address their queries/concern/
grievances. by means of different communication
channels. Bank is always with its looking to provide
easy, fast, reliable and hassle-free services to
its customers and also striving to continuously
improve its customers service experience, fulfill
the customers’ needs through the automation by
implementing cutting edge technology.

The staff strength of the Bank at the end of the financial year 2081/82 (2024/25) was 1,212 and in the previous year it
was 1,149. Per employee business as at the end of the financial year is as under:

(Rs.incrores)

2076/77(2019/20) 2080/81(2023/24) 2081/82(2024/25)

. Total Per Total Per Total Per Over Over5

Baticulars Amount Employee Amount Employee |  Amount Employee | Previous year's
Amount Amount Amount Year(%) | period(%)

Deposits and 26,379 30.5 42,152 36.68 52,547 43.35 18.18 4213
Loans &
Advances
Operating 358.27 0.41 566.31 0.49 734.84 0.61 23.02 48.78
Profit
Net Profit 251.62 0.29 370.32 0.32 483.99 0.40 23.9 37.93

Per-employee business and operating profit have shown increment over previous year and over 5 years period.

31ST ANNUAL REPORT 2081/82 (2024/25 AD) EVEREST BANK LIMITED @ 9
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It is considered that the progress and success of
any organization depend upon the knowledge, skills
and motivational level of its workforce. The Bank
has been taking keen and special interest in the
development of its human resources by imparting
its employees’ training in various aspects of
banking. Besides this, the Bank has taken special
care to keep the motivational level of its employees
high as also to instill a sense of belongingness to
the Bank. To upgrade the knowledge base and
exposure of the employees of the Bank, training is
conducted on regular basis. Bank has formulated a
training schedule calendar to all staffs of the bank
within and outside Nepal.

Compliance Structure & Risk Structure

A Compliance in conjunction with risk and good
governance is the top priority for the Bank. In order
to further strengthen the compliance function
in the bank, the bank has set up a separate
Compliance Department headed by Head of
Compliance Department and also designated a
Compliance Officer for monitoring KYC/AMLCFT
specifically.

To enhance compliance function, the Assets
Laundering Prevention Committee (ALPC) of the
Board has been formed under the chairmanship
of Non-Executive Director in line with the
provision of Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank. The
Committee oversees implementation of Assets
(Money) Laundering Prevention Act, 2064, Assets
(Money) Laundering Prevention Rules, 2073, NRB
Unified Directives and other legal and regulatory
requirements related to Money Laundering
Prevention. For smooth functioning of the
Committee, the Board of Bank has also approved
Terms of Reference.

Similarly, for developing risk management culture
in the bank, a Risk Management Department
(RMD) is in place, which is engaged in identifying,
measuring, monitoring, 8 mitigating risks in the
bank. RMD is headed by a Chief Risk Officer (CRO)
who reports to the Risk Management Committee
(RMC) of the Board.

RMC formulates risk management policy of the bank
whichincludes credit, market and operational risks.
It also formulates risk integration, implementation
of best risk management practices and setting
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risk limits to various functions of the bank. The
Committee also ensures that action taken by the
management are appropriate and elevates the
situations to the Board where further action is
required.

Audit is the third line of defense in the bank. The
bank has established an independent Internal Audit
Department which has adopted risk based internal
audit (RBIA) approach and conducts onsite/
offsite as well as concurrent audit of various
branches. For ensuring independence of Internal
Audit Department, it directly reports to the Audit
Committee of the Board (ACB).

Everest Bank has the lowest Non-Performing
Assets 0.38% in the banking industry as a result of
prudent risk management practices.

The ACB reviews periodical issues related to
bank's overall financial condition, internal controls
and audit program in accordance to prevailing
laws and provides necessary suggestions to the
management on actions to be taken on the same. It
also reviews quarterly financial reports of the Bank
and guide the management in preparing yearly
Financial Reportsin a correct and realistic manner.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Nepal Rastra Bank, the regulatory body has issued
a guideline that BFls shall allocate at least 1% of
their Net Profit to activities relating to corporate
social responsibility creating “Corporate Social
Responsibility Fund” account. CSR expenditure
is incurred from CSR Fund according to CSR
Guidelines (revised in 2082) issued by Nepal Rastra
Bank.

Dividend/Bonus Share

The Board in its’ 388" meeting held on
4th September, 2025(19t Bhadra, 2082) has decided
to recommend to the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting to declare cash dividend 14% (including tax
on bonus share) and bonus share 6% on Paid-up
Capital.

Closing Balance of distributable profit for
FY 2081/82 after distribution of dividend (Cash and
Bonus)would be Rs. 230.42 crores.

The same is being placed before you for approval.
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Capital Adequacy

Under the Basel - Il framework, minimum benchmark
fixed by Nepal Rastra Bank the Capital Adequacy
Ratio is 11%. However, the NRB has further directed
to maintain 11% of CAR after the cash dividend
distribution. Further, NRB has deferred the
implementation of the Counter Cyclic Buffer till FY
2082-83. The Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Bank
as at the yearend 16™ July, 2025 stands at 13.17%
(Previous Year 12.30%). To maintain the capital
adequacy ratio intact, proper capital back up is
required. Your bank has managed to maintain the
CAR at comfortable level.

Board of Directors

There was a change in Board of Directors of the
Bank during the financial year under review.

Mr. Rakesh Grover has beenreplaced by Mr. Santosh
Kumar as new PNB Nominee director of the Bank.

We heartily thank the outgoing Director for his
contribution and welcome the new Director to the
Board of Everest Bank.

Amendment in Memorandum and Articles of
Association

In the Agenda for the Annual General Meeting
a separate Agenda is included for amendment
of Memorandum and Articles of Association for
reasons explained in the agenda itself.

Employee Relations

The Board is pleased to report that during the year
under review the Management Employee relation
has remained harmonious. In view of your Bank's
expansion, the recruiting of new human resource
as well as motivating our existing employees is
proceeding apace.

Corporate Good Governance

Respected shareholders, corporate good governance
is one of the key factors for strength, stability and
sustainable progress of an institution. We always
remain alert about the corporate good governance
in your Bank. Your Bank has complied with the
related provisions of related Acts, Rules and
Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.
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Appointment of the Statutory Auditors

The Shareholders are requested to appoint
Statutory Auditor of the bank along with the fee
for the financial year 2082/83 (2025/26) as per
recommendation of Audit Committee of the Board.

Acknowledgements

On this occasion, on behalf of the Board of
Directors and on my own, | would like to thank all
the shareholders for their continuous support and
guidance. | also take this opportunity to extend
thanks to our valued customers for their patronage.
Further, we express our sincere gratitude to the
officials of concerned Ministries of Government
of Nepal, Departments of the Nepal Rastra Bank,
our joint-venture partner, Punjab National Bank
other concerned authorities and institutions for
their patronage and all the employees of the Bank
for their hard work and dedication. Further, | also
express our sincere thanks to members of the
press and other well wishers of the Bank for their
valuable co-operation and support.

Finally, | am sure that the Bank shall continue to get
the same co-operation and support from all of you
in the future which will be a source of inspiration in
our endeavor to take our Bank to newer heights of
success in the times to come.

Thank you.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. Bal Gopal Baidya

Chairman
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EVEREST BANK LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Everest Bank Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Bank"), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025), the statement of profit or loss, the statement of other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the bank
as at Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025), and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the bank in accordance with the code of ethics for professional accountant issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2063 and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAN’s Code of Ethics for professional accountants. We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter - Policy for estimation of expected credit loss ("ECL") of the bank

Wedraw attentiontoNote 3.4.6 of the financial statements, which describes the basis of estimation, methodology, assumptions
and judgements used in estimation of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on loans and advances, financial assets at amortised cost
and off-balance sheet exposures. The bank has estimated the Expected Credit Loss allowance at Rs. 3,185,298,881, which,
in our opinion, is in fair and appropriate and in compliance with requirements of ‘NFRS 9 - Financial Assets’ and ‘NFRS 9 -
Expected Credit Loss related Guidelines, 2024  issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

However, we note that the bank has not yet formulated and approved its own detailed internal policy and framework for
estimation of ECL as required by NFRS 9 and the guidelines issued by Nepal Rastra Bank. We have been informed that the Bank
is in process of drafting the policy which once approved will serve as a formal basis for consistent application of methods and
assumptions for estimation of ECL in future periods. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the financial year ended on Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025). These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

Key Audit Matters How our Audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Impairment of loans and advances at amortised cost, including off balance sheet elements

(Refer Note 4.35 “Loan impairment allowance charge/(reversal)’, Note 4.7.4, Note 3.4.5, Note 3.4.6 and Note 5.4 of the financial
statements for impairment of loans and advances to customers)
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Key Audit Matters

How our Audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Allowances for impairment of loans and advances have
been estimated by the bank on Expected Credit Loss
("ECL"). The bank is required to apply significant judgement
and estimation to determine allowances for impairment as
per ECL. The assessment of impairment as per the carve
out by ICAN requires the bank to assess the impairment at
higher of impairment determined as per ECL model or as
per NRB directive.

Management's judgements and estimates are highly
subjective as a result of the significant uncertainty
associated with the estimation of expected future credit
losses. The key areas identified where management has
appliedsignificantjudgementsand estimatesand therefore
resulted in increased level of audit risk are as follows:

Staging - includes determining whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition
or whether the facility has defaulted and consequent
allocation of qualifying assets to the appropriate stage in
accordance with NFRS 8.

Model estimations - Inherently judgmental modelling
techniques and assumptions are used to estimate ECL
which involves determining Probability of Default (“PD"),
Loss Given Default (“LGD"), and Exposure at Default (“EAD").
ECL may be inaccurate if the underlying assumptions do
not accurately predict defaults or recoveries over time,
become out of line with industry experience, or fail to
reflect the credit risk of financial assets. As a result, the
model assumptions are the key factor of complexity and
uncertainty in the Group’s calculation of the ECL estimate.

Economic scenarios - Significant management judgement
is applied in determining the future economic scenarios
and factors used as an input to calculate ECL, probabilities,
and the key economic variables. These inputs are also used
for post model adjustments and hence is identified as a key
component of audit risk in calculation of ECL.

Considering the significance of above matters, we have
identified this as a key audit matter for the current year’s
audit.

Our audit procedures included the following:

«  We planned and tested the operating effectiveness of
key controls established by the bank to identify loss
events and carried out risk assessment procedures
over the loans and advances at amortised cost
including off balance sheet items to mitigate the risk
of material misstatement in the judgements, inputs
and assumptions over estimation of ECL.

- We performed testing of controls which included
testing of controls over correct identification and
classification of non-performing loans and advances
to customers on time-based criteria; completeness
and accuracy of the key inputs into the NFRS 9
impairment models; application of the staging criteria;
completeness, authorisation and calculation of
post model adjustments and management overlays;
selection and implementation of economic variables
and the controls over the economic scenario selection
and probabilities; control over monitoring of loans and
advances to customers with higher risk of default.

« We selected a sample of loans and advances to
customers, evaluated the criteria and the accuracy
of the allocation of the financial assets to Stage 1,
2 and 3 in accordance with NFRS 9 and based on the
number of days overdue. We evaluated the bank's
assessment for classification of loans and advances to
customers as performing and non-performing based
on repayment pattern, documentation, inspection and
thorough discussion with management; assessment
of control over mortgage value of loans and advances
to customers.

«  We evaluated the completeness and appropriateness
of the macroeconomic variables used as inputs to the
ECL models and verified the source data used by the
bank for the calculation.

«  Verified the compliance of the ECL calculations, inputs
used, and other factors and judgements used for
estimation of ECL with the regulatory requirements.

« We selected samples of loans and advances to
customers and independently performed and
reassessed whether there was need to classify loans
and advances to customers as non- performing and
compared our outcome to that prepared by the bank
and challenged various assumptions and judgements
which were used by management.

«  We assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of
disclosures against the relevant accounting standards
and NRB requirements relating to allowances,
uncertainty in judgements and key assumptions and
considered it to be appropriate.
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Key Audit Matters

How our Audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Recognition of interest income of loans and advances at amortised cost

(Refer Note 4.29 “Interest income” and Note 3.14 of the financial statements for the interest income recognition)

The interest income on loans and advances to customers
at amortised cost has been recognized on accrual basis
and following the "Guidance Note on Interest Income
Recognition 2025" issued by NRB. Recognition of interest
income on non-performing loans and advances involves
estimation and judgements.

Interest income, though recognised on accrual basis
in general as per the guidelines, it requires the bank to
suspend interest recognition of loans and advances which
have been classified under stage 3 irrespective of the
collateral value against such loans.

Considering the need for manualinterventionin the interest
recognition process and significance of above matters, we
have identified this as a key audit matter for the current
year audit.

Our audit procedures included the following:

Obtaining clear understanding of the process of
accrual of interest and recognition of interest income
on loans and advances in the Core Banking System of
the bank.

Sampled loans and advances from variable credit
portfolio of the bank and performed test procedures
including manual computation to verify the
correctness and accuracy of the interest accrual and
interest income.

We verified the data of accrued interest on loans and
advances classified under stage 3 from the information
system of the bank and ensured that the interest
recognition on such assets has been suspended
as at the end of the reporting period. Adjustments
made to the interest income as per the interest
income recognition guidelines were verified and were
considered to be accurate and appropriate.

Information technology system and control impacting finan

cial reporting in relation to the bank

The bank's information technology environment is
complex and involves a large number of independent and
inter-dependent information technology systems used in
operations of the bank for processing and recording a large
volume of transactions at numerous locations. Due to this,
there is high degree of reliance and dependency on such
information technology systems for the bank’s financial
reporting process.

Due to the importance of the impact of the information
technology systems and related control environment on
financial reporting process of the bank, we have identified
testing of such information technology system and related
control environment as a key audit matter for the current
year audit.

Our audit procedures included the following:

Inassessing the integrity of the IT systems, we involved
our team to obtain understanding of IT infrastructure
andIT systemsrelevant to the bank’s financial reporting
process.

Access rights were tested over applications, operating
systems, networks and databases, which are relied
upon for financial reporting. We also assessed the
operating effectiveness of controls over granting,
removal and periodic review of access rights.

We further tested segregation of duties, including
preventive controlstoensure thattheaccesstochange
applications, the operating system or databases were
granted only to authorized personnel.

Other areas such as security configurations and
controls around the change management were also
assessed.

We also evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of the key automated controls within
various business processes. This included testing the
integrity of system interfaces, the completeness and
accuracy of data feeds and automated calculations
and considered to be acceptable.
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Key Audit Matters

How our Audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

Investment valuation, classification and impairment

investments)

(Refer Note 4.8 “Investment Securities”, Note 4.11 “Investment in associates”, Note 5.3 and 3.4 of the financial statements for

Theinvestmentportfolioofthebankconsistsof Government
bonds, NRB Bonds, Treasury bills, Development bonds,
units of Mutual Funds and quoted and unquoted equity

Our audit approach regarding verification of process
of investment valuation, classification and impairment
included the following:

instruments. These instruments were valued in accordance

with NFRS 9 read with NRB Directive 8. . Review of bank's investment and its valuation with

reference to NFRS and NRB Directive.
Investmentsin NRB bonds, government bonds and treasury
bills are measured at amortized cost whereas investment
in equity instruments, other than those held for trading
are measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Income.

- We assessed the expected cash flow of investments
as well as business model adopted by the management
on the basis of available evidence and ensured that the
classification is aligned with nature of cash flows and

management intention of holding the investment.
Given the varieties of methods recommended for valuation

of investments based on nature of cash flow and the | ¢ For investments valued at amortized cost, we
business model adopted, complexity of calculation and the recalculated and checked the Effective Interest Rate
significance of amount involved in such investments, such (EIR)and amortization schedule on a test basis.

has been calculated as Key Audit Matter in our audit. . For quoted investments valued at fair value through

other comprehensive income, we ensured that the fair
valuation has been done at closing transaction price in
NEPSE as on Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025) and for
unquoted investments, net book value per share as per
latest available audited data of investee company has
been considered.

Information other than the financial statement and auditor’s report thereon

The management of the bank is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the statement of the Board of Directors and Chairman.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion there on.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

The management of the bankis responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin accordance
with NFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the bank’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain anunderstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the bank's internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the bank'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
We report that:

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purpose of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the bank, so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

c. The enclosed statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss, statement of other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows have been prepared in conformity with format prescribed by
Nepal Rastra Bank and the same are in agreement with the books of account maintained by the bank.

d. Inouropinion, the bank has maintained adequate capital funds and adequate provisions for possible impairment of assets
in accordance with the directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

e. To the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and so far, appeared from our examination of
the books of account of the bank necessary for the purpose of our audit, we have not come across cases where board
of directors or any members thereof or any employee of the bank have acted contrary to the provisions of law relating to
the accounts or caused loss or damage to the bank or committed any misappropriation or violated any directive of Nepal
Rastra Bank.

Manish Amatya

Partner

For: N. Amatya & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Address: Kathmandu

Date: September 4, 2025 House No. 409, Indrapuri Awash Chhetra, Dhapasi, Kathmandu, Nepal
T:977-1-4010660, Fax: 977-1-4010661, E: info@namatya.com.np
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R.¥.¥ fadiim awufast gt FEamr - &SI Ju97 e
I TS ThlSrdrad Gl b qe (adiia Gerese! o fadia gweta ¥ faxia sifacaeesr afg=m ¥
HIITHT AT NFRS 9 - faxiTd SUshR0ER SIRT T AT TR & | Sobed Aol AT SehgIeT AT RTHT Auferd
Hiee AT Fearedl (HafereT, 0% (fedl FeMrde) ATAR HI JAT ATIEHT BT AT qle=rd T B
ST NFRS 9 #TER AT shige AT (Hearseal g |

o graiqHT 8190 ATl - ol 9T e (ATl F==AT AR s

o U I dhehl (e 7. 0/ AT AlMRT FHINTH BTl Al JTaeTT IHH |

o NAS 9T fAfdte wilvusr afq A Aree aaw e et e drerr @ |

qfvefiferd ARTaHT AfaUerT faxira TeatawT Tt aTwT AT TRHTIHT HeaTs T (MR Sehehl raearaeer
T ¥ ATHE AN T A9 F 2G5, | SFTLATIT (AT T AT ATaTF T el e Tel ad Aag S
o IWUTH B 9GId ¥ HATEA ITHIEEH BAIC |

Hfge SifEH (SICR) T¥IfqaT Iwor@a hg dfe=an ¥ fAamor |

ECL HIgw I=aid [M&iRor TRTHT BTHIRT 1T (HATHE SATeheeadl ®TAT Prudential Floor aa |

Hge SAAFEIR! FRAFAT A AL TR FHOT °TET TadTHe®d] odl qfeardrs 95¢ ar |

ECL HISa! @M Macro Economic Variable ZATIHAT T |

fareirr Feafomr wfasrr g ot @/ T3 garee! SFaT T, T

UfdeTta® STl IRuTHeE JHTHTSAT I |

fedifde fafqwr safeaa e sawar T GIEhITEar FRee® GUE TH (Il ¥ SEiaded! AT, Jragml
AT HAT3H ICRATH! ATTT T &1 T Sobel Fqw aiieafdes giatared T+ faxrr arafaesesr aHesr am
HIATHAATT SAHRT THETSTT TH ATHT ATHAT (FUIH AT T | SATFRINF ATHHESH TANT faxirg
foaRuTEERl TARIF! U ATaeaeH AR &1 ¥ AT ATHHeE (G [Tarueed] [aeaavdrers & d@x Tad |
farirar FFafeepr aTT AT J@IS@THT ST A A1e 3.%. % /T ATl TRUH § |

ey fachm wwafasr afa
Feper T IEafa a7 faira avafaer afaus sawen (e, gfe=ma ¥ 99T T NFRS 9 &1 ATaededes
qeAT TEg | i Feafaar gy T A GEdeedl (ERer ¥ qiewet @i, deer fada aetae
IR 3fd §ed, @I (cost) WvaT FH 9UH THH T FAfd (duration) HeATsH TGS | Sebed AT AT
& ¥ AT Fraavares, gfafy ¥ afasqesr Trg gaedd af=rad ardqErei atEadd Sr #Reewdrs fa=r
e facdr weafaet e safusr s it faxia feararer qearss Tég | A Iifad e g
AT &l Hewdqul (MU TRH B TP [Faues Jriad dlees AIhd I&qd TRUH F |

¥.& Wi @ atfaea
i AT AT T R GRE-ASIR AT ATSHIEERT |dNTd (Cost) Acturial Valuation Y&RT T feemeor
e | ATedfa® Hearsd &l fafae dEHeE SR ge a%, GErdHT giaEmed qutiad @€, Siaere qerd

e o

afg, HeAE? ¥ AaHl T qig THTA TRUST G | AT ATSTATE®eb] ATHITED, STHBIATT TehicTehl PR,

afafemradrer afa=ar B9 | 9 sHHeE goas aifde fafar e wivs |

R¥.9 T T WA IfAd T
Sepepl ST ¥ qade® 3o WedHT Arad gTaeil T Al ATl °ars Y& TRUH | e NFRS 13 -
“3Ifd Ao ATIA BT FEHAT ITUTH HT ARIAHT AT AFIeed] 31ad Hedl (HaR T @ AeaTsd
faeToseEdre dend WH B |

¥z FEfa T SUHLUT T il arafages Suanfl sfaw
el g Raifdg fafaer safite geae® (residual values), START Saw (useful life), ¥, ITHIT 2
AN TEITTEeEd] HAETAH! [Afdewed THIET T4E | FTATITH (MU 71 rafdessedl qed, o7, fafugear
FAATTHT YART ey T 8ol fqeiies AfAfe=raared! i Yevar | I Geaia aviehl aiT FaRT TR
Fererd fafar T wewe! fqavw J1e 3.9 7 3.5 A1 feguat g |
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¥R HY AT EH FY
b ATTHT GATSTAH] ATl ATTHT UH, 045 & TARTA] 988 | §b T ATART AUPRIEE &M= Sl &2
TadTAed! TR FaHT, FTad [AeTar IO &7 998 | a9 T& FAaedmAT =e, 09 T 9
FYETH] F AT AR TP (IR SHaeaTaTH @ladsdbd! Aol T8g | FiaIAT Harg ard giord
TRTHT T | T Y R @3 T ATah ATTARAT Taw, T AT g HAT AT, et

qHY T AfasIepl X ASATH] AR &7, |

FHTAT IT ATHHRT AIE 3.90 AT Joodd TRUERT T |

Y wErEA HfEr afaan
faxirr fqerues qaR Tl AIATSUHT YHE @l Ades aa [qaruessl Iod [qavurel it araided Aaaedr
Y& TRTHN G | AT Iood ATTHHH, Aferea] AT 0 faxir faawer qar &l WNT SUH @rgy Aiqeed

A TG TRUHT G | Sebel ATl ATl THHT @l AT Bl GRAd U T |

% NFRS 9 & &@iaad
NFRS 9: 7UTe ATEE THISared F&a9 (ICAN) o % S[ars 039 3f@ fadiy IUa=wes dR] g+ B9 Tl (97 |
TN, FITTSHT BRI FeA~ FATcile®, AT THT JTAdT ¥ Tfataer (TTaresr dsra ovmaa fafae Froese
e, e ¥ fadi dRamesHr @11 NFRS 9 &1 QU Faf=aa= w1fds a9 R050/5q a¥ fird wfvwesr foar | o,
HUTTT Hige AR FHEY T4 NFRS 9 H TAdTeE AMGE a9 2059 /53 M@ 07 FTHT FATTHRT TUH S |

Default I SIGAF! &I FoAF TUHA T U 0 fadawar ger angsfa A fad Tasar Misha e afieor
feetTeeT AT 9 e TUH 5 ¥ faii GRamesal hige FiaH deas | qrr=addn, faxda awfq wige e
At a7 qredtas QA g1 Atg hise SEAAT Je@dd i &9 | AUfeTd hige T (ECL) Bl Hreedl
g9 FIRTHT 3P FHTEY Mg ¥ (=AM incurred loss approach @1 TAATHT & [HERT &l *hige SAM@HAT
FI@HT IRATTHT FATS 6 | ECL WSS AIATS T deh ¥ faxii FeATewel *higd SaH Ha€rd ¥ resilience T
FUEAT TRTRT 3 |

&9 Ifea fege Awam digaw Se
AT hige AT HIgAH Iede® MR &
. @l HIIEUSEEH (ARSIl T ECL &1 FAFEITHT FEsTalel AN Taaedd AN A9ars |
. & ¥ fairr qeATE® I ECL T Ush&qdl T qAdTcHeEdT Jage I |
Hige SfeHAT Jeer@qra afg fafRe 79 ArIEve I T |
ECL HISH =¥l (MR U &Il ATNT HATHE ATHEITh! &IHT Prudential Floor dTe |
HSe AAHRIER! FRIFAT ST FHTAL TR HOT AFH JadTHeed] a@l qearders aradr aaqrs |

S

oo g

&R fera sfee AmeEr T

qufera hfee AT AgH! TR AR &

F. RIS ARTTAT ATYA TRURT [ grafdes

g. 79 comprehensive HATFTAT HThd Irad HAAT HIIA TRUH &G G0 (A I#fq T a9
Higa o wfauer @ TEEr ST ERIAT TG YATE 5Ad ¥ A e aeR ure iR 7 i
FEIRTHT THRIAT Gdeedl AfFUE! (HTe®aT T8 JaeHd aig 148 ST Faa qil Wl 9 THH T q9
THFAAT AT AT AT 21 | JA, °Tel 91 d0 [9&qd AR die=n Tae ¥ faxa fefaew
ferarora fairar @reaferr a2 o9 "arsy & |
NFRS 17 & TR {99 YT & wisT: isl
NFRS 15 @l ZRRT {9 TEATdT Geaf: Jedead ] TERarerd g Tee
AU Jqagare® (ATRT a1 AT A o AIHT ATIH TRUH qTH)
faiTar Ta=Er FRRTATe® (AT LR TR BTaT AT W T=aT Fel W9 TRUHT T GEAT HH AT

~

I TRH, ITAH ATHT, NFRS 15 #1 [gTies AR AT Yl AT Gl ToH) aed
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5.3 OIS AW UfEEH graeel ARiesE
NFRS 9 & JHTHhIRT SqTSTeX TATT T GIRTiera SARTaAT AIYT XU (ol eqradr sarel ATRTHIb e
AAITF G | TIA I Ahel ATs 9, J0Y AT AT AT TrI=AT ARG AlE, 03 ST Tl G T
79 NFRS 9 T JUT AT aweh] oTNT FhHAUIHIC el ATei=T JaT Tl @ | 47 fasferrer e ¥ fa<ir
HEITEwATe AMIF T 3059-51 T R063-53 HI AT SATHEH! FIT T ATIRHAT HIT T ANHAT AT e
T Ald famg T SEdty fdes a9 053-5% e} T ANHAT TATEGHNT ATHET TAN TH ATA I (47 |

a7 faeniaer NFRS 9 &1 I07 HHA=adh M AT d&d IEH G, TS AT Iead ATl [MHATTER

qfvad Tieas;

Interest income

Year 1(FY 2081/82)

Year 2 (FY 2082/83)

Year 3(FY 2083/84)

Stage 1and Stage 2
Financial Assets

Based on coupon
interest rate on principal
outstanding for all
financial assets (accrual
basis)

Based on coupon
interest rate applied on
principal outstanding
for all financial assets
(accrual basis)

Based on effective interest rate
applied on gross carrying amounts for
all financial assets except for old term
loans

Based on deemed effective interest
rate applied for old term loans only
(where integral fees have already been
recognized as income in previous
years)

Stage 3 or Purchased
or Originated Credit
impaired financial assets

Based on cash basis
approach (incremental)
Coupon interest rate
applied on principal
outstanding

Based on cash basis
approach (incremental)
Coupon interest rate
applied on principal
outstanding

Based on amortised cost as per NFRS 9
Deemed Effective interest rate for old
term loans is calculated without taking
into account integral fees already
booked and is applied on amortised
cost

Effective interest rate of all financial
assets other than old term loans is
to be calculated based on integral
fees obtained and also considering
discounts, premiums and other integral
costs and is applied on amortised cost.

Fhel T9 (HERTFTFT T GTadTers TATEHE ATIRH qgl FIT ¥ AT FAN TR HI T ATISH TS
qfE=T T GANT TRH B |

R.\9 Discounting

TF a9 HRT d¢ q9T qfeg /A I FhT g a1 Tl JIi g+ T =l qdcd 997 G fdes material STAT 71
el T FHIRT T TS discounting T €8 | 79T YaTeaTs discounting T+ FATT R Discount &% feizo

TRl AT oebed faT= AT qAT e TABTHT [FIATT T |

3. 9HE JEn difiee

3.9 HIUART AT

T Joei@ TUHT material items T aATaeh Sebepl fa<ira faawor tfqerfas @mTa (historical cost) Aol STERAT TAR

RTET 3 |

[Taq TRUERT T |

(Amortized Cost) TN ARTAAT HIIA aATeeH d=T faxiid T¥ara Ifara AT (fair value) FTIT TS |

AT Frafa 3ferd geowr @ e |
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33 faefi faaor o @ e
ST fadira faamor wdrepder AT = % fasprafa g 89 | veifaueeear ey faxdir faaroeear gfmd
faf srame wfvwr & |

33 TR T WL qEA
TG T G FHM T AG-HISETd, A7 b T faxirg FATEwa el Hisald, AN 97 Gral A= I g+ T, T
SiifEw fed a1 T SiEH @ET 3 HiedT (T AT I T FibT aver (aaid GrIraerg STgUE! @ | T&dT 798 q97
T JHHEEH It HAHT g7 TRadHl G THaH FH g9 T dobel 4T TRAaesedl JART Aeqahiiad Jiqagar
TRT AT AT T |
fairr feafdert faazomaT F91& ¥ 798 FHTE (amortized cost) TRENTIT ARTAAT HIAT T |

3.¥  facim gwufa qa fasfim ot
Febel ATHT it Frafdesers (A&7 aerar afieeo T
®F) AR AT A Ahd Irad HeaHT ATIF TRUS faxiia aefaess,;
g) 9 ATE AT ARG Irad HeAHT J19 TRUST A qwtdes, T
M IReTTId ARTAAT ATH ARUeRT fadi gt |
F) AR AT A€ ARG Irad TAHT J199 TRUH [T Tiaaes,
@)  ufeitad anraar |aue i st |

3.9 URREHE afgEE

A faxirg @wafa a1 afacaeng Soo aTET faxir feafqer faeromr afewt 9a qa @7 i@ T T9 AT F7H
ITHIUIH (party to the contractual provisions) TAEEERT aTeA g TeAd g=g | |0, A, fAerd 7 ;o7 frar
g% /FETIF ATdtad qfdcd (Subordinated Liabilities) AT ®THT SehgRT ITHUEE fasiar U fafqar afe=m
e, | T Febel [qTe®dl TRRIAT qdewadl JeT a= fafq afq 21 | gf@dr S, Horas (BONDS), oI
(DEBENTURES), & fadias, NRB dwg a1 fAarg faardy, food frar, 7 goger afteesar amies e
fairar Trafaes @ftg T a1 gt T sl fafaar e wieg | st e fair awfaeser frataa
@fvg 7 fahT e ey |

3.¥.9.9 facfw awfoee
ool faxiTar TeaTaeweepl ANTHOT T AT Sehebl ZATAY HISAZIRT faeii Grafdesedl T ATALTHE 7 JaTe
faeTodTEE® FaEIIT Tag | faxg Tt 35 aves MeATTar i

q. afemifaa AWEHET (Amortized Cost) AR TwaT fadfia awutags:
Sl T g Fdes X1 AUAT faxir eataens qieeiid ARTaAT "9 TR e aetaer st e T

o THIRT FX! ATINF AISA AR Ta8 TAH! I¢9U AM@UeH! AFTqare dATaTcHE 718 Ja18 g3 (contractual
cash flows) T &7 |

o faxir Fafaeh TFRIAT Adewa dlieuH fAfaeear e yare fasiar T4 I afar ¥ g®@ar 99 HHE TS
ﬁ?h‘l'rﬁ (Solely payment of principal and interest) & |

3. Sfud qewH (Fair Value) dmw wifvgat fasfa awafa:
afeeTIiad ARTAHT |19 TRUH ek A g Frafdes Srad Teaal AT T | SFEa Hea T J79+ TRuH o

qrIfdeedls qad® g5 aeeHl aviihd TRUH &

F) ATHT AW GIATHT JY 7ed A g4 (Fair Value through profit or loss) Tafaa fa<fim avafa
SATAREHT ATNT AMGUHT AT ATRT AT AT AR I FIHT a0 TR i qedfaeedrs AR AT @rdrH]
ISR Hed FHESE g9 (Fair Value through profit or loss) YeRldeT faxiiar Ieafderl F0HT Mg, | T&T drardessel
IR HIIATHT, offad ANTde% (transaction costs) ST &l F9HT i F¥Iae! acquisition HT attributable E73,
AT AT ANTAe%dTs (transaction costs) ATHT AT AR [qavorHT qie=e TRws; | AThRT q@-T= @A Sl
e FHIATSTT & TR o qeaeiiaed] Aatdes Hediehd g, a9 T HeAihd Tal g hIgal a1 Herars AThT

AT GTaTT SE@Tes, |
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q) 37 faeqa SaHT S #e0 HEnE g (Fair Value through other comprehensive income) Tt faefiar @wafa
STIRET AT ARTNGUHT SfFET ITHIIHT T T Sfebel YRIFTH ATIATRT GHAHT 977 faqd ama "Thd 3fed
T WHTATSA g Tehiqeh! faiar Feafdes FUAT Al | 97 foredd ATTAT aoR Hed AT g Jebide faar
FrIfaesd! ATalad HATdHA Mg q9T TR HeAdlehd Tl g hIgal a1 HIerdrs o+ [a&qd JaH @sg |

3.%.9.} facm aifuease
It fadira aifrcaeears METER avfie Td;

%) ATHT AFEE GEET T HA GHEA g4 (Fair Value through profit or loss) &t fa<hia atficage
ATIREN NT AMGUHT AT ATHRT a1 A AR 3o FAAT a0 MRUH O afaaEesdrs ATt
A @Al a9 Hed FHTENHE g9 (Fair Value through profit or loss) i@ fa<iia afacaeed! ST
=g, | TEAT ATIAET ST TRIFHE ATIATH], dded ANda® (transaction costs) STH Tcdel &G faxird arfacagee
acquisition T attributable §73, &Il JHaT ARTAEEATS (transaction costs) ATHT aT ATETAE! faavuraT qfe=m
T, | ATRT AT @IATHT TSR Hedl FHTASA g TRl [axa aiacaged dratad Aeied Tiwg ad1 Jai
oA &1 g4 TIZal a1 HIerdrs ATh AraT @TarAT 3@, |

@) ufeeifaa WA (Amortized Cost) ATw ieuat fasfiar aificass
3o AT ATRT A @A g Hed A g4 (Fair Value through profit or loss) fa<iia atfacass
Jred T faira ifacagears garasrr = fafa (effective interest method) aTT TR% afeefifad dmTer®aT ATTH
(amortized cost) =S, |

3.¥.R  HUA
qrefewe @O
IRTFTF ATIATHT, Sobel, STord Hea T ATRT T @IardT sy Hed AT g9 (Fair Value through profit
or loss) faxira vt a1 afacde® aree, o4 (< arafq a1 faxdi afacaars g Ifad qeawn, goaer &aw
fa<irar ¥t a1 fa<iia aTfacae®®! acquisition AT attributable &7 @& ANTde®dTs (transaction costs) =<
AT HIEAH T A9 6 | ATRT A AThd Iraa AT faguad! fadia gwfa 2 fadia afacaesd! dadaq

ARTAATE ATRT AT AT @ @575 | TRIFAF AAar g MO qetas! shige Ay Si@drd &9

faforaer erazamar fadier Fwafaer g AT gte=r 1 |

AT AT
faxiar F¥atq a1 ot afacaars ywRfraes ATaa e Sfed Jead a1 qiReiifad anTaHT fadea gedta ar
T ANHITR] ATIRAT |IT TR, |

AR ARTTAT AIIH TRTH aFed @ q¥fa a1 afgcdrs afg, T9EeHRT s a7 (effective interest
rate), fafg gamT W Afenifad artaEr wHE e, | Ak g 9 o St aiveitad aRta @
THH B J9ET Ak gwafa a1 faxi i yRieas ATIdrT principal repayments @1 E1@TS, cumulative
amortization using the effective interest rate method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount ®Tg ™ 4T HTEAT T ¥ any reduction for impairment or un-collectabilty impairment &g =28 TSES |

qReTifad ANTAHT ATAA TTRURT FHSAT TIT ATIEH] FHA], AEFhaEare Y Jegd 9esh T R ehads
9 & faig FFaes®l acquisition or issue &I A& ®UAT attributable &, AT edEmdly
giqaa HATTAT ATRT AHRA [GERIAT AR BIAT G T A AAGAT (qTAEe I gregl | TATIHIT AT

TR fosaasr war g T e querer a7 fafa @y afwer &7

JETe®, U Teeh [ Geara a1 FHE (A< arafdesd] THedrs gl Al F GRuTHE ETAT written
down Tiivuerr afefeafanr @i fa<irar @vafa a1 g foa<i geafqessr craufger = grerers, @ifire a1
quf ®HT faxira Tt write off TUHH, faxig Tl & d8+ THHHAT (Gross Carrying Amount) FHTae
TS &R AN W AT T |
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3¥.3 faent
3.%.3.9 fa<fim wwafowr frast
frer Seafaa & i srawamar S fadia avafa qur a1 st woar faest que feafq gv s
o TFRIAT FHRE! AE FATEHT TUH! AfeTblk THTE &aT |
o TERIAT FTARE AT JATEHT HUH ATIHR AR TTHT |
o Sl ‘pass-through’ SEAT &Y T U ANE FaTE JT T&TeTS ShTAT I ST dIR0T ILHT AT SFebed
T FEIfaeT TR A JAT Iiahe ¥deaeyT AT a7 SEaH T JIqhee! geqieaeor F a1 Ak qre
TG FH (el (=07 FEAT=Ror AT |

FE et qua fa<i @wata et ga1 wead frardl 9 ¥ &1 MERtare o A a9r S geEtead a7
foedd AR [qaRudT el Afead ATRT a7 HTerdl AMHd i FUAT d1 FiXeh IHHATS ATHRT AT
feraoraT omETe i |

3.%.3. fa<fm aifaeast framt
w1 Tt aifocas T Sifeusr afaces qaI TSl dERATAT A7 e e quer "y | gl faxd
FIfaadTs @TeT lender FI 3l faxiia @ Tha JIqedTdT AUAT T A7 §37 Iool@d 1 FYdh TadTes a1 eTelehl
e g | A9 (et gar S faxirg atfacde fearer qew ¥ et gar faver e g weers AT

AT faaorHT @Ted s |

3.%.¥ Ifaa Tt /A
I HA APl AT A Bl S AT [HITHT oTTR FewrEse= sqaieqd SRIAR HUH! JqTH FH(d o=ar
qTed AT ST EXATARYT &N [ 99 T &1 | FIcael Irad e T9eH] Ha=ad qg- SAad grarared
TEF |

¥ 98 JaR Itad qed e Tes:

oY o

BTt q : I HeT AT A & A FHIA F¥d a1 SIcachl AT AT SSRAT AFHTANT e Hedgoare
A g |

Suft 2 : St gea wrad o g S gearsd HiE afR aeeAr SR STEEEHT a1 GETEd Heaes g
a1 (SR FSTRHT AT a7 T STRRETH AT AR HeAes ¥ [axid SUHuesd qearsHl (i Aeass
AN g7 el a9 Hecd U qenides Aidwg |

AUt 3 A7 T a7 FAADT AT ATATRIT TAILEE B | AT SATEEEAT ATATHA T AH (b TAILES
TS THH! AT TR T ST G T TLAT AFARATHT Seber A Faferar faer anemert e wea faameor
T SEYAHT AT FHITA a7 IEH A (IR el a9 FedRiesd TR T9 gRUTEE qiAl Iqded Iad
STTFRIE TANT T e 16 |

3.¥.Y EWT A saaedn
geer fedifdg fAfemT, Seper ATRT a1 AT faerer wrhRa Sfea geamr A Aeieeen faxia awataar ar faxia
qrfe®d! THEHT &1 AP q&qITd T & 6 S TR Hears Tee | Sfd T&qTd T qed(Es)
I YRIETH afe=me afg AT geHT qUH! TEISs, T AT Ut A (E%) & ATasIe! 798 Jaredr y4Td

T, A (AT HAT BAHT ATA T Fiobeg, | qwdl fairg geta o faira awafdessr 99 fafmes g |

fa<ir @wafa fafuuer g 9= a=qua THIOET W|OT A7 FRIEArEl Hewddol a9 Hiedrs, HOERT default
AT ORI, FHOTH! TAEEAL, HUT T SAhdl Bankruptcy Ta8T T Hebd, AR AT FHT TR A8 a1
FrIeEEd] THET TEedd d7 TTATHTANT I STl THEHT HUT a7 FTThATEmerl YThTHT (RITqaT Giada

qfeaddes, a7 GHEAT default TIT=Id e TaEaTEeE THAT g7 qFSH |
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TEH Afdieeh, SieEdl ITHIAT AR AT IFad FAAT Jeorm@arg a1 Ardl fRrae 9t el qadeds
®UHT AT HA AN AT FH g AT JTFUEEH! ETHIF AEFT TH &7 | Hirers aifdd Hierg
HUFT FARATHT, Sl faciiepT T@Tee feAer TeT | qFE=mT T faa T4 | J9H SR dedr T aat
HOT AleEH! GERIAT [FEAR T THTET &7 TFg) Jdew IF: aTal TRFFare, e AT T A0 T
TRTFT A EIR FANT TR % 9 BT A TR ¥ a1 qHE=T qig@l A0 Past Due A &7 |

3.%.4.9 ufeifea ammeEr || afvgsr faertasr gt
W GERITAATE] BTAT AT GEBIAAT TAEREN [aTART ATHIRT UHT AT &7 | ATHEH BTATRT
HeATs ET, Sebel [aaaHT TUHT default TaTEweehT FEATEAT, TT-ITART THA T TUHT ATRITTEH AATH! FAN
e, TIATS ATITIAR! (AU U TR, | & TATETT adq A1 ¥ shige AaedTe® aredided
|TaT faRTaHT SUHT default T FRT G¥HT TRTEHT ATET Tw=T ¢l a7 FH G T TATET |

3.¥.%  fera shfge Aamt g

3.¥.%.9 fa<fimr sifew sraeamm
Iepepl TATafEw HEATAT Fhige SEH, a9 SEH ¥ FodATe TGP AATHT G TEH] HaLTITHT ATHT
FHEIegd SGH A" diAfdes 8 | A7 Gtafdesd! &1 41 SaHes qiee T, TATHT T, SATedraT
T T AR T BT | SR AT AT T gHAEEd a0, frarae fEenfadsewer areer T 7 gare
HOT FRTSATAEE HAH e FT a4 A= 16 |

TR HOT TATafTRT FadwT, Sebel AMGH FTIT T 4ia=T drar 7 gidamres iy e 5 | geefg
Siifaw sraearay atafqewesr fafa= gfqaees fafaa swaa qar g 7 afvs sraaraaars. g&qd
ey e SfEH AT HEd TEG | dhd B 9 SIREH FecA gl AARATHT SIEH AT T
UCRATEE 9 Fe TR G |

3.¥.¢. 5hfee sifew
HOT Sf@H WO T AN, TG T A AR, WO = e T S ¥ fair deaeedr a7 aer &y
g fairar gwfdare 39 &7 |

*fga FfaH THH qek o1 faxira STHTEHT JfqIerer AT GERIAT SIEes G-I T JEqhe TIHAT Sohells
g fa<irg AT SAhEH 2, T A7 Headdl YTedhesdle [dd T TR IIETAT HFwle] Ferd; | ¥ fardra=r
FATHETE IA 878 |

3.%.%.3 shfgg sifew o
Sehepl higd STGHAT FIGH HEITAT FeiF qTedh / Facasharedl Ahd aedae®gRT IaTad gwe | Jam,
AT AN FEtead default Sitay, aara faitre Sifew, =gaegqmaw Siif@H, transition specific

~

SfEA ¥ RIS G S Hes ded ATH! TTeeh ATIRE! 1S ANGHATS THATT T T PRFEEATS
g faem g |

TRl AR AaTTHT 7T TATEH BHIFRE THAEG G TF a7 F¢1 HeAes gl Il [aard qearders
hice-fafuuar Wi | faxiar Fvafa Hice-fafmer & w1 THoET (96 sEe@TrT Ser FHrEe S

ST a1 T F1 HE@qol o Hors

o TERIATHI Joiud, SET default

o HUHl e FiEAEET FElead Afde a1 FERIANT BRUEEHT AN, HIEANEE) HIOAS T2
T GE(EE)

T bankruptcy AT 37 i [ARTSTHT TH9T &% TEEehT FRITaHT

fairar FfeATeesed! HRU &M A Feafasr AT IERT a9k Aveq

o TfexT geHT faxia awafderr @fvd a1 Icafa S &1 FUH hige =rer giararad gwg
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3.¥.%.¥ fgwee (PD) #t wFvEm
The likelihood that a borrower will default on a loan within a specified time frame, typically expressed as a
percentage.
Derive PD based on historical default migration rates and/other data, internal and external credit ratings.
Incorporate forward looking PD information by adjusting PD to its sensitivity to changes in certain

macroeconomic factors.

Use at least five-year historical data, where available, for calculating PDs and validate any smoothing of

data or inputs by Integrated Risk Management Department.

Link the internal rating scale to external credit rating for the determination of PD with the caveat that the
Bank should avoid using proxies to compute PDs.

Compute PDs by using sovereign PD linked to external credit rating scale, on exposures denominated in

foreign currencies issued by the foreign sovereigns.

3.¥.%.4 Default t afewmen
Includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date and includes:

a) Financial assets having overdue days more than 90.

b) Credit facilities classified as non-performing as per NRB prudential provisioning directive and are already
impaired (defaulted) status.
c) Credit impaired financial instruments with objective evidence of impairment. A financial instrument is credit-

impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of

that financial instrument have occurred. Evidence that a financial instrument is credit-impaired include

observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

the lenders of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concessions that the lenders would not otherwise consider;

® becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-organization;

e disappearance of an active market for that financial instrument because of financial difficulties;

e purchase or origination of a financial instrument at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit

losses.
If any, credit impaired as per the risk management practices of the Bank.

d) The Bank considers that the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the bank in full, without

realizing security (if held). The indicators of unlikeliness to pay includes:

The Bank puts credit obligation on non-accrued status.
The Bank consents to distress restructuring of credit obligation resulting in reduction in financial
obligation due to material forgiveness, postponement of principal or interest.

e The Bank has filed for debtor’s bankruptcy or a similar order in respect of the borrower’s credit obligation.

e The Bank sells a part of the credit obligation at a material credit-related economic loss.
e® The debtor has sought or has been placed in bankruptcy or similar protection where this would avoid or

delay repayment of the credit obligation.
There is evidence that full repayment based on contractual terms is unlikely without the Bank’s realization
of collateral regardless of whether the exposure is current or past due by few days.

Interest income is calculated on actual receipt basis (cash basis) on stage 3.

3.¥.%.% Exposure at default (EAD)
The total value that a lender is exposed to at the time of default, including any outstanding principal and

accrued interest.

e Forwards looking models needs to be developed for computing Credit Conversion Factor (CCF) for off-

balance sheet exposures.
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e In case data is not available for computing CCF, Regulatory CCF numbers to be used as provided in the
guidelines.

e For closed end loans, EAD to be capped at maximum contractual period over which entity is exposed to
credit risk.

e If data is not available for off balance sheet exposures, the Bank shall use Regulatory Credit Conversion
Factor for the calculation of EAD for off balance sheet exposures.

3.¥.%.9 Loss given default (LGD)

LGD is the percentage of exposure that is not expected to be recovered in the event of a default.

e Develop model based on historical data, historical experience of cash recovery from defaults (including
settlements), cost and time of recovery.

e While determining loss rate or recovery rate for the purpose of calculation of loss allowance, expected
cash flows from collateral realization are to be considered based on latest reliable valuations (within last 2
years).

e Any increase in valuation of collateral in comparison to valuation report is to be supported by evidence.

e \Value (Net realizable value) of the collaterals shall be considered after deducting applicable realization cost
and haircut.

3.¥.%.c Staging and Significant increase in credit risk
Staging an SICR are primary steps before impairment modelling for identifying the risk of a borrower.
The facilities must be allocated to one of the three impairment stages by determining whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether the facility has defaulted.

Assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk is required to be carried out at each
reporting date. An asset can move into and out of the lifetime expected credit losses categories (Stage 2 and
3) based on a predefined pattern obtained from the historical default rates or delinquency status of account
across various internal rating grades, products, sectors or satisfying specified provision of NRB directives or
ECL guidelines.

The assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk should be made for a specific
instrument rather than for a counterparty since the quantum of change in credit risk may be different for different
instruments transacted with the same party. Also, different instruments issued by the same counterparty may
have had a different credit risk at initial recognition. Some of the indicators (non-exhaustive list) of significant
increase in credit risk, are:

e More than 30 days past due.

Absolute Lifetime PD is 5% or more.

Relative Lifetime PD is increased by 100% or more.

Risk rating (internal or external) downgraded by 2 notches since initial recognition.

Risk rating downgraded to non-investment grade by external credit rating agency (BB+ or below) or by the
Bank’s internal credit rating system.

Deterioration of relevant determinants of credit risk (e.g., future cash flows) for an individual obligor (or pool
of obligors).

Expectation of forbearance or restructuring due to financial difficulties.

Deterioration of prospects for sector or industries within which a borrower operates.

Borrowers affected by macro-economic conditions based on reasonable and supportable forecasts.
Modification of terms resulting in restructuring/ rescheduling.

Credit Quality indicators determined as per internal credit assessment of performing loans which are
subject to individual monitoring and review, are weaker than that in the initial recognition.
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3.¥.9. 37 faeqa smawTRa Sfaa Ao anftaweor afvaat fa<hia avafasr deam
ghaadt TR Staa Hedr swaT A9 ARTa, TR a1 fan wawr fmrae quAn, @rear gfEd aREm e
AT TP JHIONT T | 2fFadierl RSTHaT TRt a1 ATaeHT ST AUST AT THewdTs O aRieheor T
FHT AT Tohe ey, IFaa 7o T |

3y =T awafa
IE FFIT AAd: Glel THIAT GG [l T ATRT FATST 39T IMT TRUST AT 8w, | AT AT
HAAT B ATAIH IARARTAATS ATHT AR [FaR0HT A@T$ T |

3% oo (Sfeafaw) awfa T aificaes
FOEE [aid AgTe® I AgFe® g Add ATl aRew, (g qaaeed] Aes, a&eed e, [dall
fafraa avew, Tfge AifeH ¥ ToFiFewdl TRaddewmd! AAHATHT ATHFN T I 6 | SEH ATEITTT ILTH
ATRT GUHT ZCT~HT O q T FHIaes T qAMTcaes THE §7g S FRIAR qrfd a7 Tcaet saaT a3fiega
TRTHT g | AMGH LTI IJgedehT AN AMGURT A8 [ad (Eiqeh! faqaur Itaa Aeaar AT 1w |

39 gEfa T ITFHTOT
qd qEIfd ¥ ITRIUEE ANTTAT FOod HeAeTd ¥ B AR UaTg AT Miveg, | el Anradr @1 awi
ATITEVRTET Jeel &qHT 99 g4 T @ AT e, | FFISHN ANTAE THTHT carrying amount AT FTHTAT gva
AT STIh ®IHT P AEIAR] EIHT AT [457, T aE@T qEIfead AaSET A1 daraes SEHT gdTed aaa
TR A g5 ¥ A%l ANTd faeade{ra &9H1 /199 T Fehes; |

Tl AT (HITHT, FFIfepl AT ATHES (residual values) ¥ ITANT SHTAAEE®], HHSCIH] GBEED HATF
afed THIET TS, T qe ITIH AT FHTASIT =g, | FHMdH! carrying amount J9&T KB THH AT F&l &l
A AgiRor qUaT, @l getdars 9 T JR THAAT written down TTRUHT @) fSTASTard g7 @19 T AT A1t
T AR R G TRUHT B |

SATHAHT HAHT 3T UeTSUHT G TAT AT ST AR THETH TR I6 |

T ¥ HHARIR @9 U] [axiia AaiedT qTRT a7 AeT=h! [Faeorar JHreeT TeUs 3 |

I FHITAEEHT HeAeTd [qrlewed ATHTT ITART SEqeeAl dTd T Aairse Jed dr=dl [FedT gearge! a1t
straight line method fafar 99RT T FFATHER IO TRUHT &

et #ig grufa faawor Suft ITRA Saw aw
AP ®iER T R - 9= £

CA FFAY T GETAE ITHT 4

EE FATAT FTHIIT E

FF FAER T e - 9 £

KE FATAT FTHIIT £

LB ECEl R0

LD qre ECiEC)
LE HATeleg FHIRd 0

MS AR ITFT - I E

MY BIRER) e

I3 FATAT FTHIIT £

SF FAER T e - a1 ©

SR o q0

VH KEIICET ©

WF ®HER T R - 1 £
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FH A THes Tod® & 4,000 TFEH] AN @REH qUA] oATa @bl &HT =16 T, |

ST T ¥ (A=A Tept ST qetaesadl qea gfafafred T qF: qearse TRuEr 1 Carrying Value w1
Ffe a9 AeAATs T HATST KSTHH! ®IHT AT AN |

35 U @ wfa (Capital Work in progress)
ISR T AT ARTAHT I TRUHT B | AT IS Tfqer @oe g1 S ISiehurel TaigHT, o (Ao fa @+
D |

3 @l T asifaw awafs

329 arvifaw wwufa
AT TFIfdese aTed ®IHT S ol T9aa¥ enhancement THTA EE | FHT TIaess, T Aiad
ITART Sradewr @it g afwsr g fadessr aqaad STERT sl G- straight line method
ATERAT TR (amortized) TR=s; | Afifaes qwfa Tger dfe=m= awa gwafd &1 TaHr & diiae gareafd
£aF ¥ G ERqes SeaTad T (AT, FAT YaT TR M, s ATSTHT faw a1 FeTafae e AT
TART g | AT Frafae! d@rs g aa@q Meeg e AaeIA g grafaare Jiided ar 9 gq 996s,
T FEARl WA TAATS (999 g5l HeaTgd T4 (g |

3R HYIT UEAUT
Acquired FFISY THRATX TATAAIAEE, TRIIX TART TH T ATSHH AN AR ARTAS] ATIRAT ISiid
g |

FFIX AFRAITH] TR AT (Amortization cost) straight line method fafr J&NT TR faviewed! daATAT
START SAE=HT ARTAH HARTE Hedl HaTs 0T T

gHta g geata faawor Soft IR Saw ao
SW ACEEL £

3.90. T @Eafe T ey anft wfgger fie-ae awafa

3.90.9 T @FAfA
NI AFITTEEdT, GFIfd T STFRIEE ¥ fashiehl ATRT AMGUHT TR-=Td TrIe® dTesh, ST aT FRI ¥ qaee
U B | ATHTIAAT, TTAT el TR-Sfchg FEATTRT TAT ATITew Tebl a7 giqare fafaar fosht Tager
ST, ST ¥ S AT T |

3.90.3 foem anfn wifews v-adwm awafa
TR-FTH e (a1 fgedoie aqee®) fasmrer anfvT AfausT awafasr &aaT aviied e | afs fadewer
T THH ARy TN ATeHare s, §@ ®9AT [l oFed AThd aXHE Rwg 99 I grafdesdrs
qa faguet el Jo=mn fHare g |
carrying amount
a1

fersh @ FATrS qfg Haitd 3t qe

S 7T grafdes famrer anfT afausr wqEr aEied Ay, fqes geera ar afkeies g5h | IRt
FATHIW ¥ GTSHT AIAAHT e IIF BT ATHATAATE @elebl FTH W 53w, |

319 S

3.99.9 9 T
FXART HATHTT fqe TAA ATTFATS ATRT IA TUFHT TARTAT Glebl &IAT AT 257 |
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FTAR] AAFR FHA T ATATT AAIH] AT A(qcABE Y INIFRBEATE GRAE AT AHIT g AULT TR
THEAAT AOA TG | BT A9reAl] giqaed HiqHT @y TRUST a1 3@ 97 6] "0H #Y @Rew T B
FTAAEED] ATRAT THH AT T, |

3993 W W
fairar sraaTer! faamoreT AT TRUET THH TAT ATART TAFT fedraet TUAT ARUFH THHAT g faeAarers arearaHn
TR FY GE (AT TR F A0 T S AGIF T G ¥ J&al Grafd (37 Zgeadr) g1 aiadadrg ARt
AT AT A g ATRTHI [aRuET S FX AT (@7 WAF #R @) F @rsd g | T F geiaars
AFTSAT g FET AT AET T G T (Aea@Hg AT TG G ST G AeET |

3R fem, R (Debt securities) T 37T @g@S IR
fadr, fadros qor FeTae ifcres Swd! FIHE GIdes g | (HaT d=aviq = fa= 79+ 98T (non-interest bearing
deposits), F=d &9, Hefq &M, & [Had q9r A MaT 95891 |

ARl AT F9UHT (Haraesd FqATiad Stad Hed SH&! AR a@d (qaas TH &1 | TRl (Afd 9o@r Jgid
fAaresd! FTATT I Hed ¥ Igd auR Hed AHUH A HUGEEH ATHNAT Irad Hedl, TG JATEAT, AT
Hige SREH T A TRIFAT AR HH TATAT AR G¥Ew FAN TR AT TG, | HOTAeEATs FATTFRI TS
TEE YANT T GREad ARTTAr AT (657 | A7 STFRIewdh FITaveted TAFdR] SATavesal giariad Tag |

2R HIEARE
FORTATAT TUHT TATEEHT PR Ahebl TTHT FIAAT T4 (AT afIca ST G AT ARG Aieheg T 1A
AEHATE T A(AF A AMMeRmg A GRATEAT g A7 Al AMIcasedl (i el d@rsd Teg | T8 a@rsd
Tivuer T feditds fafaar adum afaed awfaa Sifew 7 afi=dardrg aeaeR @ THRarE T AT99TE
T YHHFT AT SAH ATA &1 | AAATNT TG FATEHT HATERAT aAHE qMAcA ARAR I AGRATH AT
7 A ITh NG TATEH! ATHIT HehT ATIRHT o fharal Hea fHefor e | Onerous TFHRTATH AG=ATHN F@TFT
Y TG g, ST Sobel ERIATATE I T e ATTH=T GFRIAT I T A T (b @ ael &7, |

3.9¢ ARIHRT afg=m
ATqF AT FFATE YT g qIT AUGHH T ATRTHIH] (G9aaqirg ATIT T THaer AR q@r3 T4 e, |
FATT AT, consideration T THTHFT a7 AT TelcTHFH ATFRTAT AT T8 99 |

HTRTHIAT STST ATETA, 9Teeh ¥ BT, 38l TgTehT AT, Il AT, feeieier el Alfe JwraeT gras | SeuT

AT AT JATE & TFATEAT T ATRTAIATS SRUGT ®THT HIIH T Ak 8a@F ATRTIATs AT (257 | ATRTHIE]
O ifte R AT srafAr ArRrer afemr ARt S | T i dars AT afd aed AT
@rEd T Al |

F. ST AT
FAT TAT IS ATEF AT TR ARTTHT ARGUHT faiTar GeAtaare it g+ AT ATRTHIATS debel qIAT ST

Y

T (ST JAEHNT AT ot a1e eaptaus sl a7 A1 hl &) TART I 0T TH G |

UEFEedTs IaTH TRA Fell T4 ATIeare AT g ATd T TATAHNT TS &% fafg Awasia ured g+ AT = faetar
TR TXAT FAT AT AT AT HATAHT TN T, IRIEAF Sehesalls UEheeedls T T ol qar
ATaehT Siad Aty AT GReET (amortized) TRUST S | TAFHRT AT 32 (dfgepT T4 TOET 9 A @ I
fafirept qTerT TaT E9 RISETH=T 9&T &4 el ATH B |

TATARTE ST T el (i FFard a1 faxira sl aReiitgd @ura TOET T4 T AT AR a1 s @=es
FHEIId FATIHT allocate T fAfd &7 | THATAHNT AT ¥ A AN & &1 JTad ATHTNAT AaH 78 Jr=ir ar
RIS [T STFLUIH] ATHTAT THATATT a1, STIThH ATCATH], ATAT HH AHATATIH ATIRAT, faeira qeara ar
faxirar atforcarer @& fepdTell F=HAT (net carrying amount) discount TTE®, | THTEHTT ST 3¢ VAT &, Sebel fadira
IIAFT TS TERIAT TAe® (ITEIVH AN, T4 ShTHT [ahede®) AT LATTHT AR G JaTe ATH TH G a7
Al g HieT ATeTdTE HeATgd TH S |
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ICAN 3T ST TRUHT FI ATIE ATAR, TXAT 0T, i STFRueweerl GVRIared] do 9&7 fo=r qUel Teehabl
o4, IFe ANTA (transaction cost) ¥ aTT A MTHIH a1 geee THICTHT g Taw | IFAT TAAT AMGUHT AT
fairr ST 3T HeAHT TRATT BT II g ATH T ATHRITAATS (e Jode FUH! AATIHT ATHT a1 ATFTeh
farazoraT T TRUERT & | ATRT A7 AT AR Itad HedHT AMGUET AT ATgaewHl dTaidd AT AR T
GIATE GE AT AR 497 sr@rsg= 1w, |

AT ST SR IRTT FTAR dbel 3059 ATSTHATTHT I I TS ATFTAATE ATTHT @5 TN I |

9. T qAT HATA A

fa<irar Teafaal ook ¥ HHTT ATFars faxid Trafde TATaadR ATl ¥ ATITAT T g, | eI e,
T oo, fafreder™ e ¥ faaell 73T dFed HHT Fied o7 ok T FAAT AT FFalead Jaes Jar TRgIe=nd
@ e, |

M. ATHI AT
AR I T ATIRR TMIT Ul (ATl FrIEr @A ATl o@rsd T | 5T ardieT 9 g=g ad

ST FUBTUTRT ATHILT ATFRTATATS ATHRT AT [FaR0hT T AT i @S Tieeg |

°. G ATATCEH AT
St gewr afguer faxde suworer 3fad geadr afvadd g3 oI g AT ¥ AT dars fades See U

FATTAT ATHRT a7 ATFATTRT [TaROTHT AT T |

e faeft qgran faguan srafa sver sare= FOTEl FATHT AATE TET SUH 4G ATH/ (BTH) FTHEAT B |

€. FVTPL ®T a7 faiia IUHIv@E Woal @8 Jreaml
e geaar afauasr @= faxdia Susured Ifaa geaar aftady g3 I g @1 ¥ AT ars faees Seae U

FATTAT ATHRT AT ATFATTRT [TaROTHT AT T |

T, FEE dW

AT g

(&) HET F¥aad AR i g qaql T4, T

(@) FTE M= FOH 9T gE | AT A9 A et aadl THg ¥ AAE T g8 e tad Arearad
THUFFH FYFRET AAIETS AT [GE3T | ARTTH N 7 FETTH Tl Tle® T TUH G a7 g8, 9T (I
JETOT IS G |

qfeet § WEEHFE @A AT ARIAE ATTIAH FIA AT AT GEIT FA AN (69T FETers qope aidw
FEANT T LA I G AN AARAATS I g AATIb! ATHT AT AFGTTHT ATAAT (€33 |

ATRT AT ATETAH! AP BIAT TEAA A AT T AAETes ariad @= RAMESHT FHTES T, |

3 AW EH
qREIfad AT AT RS TR e aifaceedl M JWE@nl @S aE Fel & TAN T AT @
qQGTF MR | | ARG FTACEAT AT GoeATs Al ATIR F=AT@AH! @10 incidental AT 7 =maife
Tt 7 qfIcaesd! Itad Hed 97T q9 Iade® @8 ATIR ATTHT J&qa e, | THEIHRT TS 3% Tl I
T 21 ST ATHTA AR AE ITAT a7 TR IATATS (G STHUH] ATHIT FHATATT a7 ITAhH ATETH] FIH]
FH FHATATIRT ATETHT fair @t ar faxdrr atfacast g fFarer geaens discount TEs; |

3.9% FHAT Flaem FHART lqan swia
HAAFTEAT FHAT ATHE®, ST qoAd, TThTT A{Aafd, FTAGEATTTHT AT 7TE REFR T TATSAF G AT
FHAREE T JaTes Y T FAfqd AT U g | Sobel AT FHARIEEHT |17 afesfod e T
gfeifrd ARTeT ArsteE Afed ¥ dre-Rerrde @ AsHEE ge e 16E |
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AT AT AT IET TF AT &1 ST (A raezo dTqe IHH qRAad Tag S FHATT darardar
qISAE | AT ASAT SHX, HATH a9 T qAd T T a7 &l FRFEEHAT (9 55 |

oo

Qi TR TR AT Aol Te AT & ST Sebel (Afy=rd ANTaTs qehTe T4, 99 AW fqe & HraHT
T TAATCHE ST g |

SFET GRS AT AToTATeedT T aTdige HeATsae® Arad] queeHl AwdeH THIETEEH ard ATafad &Ta
v AT Tearsae® aMT @de UFeRewgRl dAAEa® g |

oo ~

A AMF qATalaFeEd] IgeTF AT AT FHIAe® [qreed] Irad AAHT THEY g 3 Aol aiaces
TFRIAA FTAEE JANT TR UFEARTA ATARAT AIF g | TR A9 AISTA1 aacass Jiqaad [AidqHT o
YS! RTER aRE% YART TR discounting TRUEHT |

Sepepl AT AT ATHITHH] [TaTUHT BTl JaT A, favdepl Far @R, 98 =TS @9 (A7), T ATAA] G
ANTE® THET B |

O ATOH, STEHT RIS AT T 8T, AT FFIqaT Jiahd (@3 TS @ (A7) T AT TFard SHAaedTI e dRTad]
STZATHT AT THHEE ATeeh), T GFId FAAT TRAdTe®H! TAE (| AfG AN qCHT), qowd g feafqer faazom
gtafatrad g, S AafaHT (other comprehensive income) 7 STI&% ATFRTATHT =TSl AT hige AT YT &7 |

T SATIH AT AT I I ATIHe® ARGUepT ATRTHT qowd Gfataterd gwae T afe o= saT9e ATkl faaworar
q: affeRd TR ST |

FHART G FH

FIAH THITH, TehebT Tl FHANEEA Godd FIT A=A ATHEE YT T §haR G, AT T TRATIT FRTETH AT
&1 STEHT FHET T FF Aot qa-fAEiid aEr ’ihd ARE TEE (@19, AR add & TSH Q0%)| bl ATH
ATTF ATET ATe ToaT BT ATTEER! AN AfTdT B i fored S |

AT shaa faan

SFehepl FHATNEE AT AT / FTANT FARUHT [TaTHl Tk T Aferehd® GrTePT FAETAT AN T@TaT TSHSA |
FHATIEE bl FHATT FAT (AAHTEAT AR ATF STHT AHIH / START FANTHT faa7 7718 T4 G | dobe
THFRTA TeATsA Gfqded ATaR |ad AR FFu dferd s faeT e s aiiT J@rsd WH G |

3qe e
TEeTH T@TET NFRS 16 ATAR TRUH B | Tl 9% TUMg dbel a¥ird TARTH AHR (right-of -use asset) T
agT AT (lease liability) ATIAT fEURT 5 | GEITT TARTER! ARIBRATS TRETHT Tl Tl ThT T Sebel Tl
Y o o . N NN ~ ~ ~ o
FA I YRIE el ANTTHT HIIH TR | 98T g% HUAle, sbel ANt Argd JART TR0 G JARTR! ATgeh AT

TH B |

AT HISA A= TFard JANTH] AT RATs ARTTHT |rad qederd ¥ ferd gl gars |/rae TRUH 3 |

Tl I IEAET 9l datawr fae oS qehTieedrg ST borrowing yield rate TN WY FAAHIN HeAHT HIAH
MRS B |

390 fadeft ag1 FRER, FHaE qAr Hisew
ST fairr faramor JOTel FHAT (%) AT AT AR G [ dbepl BT TAT G HZT T R G |

fagell HaTHT UHT FRIEREE IRIATE FIAT FRIAR TUH AT gafdd qedl TaT FafcHs Ha o@rse e, |
fagel HaTHT orETSA TRUHT Hifaw TE T qfcEes A wawrdr fqere qar i fafaer #atcrs e aad
FIAT [ARATRIT g, | T&AT AaAH! avaraeqs qreomAey faaefi fafrwa a7 qem, ¥ faeeft e qa@e=
Hifger TR T SMAcAEsh! TUBl A=TAT [ATTHT GTATE AIRT a7 ATRETRT (TRIAT TE= T S@rg T |

_ 31ST ANNUAL REPORT 2081/82 (2024/25 AD) EVEREST BANK LIMITED @ 39



O usrr= 3= e

EVEREST BANK LIMITED

Consi Strong & D dabl

Sterd Heaw T |79 iewH TR-wifyer qrafaes stad gea fAamer o fafawr faftee @2 93mT T8 sqane (translation)
g | ATRT AT AT "R i T HT ARaUET SfeRdl ¥ G TR-Hifge avdeenT dars faeaes stad qe

ATT AT BTHIehT H9Teh! TIHT ATHT a7 AT [FaRITHT HT T a5 |

3R fa<fim sma qan &=t gfqagan
faira SR el (it S SIS Aces THITH ST TH AT gal dbe] AT @ (Av=ra sSehm
fa smavas O UF GERIAT &1 | Bl FqagdTes AH TATTEed ST SHISTH ot faqae v gfdegar & 1w
yfeTergar ST T FqagdT & et Sbel AehalTs Holl (67 T MR=d T g73; a1 ATeehehl THaTE Sebel oll,
ATARGTHE, AT ST [ Ifqagar Sl g aX Rl Mafd T¥ TRl T9UH JawdrH], T ITHUES
forira ferarorT gfqagdre T9AT Ioeid T, |

AT qMTEeE T&T FAIEeE g STadl A A= A gades a1 daHd aeEsed 7 9fe g |
FET FAEGEHT ATTIF ATHEFT TR (Transfer of economic benefits) AAR=d gw a1 faeaaa &IHT AT TH
Tfepa | faxirr feafqept faamomr dafad aifrcres afesm wivwsr 87 a7 S grnfag afoe w1 T 39w v
THT ST AR (remote) AU FALATHT ATk TFATTAT IMTAERT GATAT TLHT B | Trqaad (AITHT Sebel Far
Tl faia e ¥ gfaagdresea! [aavu 9 ¥.3c A7 fegus 3 |

330 TOT ISt T SEST AAT FIWER
el % funding faxirr aiforea (o) a1 2feEdl €1 R MERO I NFRS 9, faeiir SueReoress: GRaciiedeer @] TEg |
afs & faxiTa SUHIEE TRRIATH! GIT Fohel JTFIFN dRFeTS 7 a1 AT (AT G¥I, a1 gladl TRes
TR T FTATT ST (o1 Taw, 9, AT TR TRUehT (i SUhUEe a7 [q-ile®dl component &g aTTIcaehl

BIAT TR TG |

IRRIAEEATS AT T AT AT TR &1 a7 FATHT FETewd "o &l Jr=gar fegwg ¥ fadare aamas

Mg |

333 gfd T s
HTIRAT IfT SR AT (Basic EPS) ATIRYT SARGATEEH ATNT g1 ATHT ATaT ATTHATs |1 FATTR] ATHT TEH
SRR AT faars T Torer AR |

Diluted T 9797 ATFETHT (Dilute EPS) ATIRUN RRAFIEEHT ATNT Teehl ATHRT AT AT TS STARGHIR G Dilutive
IR IR SRS THTATSA T R 1w |

3.3R dvare foafds
TEATeT YFHE AT SAehebl AT SobTs / ATTATE qhea;
o HW ATFAIF TATaladT TeHTNT 9 AR FASS T @ TG (Al AT THEes AP FRIAREEATE TUFH]
TR JAT @ qHA)
o STEH AT URUTH (HATHT FqHT Sehebl THE FATAT (HOThalel THET TS ¥ SHIGEeells S ATaeed! [qaras
T [0 oy, qoT Seprgeval el e e |
o SHH faEyq faxiia =T Suaed |

bl T (monitoring), FFTEA (supervision) ¥ =IO (control) @i & WHTET A=A Ia ATHT QT
ToATAE® FALATIT TEG | SATIR SHSEEH! FEAGHET AT T A= Sh1g ek T AT AR TRUHT G | A
STehE® THT Febebl TXAT T2 (nullified at banks level) TRTET & | Sebel FITHT AT TIITHT T ST(eAE AaATeicTe]
HTIRHAT FFHEE® qie=T WH G |

S grT fard wifvudr FwEee Afqeewd THEHT YoAs AT UdeE AR item &% @19 SfAd STETRHAT Allocate
T Al item & TS | Allocate TTRTHT item AT HEATAT HURKE AFIIEE (HEATAT Sehebl FARE Hae), FaT

FTATAT GIEew, ¥ FY qEITdes ¥ qfIcaes THEY G S g Trafd /qfacaesdl ®qaT aRiied T |
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fadi=r fdazorg=d) 311 doli3al eices

9IIdoT 9, 20T &Ra 32 3MUIG 20T2 JAFH

Qo= 3= fafras
EVEREST BANK LIMITED

Consi Strong & D

FAAT ¥.9 - TE JAT TR FHH

TG T NG ARTARHT el G THH, A oAb AT (AT GRATEERTR! HISATd, AN qAT Hed GoAaTaT U g+ T,

A AfATT=T FH FAATTH Alfde TRIFAT TUH doll [aedews T aMeiedl e AFTaR I5qd TRIH F |
faawon ITO@ 3R, R05R TG 39, Ro5q
BRI R,35¥ U304 JA0R %%R 9
e AT fa<ira WEATAT TEehl Hivard ¥ 33%,0%% ¥3¥ 3E%3,999 5%
AT qIT A GATHT I &l ThH - 3,200,000,000
W - -

3 AfEATH ESE forer - 219,938,100
arteie AR - 9R,¥3%¥ 500
ST %,9R0,%3R,¥5R %, ¥9R,019,30%

* 7T 3 TTCHT Sl 9%, §43,000 ¥ YEHEEATE el TRUHT AT.E. 993,400 T TAATS [ATHTHT AT NRB
TITSTHT 9% NRBERT AifaUet g |

AT ¥} - AU ;L FHAT R Aivad qqr foq ot

AfaTd 7T Afseaer Hisard fed TUTe 6 FHAT TgehT HioaTd AHTER F&qd TRUH 3 |

SE 37, 205 ST 39, Rocs

ATl ST FHAT TEhT TeT(HF HIoaTd 99,3318,089,9%9 %,0004%9,93%
9 farshl TERTAT AT @ik TR frda= 3%,400,000,000 -
T A AFAT TEH] A7 (AT AT (oI ATl AT THH R3%5c S ¥9,590 3,994, 0¥ Y 353
T3 AT ST (AU, 9%)

STHAT

¥, 94, 1%, RR5

¥9,98R, %0%, 3%

HET ¥.3 - S qar fachiw deamn @R Hwa

it fafa 3fe S afemr wwar adrer Aifas afvqamar quer @gel qor fagel S g faxig g fafhes

[AFTTAR 9% TRUE S |
foazur
Tl ofeh quT faeiiar FEATAT T8l /v - -
fagel e qor faxiar Famar @ Areard 822% 543 ¥ %,%30,3% Yo%
TATIH: ATRATAT Sqaen (3,%5,390) -
Ralaall 9,225, 454, 154 %,%30,99,45%

31ST ANNUAL REPORT 2081/82 (2024/25 AD) EVEREST BANK LIMITED @ 41



c)rr =% fafmae
EVEREST BANK LIMITED

Consi Strong & D

qTEAT ¥.¥ - e faeim SuFuEk (Derivative Financial Instruments)

Shafees AT AaTe® &1 S9d A &, G JEgadl 9, 5@ g, [Gaell [@ag &, Hige Snad,
YARFEE ATNCHT TRATAS] FIAGHATHT ATHT HeAl I T, | SRATCHe=aATS 8fe ITHIH ®GAT dlfHT dTad
SATIRET FIAT FAd g | g Sheafedes qwer afe=me i 7 d9fg Sfaa qeamn ame e, a9 O Jeie
AT AT AFe® gs AT AR AT ATRT a7 AFTH [FaRurdT 9fe=rd Mg | SkAfedes Itad qeaw
e ivrgA ¥ fadessr Stad g0 gerTeHs g3 gt &q9r ¥ fadeser 3fad g0 woneHs ga1 arfucaesed
=T gy | Sfaa He feaifds fafa @1 (forward market ruling) aTR &% AT TR fAERo 1fewg; |

faraor AW@ 3R, Rw&R HEE 39, 059
T gt i arr - -
EIEEEECIE - -
HeT =1q : -
gfor fafrwa awsar 3,409 933 9y 3 ,5%%,083 453
. . -
Ffew qaeamaaat i amoT - -
TSI @Tq - -
HeT =& ; -
wfrw fafra Fwhrar - -
pr— _ -
STFT 3,499,973, 043 9,%%¥,0%%,453

HAGAT ¥4 - AT ATE FFIEe

SFHHT F i ATATRRE Tt S
f@er | gWmER W0 | HE I, 05 |
qATA GIHTRRT HIATT - -

el gXIWTa HWOIA - -
R (=l - -

T - -

STHAT
ferar ifaTar - N
fardr FRTfEueT - -

I ¥.% - % qar fach @earrd fgw w9 qan qwe
agfa faxira dedaewdrs afsad & Fofiel ®IAT g Foll a7 AICHT AIAF ATl FaedT vars a9 ofiis
FA T TRTH G |

feawon AM@ 3R, 08X AM@ 39, 059
T HEATEwATS [QUHT FHol 2,550 4%4,99% 9,9%¥Y %40,9%0
T . .
IS ol AT AaedT 85,504 549 23,2¥9 3%
STEAT R,\959, 948, ¥%5 9, 4R, %53, ¥
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FAGAT ¥.%.9 - FAl AFA TFEAT

O uwz= = fafizs
EVEREST BANK LIMITED

Consi Strong & D

faazur TG 37, R05R @ 39, R0sd
STE0T q T HieaTd R3,2%933% 992,294 994
TG qTD] ATFITA] AL - -
T qVR] LT Y545 333 -
aqelt / - (%,339,05%)
AIIET TXTHT THH - -
TG TR AT R5,50Y, W49 23,2%\9 33

HAGAT ¥.9 - TEEFATE fGUHT FAT qAT AU

b e faxiiar edre® aed Uedewdrs eI TRUH o &l ¥ ATHEEH TRl T, @ivg TR faaes,
B ¥ FHANT HIEESR TRANGd ARTAH ANTHAHAT. A AT Hers, a9 e J=md 9&qd TR g |
SFehepl AT TR T TheATE JTAT RIS AE[AqT SATTGR AT AIeATs FHATT HOTHT TR AT A |

feraror HHE 3R, J05R HEE 39, 059
GIeeTird ARTAAT /YA TTRTHT Sl o 29%,%3%,2%9,339 959,495,354, ¥ Y
HATSH: oAl AT Sqae - -
HT&%‘&F AT ST R,LYR4R0,30% RARR0¥T LYY
T AT AT R4 349,0%% 53%,5%0,350
gq A R93, ¥35, ¥R0, 903 995,14, 35, W1

FTRT AT fedTe AR IrEaHAH (FVTPL)
HTOT TR FoAT 4T 9

STHAT

RN, ¥35, ¥R0, 903

99z, R4, 385,91

HAGAT ¥.9.9 - FAT TRICH ATITLAT FAT qAT GTIEHT {Tweroor

[ECE NG 3R, RwGR AOE 39, 059
AT JhY

R 193,905,9%0,3%0 94,353,350,000
eI 43,4%9,599,34% 3%,400,310,000
=TTl JoIT ol 99,23%,89%,3%0 ?,%%4,%\90,000
afafasd weir 3,395,059 9%R 3,395,400 %93
AT Bree Holl ¥Y,390 Y10 %5 35,419%,394,4 90
S fefaee / fara e R,R¥Y R95,%R L,%4%,44%,599
TR qAT 7 =7 Iil ol RALARELALE 95,%¥0,3%9,390
TR AT Pl R¥,33%,33445 RR,%95,9¢ 3%
foaer T w=i 9,0%9,55%,R%% %,3%%,934,300
i wfreg ot 3,¥%¥0 939 50% 3,03%,294,%0%
BOR =S oIl 4,465, T ¥R, ¥0Y 3,%%5,R99,¥%%
faa=T =7 ol 90,9 Y 3% 59 Q,35%,399,909
foe @fvg 800 Q03 %59 ¥3,0%%,30%
FHATT Holl R,099,%%%,343 q,95% U T¥3
qa 99,359,9%¥%,559 99,90,%¥¥3 ¥ ¥q
ST Y, %5Y, 130, %91 950,440,39%,5%1
I T ATl AT 539,304,954 q,0k990 0%
FA FTFAT T, UIE, URE, ¥UE 959,495, 35Y, ¥_Y
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HTFAT ¥.9.R - HETR! ATATCHT FoAl qAT ATIEHT fazersor
fowr | FOG 3, 2053 | HIE 3, 2051 |

AT FAT

R9R,99%,33%,294

995,704,324, %%

qRAT B

FHTHT TR

<,9%% 35%,4%9

R,65R,85%,950

e fgdT e

T

ST

=SS AT

a2

STHAT

RR%, 195, 4R%, ¥4%

159,495, 35, ¥4

FAEHT ¥.9.3 - fuar LAY ATITCAT FAT AT AL (T favAwor

faaor ATHTE 3R, R0&R TG 39, 059
TR

ECVE R 9R8,3%0,%%3,930 9%%,44%,509,0%0
A AT =TT - -
Zeefl o a9r (A el ST - -
FIHT STHAT 9R5,93%, ¥ 9% 95,993, ¥ 33
frara erreTaEeRr fuar R,3099T0R R¥Y 4,%¥4%,9%0,000
ﬂ’g’ﬁ-r feraeRt fadr R,005 %9 %RY RER,R¥RRR
TR ey foar U ¥ 3% 3Y,2,93 505,
FTIvaT AATAT - -
SfeRITa ST 525,098 3% 30Y,5%%,959
g faar 9%,59%,499,44% %,R19,R8095%
ST %, U9%, URE, ¥U% 959,495, R5Y, ¥_Y,
FRETT ATHT - -
FA SF R, Y%, YRS, Y% 959,495, 35Y, ¥4
w1t Ifeafad Aeaet ed T FHAEEATS AUH T HIE QU THH FHH, d2 AT aled |

FAGAT ¥.9.¥ - FAT AFAAET ATEAT

faawon
IEHLRCIETIC R ELR1

W@ 3R, RoTR

JqM@ 39, R0z9

ST § %l AT

G3%,5¥0,%%0

9R3,493,%0%

T qYPT AT T

T TR T

195%,35%,%4¥

79 99 IoaT/fmar

15%,55%,%3%7)

Aqetde

faceft w1 fataee &3 Favtarar &R A sraen

¥ qieadd

OIS WHT=THT HIveTd

TY¥,49,0%%

53%,5%¥03%0

aHfzw AwaE e

S q & WA

JAR3,0¥E LY

R,330,459,¥4%

TG qYRT AT LT

T TR THT

9%,%93%%%

18R,¥%4,09%

7 99 3o/ fmar

faaelt #aT fafaae @7 Ta=Tarer &R Jremr arae

ERItCnr

TG HETThl HISaTd

RA¥RAR0,30%

43,005 L¥

ST FAT AT ST

3909, %59 333

3,3%R,55%,99¥
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Qo= 3= fafras
EVEREST BANK LIMITED
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e 9T faiid FRATATS T YTEhels [GUHT o1 qAT FISHT BTHI ATRTHET - (TR I=erdr e Ty |
e JUTT T SFebehl 9T . 0%/ W AIfET FEIfTH g FrRT qTdTT T |
97

® NAS 39 &I (para 63) AT fAfete AieuH &fq A AT AR R TRTHT &1 T TFH |

TS AT Fehed T FAT AR AT T TSR €3 T NAS 3% FTHINTHFT BT AT faawer 7=

JbIR <
faawor TG 37, R05R W@ 39, o059
b T4 faeira gearenrs fGusr s qur 99 ¥395%,¥9% -
MEhATS [GUHI Holl AT I 399,553,554 9,39%,4%9,395

NAS 39 &1 (para 63) @1 ffde wiewar erfa

A dige s fafror afegst gt A @
TATA AT el M 7. 0%/ 95 HT JMMPU FHITTH
HEIIEEIGIERIE ke

qY g AeW IoA

3,159, 0%5,359 9,394, X¥9, R95

ERGUIES IR0 £ 3,¥44,53%,903

3,30, 395, 55Y 3, %44, 53, 103

qTEA ¥ - fedEE a
ool faxiTd ATGTEEHT TN IS a9 of@l i =it I aie®HT Y&qd TRUHN @ &S AT a1 AT-Tare
Iferd qed AT AP a Al frdra, qieniad ARTaaT J799 TRUHT @1 T T 97 AT9% ATl /I d 3rad

HAAT AT TRUHT & = |
faraor JTG 32, 052 | G 39, 059
afeetifera aRTaT "rOw iU fadraEar aRmH ¥ g q0Y, 335,39% ¥3,500,330,39%,

o= faeqa s "ha 3fEd HeI AT (FVTOCH)
A9 TRUH 977 (S(FIET) AT AL

4,335,0%%,0%%

93¥3,RAQIRY

STHAT

¥R, ¥¥3, ¥39, ¥8

¥¥, 163, %9%,4%3

ST TR HOTTH T UHARET I fcie®l AT & S qiRefferd ARTaa 1o e, | AP FOTTaT TUh

TR AT TH TFR |

FEAT ¥.5.q - afesfaa awaar " i s s

fermon WG 37, 05| AHTE 39, Roaq
EIEES - -
TIHNT HOAT TIAT FIE ¥q,53¥ 43,043 39230 33% 399
IITHRT o<l e ¥ 5434005 EREEREERAE

TITA AT Sfebebl HOTH TAT TUE

YT CE Aebehl AT FUBUES

aa Q,¥99,4%0,99% Q,%¥98,44R,¥ 5%
TS [a9Ty & AT Sawt (¥0Y ,\9Y) -
ST ¥z, 904, 335, 39% ¥3,500,330,31%

qfeeiifrd ARTATHT |G TRTHT AT STFRUEEHT F &1 T4 Y& T g7 | 79 ofide d=aiiq bl o
FEIAT /AR AR ¥ FEer=ar /avgdl Wbl AT J&d TR G |
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H FFIAEED AT AT FFegH Grdl [FATEr T&qd TRUH § |
FEEt ¥.5.] - o7 fawm s vk Sfea wemen Amw fvgewr R (gfEe) s

feraoT HTE IR, 053 | TG 39, 059
TR SIRES 9,94%,503 4R% 9,955,994, ¥k
AT ATTH SREe 953,3%%,4%¥ 9% 453,045
STFAT 9,335,08%,0%% 9,363, %R, k¥
FAGAT ¥.5.3 - fuat a et ST
ATE 3R, R05R G 39, 2059
v | st g ik Eki

TR FAEEAT T

fd Sear % fafaes AR R19R59ER% 5RO SR0 SRR
(@l FR) q,855,%%% %, 400 Hiq)

(050-59 : ¥ FTERI IR &, 400 i)

(@A T 4,255,887 Q00 ufd)

T FaT Afa faci @war fafhee 80,590,000 Y¥,5%,800 80,590,000 9%3,505,500
(afeet RMDC @gfam faxirg &1 fataes)

(FaTE TIR) Y45 298 & 00 Jid)

(2050-59 : (A=HTeE FTR) ¥%3,3%0 & 900 i)

AREMS [T &leat 4,000,000 ¥z %45,000 4,000,000 ¥9 2% ¥,000
(AR 97R) 43,000 % 400 Ffe)

(050-59 : (ATIRI IR) 40,000 %. 400 Hfa)

FHFd WOHRT Mutual Fund AT T

NIBL 3fg FIT (4,000,000 FTE % {0 i) 40,000,000 40,080,000 40,000,000 90,%¥0,000
I THTE FT (400,000 TFE ¥ 0 i) 4,000,000 Y,994 000 ¥,000,000 ¥ 504,000
ARAE FFAT FUE 3 (400,000 THE 7. 40 i) 4,000,000 Y,0%Y,000 ¥,000,000 ¥ 940,000
Sunrise Focused ST #1T (4,000,000 Z8TE %, 40 ) 40,000,000 90,0%0,000 90,000,000 5,3%¥0,000
fergrd @ gfg AT 3 (3,000,000 TR F Q0 9fd)| 30,000,000 30,200,000 30,000,000 45,200,000
NIBL feR 1 (4,000,000 Za&TE %, 40 Tid) 40,000,000 40,0¥0,000 40,000,000 40,000,000
fafest=r a1 30 FFA FUE (400,000 TFE 7. 90 T 4,000,000 ¥,0%0,000 ¥,000,000 ¥,000,000
feATeaT 8020 (400,000 Z&TE &, 40 Fid) 4,000,000 %,030,000 ¥,000,000 ¥ 834,000
| I S R (4,000,000 THE & 90 Uid) 40,000,000 90,430,000 40,000,000 % 3¥0,000
e a’qﬁ{ IS (4,000,000 ZaHTE &, 40 id) 40,000,000 40,000,000 - -
AT FAT BE 9 (3,000,000 THE % 40 U{d) 30,000,000 42,450,000 - -
MBL Ziedl T (4,00,000 THTE &, 40 W) 4,000,000 ¥ &5Y,000 - -
TAUHAT BTE9E #1T L- 1l (10,00,000 3&TE % 40 Uid)| 40,000,000 5,230,000 - -
Reliable Tfg AT (4,00,000 TFTE %, q0 ) 4,000,000 ¥ 5y 000 - -
TR TR WO FAX T Mutual Fund geRT st 39%,4¥%, 588 %,503 4% | 98, 4¥E, 89 9,95, 99, ¥&&
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AWG 3R, R05R AW 39, Roz9

R 3ItEa g ART 3ItEa g
ATRA AWTHRT TTEEAT AT
T [aig ared fAarAds 3,400,000 ¥\, %¥3¥ L0% 3,400,000 35,954,385
(FTITROT 9797 94%,%%Q . Q00 Hfd)
(3050-59 : (AT 91X 459,99 %. 400 Hid)
FHAT AT by foT. R, 400 | 9R95R,R0¥% q,33¢,100 q0%,593,%¥4q
(AT 9TAR) q4%,%¥0R & 00 Hfq)
(050-59 : (TR §7%) 94 Y03 ¥, 400 gfd)
wiftz Sfepe gfirerr wear LUARSYRO | 9505,04% | 4,53¥,5%0 RR,2¥¥,208

(FTIRIT 917%) 990,90R %. 900 gfd)
(3050-59 : (AIERT §14%) 93, ¥\% &, 900 Hfe)

HAtRa ANTHT mutual funds AT AT
AT TR T 4,000,000 4,090,000 - -
(4,00,000 THE & q0 i)
TR qeltEd AWTE W) T Mutual Fund &R st ¥,33R,8%0 | 953, RRY 4&Y 4,490,3%0 VY {53,945
STEAT RRE,598 %R9 | 9,335,0%%,0%3 | q90,999,0%V 93¥3,R%,RRY

qTAAT ¥R - A FY qFAA
Sfepel STFAT TXeRT ATTH HTHT F2 IMIT T2g a9 9T Fevia A TUHT B, | ETeh HATAHR, eeh T SACATATEERT
JEYIAHT ATNT AIIAT I qMIcdes I 9eh F=aiid I&qd TRUH B |

faaor TG 37, R05R TG 39, 059
AT FT FEA

RIS IR AT BT T R,93%,959 15% q,5%5,3095,099
afereet] auEweh! H T 9Y,05% 9’3 %Y 93,%39,49% %43
A FY AUA

=T TR ATHHT IMTH (R,R9R 58 ) (9,%55,04%,%9%)
T qUETH F2 IMTAEE (9%,498,0%%,00%) (93,553,25%,3%9)
ST 39%,%3%, %09 499, 9%, TYY

HTGHAT ¥.90 - TEHF HFEIAHT AT
IeherT FH TeTIF FEIAT G |

faaon NG 3R, 0GR NG 39, 059
AR TUH! FeTdh HFIATAT AT - -
STHEAT ST
TS AR eqaen - -
gg T TH - _
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EVEREST BANK LIMITED

Consi Strong & D

HTGAT .99 - TG FEOAAT AT

Il HATS FHIET HIGHhT RIEAT [ATHIGHT AMAIERT L% STFadl FUTHT AT ETHT TGP , TIATS FTHTTEAR
Sl o yanT T dfguesr 3 | rEifauasr At afgewr afaer uhitaue s gt W sraifEad faxdie
BTEATSEE®HT AT @ | HYATS el HIZH! HIeATd [diAdsd NFRS FTAR ATHFI fadid fqae qamr Tl
I ALY TRATTUEAHT AT Aleecd] GAAP FATd ST i@l I IaR JaR Tuel faxira faazorar amanfed &
AHRTHT 9T TATT & 9 935,53% (Afdedl a9 & 905,¥9330%) qUal Rarg #Afigare faamwe fsrvdwm ewxarao
TRTHT F |

feraro A 33, Ro5R TG 39, 2059
T FFG FFIATHT A WR9¥¥,39% 53,353,945
TR AT FFelg HFIAAT AT - -
STERT S - -
T AT AT - -
g frardl T e, %%, 39 53%,%53, M5

AT ¥.91.9 - THGA AOHT TFAg FFIAAT AT

\ ATTE 3R, 0GR \ ATTE 39, 3059
il kil i sfoa 7=

FRATS FHIEl AISH AT [AHeS 40,000,000 WR39¥¥,39% | %0,000,000 53%,353945
(3,35%,5¥% 9fd 97X %. 00 ¥ FHd AR
3,¥5%,5%%) | (R050-59 : (IR 97A7)
3%35,59 ¥ oo gfd)

ST Eﬁﬁ?ﬁ FUHT FAT T Mutual Fund Z&AT AL 40,000,000 VR, 1¥%, 31 40,000,000 ©3%,%%63,945

FAGAT ¥.99.R - FHAIHA AHTH] TG FFEIAAT T

SHE 33, 0GR AWE 39, 059

AT kRl SIAE Stord gex
................ fof........ %7 PR % e - - - -

48 @ 315" ANNUAL REPORT 2081/82 (2024/25 AD) EVEREST BANK LIMITED _



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & NOTES

Qo= 3= fafras
EVEREST BANK LIMITED

Consi Strong & D

HTEAT ¥.99.3 - SHAT GFAG FEOAGRRT AR

WG 3R, R06R M@ 39, Rozd
TYATS FHAEl HIZH RIeATH [AHeg U U

FTAT ¥.0.¥ - TG FOAGeR! giHaa] Tod

ICCE MG 3R, R05R MG 39, 059
FRATE FRIAEl ATZH! HIEATH [AHdS PR,9¥¥,3% 535,353,945
STFAT 9%R, %%, 3% 53%,R53,45

AT ¥.9R - TFFAHT T (Investment Property)

T ¥ ITHIUH] EIAT FNThd dTed ST a1 SN T A, ¥ Ao a@l A6 qwaiid [ashibl AT ahauar
TR-9Tq] FFIdes a9 of@l iU S UEqd TR @ | THT Aol TR-3Afhg T ®THT AR TH X
fershl TRTRBT ST, ST 7 qa FHTAT B | T3 AR 3, 050 I IR Afyg aeala A o Y A Gt
B | T3 TR AfsT gwtaew feafq AR % g

ferarzun STUTE 33, 0GR HTHTE 39, Roaq
Ifaa qeomn wow st @ aeata
ST 9, 059 HT Hieard

- T quET 99 /fahr - -
Net changes in fair value during the year
- U / TR

g3 &H - -

ARTE AT AOA TR A qeare
ST q, 059 H1 HISSTd YRR,3%3,39¢ -
7 Afepg Tt ¥3,009,59% 433,333,394
- 79 YR g9/ o=y -
FHTITS / FTATRI -
gT THFA Y%¥,3RY,05% YRR, 3R3,306Y
et %Y, 3%, 05% YRR, 33,306y
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EVEREST BANK LIMITED

C

i Strong & D

et ferep? |Td uT. e 99/3/30%3 39,359,054 ¥5, 599,084
RELCGT] 90/93/3033 ¥,540,000 ¥ 540,000
THE TH= 1. fa R0/9R/3033 % 454,200 2,454,200
itz T8 YHa TAmd 3/9/30%% - 14,035,359
fretoT 2TEaer Tre gead 90/9/30%¥% EEECFICH 4R, 4UT9 %
ATy Fael TR/ gHEART 5 (FR) 99/9/30%% ’,3R¥ 355 ?,3%% 355
woreT FergeT fer 99/9/30%% 30,943,320 30,943,320
AT TS 15/9/30%% 3,%¥33, %99 3,%¥33,¥99
AT T Teel] TS ¥/3/30¥ % 453,000 % 4%3,000
T HEH FraTTEol o 95/3/30%% 15,240,933 15,240,933
BT SraaTSoTol q0/% /0¥ ¥ 000 000 R%,000,000
EIECRERAKE] q0/% /30%% Y,50%,000 Y,50%,000
I BT AT q0/% /303% 35,000,000 35,000,000
AT TgT AN 93/% /R0%¥ 3,385,500 %,%%%,%00
FeHr afgg HFr 9Q3/% /0% 30 ¥¥3 000 30,%%3,000
oft Sl |t gerad 9%/ ¥ /30¥ 3,593,651 3,593,658
aferar fepmr age /4 /0¥ 4,450,000 4,450,000
T $8 A9 ewe fafade 30/Y4/30%% - 10,%45 %39
Traw drawdier a1, fa 95 /%/30%% - 19%,333,3%%
TTAT AT qTeR 99/9/30%¥ 2%%,03% 235,034
T TRA TR Q¥ /9/303% 9%,5%%,000 4%,5%%,000
St wi . e, 1% /19/30%% 55 %%3,000 ©5,%%3,000
E I A PR I A A 94/ 9/303% - 3,50%,09%
TEAT Pleg WA Q4. /9/303% 19,535,539 49,53%,5%9
HEERECE 3/%/30%¥% 5,225,350 -
AT AfgepT H=a+ Yrgde fafads 4/90/303% ¥,3%%, %% -
TOrT ST 92/99/30%% 4,299 ¥R -
faremre I 93/99/30%¥% 93,4%9,000 -
FIMA B (BT T 3/9%/303¥ ?,333,3%% -
I e 23/9/303% §,430,000 -
LIEIEERERE T 99/3/30%¢ ¥z q%3,5%% -
REER ] /% /30%Y 39,349,2.9% -
JeT gy R/% /30%Y, 3,3%,000 -
TAT Fleg (g e 3R/% /R03% 99,3%3,400 -
T e/ AAHAT <Ay & /4 /0% 9,098 4% -
e FawT 9/\9/303% 3,050,000 -
THFT BT uT. o 90/9/303Y 4,540,000 -
gegayars R/ @ fRr et 99/8/303% 3,085,349 -
g fawe aog 1% /9/303Y 3¥,%33,000 -
TG HERT 9% /8/303%, ¥,339%30 -
STHH TedT WU 94 /8/303%, 40,203,305 -
T FreTITEoHST 9% /9/303Y 33,450,000 -
ST Y%¥,3RY,05% 43R, 3%3,30Y
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & NOTES

HAEAT ¥ - T F qEACA

O o= 3= e

EVEREST BANK LIMITED

Consi Strong & D

IR #7309 1 FTHE FY a7 FANT TR (axiF el / SHaRAre! T&de A ¥ GHIfd/ IAearsl 7 dTdRes

=] FAEATAT TATEeAT AT g, | [FaRe MFAER Y& TRUH S

T JETT TEF Q053

g #¢ et Az wafi| &Y
Frfaee T AT FFafEE /
TRRAEE)
e aeaEe st firaeeat wafi| #3
AT TE (NBA) - - -
EAUBIRCEIEENEECAL i k) - (RUR,049) (RUR,049)
FATE TR A - (33R,9%4,5%0) (333,9%4,5%0)
EREIREIEES - (RIZTER,RR%) (RIZTER,R%)
TEARESHAT ST 3L UES - 34¥Y U5s
Tt JUART T A e ¥3%,940,33%, - ¥RR,940,33%
FHATY afesfoe @ s 2,203,433 - 2,203 423
CIECIEES
AT ITST SFFHT TEHT Hiward 9T fofe o 985,293 - 955,293
AT Bonds 99,99 ¥ - 1R9,99%
b qr faI ST @R Hiserd ?50,¥%3 - 250,%%3
I FATAT faeares - - -
et freamgenn eafim w3 Y0¥, ¥%\9, 00 (4%¥%,%59,9%3) (¥R,9%3,4%3)
YART FARTRT S TGTSTAT HT BTl TNTT HT
T FTAT URATRT PRI TN HY
R05R FT FHHT AW FA TAR@ FT TFA / (FALAEE) (¥3,1R3,4%R)
Y/ (AT) ATHRT AT K@ AT {1 Toq R09,RE&Y, ¥R
Y/ (A™) 37T ATqF AT AT AT T (63,494, %5R)
Y/ () JeTeT TUAT IFG T AFTAr gt Y&, ¥ee
afita T (@Fafe) /ITAEE MGt 9, 09 AT (93%, 505, 3%R)
THT ASTIAT IoATd / (Feal) 53,%9%,9%
IR T G/ (™) ATRT a1 A AT AT g (%0,3%9,0%%)
TIfiTd T T/ (AT) J7T AqH AT AT AAAT T (33,3R3,\934)
AT ®T T/ (AT) THET TUAT TRFASTHT ATAT T -
e JE TG Q059
TR & et Az wafim #T
qrafoge T qTcage qrafage /
AT
e aEaEEaT sl faAaeear el ¢
B/FI's @8 T ¥ AR - - -
TEFewdrs HI T AUH - - -
AT TH (NBA) - - -
FATS T AT - (93,%9¥,353) (93,%9%,353)
SR fraras (ATl FHOrT) - (349,24 % %4 %) (399,24%,%4%)
R gfasfa (FvTocl) - - -
TEARTEEHT AT - (R3,55%,2,%09) (R3,55%,2,%9)
FrIfd, TR T FHAT FE AATTEL - LA TR
FH=TE qfeiod are Frer ¥OY ¥RE 3R - ¥OY, ¥R%,3%
o aforces ,5%3,%45 - 4,553,295
ERIELSIRINEECIE - - -
oI fHeaTEEH e T %94, 9¥Y, TR (%09, 443,%55) (934, 508, 3%R)

YAMT ARTeR] HAME TRTSTHT B ETETRT TINTT HT
T VAT URFATRT PRI TN HT
R0%q T AWHT HAFTHT FA AN FY TFAA/ (IASRATEE)
TN T (FHT) /TTATES SE0T 4, 050 AT
TUET HATIHT It / (Feal)

Y/ (ATT) ATET AT A AT AT ITedq

=T/ (A™) 7T AqF AT AT AT T

T/ (AT) JAET TYAT TfFG AT AT T0d
TIfita Y ST/ (W) ATHRT a7 AFAE AT ATTAT JTA
IR T T/ (AT) I AqH A AT ATAAT T
TIfiTa T A/ (AT) T TUAT ZfFard /T AT Jreet

(134,505,3%R.00)

_ (W3R00FRY
(¥9,335,2%%)
1%0,29%, 424
(R%%, 5%, ¥9%)
Y%, ¥4
(59,459, 434)
(45, ¥4)
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EVEREST BANK LIMITED

Consi Strong & D

HTGAT ¥.9% - AT FEAA

¥ FEIfdesHl GTdres 9T, ST Y, Gferd o, 99 Sehr, (e, TafTd HH=ml dares T Wl @ [qarues

e =T g=qa TRUE B
faawor TG 3], R06R @ 39, R0zl
forshTeeT T Jueted qwta - -
fere atebT s G54 43% 54,305 ¥ ¥
BlIECIC IRl - REIRERR
ARTH SR T &I 936,455 45 % 994,448, 99¥
CIREAS q49,¥ 95,000 R0Y¥ 0% 033
T FHATT @ q,445,33%,30% 9,¥33,R%5,5%¥5
I e 1Y %53 Y9 19,53% 454
STFT 9,5RY¥, 5%\, ¥EQ 3,099,490, 3¥%

T ¥.99 - % qav facfiw gearg fod atwr www
79 ofiie Fvad o= S faxdiia Feameeare (aTes EEus 3 | fFaro HEmar @ g |

[ECEW TG 3R, RocR TG 39, Rosd

HAT a6

9T S AT 4,900,384 ¥0 3,3¥% 925,38
T qT fairr gearEware 9= fdT 3,334,259 %o 9,099,50% %9
AFEATE JAT ferafes @Tar (Settlement and Clearing accounts) - -
m - -
il 3,¥3%,%¥3, 305 3, %39, 000, Q4%

FTEAT ¥.95 - AT TG Sharg o arHr

SHHT T AL AFaTE AT [ARHSAT GiadT Wl B, TAATS SBATHITH TE TRTH G |

feraon

U@ 33, R05R

ATE 39, 2059

IRIRIEEGIIERL

AT T SFATE lender of last resort FfET

T @RE FRRIAT A (ool TRUHT fqarTT

TS T ApeTs [ T a7 THH

STFT
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O uwz= = fafizs
EVEREST BANK LIMITED

Consi Strong & D

T ¥.9% - feafew fa<im SuwvuEs

ShHfeves A ATaTe® &1 99d & &, [add JEaasl 9, awq@l qd, [daell [@Hag &7, Hhige wrad,
FEAFFEE ANGHT GRATAR] FIACRATHT ATHT AF I Tag | SRAfeeemars 2iiag ITHedl &I qliet aed
AT &THT Fied Mg, | Fof Sfedfaves yremr qfe=ns Tiveg ¥ ufg Staa g Amw 1fes, a9 gF-qeis
AT AT ATFITHEE Ga ATINE AR AT ATRT a7 AT H [FaRorHT 9ie=nd 1eg | SRafces Iterd Jeda T
g TirgA ¥ fadesasr Sfad g0 gerreHs g3 gt &aar ¥ fa-esesr 3fad g HoneHs ga7 arfacaesd

&= fag=g | Sfaa we feaifde fAfa &1 (forward market ruling) a=IR &% 9T TR (g Tfewg; |

for ] TG R, 2053 VTG 3, 3059

reiar H@M9 (Interest rate Swap) - -
Hal €M1 (Currency Swap) - -
g fafea I=RMET (Forward Exchange Contract) 3485, ¥03%%0 9,%30,%0% 3%
= _ _
rsiar H@M9 (Interest rate Swap) - -
Hal &M (Currency Swap) - -
Afre fafaa TR (Forward Exchange Contract) - -
pre— _ B
S 3,425, ¥03, 5%0 q,%30, ¥o5, R&

HAGAT ¥.R0 - AEHAE T e
e qa faxira deares (XAEE qor fagel g% qur AN S%) 1 MET aed a9 e @rdes a9 e e geqd
TRTH g | faarues MEEr y&qd e F |

feraon \ AG 3R, 053 | HNE 39, Ro5d
HIEF ek

Aratasd (qear) e 99%,490,R¥3,5%5 14,409,¥%q,909
& 8T RR,09R,9¥ ¥ %R¢ AR ER (21
el (1T 95,2 ¥%,30%,%54 94,950,3¥0 %30
T AR RAT 93,033,884 /¥
FATHIT e - -
ATaters (qga) e €% 9%9,9¥0 543 9 ¥ 0%, %Y 359
EEnREEE] ¥ 93350910 KU RIR0UZRRY
el (1T 9,0%3,R%8¥3Y \%%0,%¥3q,903
e R0g,R05 %04 220,093,359
et ?R5,595, ¥00,9%0 R3IR, R39, 99 BY

HTEHAT ¥.R0.9 - TEEHET et qg1 awitm faweror

[ECEU| TG 3R, Q0GR TG 39, 059
YT BT 3%3,3%5,¥20,4%% 3R?,513,¥%0,35%
AR 063 B Y ¥ 3% 4%, R\% g
JuRET TR 4,095,303, 498 3,395,098 393
Iz fged argg c3Y,00% 599,59
B 14,239,¥99 93,¥95 453
ERGEERE U¥Y 3,3¥9
=TS JATT - -
Sl 3,%aR -
ST %5, 595, ¥00,9%0 R3IR,R39,99% 3¢
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EVEREST BANK LIMITED
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FAGAT ¥.}9 - @EET (Borrowing)

TG 33, 2053 TG 39, 2051
Tt amudt

ERIER:ECI - -
W - -
STEET - -
faesft |t
faqsl o qar fadi e - -
Eﬁ:l:n’ - -
s fo atet amaet - -

FAGAT ¥.]R - AFAW TGEATEE (Provisions)
SPEIRT T G AR TFIV TGRS F AAAEE AT Ao T 3 |

farazor HTE 3R, R0&R TG 39, 059
AMIATET (redundancy) FT ATRT ST - -
T FEAATH] AT T - -
FTAAT TAT FHT Tl HHAT - -
Onerous FHHIAT - -
m - -
SEHT - -

HAAAT ¥.R3.9 - AFAHT F@EAHT AlAfarer

feraon TG 3R, 053 HWE 39, 059
ST HwaTd
TG Y TR e - -
TG 99 JYANT TMRTHT el - -
T9 9 Rl qUHT Fae - -
Unwind of discount - -

TG AT HIsaTd _ N
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AT ¥.33 - I AT

O uwz= = fafizs
EVEREST BANK LIMITED

Consi Strong & D

q AAAEED! [FaR0 (AFATTAR &
faawor YE R, Rocr WG 39, 059
aReaifie FEART AT AT g i 0% %3%,%50 9%%,¥39,390
ST daT f9ar aTqqel qacea YRR, ¥R, ¥5T ¥9q,%%0,34%
fae arer faeq 955,3R95% Y 43,¥9¢ 3RY
Hieed q91 TR q,%¥4%,93¥ 030 9,434,%33,¥%0
feraHT T st =amer 19,2%% 494 5 5R%, 4%
A FAEH ATH A (Liabilities on Deferred Grant Income) - -
TRRTAT FTICTehT AT 2R, %R% %% 9¥¥,4¥0¥08
forefrr feret ereaTaredt aifaea 53,503,043 34¥ 299550
fa afer =T aa 9%,%%9,9%R %25, 93
pr— B _
F) TFRI AT TR AT 9¥,393 4 ¥5 9% RI39Y 98,043
g) To! @ran - -
) T qHES @rar 39,04 35553
o) HE IR A 0% 259944 159,9%5,4%¥
T) G e 3,3¥4,000 3,3¥4,000
=) A qRHART 400 39t RR0 355,3%%,549
@) TR FRTET ToTTehl 1T STfae B5E],0%R 8 ¥¥9,335
SFAT 9],R00,9%9, ¥¥q R%,555,095,\95\9

HAGAT ¥.R3.9 - TCATHE ATH @ (Defined Benefit Obligation)

fer SITWG 3, 2053 ATTE 3, 205

FITHT AT AR FTAH T4 q,¥44,¥\% 050 4,%9%,90Y 450
Hipreeal Bl T T 9,¥4%,¥\9% 050 9,%9%,%¥04 %0
iaar Frs1 FEafd (plan assets)
3fera qA q,3¥4,54R,¥00 9,34R,8%9, R0
g3 Hipcealiaceal A 908 %%,%50 9%, ¥38,380
R 1T rorT gt e 40% %% 550 95%,¥39,390
AT ¥.33.% - W1
TTSTHT FH (plan assets) AIa:
faavon HE 3R, 083 TG 39, 3059
THNT U - -
I fadg q,3%%,543,¥00 q,343,%%9,620
AT N N
ST 9,3¥Y,54R, Y00 9, 4R, /%, %R0

FAGAT ¥.R3.3 - TR AW TIoAT Tl At qaa™ Fead T aiadd

[EEE| YTE 3], R06R @ 39, 059
S q A/ R T Frerr gEE e q,%9%,¥0% 950 9,30%,038,3%0
fawts® (actuarial) TeRITAT (53,339,¥50) 30,5504%0
RIECICIEA Ik (90,2 ¥4 §¥0) (59,30% 540)
=1 qradr @ a9 AT 42.0,344,0¥0 959,903 %30

ATHE WA QAT 1 i avareft anfrea

q,%4¥,¥\%R, 050

9,¥%R, ¥0¥, %0
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qAGAT ¥.R3.% - T @eufaat Ifaa qegwn afiads

faaor HIWE 3, 053 TG 39, 2059
A § /T AT AIRAH 3T T 9,343,259, 920 1953,5¥4, 400
ATSTATHT &1 TRUH! TRTETT 153,530,340 145,399 ¥0
T g IR TARTH ATH (90,2 ¥4,5¥0) (5930% 540)
fermfsss AT T (TR (21990Y4,000) (3¥,9095%0)
FISAT FHIaare Fuferd wrgar 2\9q0Y,000 %¥,809%¥0
TG FETAHT ST GFI ! Jraa Ted 1,3%4,54R, Yoo 9,343,249, %R0

AT ¥.33.Y - ATHT AFHEHT AGTEA TRGHT A

ferawon NG R, R0GR YTTE 39, 059
a1 Fraar @ 59,3%3,340 ¥z 435,350
e AT 08,059,520 Q03493580
TISTAT FHITqaTe AYTeTT HIgaT (21990Y,000) (2%,8085%0)
ST ’3,3%¥%,0%0 ©%,%%%,%%0
qAGAT ¥.R3.% - I faeqa JAIAT I@ETHT FH

faawor G 3R, R0GR {EG 39, R0z
farwtsss (ATRT) /AT 93,993 430 994,459,950
ST 93,1993, 40 994,459,950
qAGAT ¥.R3.9 - famifs® amH™ER (Acturial Assumptions)

faaor | TG 33, R05R | HTOIE 39, 2059
9 a9 Discount 3% © W% VW%
TrotT Frafqare Aufera ®Tgat 5.00% = 009
AfaereRl qoad e 5.00% 5.00%
Withdrawal <X Till age 35 years-3% Till age 35 years-3%

Thereafter-1%

Thereafter-1%

FAGAT ¥.R¢ - feewrem g How

79 9T FvaTa bl ST el RigHaa HordT geqd TRuHr g | faeror famEr 3

F) T GU.%5 FRISH % HITT & qUH FAH AN HEA 05 AT TRIFE FARRT BT 3, 095 AT S0

TieTeRr faa |

4

foram |

4

HTT 99, R06R AT ST TRUHT 2T |

¥ 300,00 FRISH 10.4.0% FHITH & TUH! JATTF AT AT 054, AT TRTH g A91F 90, 09, | ST TRTHT

T 9¥ 53 FRISH 9Y0% (Energy Bond) S dFg 90 FHFI AATIHT AN ATH 05, AT qRTEd g

") Y% HUTT & 300 00 FIIE 40 AUH! FATT T HIATT 09 AT TRIF g1 =7 q, 3059 AT S TR FaT |

JWTE 3R, RozR MG 39, Rozq

faaon
I AT AT A [T G@Ed T AR AR HA

(Debt securities issued designated as at fair value
through profit or loss)

RRETae Heard ST ARCH HE %,%03,%43,000 3,%03,%93,000
SHT %, %03, %93, 000 3, %03, %93, 000
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AT ¥.]Y - GIEUT AMEAUH TgTF HAIF e

ferarzun YOG 3R, 2053 TG 39, Ro59
=THT & AUMIRR AT - -
IhT qe Arad AUMIFR AR (Liabilities component) - -
Sl - -
ST - -

AT ¥R - T oA

Sl [ATHES dTehebl ISl TATqal AATd HTaH JTEI 878 | = ALTH AT a7 A9 9.4 Jiaqerd Fra
TTHT T Sebel AT ATFITF AT FIAH TGH 3 |

SARH! faar (gfeardl ¥ qraiHedn) MHTER J&=d TRUH & |

ferarvun TG 33, R0GR HTHIE 39, 2059
JIIRI AR qR,2%% %Y %5 99,959,403 550
afeadHra AR 99 (Equity component only) - -
=hT T ATIHR AR (Equity component only) - -
Perpetual U (Equity component only) - -
e R,¥Y, %R, %5 14,959,203, 550

FAFAT ¥.R%.9 - FTLTOT FAT

feraror qE 3R, 053 | A 39, 059
4%,00,00,000 JERT AR Gfd %. q00 94,000,000,000 94,000,000,000

el a9 94,00,00,000 FJERY AR Jq %, 100)

EEURCE
93, ¥ ¥% Q¥R %5 ERT R 9iq %. q00 4R,2¥ ¥ %Y 3%5 19,958,203 550
el a1 999598 035,50 FHRY 9% 9id . 900)

9%, ¥ ¥% 2 ¥R &5 FIER R 9id & 400 93,2¥¥ S ¥ 3% 99,968,203 550
Hiteal a9 999591 035.50 FIERT 7R Hid %. 400)

ST R,%¥¥,5R¥, %5 19,99, %03, 550

FAAT ¥.R%.R - ATLUT [IT &0

ferarut I R, 057 | JTOTE 39, Ro59

gfeera TEH gfeera TEH
el @ 9 %5 | 90,343439,085.00 | R %z [% ¥99,3%9,550.00
I TXFR

“%” FAHT TOATSIATT YT FEATES
I TAATSIATS G HEATES

I GTIES .30 | ,30%,¥9¥ 50000 3% 9% | ¥ §0%,35%,400.00
TATIR 8059 | % 9¥5 04%¥%5.00 ¥0.53 | ¥ ,50Y,009%50.00
T

Ffare @@t R0.0% R,4%%)9%3,300.00 R0.0% | R;34%,49R,000.00
SHT 900.00 R,R¥%,%R¥, %5 900.00 99,9%9,%03,5%0
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AT ¥.R%.R — ATLRUT FUT &&@HeA

gq.  faEwo % TAT FEA A TR %
T9E U (J944F)
q gferar = 34,00%,¥33 CEAN
R HEl T 2T REIYRRR q.cg
3 fepear Eal S QIR 9.5
¥ =T 3T qToh 4,433,350 195
Y FRUTH IR 4,333,349 0.%Y
% Hotel Snow Lion Pvt. Ltd. 9R,0%% 0¥% .30
FA 40,%90, %30 3R.9%
g &t (@A)
e AAEEGTH FFH NI 43,544,019 Y03
0.40% ¥ FIF=T FIHN A (¥0.53% TeH) qRV T AENAF SRIAE®H A
TYRETTHRT TH FH AT FE FA TATH %
9 =T 3T qToh ¥ 2305 3.59
R PRI AT R,%9%,45%3 R4
3 HEREAR 1 9,903,5%9 0.5y
¥ fepeor T A 9,903,589 0.5y
Y AT T qATIR 295,038 0%
% ATTHIHT TeASTHYE HTAT (1) T, 9,9%3,39% 0.5t
a9 f&@ (PNB)
q TaATel 9T S MRRER R0.0%
& RR, ¥¥%, R 900.00
e fufew

rEAAE AR TR TET Feheld TRTHT B I {TTaw 797 Roreqar s iives; | a1 oo a9 9737 Sy 19 /4
TART T, | AMIE a0 209%-8Y AT Febel &. Q00 HT T 94,055,059 BhYE I ST T AT | geb FeahreeTeht
FEHAT TF TRUH A= (Unsubscribed shares) fa@ml TRAT T [@@THI SPREEHT 9R HA AT a6l d3a9

TRURT THH T, I35,%¥%%,55% O HAH @l d=wid G TRUH g |

HTGAT ¥.9 - TST AAT FIWET

Sepel e oot et @ |
faaon @ 37, 05X AE 39, 059
T FERY T H1T 9 HE 255,083 §,9¥5 359309
LN TG FIT %%,53%,%¥90 2,533, 3%
XTI AHIAF JALEIA BT 9%, 399 9K Y 90,839,024
FHAT qTAH BT 39030 045 35,935 %%
froreeaT 9,543,0%% 939 3,090%5% §50
T FHATT F1T 3,520,233 ER0RR
THRTT SATET I 9,99%,¥09,209 9,99%,%09,209
U - HATH HIT 2\%,%¥30,5%% 3\%H,¥30,54%
It T B R TR 539,33943%
AT GIHBT HIT - -
farmifse (Acturial) T/ (ATRIT) T (R99,33,55%) (309,559,3%%)
fgerar w1 9,384,9%% 352 9% 4, ¥ ¥Y
I BT 55 ,%30,3%9 55,%3%,2%9
SFT 93,5%3,%3R,\9¥% IR, ¥R%,0%9,R11
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319IST Oy
FGTT et TSt FITRT HISaTd TR ToNebT dTear THUGE Toil (AT T ¥ fegel G2 ATRIHT 0% AT T30

EIHT GEATST T (FATHE ATAYARATET TAATT FACHT G | AT Gaaiead ot & T @q= 6 JANT T afera |

T T Thel F.2592508%Y (T A & 9¥0 Y 099) TF ol fafqaliss et § S = ATRTH 0% &7 |

Jcal acdc dIY

FT Aol faTHE A SMER de ARATT w31 are faselt warar Wt faftey qaeeteT areer 1y a9
feoTeHT EXATeR 9 953 |

TG a9 Fhd ¥, 40,0¥5 (A A . 99,%¥35,843) T9 Rors T fafqaierd et @ 99 fafawsr qadeisT argesr 4%

gl

Jauft gol gfcidel DY
TEfa (& gEafd T TR, AU FET T AT GEAR) B qAHeArsAare fasr aivuer o aw arar ofds
F=IT IEqd TRTH G |

el FFIOT AP AT FFAAH TAHATHA TH G T AN AATET d¢hl TR Aed a9 @l SIHAT I&qq
TRTHT G | 3R FAR 05 T0 ToOd & 499,¥30,583 (Aleeedl a0 & 499,¥30,5%3) |

3fda oo o

3taa ger frsreier faira aeafaeeasr 3fora geamr T=@t og afvad aresT T4 51 3fd Jeaar A g 7 staa
HeAHT qUHT TRATTEEATE S+ SATIE HTTHT AT (45w, TadF THIdee TYeaTad gen | o faxira grafdeest 3fad
AT IRAdTEwed] GodT ThH T& @1 6 FAid J&d TRUH G | Tiaaad datadr a1 A=t g (3,968 ¥4 3 §39)
(ATl a9 %, 539,339,43%) |

Uohiora SPIsT BIY
FaTted RSl ISiiehl TeRiaHT T8l 3 AT areieT [adzorehl AT ITaed qgr RorWal ATATAls JIATSS | sbel el
& St SATTeRn B |

AR ATAINSID ITRGIRICT DY
I ST TRIT Bai.Bi.Ni.Bi/Niti/Paripatra/KaKhaGa/11/073/74 THINTH Sehebl FETTT ATHIAS FLaTIcH qIeTehT
TANTH ARMHT AT TTAT Shebl Hee MATATRT AT FLIWTT ATHITS P FaLelded P G TS, |

FUHT FATTHT ATHINAE ITXEIA BT &, ¥5,3%%, 034 (AfeTeddl T & 39 033 UY) G ATRIEN 9% ¥ TF FTUHT AT
TUHT CSR @I %, ¥3,5¥5,390 (Afteal a¥ & 9%,49%,549) CSR HIUATE JeadlgUskl & | 999 I9 a9 CSR HITHT
FA T (YULO0SRY ATl a9 & 0,49, ¥00) | T AATIHT FUHI Geehl [Fav0 81T THITH Wbl G |
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3)

1))
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faazor MG 3R, Ro5R M@ 39, R0z
foTetT, €T, TRl TepId, ATATaR TRETW, JIehidqer 3¥,293 %0 ?,%9%,¥0Y%
ATATINE ®TAT S SUHT qugwe! A fasrr, fa-r CECERER ,3%9,2\%%
rerar, fai gRer

i TiE a1 e BRATEATTAT Fe geararg el ¥ - 9,045, %45
TTEIHT HETH

SDG 1 fafdwe érewwr @« TRuEr = ¥9%,004, 3,000,000
PITAS-9Q, FEedT AT STebehl HHATIEEER] AN ST 300 4%0 99%,35¥

[EEEIREIEEGIRLC RG]
FATATAT, FGTHH ¥ ATAHGIHT AT AR - -
b AT @redl ATHATT 0% | STFAT TXTHT THH - 33U
QR FIE TET FFIEREd ATl JaATE® Jased T4 Td - -
CSR HITH 4% IFF G TRUH B |
=T (COVID 19 THfeera) - -

FA ¥R,5¥5, 3% 1%, 49%, 544
TR 3I6RIR KA aday [

faawor THH
FER 3,893,09%
T9T R 9,204,
T 3 3%,3R¥,00%
IE9T ¥ 3,959, %50
T Y, ¥,590,4%
T29T & 9,949,%¥0%
FERIY q,933,45%
A ¥R,5%¥5,390
4t fipat 519151 B

g TP A AT 9T AU Ioil NEra" ot &+ afv sarervg o 7 fRaifde safamar g feordwm &+
A fafaarer i 89 |

Uoft AARNSTe DY

RGUeRT HATRTETE Sehebl GoiT fg Tt ATRT faotar Tiewert @ srafed Teuarr &+ afq THeTs FFaH =oht Io
THH FATSAH! AT ANH THH 9 @1 e Fea g&qd g |

gidaed fafd o ar 9 %.9,99%,¥08,209 (@ ¥ 3. q99%,%¥08,200) |

CTIoTIeT AfImoT DIy
AT TTHTATHT THEIAT FAH TCT JLAA ATHT ATSH T aUE[ M= ThH I of@r ofueh Awaid aear=iwo
T 9T NG | bl AEAT BT @l THT o |

fadu By
TS SFebebl (G AT Ieg Seperl 9Ty fAdererr A9 smavaear saw fasr g w5 afe faer fesriarg e
festlepT ®HT yeqd iewg, | (499 RSdwr 9 F %4 adfag se g 9 9 fdifde Efaar aq fondwr & wew

FEATZUH T |

dofar aifeter otiora I dalaR gierar fdorT diu

TS T Sepepl (AT 7. §/08Y T THT & ATAR ATl aUbT FHEAT ARTART 3% =T ATTIF THAT FHATT AfAH
7 fashTEAT @ A & | bl B, 5 303,5%R (Afedll a9 & £39,94%) T S Fuer ot a9 fRordmr 7 a9 i
FEAT @ TRURT THA %, 30 435,235 (Afeal a9 3. 3% 355 4%Y) TE oieTe Jeergua |

claltoll JAARNSTo DY

AT AT A AR (IS AT Spepl AT I(qRA Hed ATATTHART AT FITAPT ®GHT [Gqier TRUFT T
frare foo1sT 21 1 NFRS 9 AR fashiiesl @it I9aed @I ITaRUEeE d+ ATTS AT HIhd [did FFIrae! &qH7
TR TRTHT G | AT AT ATHT AN AT FHTITSAT RAHAT o Ieac= TR G |
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5) foRmeA® Bu
NFRS TaTaae T JATSThT TN I Sehebl (MG @R Sehebl ATHT a7 AMGUHT ATRTHIETE FEATSUHT THH TG
qrar ofiiE Fea Ieqa TRUH G | T RSITAT Wl THH A1 (AR ¥ a9d 9AR) 0 faarorer o feres
T | T RSITHT GEATSURT THHAT AT ATRTHT HFAT YT G AIGHT T THTHT, TS Sebepl A9 AR Fal
A grEgTR AT ¥ NFRS S 9RO T ARHAT FUH BT (CIUHRARTH A=aid HH &l JiearT TUH!
HEALITHT), TINTT &R SRTEXHT T JHE ) | O, d7F SATIH ATTHT A-IAT 9T arediad &1, NFRS =aia
AT 9T AEATAATHR] T AMME & Jiqaad Tafadr I9 Redare QO s¥3 U ¥R TR qUH § (1 a9 &

29%,%1%,930) |
frarae fostsiet faarer aa y=qa TRuH 3 |

faawun

AME 3R, R05R AW 39, 059
ATRT a7 A FETHRT (FGToT A GE ATRT AT (AT ¥,53R,%03, ¥9R 3,\903,3Y,05%
fafroieE:
AT STTET BT 25950 5RY VY0 g ¥Y 099
faaefT w31 SAR-=rgra FW 390,0%5 99,%35 54
9T FHIATSA B YRV 95,5YY §Y,995 R0
HUIRE ATATNSTE LRI BT 4,410 5%Y R0,49¥,%¥00
FHET AT(AH BT 5,303,5%R %39,94%
Bzl - (955,9%0)

e quEsE aftr e ar (AeEe)
s queE:

3,3%0,%3%, 3R

3,30%, %¥9¥,99%

9T AT (-) /At |iad ST g 33353,R5 | (Q0¥,35%, 4 9%)
QGraATHT Frar WO =reT grad (<) RaEe (+) - -
TN ITHIUH] TATIAT &7 AT AAATAT FHI (-) / (g (+) - -
7 dferg qeafaerr qeafaq e S s #9690 () 2 g (+) (35,549,599 | (XRR,3%33W)
TN Y FFITAh! a@rsa a8 () / FHT (+) (%0,329,0%%) | (1¥0,39% Y]Y)
@t (Goodwill) FFafaesT i3 (-) / FHI (+) - -
Bargain purchase gain @ 33 (-) / FHI (+) - -
Actuarial TR Mg (<) / FH (+) (2,%%9,¥%Y) (50,299, ¥ ¥%)
T (+/-) AT e fosre A3OR99%) | (R9,9%5,539)
¥ (+/-) Associate T ATHT/ATRITAHT feedr ¥%,995,954 -

05R AR WA fIaeum@ig ARt a1 ot

3,%95,R5R,R0%

9,3%%,300,0%%

AU Hied ATHT (STEUT 9, R059)

I (+/-)

Fclﬂ'{UT:

EIEE DR

TG AT AT

Fuwl e fafa sER & faaeor g A an (deEae)

3, 30R,3%5, 953

(9,998, 920, 353)
(%40, 98Y, 05Y4)
¥,5%3,0%8, e

%,990, ¥5\9, 408

(9,0%R,50R,¥¥¥)
(3,935, 40R,3¥¥)
3,30%,3%5, 953

gfe ST it fad=or A AT/ (AT 3050 32.]%
foremares Rotefen uRadesw®) fdazor

fa<im ad T 9T NBA &1 lesitect T e EAERCIE T A

DET TEEH HIFUAT I &Y | 370 SRTHT FT qEd

206¥-\9y 203,53¥,%24 2,303,0%Y RRREI0 | 0%5%5,¥RY 42,909,349 S uErReER
200455 ¥ 590,55 15,539 %35 (45,0%4,300) 4 003 Y 0y - - %0934 442
20%-0e 3%3,293,%9¢ 0 (98, %99 330) ¥0 555509 - S SR EE
R099-Yg (92%,305,3%9) o 5q,05¥,300 BUROY ¥ - - (3%,4¥5,¥5R)
2005-9¢, 4,9%0,29% (95,539 ¥33) (4,99%,033) W,303¥9% | 48,5¥5,009 - %%, 3¥9,09%,
20%-50 15R9¥3,230 99%9 4% 4,943 494 529%,633 | (999,249¥35) - %,009094
050-59 Q0¥ 5% L% Y3R,3%3,3H 50,399,¥% R90¥S 50 | ¥0R6YYRY - RqgR9¥,0
R0%9-3R (R33,53¢,Rg) 35,549,511 Q,%¥9,¥%Y (¥%,995,95%) %0,3%9,0%% 30R%99% | (QR9T¥IL¥R)
ST ¥93,95Y, €53 43¥,3%Y, 058 309, 33%, &5% ¥¥5,%40,%31 209,354, §¥0 93,0%8,99% | 9,543,0%%,9
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TE T9 @TaT e qd T TRUH G | T TIAT HFA 8.%,8%9,¥%% a9 Redar (@afaear a9 #.5,0%9,¥¥%
79 ST geareaRor i) | gfdaes fafaaen a9 forTer Jiserd B, -399,33R Se% (et 99 3. -309,%69,33%) |

on <ifdd oot
YIRIAETATS (A0 AMRUbT T TATAATS YT TLATeh! FoATATHT Rl FIMAUeT T TRGATEEATS ATHIIT Taqeoreht
AT 9T Z@ehl | ATRT a9 efeHT J&Ia TRUH B | Jiqasd MAfq I ar 99 %.¥,5%3,0%%9%5 (Afdedr a9
T 330%,3%5,9%3) |

a BIcaR RS#uere Rowd
AT AL AFFl (AU TR 9% FHITH T FATTehr Tegfa awiter feasae frgvoaa feard fasrm afvaer &1 1 S%a & =1

YT ATHTaTE feamar Rerraa o™ 5. 34,985 R0s aqra oie fafq o ar fearar Revram fred & Gio 4oy ¥ ¥y |

fedaw am 3 St fafe uferaan fafe fedem faet | fodew favimn | sl fRwrst

Maturity Date (Opening) ETTLIT (Closing)
90.40% EBL HITH 305Y 3,000,000,000 WTE 309, WTg 05, ¥00,000,000 | %00 000000 | 500000000
5.40% EBL HIIA G4%, 953,000 BT 05 BT 05k R4 4R IR 99%,339,933 3RR,53%,089
©.40% EBL Energy Bond 305% 9¥%,530,000 ™ 098 ™ 058 53,229,914 53,2299 954, R%R3R
©40% EBL HUTT 209 3,000,000,000 7 2059 =7 2099 -

FAGAT ¥.Rc - GHIfaA qMed @ gfaagar
TAH! ATfetebTer f€ariée MfTHT (contract or underlying principal amounts of unmatured off- balance sheet transactions)
qIRTH AFH - ¢ ATGHH] WRIAT AT AAHEd THE (HHe® @S |

ferazun TG IR, 0% TG 39, 059
FTiaa TIfIcE@Ee (Contingent liabilities) 45,354,530,30% ¥3,%45,95%,309
AN AT ATqdNT FiadTes

(Undrawn and undisbursed facilities) %4,¥30 333 7% 49, 44R ]3¥ %
95T giqagdn (Capital commitment) 90%,%%,35Y -
fest 9fdagar (Lease Commitment) - -
HET HITHaT (Litigation) ¥90,353509 13,08 1Y
ST IRY, 335, 41R, 09% ]R,\9RR, 409, 19¥

HAGAT ¥.%5.9 - WWITEA IR

feao \ AG 3R, 053 | TG 3, 2059
ST TAT SHEAI higd 39,905 9%5,594 ¥, %R 30% 443
FATITHT TEFH (TAET 5 S4%,544,5R0 9345,99%,059
gy fafea gwamar 323,084, ¥%¥ -
THAES 94,0%99¥0 403 99,400,348 %5
JeATld Aqagares - -
¥ gldagaree - -
ST 45,354,530, R0% ¥3,%95,95%, 09

faawon TG 3], RoaR WG 39, 059
Ffaaied Hof TEH 9%,¥¥%,939,0%9 93,%09,599 00%
qrafay FoTEwH FATART e RUIRY R%0 %53 R%,590,89% %5
Hiee FEH! ATTAN fea 0%,0%Y 95 ¥ 95%,2%%,35%
EIGLEERA SFQN?J\T*T el 9R, %9803 49 93, 9%, UYL
ERIEGET m faar 3,004 4% 419 R,6RY 3337 ¥3
STHAT %9, ¥30,333, %% 99, 94R,%3%,R%1
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As on 32 Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025) (FIG IN NPR)
ASSETS NOTE 32 ASHADH 2082 31 ASHADH 2081
Cash and Cash Equivalent 4.1 6,720,639,482 8,412,011,302
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 64,715,146,228 41,182,606,399
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 7,996,585,181 6,630,271,586
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 3.577,723,753 1,664,092,583
Other Trading Assets 4.5 - -
Loan and Advances to B/Fls 4.6 9,781,759,468 7,652,663,431
Loans and Advances to Customers 4.7 213,438,490,103 178,215,398,721
Investment Securities 4.8 49,443,437,467 44,143,619,543
Current Tax Assets 4.9 374,634,507 517,746,655
Investment in Subsidiaries 4.10 - -
Investment in Associates 4.M 762,144,319 836,283,158
Investment Property 4.12 564,295,086 522,293,275
Property and Equipment 4.13 4,177,562,454 3,891,474,615
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 414 191,979,773 25,380,760
Deferred Tax Assets 4.15 - -
Other Assets 4.16 1,.894,847,469 2,011,570,349
TOTAL ASSETS 363,639,245,291 | 295,705,412,379
LIABILITIES NOTE 32 ASHADH 2082 31 ASHADH 2081
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.17 3,436,943,308 3,421,000,959
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18 - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.19 3,598,403,660 1,630,408,398
Deposits from Customers 4.20 298,818,400,190 | 232,231,779,134
Borrowing 4.21 - -
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - -
Provisions 4.22 - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.15 42,193,593 125,808,362
Other liabilities 4.23 19,200,191,441 26,888,018,787
Debt securities issued 4.24 6,603,613,000 3,603,613,000
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 331,699,745,192 | 267,900,628,641
EQUITY
Share capital 4.26 12,944,694,268 11,767,903,880
Share premium 238,469,884 238,469,884
Retained earnings 4,893,096,198 3,302,368,763
Reserves 4.27 13,863,239,749 12,496,041,21
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS 31,939,500,099 | 27,804,783,738
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST - -
TOTAL EQUITY 31,939,500,099 | 27,804,783,738
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 363,639,245,291 | 295,705,412,379
Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28 124,336,519,016 99,722,501,114
Net assets value per share 246.74 236.28

Yogendra Singh Udawat Sudesh Khaling
DCEO CEO

Rajan Kayastha
CFO Director

Nabin Bhakta Shrestha
Director

Urmila Shrestha
Director

PLACE: Kathmandu, Nepal
DATE: SEPT. 4, 2025

80 @ 315T ANNUAL REPORT 2081/82 (2024/25 AD) EVEREST BANK

Kiran Krishna Shrestha

Dr. Bal Gopal Baidya
Chairman

Santosh Kumar
PNB Nominee Director

Dr. Tarak Bahadur K.C.
Independent Director

As per our report of
even date

Manish Amatya, FCA
Partner, N. Amatya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the Year ended 32 Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025) (FIG IN NPR)
NOTE 32 ASHADH 2082 31 ASHADH 2081
Interest Income 4.29 20,814,261,205 22,547,387,207
Interest Expense 4.30 11,711,936,982 14,899,061,720
Net Interest Income 9,102,324,223 7,648,325,487
Fee and Commission Income 4.31 1,877,808,633 1,638,316,134
Fee and Commission Expense 4.32 347,312,052 293,989,961
Net Fee and Commission Income 1,530,496,582 1,.344,326,173
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 10,632,820,804 8,992,651,660
Net Trading Income 4.33 468,681,699 353,739,528
Other Operating Income 4.34 69,114,163 160,337,285
Total Operating Income 11,170,616,666 9,506,728,474
Impairment Charge/(Reversal) for Loans and Other Losses 4.35 (155,326,618) 282,403,883
Net Operating Income 11,325,943,284 9,224,324,591
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 4.36 2,640,457,450 2,410,513,670
Other Operating Expenses 4.37 1,010,647,305 818,364,950
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.38 326,421,064 332,374,868
Operating Profit 7,348,417,465 5,663,071,103
Non Operating Income 4.39 10,687,923 -
Non Operating Expense 4.40 2,151,515 494,175
Profit before Income Tax 7,356,953,872 5,662,576,928
Income Tax Expense 4.4
Current Tax Expenses 2,577,341, 444 1,945,126,787
Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) (60,291,044) 14,225,054
Profit for the period 4,839,903,472 3,703,225,086
Profit attributable to:
Equity Holders of the Bank 4,839,903,472 3,703,225,086
Non-Controlling Interest - -
Profit for the period 4,839,903,472 3,703,225,086
Earnings per share
Basic Earnings per Share 37.39 31.47
Diluted Earnings per Share 37.39 31.47
Yogendra Singh Udawat Sudesh Khaling Dr. Bal Gopal Baidya As per our report of
DCEO CEO Chairman even date

Santosh Kumar
PNB Nominee Director

Rajan Kayastha Kiran Krishna Shrestha
CFO Director

Manish Amatya, FCA
Partner, N. Amatya & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Nabin Bhakta Shrestha Urmila Shrestha
Director Director

Dr. Tarak Bahadur K.C.
Independent Director

PLACE: Kathmandu, Nepal
DATE: SEPT. 4, 2025
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Year ended 32 Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025) (FIG IN NPR)
32 ASHADH 2082 31 ASHADH 2081
Profit for the year 4,839,903,472 3,703,225,086
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value (63,962,732) (90,572,907)
- Gains/(losses)on revalution - -
- Actuarial gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans (13,773,520) (115,587,780)
- Income tax relating to above items 23,320,876 61,848,206
Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (54,415,376) (144,312,481)
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
- Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge - -
- Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation) - -
- Income tax relating to above items - -
- Reclassify to profit or loss - -
Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted as per equited method (6,650) 654,759
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (54,422,026) (143,657,722)
Total comprehensive income for the period 4,785,481,446 3,5659,567,364

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank

Non-controlling interest

4,785,481,446

3,559,567,364

Total comprehensive income for the period 4,785,481,446 3,559,567,364
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 37.39 31.47
Annualized basic earnings per share 37.39 31.47
Diluted earnings per share 37.39 31.47

Yogendra Singh Udawat
DCEO

Rajan Kayastha
CFO

Nabin Bhakta Shrestha
Director

Sudesh Khaling
CEO

Dr. Bal Gopal Baidya
Chairman

Santosh Kumar
PNB Nominee Director

Kiran Krishna Shrestha
Director

Urmila Shrestha
Director

Dr. Tarak Bahadur K.C.
Independent Director

PLACE: Kathmandu, Nepal
DATE: SEPT. 4, 2025
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As per our report of

even date

Manish Amatya, FCA
Partner, N. Amatya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year ended 32 Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025) (FIG IN NPR)
32 ASHADH2082 | 31ASHADH 2081

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Fees and other income received

Dividend received

Receipts from other operating activities
Interest paid

Commission and fees paid

Cash payment to employees

Other expense paid

Operating Cash Flows before Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions
Other trading assets

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Increase/(Decrease) in Operating Liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from customers

Borrowings

Other liabilities

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities before Tax Paid
Income taxes paid

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities
Purchase of property and equipment

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets

17,539,846,528
1,877,808,633
533,733,714
(11,265,806,127)
(347,312,052)
(2,495,178,187)
(908,892,793)
4,934,199,716

(23,533,096,405)
(1,369,581,905)

(2,134,954,359)
(35,380,284,116)
240,323,643

15,942,349

66,586,621,055
(7,793,481,830)
1,565,688,148
(2,434,229,296)
(868,541,148)

(5,419,188,819)

(600,176,875)
607,886
(181,082,555)

18,714,726,202
1,638,316,134
272,458,236
(14,162,563,107)
(295,238,165)
(2,272,076,005)
(951,181,751)
2,944,441,544

(26,834,466,598)
(501,050,000)

450,545,558
(18,952,808,298)
(540,280,462)

(147,468,994)
(23,767,053)
34,308,797,777
(315,020,900)
7,545,903,024
(2,065,174,402)
(1,942,021,310)
(4,007,195,712)

(4,042,018,777)
(162,612,520)
4,568,753
(10,364,360)

Purchase of investment properties (42,001,811) (522,293,275)
Receipt from the sale of investment properties 60,667,894 (678,810)
Interest received 3,528,424,638 3,490,473,906
Dividend received 6,998,193 3,446,123
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (2,645,751,450) | (1,239,478,960)
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CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipt from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Other receipt/payment

Net Cash from Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan 1

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

3,000,000,000

(694,908,816)
(483,010,596)

1,822,080,587
(1,692,212,010)
8,412,011,302
840,191

(1,114,676,606)
(650,600,007)

(1,765,276,613)
(7,01,951,284)
15,378,247,980

45,714,606

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Ashadh end

6,720,639,482

8,412,011,302

Yogendra Singh Udawat
DCEO

Rajan Kayastha
CFO

Nabin Bhakta Shrestha
Director

PLACE: Kathmandu, Nepal

DATE: SEPT. 4, 2025
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CEO
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Director
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Director
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Chairman
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PNB Nominee Director

Dr. Tarak Bahadur K.C.

Independent Director
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even date

Manish Amatya, FCA
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 32 ASHADH 2082 (16 JULY 2025)
N

1. Reporting entity
Everest Bank Limited (Bank) is a public limited company registered under the Companies Act of Nepal. The Bank
is licensed by the Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) to perform all banking operations provided in the Banking and Financial
Institutions Act (BAFIA)and the Articles and Memorandum of the Bank.

The Head Office of the Bank is located at Lazimpat, Kathmandu, Nepal. At the end of the reporting period, i.e.,
16t July 2025, the Bank had 133 branches (15" July 2024: 128 branches). As of 16" July, 2025, the Bank had 1213 employees
(15" July 2024: 1146 employees).

The Bank accepts deposits, issues loan, makes money transfers and documentary settlements, exchanges currencies
for its clients, issues and processes debit and credit cards, is engaged in trade finance and is investing and trading
securities, as wellas performing other activities set forth in the BAFIA and the Articles and Memorandum of the Bank. The
Bank offers full range of banking products and services to wide range of clients encompassing individuals, midmarket,
local corporate, multinationals, large public sector companies, Nepal Government & government corporations, airlines
& hotels, aid agencies, INGOs and NGOs etc. as authorized by Nepal Rastra Bank.

The Bank's shares are listed with Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd., and its stock symbol is EBL.

The Bank has entered into Technical Services Agreement (TSA) for the equity & management participation with Punjab
National Bank, New Delhi, India. The bank has a representative office in New Delhi.

2. Basis of Preparation
The Financial statements of the Bank have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced by
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). The preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements
are in compliance with the requirements of format issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in Directive No. 4 of Unified NRB
Directives, 2081.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows and other explanatory notes

2.1 Statement of Compliance
The financial statements, approved by the Board of Directors, have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRSs) as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) and pronounced by The Institute
of Chartered Accountant of Nepal (ICAN)and in the format issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in Directive No. 4 of Unified NRB
Directives, 2081.

The significantaccounting policies appliedin the preparation of financial statements are set out in Note 3. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented except otherwise stated. The bank has opted for certain carve
outs in applying NFRS which have been briefly described in the following notes.

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements
2.2.1 Reporting Dates

The Bank follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar starting from first day of Shrawan
(Mid July) of each year to the last day of Ashadh (Mid July) of the next year.
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2.2.2 Approval of financial statements
The accompanied financial statements have been approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors in
its 387" board meeting dated 4" September 2025 and the Board acknowledges the responsibility of preparation
of financial statements of the Bank. The approved financial statements have been recommended for approval by
the shareholders in the 31°t Annual General Meeting of the Bank.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
Financial statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupee (NPR), which is the functional and presentation currency of
the Bank. All financial information presented in Nepalese Rupee has been rounded off to the nearest rupee except as
indicated otherwise.

2.4 Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgments
The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with NFRS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions in applying the accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses.

Due to the inherent uncertainty in making estimates, actual results reported in future periods may be based upon
amounts which differ from those estimates. Estimates, judgments and assumptions are periodically evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

Further information about key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation, uncertainty and
judgment, are set out in the relevant disclosure notes for the following areas.

2.4.1 Going Concern
The Management has made an assessment on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied
that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not
aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Therefore, the Financial Statements continue to be prepared on going concern basis.

2.4.2 Commitment and Contingent Liabilities
All discernible risks are accounted for in determining the amount of all known and measurable liabilities.
Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events
or present obligations where the transfer of economic benefit is not probable or cannot be reliably measured.
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the Statement of Financial Position but are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements unless it is considered remote that the Bank will be liable to settle the possible
obligation.

2.4.3 Fair Value of Financial Instruments
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, recorded in the Statement of Financial Position
cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that
include the use of mathematical models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, however, if such data are not available, a degree of judgment is exercised in establishing fair values
which minimizes the effect of use of unobservable inputs. The valuations of financial instruments are described
comprehensively in Note 3.4.4.

2.4.4 Impairment Losses on Loans and Advances
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal has issued and made applicable, NFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
for recognition and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities for banks and financial institutions.
The bank has recognized the impairment losses on loans and advances as per Expected Credit Loss Related
Guidelines, 2024 (First Amendment)issued by Nepal Rastra Bank which is in line with the expected credit loss as
per NFRS 9.

Accordingly, impairment loss on financial assets - loans and advances are measured and recognized at the higher of:

- Loanloss provision amount derived as prescribed in directive no. 02/81 of Nepal Rastra Bank; and
- Impairment loss amount determined as per the Expected Credit Loss Model as per NFRS 9.
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There arises a need for the Bank's management to apply judgment and estimation in assessing and determining the
amount of impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortized cost. Some of the areas that require management
judgment and estimation are listed herein below:

- Selection of appropriate impairment methodology and assessment tools.

- ldentifying and determining Significant Increase in Credit risk (SICR) Assets.

- Prescribing prudential floor as a regulatory backstop for impairment determined under ECL model.

- Strengtheningaccounting recognition of loan loss provisions by incorporating a broader range of credit information.
- Establishing Macro Economic Variable for ECL Model.

- Estimating future recoverable cash flows on financial asset; and

- Adjusting results of historical data

Analysis to incorporate the economic conditions and portfolio factors that existed at the reporting date. Exercise of
judgmentisanintegral part of the impairment assessment process, and the Bank exercises its experienced judgment to
adjust observable data for a group of financial assets to reflect current circumstances. The use of reasonable estimates
is an essential part of the preparation of financial statements and does not undermine their reliability. The Bank's policy
in accounting for impairment of financial assets is explained in note 3.4.5

2.45 Impairment of Financial Assets

The Bank follows the requirements of NFRS 9 for recognition and measurement in determining whether an
investment asset or a financial asset should be impaired. Determination and identification of impairment
indicators require the Bank to evaluate duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment for a financial
asset is less than its cost and the financial stability of the near-term business outlook of the investment or
the financial asset, considering the factors such as performance of the sector and industry, technology and
operational environmental changes along with future cash flows. This process involves with significant judgment
in aforesaid areas and details are given under respective Notes.

2.4.6 Defined Benefit Obligation
The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefit plans are determined using an actuarial
valuation. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions determining the discount rates, expected
rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the long-
term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. All assumptions are reviewed
at each reporting date and assumptions used in the year are given in Note 3.15

2.4.7 Fair Value of Land and Buildings
The land and buildings of the Bank are reflected at fair value less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment, if any. The Bank engaged independent valuation specialists to determine fair value of such properties
at appropriate time interval in terms of the NFRS 13 - “Fair Value Measurement”.

2.4.8 Useful Life of Property and Equipment and Intangible Assets
The Bank reviews the residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property and Equipment and
intangible assets at each reporting date. Judgment of the management is exercised in the estimation of these
values, rates, methods and hence they are subject to uncertainty. The details of the depreciation methods and
rates used for each assets category are given in Note 3.7 and 3.8.

2.4.9 Taxation

The bank is subject to income tax under Income Tax Act, 2058 and amendments thereto, and due to the potential
difference, that may exist between the Bank and the Income Tax Authorities with regard to the interpretation of
complex tax provisions, management judgment is required to determine the total provision for current tax and
deferred tax amounts. Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which such losses can be utilized. Judgment is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits, together with future tax planning strategies. Earlier year tax was being accounted forin the
Financial Statements regarding tax litigation cases pending in courts. Additional disclosure on tax is mentioned
in Note 3.10.
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2.5 Changes in Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are set out in relevant notes for
each item of the financial statements. Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated. There are no changes in accounting policies in current fiscal year.

2.6 Implementation of NFRS 9
NFRS 9: Financial Instruments was pronounced by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) to be effective from
16t July 2021. However, due to various reasons including challenges posed by emergence of COVID, limited time availability
and lack of technical expertise, full implementation of NFRS 9 was deferred till FY 2080/81, for banks and financial institutions.
Hence, the provisions of NFRS 9 that include expected credit loss, have become fully effective from FY 2081/82.

Since default is a lagging indicator of credit risk and since classification of non-performing loans normally takes place
after a borrower is overdue for more than 90 days, loan loss provisions are presently booked by banks with significant
delays after the borrower may have started facing financial difficulties thereby increasing the credit risk of banks and
financial institutions. Generally, there will be a significant increase in credit risk before a financial asset becomes credit
impaired, or an actual default occurs. As Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Impairment model incorporates more forward-
looking approach and assesses significant change in credit risk in determining impairment as against extant ‘incurred
loss’ approach, the adoption of ECL model is expected to enhance credit risk management and resilience of banks and
financial institutions.

2.6.1 Objective of Expected Credit Loss Model

The objectives of Expected Credit Loss Model are as follows:

a. Set out supervisory guidance for ease in implementation of ECL in alignment with applicable accounting
standards.
Promote uniformity and comparability of ECL amongst banks and financial institutions.
Set out objective criteria for determining significant increase in credit risk.
Prescribe prudential floor as a regulatory backstop for impairment determined under ECL model.
Strengthen accounting recognition of loan loss provisions by incorporating a broader range of credit
information.

® oo o

2.6.2 Scope of Expected Credit Loss

The scope of Expected Credit Loss Model is as follows:

a. Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost

b. Financial Assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (the financial asset is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. However, the loss
allowance shall be recognized in other comprehensive income and shall not reduce the carrying amount of
the financial asset in the statement of financial position.
A Lease receivable within the scope of NFRS 17: Leases
Contract Asset within the scope of NFRS 15: Revenue from Contract with Customers
Loan Commitments (except those measured at Fair value through Profit or Loss)
Financial guarantee contracts (initially measured at higher of the amount of the loss allowance determined
and the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of NFRS 15) except those measured at Fair value through Profit or Loss.

- o a0

2.6.3 Guidance on Interest Income Recognition
NFRS 9 requires recognition of interest income on the financial assets measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate. Nepal Rastra Bank as on July 27, 2025, issued Guidance Note on Interest Recognition,
2025 wherein it has provided transitional arrangement plan towards full implementation for NFRS 9. This
guideline allows banks and financial institutions to recognise interest on loans and advances based on coupon
rate of interest for the financial year 2081-82 and 2082-83 and thereafter from the financial year 2083-84 use the
effective interest rate on loans and advances.

This guideline aims to advance towards full implementation of NFRS 9, the interest income recognition practice
will be transitioned as follows:
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Interest income

Year 1(FY 2081/82)

Year 2 (FY 2082/83)

Year 3(FY 2083/84)

Stage 1and Stage 2
Financial Assets

Based on coupon
interest rate on principal
outstanding for all
financial assets (accrual
basis)

Based on coupon
interest rate applied on
principal outstanding
for all financial assets
(accrual basis)

Based on effective interest rate
applied on gross carrying amounts for
all financial assets except for old term
loans

Based on deemed effective interest
rate applied for old term loans only
(where integral fees have already been
recognized as income in previous
years)

Stage 3 or Purchased
or Originated Credit
impaired financial assets

Based on cash basis
approach (incremental)
Coupon interest rate
applied on principal
outstanding

Based on cash basis
approach (incremental)
Coupon interest rate
applied on principal
outstanding

Based on amortised cost as per NFRS 9
Deemed Effective interest rate for old
term loans is calculated without taking
into account integral fees already
booked and is applied on amortised

cost

Effective interest rate of all financial
assets other than old term loans is
to be calculated based on integral
fees obtained and also considering
discounts, premiums and other integral
costsand is applied on amortised cost.

The Bank has used this provision of this guideline to recognise interest on loans and advances by using the coupon rate of
interest instead of the effective rate of interest.

2.7 Discounting

When the realization of assets and settlement of obligation is for more than one year, the Bank considers the discounting
of such assets and liabilities where the impact is material. Various internal and external factors have been considered for
determining the discount rate to be applied to the cash flow of company.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for following material items in the statement
of financial position:
- Financial assets other than measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value.
- Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value.
- Inventories are measured at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.
- Net defined benefit liabilities are measured at Present Value of Defined Benefits Obligation less the Total Plan
Assets.
- Investment property is measured at fair value.
3.2 Basis of Consolidation
The bank does not have control over any other entity for consolidation of financial statements. Investmentsin associates
are accounted for in financial statements as per equity method.
3.3 Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent comprise the total amount of cash in hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions,
money at call and short notice, and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities period of three months or less
from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by the bank
in the management of its short-term commitments.

Cash and Cash equivalents are measured at amortized cost in the statement of financial position.
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3.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities
The bank classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:
a) financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss;
b) financial assets held at fair value through other comprehensive income, and
c) financial assets held at amortized cost.
Accordingly, financial liabilities are classified as either:
a) held at fair value through profit or loss, or
b) held at amortized cost.

3.4.1 Recognition

The Bank initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when, and
only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of an instrument. The Bank initially recognizes loans
and advances, deposits; and debt securities/subordinated liabilities issued on the date that they are originated
which is the date that the Bank becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Investments
in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, government securities, NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse repos,
outright purchase are recognized on trade date at which the Bank commits to purchase/acquire the financial
assets. Regular purchase and sale of financial assets are recognized on trade dates.

3.4.1.1 Financial Assets
The Bank classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of
the Bank’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. The two classes of financial assets are as follows:

i.  Financial assets recognized at amortized cost
The Bank classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

a) Theassetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI test) on the principal amount outstanding.

ii. Financial asset recognized at fair value
Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value. Financial assets measured
at fair value are further classified into two categories as below:

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss(FVTPL)if they are held for trading or are designated
at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of such assetsarerecognizedin the statement of profit orlossasincurred. Such assets are subsequently
measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial recognition, the Bank makes an
irrevocable election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the instrument are to be recognized in other
comprehensive income are classified as financial assets at fair value though other comprehensive income. Such assets
are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

3.4.1.2 Financial Liabilities
The bank classifies the financial liabilities as follows:

a) Financial liabilities recognized at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or are
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are directly attributable to
the acquisition and are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair value are
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
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b) Financial liabilities recognized at amortized cost
All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though Statement of Profit or Loss are classified as
subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

3.4.2 Measurement

Initial Measurement

At initial recognition, the bank measures a financial assets or financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in
the case of financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction cost that are
incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial liability, such
as commission and fees. The transaction cost of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value
through profit of loss are expensed in profit or loss. Allowance for impairment is recognized when the credit
quality of the financial asset has deteriorated significantly since initial recognition.

Subsequent Measurement
A financial asset or financial liability is subsequently measured either at fair value or at amortized cost based on
the classification of the financial asset or liability.

Financial assets or liability initially measured at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using effective interest rate method. The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at
which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus
or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest rate method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction for impairment or un-collectability.

In case of Loans and Advances measured at amortized cost, the processing charge and documentation charges
received from customers which are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of such financial assets are
booked as income in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the reporting period in which they are received. The
effective interest rate method is not applied as per transitional arrangement plan of Nepal Rastra Bank.

Further, once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interestincome is thereafter calculated by applying effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset unless the financial asset is written off either partially or fully.

Financial assets classified at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value. The subsequent changes in fair
value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss whereas of
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized in other comprehensive income.

3.4.3 Derecognition

3.4.3.1 Derecognition of Financial Assets
The Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the
Bank is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the carrying amount of the asset, and the sum of

a) the consideration received and
b) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income, is recognized in

Statement of Profit or Loss.

The Bank enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its Statement of Financial Position
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them.

If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognized. Transfers
of assets with retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards include, for example, repurchase transactions.
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3.4.3.2 Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
Financial liability is derecognized when, and only when it is extinguished (i.e., when the obligation specified in
contractisdischarged, cancelled or expired). If the liability is renegotiated with the original lender on substantially
different contractual terms, the original liability is derecognized and new liability is recognized.

The difference between the carrying amount of liability (or portion) extinguished or transferred to another party
(including related unamortized cost) and the amount paid for it (including any noncash assets transferred or
liability assumed), is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss for the period.

3.4.4 Determination of Fair Value
‘Fair value'is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price)in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most
advantageous market to which the Group has access at that date.

The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. When available, the bank measures the fair value
of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active
if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the bank uses valuation techniques that maximize the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique
incorporates all of the factors that market participants would consider in pricing a transaction.

The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:

Level1
These are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the bank can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2

These are the inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly or
indirectly. These would include prices for the similar, but not identical, assets or liabilities that were then adjusted
to reflect the factors specific to the measured asset or liability.

Level 3

These are unobservable inputs for the assets or liability. Unobservable inputsinclude inputs for which market data
are not available and that are developed using the best information available to the bank about the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, with an objective of determining the exit
price of the financial instrument at the measurement date.

3.4.5 Impairment
At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets not measured at fair value through the Statement of Profit or Loss are impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss
event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s), and that the loss event has animpact on the future
cash flows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the borrower
or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Bank on terms that the
Bank would not otherwise consider, indications thataborrower orissuer will enter Bankruptcy, the disappearance
of an active market for a security, or other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes
in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaultsin
the group.
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In addition, for an investment in an equity instrument, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below
its cost is objective evidence of impairment. In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Bank considers
restructuring loans rather than take possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment
arrangements and agreement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment
is measured using the original EIR as calculated before the modification of terms and the loan is no longer
considered past due.

Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments
are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment assessment,
calculated using the loan's original EIR.

However, in case of loans and advances, impairment loss is measured as the higher of amount derived as per
norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined in accordance with the
ECL model as per NFRS 9.

3.4.5.1 Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost
Impairment of loans and advances portfolios is based on the judgments of past experience of portfolio behavior.
In assessing collective impairment, the Bank uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing
of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to whether current
economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by
historical trends. Further, management has taken additional external risk (inflation, market risk and risk of data

incompleteness) for the impairment of loans and advances.

Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual
outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate. Impairment losses on assets measured at amortized cost are
calculated as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Loans together with the associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred
to the Bank.

If in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write off is later recovered, the recovery is recognized in the ‘Impairment
charges/(reversal) for loan and other losses' under Note no. 4.35.

However, in case of loans and advances, impairment loss is measured as the higher of amount derived as per norms
prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per NFRS 9.

3.4.6 Expected Credit Loss Disclosures

3.4.6.1 Financial risk management
The company's activities are primarily subjected to credit risk, market risk and operational risk for managing
which it has respective risk management committees. The function of these committees is to identify, monitor,
manage and mitigate these risks. The company also makes sure thatitadherestointernal policiesand procedures,
complies with the regulatory quidelines and maintains sufficient loan documentation.

With regards to its lending activity, the company has established various limits and restrictions to manage the
risks. There are various reports which are prepared and presented to senior management by respective risk
management committees at reqgular intervals and on ad-hoc basis which helps in risk monitoring. The company
has also set up procedures to mitigate the risks in case of any breach.

3.4.6.2 Credit risk
Creditriskarises fromloans and advances, cash and cash equivalents, investment in debt securities and deposits
with banks and financial institutions and any other financial assets.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's asset on finance and trade

receivables from customers; loans and investments in debt securities.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.
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3.4.6.3 Credit risk management
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer/
obligor. However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer
base, including the default risk associated with the industry, business specific risk, management risk, transition
specific risk and project related risks.

A financial asset is considered ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on

the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-

impaired includes the following observable data:

e Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower

® Abreach of contract, such as default

e The lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider

® |tisbecoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation

e The disappearance of the active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties

e Purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit loss

3.4.6.4 Probablity of default (PD)

The likelihood that a borrower will default on a loan within a specified time frame, typically expressed as a

percentage.

o Derive PD based on historical default migration rates and/other data, internal and external credit rating.

® Incorporate forward looking PD information by adjusting PD to its sensitivity to changes in certain
macroeconomic factors.

@ Use at least five-year historical data, where available, for calculating PDs and validate any smoothing of data
or inputs by Integrated Risk Management Department.

e Linktheinternalrating scale to external credit rating for the determination of PD with the caveat that the Bank
should avoid using proxies to compute PDs.

e Compute PDs by using sovereign PD linked to external credit rating scale, on exposures denominated in foreign
currencies issued by the foreign sovereigns."

3.4.6.5 Definition of default

Includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date and includes:

a) Financial assets having overdue days more than 90.

b) Credit facilities classified as non-performing as per NRB prudential provisioning directive and are already
impaired (defaulted) status.

c) Creditimpaired financial instruments with objective evidence of impairment. A financial instrument is credit-
impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial instrument have occurred. Evidence that a financial instrument is credit-impaired include
observable data about the following events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

® abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

e the lenders of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concessions that the lenders would not otherwise consider;
becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-organization;
disappearance of an active market for that financial instrument because of financial difficulties;
purchase or origination of a financial instrument at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
If any, credit impaired as per the risk management practices of the Bank.

d) The Bank considers that the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the bank in full, without

realizing security (if held). The indicators of unlikeliness to pay includes:

® The Bank puts credit obligation on non-accrued status.

e The Bank consents to distress restructuring of credit obligation resulting in reduction in financial
obligation due to material forgiveness, postponement of principal or interest.

e The Bank has filed for debtor’s bankruptcy or a similar order in respect of the borrower’s credit obligation.

e The Bank sells a part of the credit obligation at a material credit-related economic loss.

@ The debtor has sought or has been placed in bankruptcy or similar protection where this would avoid or
delay repayment of the credit obligation.
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e Thereisevidence that full repayment based on contractual terms is unlikely without the Bank's realization
of collateral regardless of whether the exposure is current or past due by few days.

Interest income is calculated on actual receipt basis (cash basis) on stage 3.

3.4.6.6 Exposure at default (EAD)

The total value that a lender is exposed to at the time of default, including any outstanding principal and accrued

interest.

e Forwards looking models needs to be developed for computing Credit Conversion Factor (CCF)for off-balance
sheet exposures.

e In case data is not available for computing CCF, Regulatory CCF numbers to be used as provided in the
guidelines.

e Forclosedendloans, EAD to be capped at maximum contractual period over which entity is exposed to credit
risk.

e |f dataisnotavailable for off balance sheet exposures, the Bank shall use Regulatory Credit Conversion Factor
for the calculation of EAD for off balance sheet exposures.

3.4.6.7 Loss given default (LGD)

LGD is the percentage of exposure that is not expected to be recovered in the event of a default.

e Develop model based on historical data, historical experience of cash recovery from defaults (including
settlements), cost and time of recoveries.

e While determining loss rate or recovery rate for the purpose of calculation of loss allowance, expected cash
flows from collateral realization are to be considered based on latest reliable valuations (within last 2 years).

® Anyincrease in valuation of collateral in comparison to valuation report is to be supported by evidence.

e Value (Net realizable value) of the collaterals shall be considered after deducting applicable realization cost
and haircut.”

3.4.6.8 Staging and Significant increase in credit risk
Staging an SICR are primary steps before impairment modelling for identifying the risk of a borrower.

The facilities must be allocated to one of the three impairment stages by determining whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether the facility has defaulted.

Assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk is required to be carried out at each
reporting date. An asset can move into and out of the lifetime expected credit losses categories (Stage 2 and
3) based on a predefined pattern obtained from the historical default rates or delinquency status of account
acrossvarious internal rating grades, products, sectors or satisfying specified provision of NRB directives or ECL
guidelines.

The assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk should be made for a specific
instrument rather than for a counterparty since the quantum of change in credit risk may be different for different
instruments transacted with the same party. Also, different instruments issued by the same counterparty may
have had a different credit risk at initial recognition. Some of the indicators (non-exhaustive list) of significant
increase in credit risk, are:

e More than 30 days past due.

Absolute Lifetime PDis 5% or more.

Relative Lifetime PD is increased by 100% or more.

Risk rating (internal or external) downgraded by 2 notches since initial recognition.

Risk rating downgraded to non-investment grade by external credit rating agency (BB+ or below) or by the
Bank's internal credit rating system.

Deterioration of relevant determinants of credit risk (e.g., future cash flows) for an individual obligor (or pool of
obligors).

Expectation of forbearance or restructuring due to financial difficulties.

Deterioration of prospects for sector or industries within which a borrower operates.

Borrowers affected by macro-economic conditions based on reasonable and supportable forecasts.
Modification of terms resulting in restructuring/ rescheduling.
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e Credit Quality indicators determined as per internal credit assessment of performing loans which are subject
to individual monitoring and review, are weaker than that in the initial recognition.

Management decision to strengthen collateral and/or covenant requirements for credit exposures because of
changes in the credit risk of those exposures since initial recognition.

3.4.7 Impairment of investment in equity instruments classified as fair value though other comprehensive income
Objective evidence of impairment of investment in an equity instrument is a significant or prolonged decline in
its fair value below its cost. Impairment losses are recognized by reclassifying the losses accumulated in the fair
value reserve in equity to profit or loss. The cumulative loss that is reclassified from equity to profit or loss is
the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss recognized previously in profit or loss.

3.5 Trading Assets

The Bank classifies financial assets or financial liabilities as held for trading when they have been purchased or issued primarily
for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed
together for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Held for trading assets and liabilities are
recorded and measured in the statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in net trading
income. Interest and dividend income or expense are recorded in net trading income according to the terms of the contract,
or when the right to payment has been established. Included in this classification are debt securities, equities, short positions
and customer loans that have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

3.6 Derivatives assets and derivative liabilities
Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their value in response to changes in interest rates, financial instrument
prices, commodity prices, foreign exchange rates, credit risk and indices. Derivatives are categorized as trading unless
they are designated as hedging instruments.

Derivatives are initially recognized and subsequently measured at fair value, with revaluation gains recognized in profit
and loss (except where cash flow or net investment hedging has been achieved, in which case the effective portion of
changes in fair value is recognized within other comprehensive income).

Fair values may be obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, recent market transactions, and valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models, as appropriate. Where the initially
recognized fair value of a derivative contract is based on a valuation model that uses inputs which are not observable in
the market, it follows the same initial recognition accounting policy as for other financial assets and liabilities.

3.7 Property and Equipment
All property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or are recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Ateachbalance sheet date, the assets’'residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, including
assessing for indicators of impairment. In the event that an asset's carrying amount is determined to be greater than its
recoverable amount, the asset is written down to the recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are included in
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

The value of land is not depreciated although it is subject to impairment testing.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the difference between the cost
and the residual value over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
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Asset Code Asset Detail Category Useful Life
AP Furniture & Fixtures - Others 5
CA Computer &Accessories 5
EE Office Equipment 5
FF Furniture & Fixtures - Others 5
KE Office Equipment 5
LB Building 20
LD Land Unlimited
LE Leasehold Property 10
MS Office Equipment - Others 5
MY Machinery 5
OE Office Equipment 5
SF Furniture & Fixtures - Metal 7
SR Vault 10
VH Vehicles 7
WF Furniture & Fixtures - Wooden 5

Low value assets costing up to NPR 5,000 each are charged as operational expenses in the year of purchase.

Land properties, under the ownership and control of the bank, have beenrevalued to reflect the value of those properties.
The excess of the market value over carrying value is taken to the equity as revaluation reserve.

3.8 Capital work in progress
Capital work in progress is stated at cost. These are expenses of a capital nature directly incurred in the construction of
buildings, awaiting capitalization.

3.9 Goodwill and Intangible assets

3.9.1

3.9.2

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include externally generated capitalized software enhancements. Intangible assets, which
have been determined to have a finite useful life are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
life. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date to assess whether there is any
indication that they are impaired. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of the asset is determined
and, in the event that the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately.

Computer Software
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to
use the specific software.

Amortization on computer software is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the difference
between the cost and the residual value over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Asset Code Asset Detail Category Useful Life

SW Software 5

3.10 Investment Property and Non-current Assets held for sale

3.10.1

Investment Property

Investment properties include land or land and buildings other than those classified as property and equipment
and non-current assets held for sale. Generally, it includes land, land and building acquired by the Bank as non-
banking assets but not sold as on the reporting date.

The Bank holds investment property that has been acquired through enforcement of security over the loans and
advances.
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3.10.2 Non-Current Assets held for sale
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale and carried at lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount is recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. The assets are not depreciated or amortized while they are classified as held
for sale. Any impairment loss on initial classification and subsequent measurement is recognized as an expense.
Any subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sell (not exceeding the accumulated impairment loss that has
been previously recognized)is recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss.

3.11 Income Tax

3.1.1 Current income tax
Current income tax which is payable on taxable profits is recognized as an expense in the period in which the
profits arise.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in Nepal.

Currentincome tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the Statement
of Profit or Loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation, and it establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax related to gains and losses on the fair value re-measurement of assets and liabilities classified
through other comprehensive income also recognized in other comprehensive income. Such tax is subsequently
transferred to the Statement of Profit or Loss together with the gain or loss.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only when there is both a legal right of offset and the intention to
settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The bank has paid Rs. 29,74,43,730 in FY 2081-82 under the head earlier year tax regarding pending tax litigation
cases which is still pending under different courts. It will help to save interest and penalties levied by the Tax
Office.

3.1.2 Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

b) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against the
deductible temporary differences. The carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized,
except:

a) Whenthe deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

b) Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interestsin joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

100 ® 315" ANNUAL REPORT 2081/82 (2024/25 AD) EVEREST BANK LIMITED _



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & NOTES

O o= 3= e

EVEREST BANK LIMITED

Consi Strong & D

Deferred tax related to gains and losses on the fair value re-measurement of assets and liabilities classified
through other comprehensive income, is also recognized in other comprehensive income. Such tax is
subsequently transferred to the Statement of Profit or Loss together with the gain or loss.

3.12 Deposit, Debt Securities issued and subordinated liabilities
The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity period is the amount repayable on demand. The estimated
fair value of fixed interest bearing deposits and other borrowings without quoted market prices is based on discounting
cash flows using the prevailing market rates for debts with a similar credit risk and remaining maturity period.

Debentures are recognized at amortized cost using effective interest rates. The coupon rates of these instruments
represent the effective interest rates. Effective Interest Rate is expected to cover for the credit risk and time value of
money on these instruments as these are solely for the purpose of principal and interest.

3.13 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material,
the Bank determines the level of provision by discounting the expected cash flow at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current
rates specific to the liability. The expense relating to any provision is presented in Statement of Profit or Loss net of any
reimbursement in other operating expenses

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If itisno longer probable
that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

A provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Bank from a contract are
lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under the contract.

3.14 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to
the entity. In some cases, this may not be probable until the consideration is received or until an uncertainty is removed.

Revenue comprises of interest income, fees and commission, foreign exchange income, cards income, disposal income,
etc. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue
can be reliably measured. Revenue is not recognized during the period in which its recoverability of income is not
probable. The bases of income recognition are as below:

a. Interestincome
Interest income on financial assets held at amortized cost other than loans and advances are recognized using the
bank's normal interest rate which is very close to effective interest rate using effective interest rate method.

For income from loans and advances to customers, initial charges are not amortized over the life of the loan and
advances as the income so recognized closely approximates the income that would have been derived under
effective interest rate method. The Bank considers that the cost of exact calculation of effective interest rate
method exceeds the benefit that would be derived from such compliance.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or of a financial
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit losses.

The calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts unlessitisimmaterial orimpracticable
to determine reliably, between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
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financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are included in the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. Contractual interest income and expense on financial instruments held at fair value
through profit or loss is recognized within net interest income. The bank has recognized only the interest income
that was received or accrued up to the end of Ashadh 2082. Any interest received within 15 days after the end of the
current fiscal year has not been included as interest income for the current fiscal year.

b. Feesand Commission
Fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset are included in
measurement of effective interest rate. Other fees and commission income including management fee, service
charges, syndication fee and forex transaction commission are recognized as the related services are performed.

c. Dividend Income
Dividends on investment in resident companies are recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
Dividend incomes are presented in net trading income, net income from other financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss or other revenue based on the underlying classification of the equity instruments.

d. Nettradingincome
Gain and losses arising in changes in fair value of financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are
included in Statement of Profit or Loss in the period in which they arise.

These includes the net gain/loss on translation of period end balances carried in foreign exchange to the Nepalese
Rupees.

e. Netincome from other financial instrument at fair value through profit or loss
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of other financial instruments held at fair value through profit
or loss are included in the Statement of Profit or Loss in the period in which they arise.

f. Grantincome
Government grants, including non-monetary grants at fair value, shall not be recognized until there is reasonable
assurance that:

(a) the entity will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and

(b) the grants will be received. A government grant is not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the entity
will comply with the conditions attached to it, and that the grant will be received. Receipt of a grant does not by itself
provide conclusive evidence that the conditions attaching to the grant have been or will be fulfilled.

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related costs shall be recognized in profit or loss of the
period in which it becomes receivable.

Grantsrelated to income are presented as part of profit or loss, are adjusted in reporting the related expense.

3.15 Interest Expenses
Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits is recognized in profit or loss using effective interest rate
method. Interest expense on all trading liabilities is considered to be incidental to the Bank's trading operations and are
presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

3.16 Employees Benefits
Short-term employee benefits, such as salaries, paid absences, performance-based cash awards and social security
costs are recognized over the period in which the employees provide the related services.

The Bank operates a number of post-retirement benefit schemes for its employees including both defined benefit
and defined contribution plans. A defined benefit scheme is a plan that defines the amount of pension benefit that
an employee will receive on retirement, dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary. A
defined contribution planis a pension plan into which the Bank pays fixed contributions; there is no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions.
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Full actuarial valuations of the Bank's defined benefit schemes are carried out periodically with interim reviews in the
intervening years; these valuations are updated by qualified independent actuaries.

For the purposes of these annual updates scheme assets are included at their fair value and scheme liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using actuarial assumptions. The defined benefit scheme liabilities are discounted using
rates equivalent to the market yields at the reporting date.

The Bank’s Statement of Profit or Loss includes the current service cost, past service costs, net interest expense
(income), and plan administration costs that are not deducted from the return on plan assets.

Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest expense (income)and net of the cost of managing the plan assets), and the effect of changes to the asset ceiling
(if applicable)are reflected immediately in the statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognized in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.

Re-measurements recognized in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained profits and will not
subsequently be reclassified to Statement of other Comprehensive income.

The Bank's Statement of Financial Position includes the net surplus or deficit, being the difference between the fair
value of scheme assets and the discounted value of scheme liabilities at the reporting date.

Surpluses are only recognized to the extent that they are recoverable through reduced contributions in the future or
through refunds from the schemes. In assessing whether a surplus is recoverable, the Bank considers its current right to
obtain arefund or areduction in future contributions and does not anticipate any future acts by other parties that could
change the amount of the surplus that may ultimately be recovered.

Employees Provident Fund

In accordance with law, all employees of the Bank are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined
contribution plan in which both the employee and the Bank contribute monthly at a pre-determined rate (currently, 10%
of the basic salary plus grades). Bank does not assume any future liability of provident fund benefits other than its annual
contribution.

Leave Salary

The employees of the Bank are entitled to carry forward a part of their unavailed/unutilized leave subject to a maximum
limit. The employees can encash unavailed/unutilized leave partially in terms of Employee Service Byelaws of the Bank.
The Bank accounts for the liability for entire accumulated outstanding leave balance on accrual basis as per actuarial
valuation report.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as expense when the Bank is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility
of withdrawal, to a formal plan to provide termination benefits to employees as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits are recognized if the Bank has made an offer for voluntary redundancy, it
is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be measured reliably. If the benefits are
payable in more than 12 months after the reporting date, they are discounted to their present value.

3.17 Leases
Lease accounting has been prepared according to NFRS 16. Upon lease commencement the bank has recognized a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the amount of the lease liability
plus any initial direct costs incurred by the bank. After lease commencement, bank has measured the right-of-use asset
using a cost model.

Under the cost model a right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment.

The lease liability isinitially measured at the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term, discounted
at the borrowing yield rate of the bank.
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3.18 Foreign Currency Translation
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Foreign currencytransactionsare translatedinto the appropriate functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss, except when recognized in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets that are measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rate at the date that the fair
value was determined. Translation differences on equities and similar non-monetary items held at fair value through
profit and loss are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.

3.19 Financial Guarantee and Loan Commitment
Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence depends on the outcome of uncertain future events
or those present obligations where the outflow of resources is uncertain or cannot be measured reliably. Contingent
liabilities are not recognized in financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to accounts unless they are remote.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually
and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognized
in the period in which the change occurs. Details of financial guarantee and commitments provided by the bank on the
reporting date is given as note 4.28.

3.20 Share Capital and Reserve
The Bank applies NAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, to determine whether funding is either a financial
liability (debt) or equity. Issued financial instruments or their components are classified as liabilities if the contractual
arrangement results in the bank having a present obligation to either deliver cash or another financial asset, or a variable
number of equity shares, to the holder of the instrument.

Dividends and other returns to equity holders are recognized when paid or declared by the members at the AGM and
treated as a deduction from equity.

3.21 Earnings per share including diluted
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

For the calculation of diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares that arise in respect of convertible preference shares.

3.22 Segment Reporting
An operating segment is a component of the bank that engages in business activities from which it earns revenues and
incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the bank's other components,
whose operating results are reviewed by the management to make decision about resource allocation to each segment
and assess its performance.

The bank manages its branch networks under regional demarcation for supervision, monitoring and control. Inter-unit
charges and revenues are applied to assess the performance of the business units. These charges are nullified at the
overall bank’s level. The bank has identified segments on the basis of each geographical presence in seven provinces of
the country.

Segment results that are reported by the Bank include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can

be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets (primarily the Bank's corporate
building), head office expenses, and tax assets and liabilities that are categorized as banking assets/liabilities.
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4. Notesto Accounts

Note 4.1- Cash and cash equivalent

Cashand cash equivalent comprise the totalamount of Cash-in-hand, Balances with other bank and financial institutions,
Money at call and short notice, Treasury bills having original maturity of less than three months and Cash in transit is
presented as follows:

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Cashin hand 2,384,593,059 2,509,669,117
Balances with B/Fls 4,336,046,424 2,692,177,884
Money at call and short notice - 2,200,000,000
Other - -
3 months Treasury bills - 997,739,500
Cashin Transit - 12,424,800
Total 6,720,639,482 8,412,011,302

* The Cash In Transit includes INR 653,000 of the Bank and INR 7,112,500 collected from customers sent to NRB for
exchange but the same have not been exchanged by NRB in previous year.

Note 4.2- Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank including balance for compulsory cash reserve is presented as follows:

Partiowiars 52 Ashadh 2062 31 Ashadh 208

Statutory balances with NRB 11,227,061,127 9,007,561,136
Securities purchased under resale agreement 29,500,000,000 -
Other deposit and receivable from NRB 23,988,641,677 32,175,045,263
Less : Allowance for Impairment (556,576)

Total 64,715,146,228 41,182,606,399

Note 4.3- Placement with bank and financial institutions
Placements with domestic as well as foreign bank and financial institutions with original maturities of more than three
months from the acquisition date are presented as follows:

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Placement with domestic B/Fls - -
Placement with foreign B/Fls 7,999,853,491 6,630,271,586
Less: Allowances for impairment (3,268,310) -
Total 7.996,585,181 6,630,271,586

Note 4.4- Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their value in response to changes ininterest rates, financial instrument
prices, commodity prices, foreign exchange rates, credit risk, indices etc. Derivatives are categorized as trading unless
they are designated as hedging instruments. All derivatives are initially recognized and subsequently measured at
fair value, with all revaluation gain or losses recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under Net trading Income.
Derivatives are recorded at fair value and carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their
fair value is negative. Fair value is determined using the forward market rates ruling on the reporting date.

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

Held for trading - -
Interest rate swap - -
Currency swap - -
Forward exchange contract 3,577,723,753 1,664,092,583
Others - -
Held for risk management - -
Interest rate swap - -
Currency swap - -
Forward exchange contract - -
Other - -
Total 3,577,723,753 1,664,092,583
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Note 4.5- Other trading assets
The bank does not have any trading assets.

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

Treasury bills - -
Government bonds - -
NRB Bonds - -
Domestic Corporate bonds - -
Equities - -
Other - -
Total - -
Pledged - -
Non-pledged - -

Note 4.6- Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loan and advances given to microfinance financial institutions as deprived sector lending is presented under this head
after providing required impairment allowances as per NRB norms.

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Loans to microfinance institutions 9,880,565,119 7,745,610,760
Other - -
Less: Allowances for impairment 98,805,651 92,947,329
Total 9,781,759,468 7,652,663,431

Note 4.6.1: Allowances for impairment

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Balance at Shrawan 1 92,947,329 119,275,115
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year 5,858,322 -
Recoveries/reversal - (26,327,786)
Amount written off - -
Balance at Ashadh end 98,805,651 92,947,329

Note 4.7- Loans and advances to customers

Sum of the outstandingamount of all loans and advances extended to the customers other than BFls, bills purchased and
discounted and amortized cost of staff loans; less the amount of impairment allowances as per NRB norms is presented
under this head.

The difference between the average yield of the bank and concessional rate of interest being provided to the bank is
recognized as the amortized cost of staff loan.

Particulars | 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

Loan and advances measured 216,635,961,337 181,678,285,495
at amortized cost

Less: Impairment allowances

Collective impairment 2,542,520,209 2,523,046,514
Individual impairment 654,951,024 839,840,260
Net amount 213,438,490,103 178,215,398,721
Loan and advances measured - -
at FVTPL

Total 213,438,490,103 178,215,398,721
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Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

Product

Long Term Loans
Personal 12,108,140,360 15,383,280,000
Business 52,597,811,359 39,100,350,000
Working Capital 11,924,615,260 9,231,470,000

Overdraft (Personal)

3,316,085,162

3,278,500,513

Cash Credit Loan

45,370,550,682

38,576,211,570

Trust receipt/Import Loans

9,945,218,692

6,695,552,811

Short Term Working Capital/Demand Loan

25,146,434,349

18,640,341,610

Personal Residential Loans

24,339,352,558

22,918,275,316

Real Estate Loans

7,061,886,266

6,392,135,307

Margin Lending Loans

3,440,137,804

2,026,915,209

Hire Purchase Loans

5,646,642,405

3,468,211,465

Deprived Sector Loans

10,795,376,872

1,286,277,701

Bills Purchased

700,103,661

43,092,306

Staff Loans

2,011,645,353

1,789,257,643

Other 11,381,149,887 11,720,443,441
Sub Total 225,685,130,671 180,550,314,891
Interest receivable 831,395,785 1,027,970,604
Grand Total 226,516,526,456 181,578,285,495
Note 4.7.2: Analysis of loan and advances - By Currency
Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Nepalese Rupee NPR 219,772,236,914 178,695,295,715
Indian Rupee INR - -
United State Dollar USD 6,744,289,541 2,882,989,780
Great Britain Pound GBP - -
Euro EUR - -
Japanese Yen JPY - -
Chinese Yuan CNY - -
Other Others - -
Total 226,516,526,456 181,578,285,495

Note 4.7.3: Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral

Particulars
Secured

32 Ashadh 2082

31 Ashadh 2081

Movable/immovable assets

197,260,463,130

166,555,607,060

Gold and silver

Guarantee of domestic B/Fls

Government guarantee

198,736,476

198,772,433

Guarantee of international rated bank

Collateral of export document

9,277,608,945

5,459,120,000

Collateral of fixed deposit receipt

2,008,971,625

2,821,942,229

Collateral of Government securities 154,326 25,973,806
Counter guarantee

Personal guarantee 898,079,395 304,899,781
Other collateral 16,872,511,559 6,211,970,186
Sub Total 226,516,526,456 181,578,285,495
Unsecured - -
Grant Total 226,516,526,456 181,578,285,495
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Note 4.7.4: Allowances for impairment

Particulars | 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

Specific allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1

839,840,260

723,573,606

Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year

116,266,654

Recoveries/reversal during the year

(184,889,236)

Write-offs

Exchange rate variance on
foreign currency impairment

Other movement

Balance at Ashadh end

654,951,024

839,840,260

Collective allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1

2,523,046,514

2,330,581,499

Impairment loss for the year:

Charge/(reversal) for the year

Exchange rate variance on
foreign currency impairment

19,473,696

192,465,015

Other movement

Balance at Ashadh end

2,542,520,209

2,523,046,514

Total allowances for impairment

3,197,471,233

3,362,886,774

Impairment loss on Loans and Advances to BFIs and Customers are measured as the higher of amount derived as per norms
prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per NFRS 9 through Expected Credit
Loss (ECL) model. The details of loan loss provision as per Nepal Rastra Bank and impairment loss as per NFRS 9 through
Expected Credit Loss model are as follows:

Particulars
Loans and advances to BFls

32 Ashadh 2082
53,184,416

31 Ashadh 2081

Loans and advances to customers

3,127,883,865

1,315,547,278

Total Impairment as per
ECL method under NFRS 9(A)

3,181,068,281

1,315,547,278

Total impairment as per NRB norms (B)

3,296,276,884

3,455,834,103

Higher of impairment as per ECL method under

NFRS 9(A) or NRB Norms (B)

3,296,276,884

3,455,834,103
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Note 4.8- Investment securities

Investments made by Bank in financial instruments has been presented under this account head in three categoriesii.e.
investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss, investment securities measured at amortized cost
and investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income which is as follows:

Particulars | 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

Investment securities measured at amortized cost

48,105,338,374

42,800,320,319

Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI

1,338,099,093

1,343,299,224

Total

49,443,437,467

44,143,619,543

The bank has investment in government bonds and NRB treasury bills which are measured at amortized cost. Disclosure
in respect of investment in government bond are as follows:

Note 4.8.1: Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Particulars

32 Ashadh 2082

31Ashadh 2081

Debt securities

Government bonds

41,834,653,053

37,930,234,317

Government treasury bills

4,853,500,918

3,452,533,513

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments

Other Bond

1,417,590,116

1,417,552,489

Less: Allowances for impairment

(405,714)

Total

48,105,338,374

42,800,320,319

Investments made by the bank in shares of other companies/institutions and units of mutual fund are presented as

follows.

Note 4.8.2: Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Particulars
Equity instruments

32 Ashadh 2082 |

31 Ashadh 2081

Quoted equity securities

1,1564,803,529

1,168,715,466

Unquoted equity securities

183,295,564

174,583,758

Total

1,338,099,093

1,343,299,224
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Note 4.8.3: Information relating to investment in equities

32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Investment in Quoted Equity

Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 8,676,667 917,987,829 8,676,667 887,372,666
Promoter Share (1,988,967 promoter shares of Rs. 100 each)
(2080/81: 1,988,966 promoter shares of Rs. 100 each)

Sana Kisan Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 70,870,000 55,897,700 70,870,000 | 162,808,800
Promoter (Previously RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited)
(558,977 promoter shares of Rs. 100 each

2080/81: 493,360 promoter shares of Rs. 100 each)

Taragaon Regency Hotel Limited 5,000,000 48,958,000 5,000,000 41,964,000
(52,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each
2080/81: 50,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each)

Investment in Quoted units of Mutual Fund

NIBL Growth Fund (1,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each) 10,000,000 10,090,000 10,000,000 10,640,000
Prabhu Smart Fund (500,000 units of Rs. 10 each) 5,000,000 5,775,000 5,000,000 4,805,000
RBB Mutual Fund 2 (500,000 units of Rs. 10 each) 5,000,000 5,045,000 5,000,000 4,750,000
Sunrise Focused Equity Fund (1,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each) 10,000,000 10,040,000 10,000,000 8,240,000
Siddhartha Investment Growth Scheme 3 20,000,000 20,900,000 20,000,000 18,900,000
(2,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each)

NIBL Stable Fund (1,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each) 10,000,000 10,040,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
Citizens Super 30 Mutual Fund (500,000 units of Rs. 10 each) 5,000,000 5,040,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Himalayan 80-20(500,000 units of Rs. 10 each) 5,000,000 6,030,000 5,000,000 4,995,000
Laxmi Value Fund 2(1,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each) 10,000,000 10,130,000 10,000,000 9,240,000
Garima Samriddhi Yojana (1,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each) 10,000,000 10,000,000 - -
Muktinath Mutual Fund 1(2,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each) 20,000,000 19,980,000 - -
MBL Equity Fund (500,000 units of Rs. 10 each) 5,000,000 4,985,000 - -
NMB Hybrid Fund L- 11(1,000,000 units of Rs. 10 each) 10,000,000 8,920,000 - -
Reliable Samriddhi Yojana (500,000 units of Rs. 10 each) 5,000,000 4,985,000 - -
TOTAL OF QUOTED INSTRUMENTS 214,546,667 | 1,154,803,529 | 164,546,667 | 1,168,715,466

Investment in unquoted equity
Nepal Clearing House Limited 2,500,000 47,434,606 2,500,000 38,765,398
(199,649 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

2080/81: 167,772 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each)

Karja Suchana Kendra Limited 1,235,500 119,182,904 1,235,500 105,873,451
(154,402 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each
2080/81: 154,402 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each)

National Banking Training Institute 5,597,460 11,608,054 1,834,860 29,944,909
(110,102 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each
2080/81: 72,476 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each)

Investment in Un-Quoted units of Mutual Fund
Sanima Flexi Fund 5,000,000 5,070,000 - -
(500,000 units of Rs. 10 each)

TOTAL OF UNQOUTED SHARE 14,332,960 183,295,564 5,570,360 | 174,583,758

TOTAL 228,879,627 | 1,338,099,093 170,117,027 (1,343,299,224
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Note 4.9- Current tax assets
Advance tax deposited by the bank less tax liabilities are presented under this head. Liabilities recognized for the purpose
of current income tax, including fees, penalties are presented under this head.

Particulars | 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

Current tax assets

Current year income tax assets 2,136,785,566 1,668,278,011
Tax assets of prior periods 15,089,792,664 13,421,514,653
Current tax liabilities

Current year income tax liabilities (2,279,897,714) (1,688,056,618)
Tax liabilities of prior periods (14,572,0486,009) (12,883,989,391)
Total 374,634,507 517,746,655

Note 4.10- Investment in subsidiaries
The bank does not have any subsidiary company.

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

Investment in quoted subsidiaries - -
Investment in unquoted subsidiaries - -
Total investment
Less: Impairment allowances - -
Net carrying amount - -

4.10.1: Investment in quoted subsidiaries
32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP HELD BY THE BANK
32 Ashadh 2082 31Ashadh 2081

4.10.4: Non controlling interest of the subsidiaries

Equity interest held by NCI (%)

Profit/(loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated balances of NCl as on Asar end........
Dividend paid to NCI

Equity interest held by NCI (%)

Profit/(loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated balances of NCl as on Asar end........
Dividend paid to NCI
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Note 4.11- Investment in associates

The bank holds 25% equity of investment in Forward Community Micro Finance Limited as investment in shares, which
has been accounted for using equity accounting as under. The post-acquisition results of the associate are based on the
unaudited financial highlights as published by the associate company.

The net effect of loss arise on valuation of the investment amounting to Rs. 74,138,839 (Previous year gain of
Rs. 108,473,206) has been transferred to Requlatory Reserve from Retained Earning during the year.

Particulars | 32 Ashadh 2082 | 31 Ashadh 2081
Investment in quoted associates 762,144,319 836,283,158
Investment in unquoted associates - -
Total investment

Less: Impairment allowances - -
Net carrying amount 762,144,319 836,283,158

4.11.1: Investment in quoted associates
32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Forward Community Micro Finance Ltd.
(2,989,849 Shares @ Rs. 100 each) 50,000,000 762,144,319 50,000,000 836,283,158

[Includes 2,489,849 no. of Bonus Shares].
2080/81: 2,638,878 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each)

Total 50,000,000 | 762,144,319 50,000,000 836,283,158

4.11.2: Investment in unquoted associates

32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Cost Fair Value
........................ Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each - - - -
........................ Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each - - - -
Total - - - -

4.11.3: Information relating to associates of the Bank

PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP HELD BY THE BANK

32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

Forward Community Micro Finance Ltd. | 25% | 25%

4.11.4: Equity value of associates

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Forward Community Micro Finance Ltd. 762,144,319 836,283,158
Total 762,144,319 836,283,158

Note 4.12- Investment properties

Land or land and building other than those classified as property and equipment; and non- current assets held for sale
under relevant accounting standard has been presented under this account head. This shall include land, land and building
acquired as non-banking assets by the bank but not sold. The bank has no investment properties as on 32 Ashadh 2082.

The position of the Non-banking Assets of the bank is as under:

32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

Investment properties measured at fair value
Balance as on Shrawan 1, 2081
Addition/disposal during the year

Net changes in fair value during the year
Adjustment/transfer

Net amount
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Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Investment properties measured at Cost
Balance as on Shrawan 1 522,293,275 -
Addition/Disposal during the year 42,001,811 522,293,275
Adjustment/transfer -
Accumulated depreciation - -
Accumulated impairment loss
Net amount 564,295,086 522,293,275
Total 564,295,086 522,293,275
DETAILS OF NON-BANKING ASSETS
S.N. | Name of the Party/borrower, Address NBA Booked Date 32 Ashadh 2082 31Ashadh 2081
1. Valley Liquor Mart Pvt. Ltd. 11/2/2023 31,367,065 48,867,065
2. New Aman Traders 10/12/2023 4,850,000 4,850,000
3. Namaste Garment Pvt. Ltd. 20/12/2023 9,585,900 9,585,900
4. Shristi & Praful Suppliers 3/1/2024 - 15,038,381
5. Nirman Hardware And Suppliers 10/1/2024 12,567,576 12,567,576
6. Nani Babu Sindali Magar/Bhan Kumari Shrestha (Magar) 11/1/2024 9,394,388 9,394,388
7. Ganesh Chiura Mill 11/1/2024 30,712,290 30,712,290
8. Bhairab Man Shrestha 18/1/2024 3,423,411 3,423,411
9. Yadav Khudra Galla Pasal 5/2/2024 9,563,000 9,563,000
10. New Saksham Enterprises 18/3/2024 18,950,123 18,950,123
. Prakash Enterprises 10/4/2024 4,000,000 26,000,000
12. | Jeevan Auto Service 10/4/2024 5,806,000 5,806,000
13. | Thapa Wholesale Supply 10/4/2024 28,000,000 28,000,000
14. | Laxmiltta Udhyog 12/4/2024 3,368,600 6,999,600
15. | Laxmi Trading Company 12/4/2024 30,442,000 30,442,000
16. Shree Baishno Maa Suppliers 16/4/2024 2,673,769 2,673,769
17. Babita Kirana Pasal 2/5/2024 1,560,000 1,560,000
18. Agro Trade Nepal Private Limited 30/5/2024 - 10,458,621
19. Gautam Overseas Pvt. Ltd. 18/6/2024 - 116,233,244
20. | Ranjana Beauty Parlour /72024 996,025 996,025
21. Pragya General Store 14/7/2024 19,866,000 19,866,000
22. | JyotiAgro Pvt. Ltd. 14/7/2024 88,663,000 88,663,000
23. | AnaPrasad/Sita/Gopal Dahal 15/7/2024 - 3,806,016
24. | Laxman Cold Stores 15/7/2024 17,836,867 17,836,867
25. | Hardware Center 2/9/2024 8,998,360
26. | LaxmiMedico Concern Private Limited 1/10/2024 4,395,424
27. | Ganesh Aauji 12/11/2024 5,979,462
28. | Binayak Suppliers 13/11/2024 12,561,000
29. | Kaushal Kushal Kirana Pasal 3/12/2024 9,233,329
30. | DurgaBaniya 22/1/2025 6,520,000
31. The Mobile Zone Group 11/2/2025 48,193,869
32. | New Daandi Maa Traders 2/4/2025 31,251,976
33. | Prekshya Suppliers 9/4/2025 3,725,000
34. | Prabin Cold Drinks Center 22/4/2025 11,262,500
35. | Mahesh Chaudhary / Basmati Chaudhary 26/5/2025 7,099,956
36. | Subisha Collection 7/7/2025 3,080,000
37. | Techno Dawn Pvt. Ltd. 10/7/2025 1,850,000
38. | Khadga Prasad Giri/Rekha Giri Karki 11/7/2025 3,096,357
39. | Arnav Liquor World 14/7/2025 34,622,000
40. | Scout Mahora 14/7/2025 5,337,630
41. Shubham Galla Bhandar 15/7/2025 10,902,208
42. | Rishika Enterprises 16/7/2025 22,560,000
TOTAL 564,295,086 522,293,275
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Note 4.15- Deferred tax
Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences between the book values of financial assets/liabilities and tax bases
of assets/liabilities using the statutory tax rate of 30%. Details as follows:

32 ASHADH 2082
DEFERRED TAX DEFERRED NET DEFERRED TAX
ASSETS TAX LIABILITIES ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls - - -
Loans and advances to customers - - -
Interest Receivable on Loans and advances - - -
Investment properties - - -
Unrealised Foreign Exchange - (252,057) (252,057)

Investment securities
Investment in associates

3,545,588

(332,765,840)
(213,643,296)

(332,765,840)
(213,643,296)

Properties, Plants & equipment & Intangible Assets - 3,545,588
Employees' defined benefit plan & contribution plan 429,750,239 - 429,750,239
Lease liabilities 69,902,593 - 69,902,593
Provisions - - -
Other receivables from NRB 166,973 - 166,973
Other bonds 121,714 - 121,714
Placement with BFls 980,493 - 980,493
Other temporary differences - - -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 504,467,600 (546,661,193) (42,193,593)

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of 2082

(42,193,593)

Recognised in profit or loss 201,265,639
Recognised in other comprehensive income (243,515,689)
Recognised directly in equity 56,457

Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on Shrawan 1, 2081
Origination/(Reversal) during the year

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in directly in equity

(125,808,362)
(83,614,769)

(60,291,044)

(23,323,725)

31 ASHADH 2081
DEFERRED TAX DEFERRED NET DEFERRED TAX
ASSETS TAX LIABILITIES ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls - - -
Loans and advances to customers - - -
Interest Receivable on Loans and advances - - -
Investment properties - - -
Unrealised Foreign Exchange - (13,714,382) (13,714,382)

Investment securities -
Investment in associates -

(351,954,659)
(235,884,947)

(351,954,659)
(235,884,947)

Properties, Plants & equipment & Intangible Assets 4,455,576 - 4,455,576
Employees' defined benefit plan & contribution plan 405,426,132 - 405,426,132
Lease liabilities 65,863,918 - 65,863,918
Provisions - - -
Other temporary differences - - -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 475,745,626 (601,553,988) (125,808,362)

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of 2081
Recognised in profit or loss

Recognised in other comprehensive income

Recognised directly in equity

Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on Shrawan 1, 2080
Origination/(Reversal) during the year

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in directly in equity

(125,808,362)

140,974,595

(266,839,414)

56,457

(173,207,361)
(47,398,999)

14,225,053

(61,567,595)

(56,457)
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Other Assetinclude accountsreceivable, interest receivable, accrued income, prepayments, deposit, deferred employee

benefits and stationery stock details presented as follows:

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Assets held for sale - -
Other non banking assets - -
Bills receivable - -
Accounts receivable 2,865,526 85,378,447
Accruedincome - 2,432,693
Prepayments and deposit 127,488,164 115,559,774
Income tax deposit (For Legal Cases) 151,478,000 204,076,023
Deferred employee expenditure 1,558,332,304 1,432,298,848
Other assets 54,683,475 171,824,565

Total

1,894,847,469

2,011,570,349

Note 4.17 - Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

Deposits from other BFls is shown under this head. Details as follows:

Particulars
Money market deposits

32 Ashadh 2082

31Ashadh 2081

Interbank borrowing

1,100,975,540.44

2,349,196,262

Other deposits from BFls

2,335,967,768

1,071,804,697

Settlement and clearing accounts

Other deposits from BFls

Total

3,436,943,308

3,421,000,959

Note 4.18 - Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

The bank has only refinance facilities due to Nepal Rastra Bank, presented as follows:

Particulars | 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

Refinance from NRB

Standing Liquidity Facility

Lender of last resort facility from NRB

Securities sold under repurchase
agreements

Other payable to NRB

Total
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Note 4.19 - Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their value in response to changes ininterest rates, financial instrument
prices, commodity prices, foreign exchange rates, credit risk, indices etc. Derivatives are categorised as trading unless
they are designated as hedging instruments. All derivatives are initially recognised and subsequently measured at
fair value, with all revaluation gains or losses recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss under Net trading Income.
Derivatives are recorded at fair value and carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their
fair value is negative. Fair value is determined using the forward market rates ruling on the reporting date.

Particulars
Held for trading

32 Ashadh 2082

31Ashadh 2081

Interest rate swap

Currency swap

Forward exchange contract

3,598,403,660

1,630,408,398

Others

Held for risk management

Interest rate swap

Currency swap

Forward exchange contract

Other

Total

3,598,403,660

1,630,408,398

Note 4.20 - Deposits from customers

All deposits account other than deposit from bank and financial institutions (local and foreign bank and NRB) is presented

under this head. Details are presented as follows:

Particulars
Institutions customers:

32 Ashadh 2082

31 Ashadh 2081

Term deposits

114,510,943,898

55,501,461,701

Call deposits 22,012,744,627 137,716,584
Current deposits 18,946,202,685 15,180,240,630
Other 2,925,211,492 13,022,995,924
Individual customers:

Fixed deposits 54,147,740,852 79,408,795,387
Saving deposits 84,973,380,197 67,232,053,924
Current deposits 1,093,967,534 760,421,703
Other 208,208,905 990,093,281
Total 298,818,400,190 232,231,779,134

Note 4.20.1: Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers

Nepalese rupee NPR 293,368,490,596 229,823,490,386
Indian rupee INR 273,754,436 59,976,738
United State dollar UsD 5,018,302,517 2,216,079,272
Great Britain pound GBP 835,004 811,814
Euro EUR 156,931,411 131,418,583
Japanese Yen JPY 2,544 2,341
Chinese Yuan CNY - -
Other Other 83,682 -
Total 298,818,400,190 232,231,779,134
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Note 4.21 Borrowing
The bank does not have any borrowings as on reporting date.

Particulars | 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government - -
Other Institutions - -
Other - -
Sub Total - -
Foreign Borrowing
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - -
Multilateral Development Banks - -
Other Institutions - -
Sub Total - -
Total - -

Note 4.22 Provisions
Entire provisions for expenses made by the bank are classified under other liabilities.

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Provisions for redundancy - -
Provision for restructuring - -
Pending legal issues and tax litigation - -
Onerous contracts - -
Other - -
Total - -

Note 4.22.1: Movement in provision

Particulars | 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

Balance at Shrawan 1
Provisions made during the year - -
Provisions used during the year - -
Provisions reversed during the year - -
Unwind of discount - -
Balance at Ashadh end - -

Note 4.23 - Other liabilities
The details of other liabilities are as follows:

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations 109,626,680 166,437,370
Liability for long-service leave 499,426,488 471,660,259
Short-term employee benefits - -
Bills payable 188,327,844 53,475,394
Creditors and accruals 1,456,734,020 1,525,233,460
Interest payable on deposit 51,949,515 88,829,256

Interest payable on borrowing - -
Liabilities on deferred grant income - -
Unpaid Dividend 99,996,676 144,140,407

Liabilities under operating Lease 982,603,053 954,977,880
Employee bonus payable 816,661,742 628,792,312
Other

a) Government Revenue Payable 14,273,548,179 22,274,179,093
b) Agency Account - -
c) Branch Adjustment Account 37,054 38,683
d) Remittance Payable 209,987,159 181,168,594
e) Audit Fee 3,345,000 3,345,000
f) Others payables 500,278,990 388,299,851
g) Liability for defined Contribution Plan 7,669,042 7,441,228
Total 19,200,191,441 26,888,018,787
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Note 4.23.1: Defined benefit obligations

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Present value of unfunded obligations - -
Present value of funded obligations 1,455,479,080 1,419,405,160
Total present value of obligations 1,455,479,080 1,419,405,160
Fair value of plan assets 1,345,852,400 1,252,967,790
Present value of net obligations 109,626,680 166,437,370
Recognised liability for defined benefit 109,626,680 166,437,370
obligations

Note 4.23.2: Plan assets

Plan assets comprise
Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 | 31 Ashadh 2081
Equity securities - -
Government bonds - -
Bank deposit 1,345,852,400 1,252,967,790
Other - -
Total 1,345,852,400 1,252,967,790

Note 4.23.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Particulars | 32 Ashadh 2082 | 31 Ashadh 2081
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 1,419,405,160 1,304,027,240
Actuarial losses (83,331,480) 20,880,140
Benefits paid by the plan (70,945,640) (87,204,850)
Current service costs and interest 190,351,040 181,702,630
Defined benefit obligations at Ashadh end 1,455,479,080 1,419,405,160
Note 4.23.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Particulars | 32 Ashadh 2082 | 31 Ashadh 2081
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 1,252,967,790 1,183,845,500
Contributions paid into the plan 163,830,250 156,327,140
Benefits paid during the year (70,945,640) (87,204,850)
Actuarial (losses) gains (97,105,000) (94,707,640)
Expected return on plan assets 97,105,000 94,707,640
Fair value of plan assets at Ashadh end 1,345,852,400 1,252,967,790
Note 4.23.5: Amount recognised in profit or loss
Particulars | 32 Ashadh 2082 | 31 Ashadh 2081
Current service costs 81,263,250 78,128,960
Interest on obligation 109,087,790 103,573,670
Expected return on plan assets (97,105,000) (94,707,640)
Total 93,246,040 86,994,990
Note 4.23.6: Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 | 31 Ashadh 2081
Actuarial (gain)/loss 13,773,520 115,587,780
Total 13,773,520 115,587,780
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Note 4.23.7: Actuarial assumptions

Particulars | 32 Ashadh 2082 | 31 Ashadh 2081
Discount rate 7.75% 7.75%
Expected return on plan asset 8.00% 8.00%
Future salary increase 8.00% 8.00%
Withdrawal rate Tillage 35 years-3% Tillage 35 years-3%

Thereafter-1% Thereafter-1%

Note 4.24 - Debt securities issued
Redeemable debenture issued by the bank has been presented under this head. Details as follows:
a) 8% Debenture of Rs. 85.68 crores for a period of 8 years and maturing on Falgun 2086 was issued on Falgun 3,

2078.

b)  10.50% Debenture of Rs. 200 crores for a period of 6 years and maturing on Bhadra 2085 was issued on Bhadra 10,
2079.

c)  7.50% Energy bond of Rs. 74.683 crores for a period of 10 years and maturing on Magh 2089 was issued on Magh 17,
2079.

d)  7.50% Debenture of Rs. 300 crores for a period of 10 years and maturing on Falgun 2091 was issued on Chaitra 1,
2081.

Particulars | 32 Ashadh 2082 | 31 Ashadh 2081

Debt securities issued designated as - -
at fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities issued at amortised cost 6,603,613,000 3,603,613,000
Total 6,603,613,000 3,603,613,000

Note 4.25 - Subordinated Liabilities

Particulars | 32 Ashadh 2082 | 31 Ashadh 2081
Redeemable preference shares - -
Irredeemable cumulative preference - -
shares (liabilities component)
Other - -
Total

Note 4.26 - Share capital
The bank is required to maintain the capital adequacy ratio imposed by the regulator. The ratio is fixed at 11.5% for the
current year and the bank has maintained the required ratio.

Details of shares (equity and preference) presented as follows:

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Ordinary shares 12,944,694,268 11,767,903,880
Convertible preference shares - -
(equity component only)
Irredeemable preference shares - -
(equity component only)
Perpetual debt (equity component only) - -
Total 12,944,694,268 11,767,903,880
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Note 4.26.1: Ordinary shares

Particulars

Authorized Capital

15,00,00,000 nos. of Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each
(Previous 15,00,00,000 nos. of Ordinary

Shares of Rs. 100 each)

32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

15,000,000,000 15,000,000,000

Issued Capital
129,446,942.68 nos. of Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each

(Previous 117,679,038.80 nos. of
Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each)

12,944,694,268 11,767,903,880

Subscribed and paid up Capital

129,446,942.68 nos. of Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each
(Previous 117,679,038.80 nos. of Ordinary

Shares of Rs. 100 each)

12,944,694,268 11,767,903,880

Total

12,944,694,268 11,767,903,880

Note 4.26.2: Ordinary share ownership

Domestic ownership

32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081

Percent Amount | Percent Amount
79.98% | 10,352,531,068 79.98 | 9,411,391,880

Nepal Government

"A" class licensed institutions

Other licensed institutions

Other Institutions

9.30% | 1,204,474,600 39.14 | 4,606,389,900

Public 70.67% | 9,148,056,468 40.83 | 4,805,001,980
Other

Foreign ownership 20.02% | 2,592,163,200 20.02 | 2,356,512,000
Total 100.00% |12,944,694,268 | 100.00 |11,767,903,880

SN | Particulars

Total Number of Shares \ % of Total Shares

1. Pratima Shrestha 31,009,423 23.96%
2. Ravi Krishna Shrestha 2,435,222 1.88%
3. Kiran Krishna Shrestha 2,435,222 1.88%
4, Shanta Dev Pathak 1,522,280 1.18%
5. Arun Man Sherchan 1,223,397 0.95%
6. Hotel Snow Lion P. Ltd. 12,044,746 9.30%
Total 50,670,290 39.14%
Group B (Public) -
Total Shares held by Public Shareholder 52,855,021 40.83%
List of Public Shareholders holding 0.50% and above shares (out of 40.83%)
Name of Shareholder Total Number of Shares % of Total Shares
1. Shanta Dev Pathak 4,930,831 3.81%
2. Arun Man Sherchan 2,914,563 2.25%
3. Ravi Krishna Shrestha 1,103,897 0.85%
4, Kiran Krishna Shrestha 1,103,897 0.85%
5. Ananda Ratna Tuladhar 978,039 0.76%
6. Bhatbhateni Investment Company Pvt. Ltd. 1,142,374 0.88%
Group C (PNB)
1 Punjab National Bank 25,921,632 20.02%
Total 129,446,943 100.00%
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Share premium

Any premium collected on issue of share to public is credited to this reserve. This reserve is utilized only for issue of
bonus share. During the F/Y 2074-75, the Bank had issued 15,088,087 right shares at the rate of Rs.100. The unsubscribed
shares of right issue were auctioned and the excess amount collected over the par value on auctioned shares are booked

under Share Premium Account which is equivalent to Rs. 238,469,884.

Note 4.27 - Reserves

Following reserves are maintained by the bank.

Particulars

| 32 Ashadh 2082

31 Ashadh 2081

Statutory general reserve 7,716,968,092 6,748,987,397
Exchange Equilisation reserve 69,832,410 69,622,362
Corporate social responsibility reserve 76,277,755 70,727,091
Capital redemption reserve - -
Reserve for Staff Training 37,030,058 28,726,196
Regulatory reserve 1,853,046,131 2,010,689,680
Investment adjustment reserve 2,690,933 2,690,933
Capital Adjustment reserve 1,116,407,907 1,116,407,907
Assets revaluation reserve 971,430,892 971,430,892
Fair value reserve 776,453,627 821,227,539
Dividend equalisation reserve - -
Actuarial gain (211,322,686) (201,681,222)
Debenture Redemption reserve 1,365,794,289 768,575,445
Other reserve 88,630,341 88,636,991
Total 13,863,239,749 12,496,041,211

a) General Reserve
Thereisrequlatory requirement by the central bank to set aside 20% of the net profit after tax as general reserve to build
up the capital until the reserve fund balance is twice the paid-up share capital. This is the restricted reserve and cannot
be freely used.

During the year, bank has appropriated Rs. 967,980,694 (Previous year Rs. 740,645,017) to this reserve being 20% of net
profit.

b) Exchange Equalization reserve
Central banks regulatory directive requires the bank to transfer 25% of exchange revaluation gain on foreign currency
other than the Indian currency to this reserve.

During the year, bank has appropriated Rs. 210,048 (Previous year Rs. 11,428,652) being 25% of exchange gain to this
reserve.

c) Assets Revaluation Reserve
Reserve created from revaluation of assets(such as Property & Equipment, Intangible Assets and Investment Property)
is presented under this account head.

Thebankhasrevaluedtheentire classof land propertyandincreasedvalue of landabove the cost price hasbeen presented
under this account head. The reserve as on 32 Ashadh 2082 is Rs. 971,430,892 (Previous year Rs. 971,430,892).

d) Fair Value Reserves
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets that are measured at fair
value and the changes in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income, until the assets are derecognized. The
cumulative amount of changes in fair value of those financial assets is presented under this account head. During the
reporting period, this reserve has been decreased to Rs. 776,453,627 (Previous year Rs. 821,227,539).

e) Capital Reserve
The capital reserve represents the amount of those reserves which are in nature of capital and which shall not be
available for distribution of cash dividend. No such reserve has been created by the bank.

f)  Corporate Social Responsibility Fund
As per NRB Circular Bai.Bi.Ni.Bi./Niti/Paripatra/KaKhaGa/11/073/74, CSR fund shall be created for CSR activities of the
Bank in the next fiscal year as per Corporate Social Responsibility Manual of the Bank.

During the year, CSR Fund of Rs. 48,399,035 (Previous year Rs. 37,032,251) has been appropriated being 1% of net profit
and the CSR expenses incurred during the year amounting to Rs. 42,848,370 (Previous year Rs. 16,516,851) has been
reversed from CSR fund. Hence, CSR fund during the year has been increased in total by Rs. 5,550,664 (Previous year
20,515,400). The detail of expenses incurred during the period are as follows:
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Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Education, health, natural calamities, environment 34,973,267 9,916,405
conservation, cultural promotion, infra development in remote areas
Income generation of socially discarded section, 7,258,539 2,391,979
Financial Literacy, Financial Protection
Grant in education and health for ultra-poor or for organization engaged - 1,056,458
in such activities
Expensesincurred in areas specified in SDG 416,005 3,000,000
Expenses incurred for bank's staff on 200,560 116,384

COVID 19 related disease on actual bill basis
Grant for orphanages, old age home and Balmandir - -
Amount deposited in Lets open Bank Account Campaign 2076 - 35,625
Expenditure incurred upto 5% of its CSR Fund in order to promote the - -
contactless payment services like OR code.
Others (COVID 19 Related) - -
Total 42,848,370 15,825,965

Expenses During Year as per Province Wise

Particulars Amount
PROVINCE 1 3,773,019
PROVINCE 2 1,295,232
PROVINCE 3 26,324,074
PROVINCE 4 2,761,460
PROVINCE 5 5,810,592
PROVINCE 6 1,151,404
PROVINCE 7 1,732,589
Expenses During Year as per Activities Wise 42,848,370

g) Capital Redemption Reserve
There is no any balance in capital redemption reserve as opening balance of this reserve was niland no amount has been
allocated to this reserve during the reporting period.

h) Capital Adjustment Fund
Any amount that is allocated from retained profit to a reserve that is created for the raising capital of the Bank as well as
calls is advance amount to make up minimum paid up capital amount is presented under this account head.
The balance as on reporting date is Rs. 1,116,407,907 (Previous year Rs. 1,116,407,907).

i) Dividend Equalization Fund
For the purpose of maintaining uniformity in dividend payment, certain amount of profit during the year of profit making
is transferred and presented under this account head. No such fund has been created by the bank.

j) Special Reserve
Any special reserve that is created as per the specific requirement of NRB directive or special instruction of NRB is
presented as special reserve. There is neither any opening balance in special reserve nor has any amount been allocated
to this reserve during the reporting period.

k) Employee Training Cost and Employee Capacity Development Fund
As per clause 6 of NRB Directive no. 6/074, 3% of previous year employee cost is required to be expended towards
employee training and development in the current financial year. The bank has transferred Rs. 8,303,862 (Previous
year Rs. 631,155) to this reserve for this Fiscal year and expended amount during this FY Rs. 30,528,928 (Previous year
Rs. 34,368,595) has been reversed from this reserve.

1) Investment Adjustment Reserve
It is a regulatory reserve created as a cushion for adverse price movements in bank's investments as directed by the
Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank. As per NFRS 9 investment securities available for sale category is classified as financial
assets through other comprehensive income. There is no change in Investment Adjustment Reserve for this Fiscal Year.

m) Regulatory Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Bank as per the Directive of NRB for the purpose of
implementation of NFRS, is presented under this account head. The amount in this reserve is not free for distribution of
dividend(cash as well as bonus shares). The amount allocated to this reserve include interest income recognized but not
receivedin cash, difference of loanloss provisionas per NRB directive and impairment onloanand advance as per NFRS(in
case lower impairment is recognized under NFRS), amount equals to deferred tax assets, actual loss recognized in other
comprehensive income, amount of goodwill recognized under NFRS etc. amount of Rs. 157,643,549 has been transferred
from this reserve during the reporting period (Previous year Rs. 916,214,730).

The details of regulatory reserve are presented below:
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Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For the Quarter Ended 32" Ashadh 2082
(As per NRB Regulation)
Figin ‘000

Particulars Ashadh 32, 2082 Ashadh 31, 2081
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 4,839,903,472 3,703,225,086
Appropriarions:
a. General reserve 967,980,694 740,645,017
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund 210,048 11,428,652
c. Capital redemption reserve 597,218,844 625,778,278
d. Corporate social responsibility fund 5,550,664 20,515,400
e. Employees' training fund 8,303,862 631,155
f. Other - (188,190)
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 3,260,639,359 2,304,414,774
Regulatory Adjustment:
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) 233,835,798 (104,286,576)

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)

c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+)

f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)

g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/reversal (+)

(38,651,811)
(60,291,044)

(522,293,275
(140,974,595

- =

h. Actuarial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) (9,641,464) (80,911,446)
i. Other- Interest Capitalization Reserve (13,726,116) (67,748,837)
j. Other- Share of Profit/Loss of Associate 46,118,185 -
Net profit for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 Available 3,418,282,908 1,388,200,045

for distribution

Opening Retained Earning as on Shrawan 12080
Adjustment (+/-)
Distribution:

Bonus Shares Issued

3,302,368,763

(1,176,790,388)

4,110,487,507

(1,069,809,444)

Cash Dividend Issued (650,765,085) (1,126,509,344)
Total Distributable profit or (loss) as on Year ended Ashad 31, 2081 4,893,096,198 3,302,368,763
Annualised Distributable Profit/Loss per Share 37.80 29.26

Detail of Changes in Regulatory Reserve

FY Interest Booked Non-Banking Actuary Gain/ Income Deferred ICTL Total

from suspenses Assets (Loss) from Assets
Associates

2074-75 203,834,491.00 2,202,745 66,612,610 209,668,425 52,109,351 - 534,427,622
2075-76 4,610,895.70 18,837,428 (18,095,300) 54,772,575 - - 60,125,599
2076-77 362,912,914.27 - (19,477,330) 40,686,601 - - 384,122,185
2077-78 (195,308,247.35) - 81,085,300 77,674,458 - - (36,548,489)
2078-79 5,140,914.00 (18,837,428) (5.114,023) 35,303,479 59,848,077 - 76,341,019
2079-80 162,143,936.54 1,147,255 15,758,519 8,914,732 (111,957,428) - 76,007,015
2080-81 104,286,576.36 522,293,275 80,911,446 67,748,837 140,974,595 - 916,214,730
2081-82 (233,835,798.24) 38,651,811 9,641,464 (46,118,185) 60,291,044 13,726,116 (157,643,549)
Total 413,785,682.27 564,295,086 211,322,686 448,650,921 201,265,640 13,726,116 | 1,853,046,131

n)  Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve
Actuarial gain or loss that represents change in actuarial assumptions used to value employee obligations is presented
under this account head. During the year, the company has transferred Rs. 9,641,464 to this reserve (Previous year
Rs. 80,911,446 transferred to this reserve). The balance of this reserve as on reporting date is Rs. -211,322,686 (Previous
year Rs. -201,681,222).

o) Retained earnings
The accumulated profits which has not been distributed to shareholders and has been ploughed back in the licensed
institution's operations and is free for distribution of dividend to the shareholders is presented under this heading. The
balance as on reporting date is Rs. 4,893,096,198 (Previous Year Rs. 3,302,368,763).
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p) Debenture Redemption Reserve
Debenture Redemption Reserve has been created as per Nepal Rastra Bank Directive No. 16 and as per SEBON approval.
The bank has appropriated Rs. 625,778,278 to Debenture Redemption Reserve from current year's profit. The Debenture
Redemption Reserve as at Balance Sheet date is Rs. 768,575,444.

Debenture Name Amount Issue Maturity Opening Transfer to Closing
Date Date Debenture Debenture Debenture

Reserve Reserve Reserve

FY 2080-81 FY 2081-82

10.50% EBL Debenture 2085 2,000,000,000 Bhadra 2079 Bhadra 2085 400,000,000 400,000,000 800,000,000
8.50% EBL Debenture 856,783,000 Falgun 2078 Falgun 2086 285,594,333 114,237,733 399,832,067
7.50% EBL Energy Bond 2089 746,830,000 Magh 2079 Magh 2089 82,981,1M 82,981,111 165,962,222
7.50% EBL Debenture 2091 3,000,000,000 Chaitra 2081 Chaitra 2091 - - -

Note 4.28- Contingent liabilities
The table below shows the contract or underlying principal amounts of unmatured off-balance sheet transactions as on
reporting date.

Particulars \ 32 Ashadh 2082 | 31 Ashadh 2081

Contingent liabilities 58,385,830,202 43,618,786,207
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 65,430,333,629 55,559,934,961
Capital commitment 109,971,385 -
Lease Commitment - -
Litigation 410,383,801 543,779,947
Total 124,336,519,016 99,722,501,114

4.28.1: Contingent liabilities

Particulars \ 32 Ashadh 2082 | 31 Ashadh 2081

Acceptance and documentary credit

31,108,168,815

24,762,309,152

Bills for collection

8,656,855,820

7,356,119,087

Forward exchange contracts

3,593,065,464

Guarantees

15,027,740,103

11,500,357,968

Underwriting commitment

Other commitments

Total

58,385,830,202

43,618,786,207

4.28.2: Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Particulars \ 32 Ashadh 2082 | 31 Ashadh 2081

Undisbursed amount of loans

15,449,731,091

12,201,877,706

Undrawn limits of overdrafts

27,294,260,683

26,810,774,698

Undrawn limits of credit cards

208,044,784

189,999,389

Undrawn limits of letter of credit

19,472,702,521

13,462,949,5625

Undrawn limits of guarantee

3,005,594,551

2,894,333,643

Total

65,430,333,629

55,559,934,961

4.28.3: Capital commitments

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Capital commitments in relation to

Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for 64,322,535 -
Approved but not contracted for - -
Sub Total 64,322,535 -
Capital commitments in relation to

Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for 45,648,850 -
Approved but not contracted for - -
Sub Total 45,648,850 -
Total 109,971,385 -
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4.28.4: Lease commitments

Particulars \ 32 Ashadh 2082 | 31 Ashadh 2081
Operating lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments
under non cancellable operating lease,
where the bank is lessee
Not later than Tyear
Later than 1year but not later than
5years
Later than 5 years
Sub Total - -

Finance lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments
under non cancellable operating
lease, where the bank is lessee
Not later than Tyear - -
Later than 1year but not later than
5years - -
Later than 5 years - -
Sub Total - -
Grand Total - -

4.28.5: Litigation

Large Tax Payer office has reassessed the income tax for the year 2072-73, 2073-74, 2074-75 and 2075-76 demanding
total additional tax of Rs. 41.04 Crores (including VAT, Fine, Interest & TDS)(Previous year is Rs. 54.37 Crores). The bank
has disputed remaining said assessment and is under with the Revenue Tribunal/Supreme Court.

TOTAL DEMAND AS PERLTO

2072-73 82,023,157.83
2073-74 161,5607,238.06
2074-75 118,643,433.25
2075-76 58,208,971.42
Total 410,383,800.56

Note 4.29- Interest income

Interest income include interest income on loan and advance, investment securities except on those investment
securities measure at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalent, due from BFls, loan and advances to
staff etc. Details presented as follows:

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Cash and cash equivalent 90,021,224 130,223,245
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 226,494,458 16,777,808
Placement with bank and financial institutions 389,465,413 417,326,235
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions 603,877,978 771,218,828
Loans and advances to customers 16,559,626,211 18,039,483,401
Investment securities 2,765,008,401 3,006,348,081
Loan and advances to staff 179,767,520 166,009,609
Other - -
Total interest income 20,814,261,205 22,547,387,207
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Note 4.30- Interest expenses
Interest expenses include interest accrued on deposits collected , debt securities issued and lease liabilities. Details
presented as follows:

Particulars \ 32 Ashadh 2082 | 31 Ashadh 2081
Due to bank and financial institutions 17,620,831 310,159,946
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - 630,880
Deposits from customers 1,124,457,831 14,143,136,583
Borrowing 49,652,451 1,601,256
Debt securities issued 415,737,314 338,838,805
Subordinated liabilities - -
Other-Lease Liabilities 104,468,555 104,694,250
Total interest expense 11,711,936,982 14,899,061,720

Note 4.31- Fees and Commission Income
Fees and commission income include management fee, service charges, syndication fee, forex transaction commission etc.
Details presented as follows:

Particulars \ 32 Ashadh 2082 | 31 Ashadh 2081
Loan administration fees 99,016,448 88,315,042
Service fees 372,213,474 378,744,324
Consortium fees - -
Commitment fees 446,282 3,679,589
DD/TT/Swift fees Income 43,909,045 37,563,673
Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees 187,231,641 215,158,790
Prepayment and swap fees 46,107,635 29,070,969
Investment banking fees - -
Asset management fees - -
Brokerage fees - -
Remittance fees 210,404,594 107,622,954
Commission on letter of credit 226,835,577 182,346,324
Commission on guarantee contracts issued 175,351,636 156,340,916
Commission on share underwriting/issue - -
Locker rental 24,814,878 21,450,452
Other fees and commission income 491,477,423 418,023,100
Total fees and Commission Income 1,877,808,633 1,638,316,134

Note 4.32- Fees and commission expense

Fees and commission expense include atm management fees, card related fees, remittance fees & commissions/TT/
swift charges etc.

Details presented as follows:

Particulars \ 32 Ashadh 2082 | 31 Ashadh 2081
ATM management fees 47,586,714 56,286,258
VISA/Master card fees 85,261,671 71,881,992
Guarantee commission - -
Brokerage - -
DD/TT/Swift fees Expenses 15,734,357 11,455,846
Remittance fees and commission 70,792,201 49,156,328
Other fees and commission expense 127,937,109 105,209,537
Total fees and Commission Expense 347,312,052 293,989,961

Note 4.33- Net trading income
Net trading income includes gain/loss on foreign exchange transactions is included under this head.
Details presented as follows:

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31Ashadh 2081
Changes in fair value of trading assets - -
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets - -
Interest income on trading assets - -
Dividend income on trading assets

468,681,699

353,739,528

Gain/loss foreign exchange transaction
Other - -
Net trading income 468,681,699 353,739,528
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Note 4.34- Other operating income

Other operating income includes foreign exchange revaluation gain, fair value gain/loss on investment properties,
dividend on equity instruments, gain/loss on sale of property and equipment etc.

Details presented as follows:

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31Ashadh 2081
Foreign exchange revaluation gain 840,191 45,714,606
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities - (49,964)
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties - -
Dividend on equity instruments 6,998,193 3,446,123
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment 607,886 4,317,530
Gain/loss on sale of investment property 60,667,894 (628,846)

Operating lease income - -
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver - -
Locker rent - -
Other - Share of Profit of Associates - 107,537,837
Total 69,114,163 160,337,285

Note 4.35- Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses
Details presented as follows:

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31Ashadh 2081
Impairment charge/(reversal) on 5,858,322 (26,327,7886)
loan and advances to B/Fls

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan (165,415,540) 308,731,668
and advances to customer

Impairment charge/(reversal) on 962,290 -
financial Investment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on 3,268,310 -

placement with banks and financial institutions
Impairment charge/(reversal) on - -
property and equipment
Impairment charge/(reversal) on - -
goodwill and intangible assets
Impairment charge/(reversal) on - -
investment properties
Total (155,326,618) 282,403,883

Note 4.36- Personnel Expense
All expenses related to employees of a bank are included under this head.
Details presented as follows:

Particyars 32 Ashach 2082 31 Ashach 20

Salary 824,855,603 792,273,851
Allowances 549,543,869 502,152,485
Gratuity expense 110,486,248 94,436,218
Provident fund 75,238,291 72,379,786
Uniform 18,363,216 93,550
Training & development expense 30,528,928 34,368,595
Leave Expenses 95,879,300 120,604,940
Medical 8,294,000 7,895,250
Insurance 25,752,553 21,758,964

Employees Incentive - -
Cash-settled share-based payments - -
Pension Expenses - -

Finance expense under NFRS 42,249,508 96,451,389
Other expenses related to staff 42,604,192 39,306,332
Sub Total 1,823,795,708 1,781,721,359
Employees bonus* 816,661,742 628,792,312
Grand Total 2,640,457,450 2,410,513,670

During the year, the average yield rate for calculation of interest subsidy on staff loan is 6.85% (Previous year 9.08%).
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Note 4.37 - Other operating expense

Operating expense other than those relating to personnel expense are recognized are presented in this head.

Details presented as follows:

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31Ashadh 2081
Directors' fee 1,500,000 1,330,000
Directors' expense 1,575,589 1,222,183
Auditors'remuneration 3,390,000 3,390,000
Other audit related expense 1,650,589 5,082,933
Professional and legal expense 7,985,560 5,245,891
Office administration expense 768,902,363 755,938,924
Operating lease expense 4,558,880 10,682,848
Operating expense of investment properties - -
Corporate social responsibility expense 42,848,370 16,516,851
Onerous lease provisions - -
Other expenses 104,106,615 18,955,322
Other expenses-Share of Loss of Associates 74,129,339 -
Total 1,010,647,305 818,364,950
4.37.1 Office administration expense
Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Water & Electricity 44,389,502 43,377,397
Repair & Maintenance
(a) Building 1,207,784 1,334,441
(b) Vehicle 3,764,584 3,676,813
(c) Computer & Accessories 742,915 580,310
(d) Office Equipment and furniture 29,649,005 26,235,773
(e) Other 3,699,161 3,789,723
Insurance Premium 17,984,088 19,641,727
Postage, Telex, Telephone, Fax 49,038,337 48,992,172
Printing and Stationery 41,829,247 41,190,210
News Paper, Books and Journals 417,704 407,269
Advertisement 34,519,631 50,429,253
Donation - -
Security Expense 156,186,195 152,821,346
Deposit and loan guarantee premium 80,861,796 71,453,905
Travel allowance and expenses 18,367,090 15,702,517
Entertainment 25,136,924 24,738,922
Annual/Special general meeting expenses 1,761,027 2,028,642
Other
a) Business Promotion 28,314,077 23,499,393
b) TSA fee and expenses reimbursement 24,372,679 33,909,807
c) Registration/Renewals 19,941,500 20,683,970
d) Fuel & Lubricant 45,678,589 48,790,414
e) Software Contract Expenses 50,858,872 41,038,049
f)Branch Less Banking & Mobile ATM 2,148,050 2,903,940
g) Disaster Recovery Sites 7,350,551 6,863,245
h) Temporary staff wages 69,002,076 68,570,519
i) Miscellaneous 11,681,080 24,738,922
Total 768,902,363 775,398,677
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Note 4.38 - Depreciation & Amortisation

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. Amortization is the
systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an intangible asset over its useful life. Depreciation and amortization
include depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment and amortization of intangible assets.

Details presented as follows:

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Depreciation on property, plant and 311,937,521 322,442,116
equipment

Depreciation on investment property - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 14,483,543 9,932,752
Total 326,421,064 332,374,868

Note 4.39 - Non operating income

The incomes that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions are presented under this head.

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Recovery of loan written off - -
Other Income - Gain on Derecognition of Lease Liability and ROU Assets 10,687,923 -
Total 10,687,923 -

Note 4.40 - Non operating expense

The expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions are presented under this head.

Particulars

32 Ashadh 2082

31 Ashadh 2081

Loan written off

Redundancy provision

Expense of restructuring

2,151,515

494,175

Other non operating expenses

Total 2,151,515 494,175
Note 4.41 - Income tax expense
The bank has calculated current tax on the basis of self-assessment as perincome tax act 2058.

Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31Ashadh 2081

Current tax expense

2,577,341,444

1,945,126,787

Current year

2,279,897, 74

1,945,126,787

Adjustments for prior years 297,443,730
Deferred tax expense (60,291,044) 14,225,054
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (60,291,044) 14,225,054

Changes in taxrate

Restatement Adjustment for lease

Total income tax expense

2,517,050,400

1,959,351,841

4.41.1: Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit

Particulars
Profit before tax

32 Ashadh 2082
7,556,953,872

31Ashadh 2081
5,662,576,928

Tax amount at tax rate of 30%

2,207,086,162

1,698,773,078

Add: Tax effect of expenses that are

not deductible for tax purpose 13,242,013 5,058,439
Less: Tax effect on exempt income (720,356) (1,033,837)
Add/less: Tax effect on other items 297,442,582 256,554,162
Total income tax expense 2,517,050,400 1,959,351,841
Effective tax rate 34% 35%
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5. Disclosure and Additional Information
5.1 Risk Management

Board Level Risk Committee
The Boardis the one who set policy, strategy and objectives, and oversees the executive function. It creates risk appetite
and ensures that it is reflected in business strategy and cascaded throughout the organization.

For the effective risk management, Board has formed a board level committee called Risk Management Committee
(RMC) which assists the board in setting risk strategy policies, including risk tolerance and appetite levels, as stipulated
by Nepal Rastra Bank. It devises the risk management policy of the bank including credit, market and operational risk,
risk integration, implementation of best risk management practices and setting up various risk limits of the bank. The
Committee receives reports from management and after discussion and deliberation reaches in a conclusion that
existing action taken by the management are appropriate or elevate the situations to the Board where further action is
required with its recommendation.

Risk Governance
The risk management framework, which consists of board set risk appetite, clear organization set up, well defined roles,
well-developed tools and processes and well-defined policy on each risk areas.

Risk Management framework is supervised by Risk Management Committee (RMC), a committee of Board and supported
by functional committees namely Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC), Asset and Liability Management
Committee (ALCO), Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC). Bank has separate Risk Management Department
for managing, mitigating and controlling different risks which acts as second line of defense whereas all business
functions lie on first line of defense and Internal Audit and Audit Committee on third line of defense. Further, the bank
has different policies which direct/supplement the framework. The bank has approved operational instructions, book
of instructions and clear role definition of each unit makes the process simple and robust. Bank has also set tolerance
limits on different parameters above the regulatory requirement, maintaining extra caution level in managing these
risks.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is defined as the potential that a bank borrower or counterparty will fail to meet its obligations in accordance
with agreed terms. For measurement of Credit Risk bank has adopted Simplified Standardized Approach (SSA) and for
Management of Credit Risk Bank has formulated various policies, procedures and internal guidelines that is approved by
Board in recommendation of Risk Management Committee (RMC). Bank has a clear guiding document related to loaning
power approved by the Board.

The Risk Management department is individually reviewing the business loan having limit Rs. 5 crore and above.
Assessment ground for sanctioning of new loan, renewal of loan or enhancement of existing loan is defined in book of
instruction/Credit & Credit Risk Management Policy of the bank. A separate vertical Credit Administration Department
in HO and Branches are administrating loan related documents, examining loan repayment, record keeping of loan files
and related security documents.

All revolving loans are reviewed/ renewed annually. Quarterly Review for all loans of Rs. 1 Crore and above is conducted.
Separate Recovery Cell has been created, and bank has recovery/write off Policy approved by the Board. Bank is
conducting comprehensive risk assessments by assessing the loan from internally developed rating model.

Operational Risk

Operational Risk is loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from external
events, including legal risks. For measurement of Operation risk Bank has adopted Basic Indicator Approach(BIA)and for
management of Operation risk. Bank has policies in place, 3 lines of defense in practice, risk identification, assessment
and monitoring tools are defined, Risk Control and Mitigation tools are in place. Formal channel is defined whereby
various policies, procedures and internal guidelines are approved by Board in recommendation of Risk Management
Committee (RMC).
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Bank has effective Internal Control System and Information System for managing Operational Risk. Risk Based Internal
Audit (RBIA) has been started in the bank. IT/ System Audit is conducted annually by expert external agency and report is
submitted to concerned Supervision Department of NRB.

Risk events of the Bank are compiled and instructed the related function to take corrective measures wherever
necessary. Such risk events are presented in ORMC, RMC. Bank has Disaster Recovery Policy and Business Continuity
Plan incorporated in IT Policy. Further, drill operations are performed twice a year and updated if necessary. Human
Resource Department of the bank is placing and transferring the employees periodically.

Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk to a bank resulting from movements in market prices, in particular, changes in liquidity,
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices. For measurement of Market Risk Bank has adopted Net Open
Position Approach and for management of the Market Risk guiding policies such as Assets/Liabilities Management
policy, Investment Policy and Treasury management policy and procedure are in place.

Bank has established middle office under regulatory guidelines for monitoring exposures based on the limit set up by the
board and NRB including regulatory norms, prudential ceiling and delegation of authorities on Liquidity and Market Risk.
Middle office is also conducting ALCO meetings and market risk reporting to ALCO.

Bank is assessing interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and equity price risk at a regular interval as per the NRB
guidelines and the internal policy in managing market risk and reporting to RMC and the Board on quarterly basis.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the potential that the bank may be unable to meet its obligations due or to fund increases in assets as
they fall due without incurring unacceptable cost or losses.

The Bank has been maintaining CRR, SLR, net liquidity ratio and credit to core capital and deposit ratios within the limit
approved by the Board and are being monitored on continuous basis. Further, maturity-wise structural liquidity tables
are being prepared as per the regulatory guidelines on monthly basis and reported to the Board on quarterly basis. Bank
has also addressed contingency liquidity plan in its policy that is being reviewed annually or on requirement basis.

Reputational Risk

Reputational risk is the current or prospective indirect to earnings and capital arising from adverse perception of the
image of the financial institution on the part of customers, counterparties, shareholders, investors or regulators. We call
it indirect risk, as reputational risk has an indirect impact on capital and profitability. Its effect is mainly manifested in
the deterioration of goodwill and lost makings. For management of the reputational risk bank has developed the model
for collection and assessment of data.

Compliance Risk

Compliance Risk is the current and prospective risk to earnings or capital arising from violations of or non-conformance
with laws, rules, regulations and prescribed practices and it exposes the bank to fines, penalties and payment of damages
etc. It culminates into reputational risk. Bank has separate department that is handling the compliance of the Bank.

Internal Control

Internal Control System i.e., Audit, Compliance has been reinforcing on the effective implementation of laid down
Policies and Procedure. Regular banking activities are being closely monitored through internal control mechanism.
Bank has an appropriate control structure with well-defined control activities at every business level. Duties of officials
and staff members of the bank are well defined at all levels to avoid conflicting responsibilities. Bank has already placed
Code of Ethics and Conflict of Interest Policy for Board Directors and staff. These laid down systems are being monitored
and reviewed periodically to identify the areas of potential conflicts of interest to minimize Operational Risk at all
levels. Information system of the bank is upgraded continuously and place to cover activities of the Bank. Internal Audit
Department independently evaluates the adequacy and compliance of the bank’s established guidelines for internal
control systems. Risk Based Internal Audit (RBIA) has been started in the bank, where internal auditor incorporates
the measures initiated by branch/ department/ office to manage operational risk. System audit is being done through
outsiders till the Capability buildup of internal personnel and report is submitted to concern Supervision Department of
NRB.
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5.2 Capital Management
5.2.1 Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy
a) Tier1capital and a breakdown of its components:

Particulars
Common Equity Tier 1(CET 1)

In Rs. ‘000
Amount

Paid up Equity Share Capital

12,944,694

Equity Share Premium

238,470

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Statutory General Reserves

7,716,968

Retained Earnings

4,893,096

Unaudited current year cumulative profit/(loss)

Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Adjustment Reserve

1,116,408

Debenture Redemption Reserve

1,365,794

Dividend Equalization Reserves

Bargain Purchase Gain

Other Free Reserve

88,630

Less: Goodwill

Less: Intangible Assets

191,980

Less: deferred tax assets- accumulated losses

Less: deferred tax assets- others

Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits

Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments

Less: Reciprocal crossholdings

Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized

Less: Cash Flow Hedge

Less: Defined Benefits Pension Assets

Less: Unrecognized Defined Benefit Pension Liabilities

Less: Other Deductions

211,323

Adjustments under Pillar Il

Less: Shortfall in Provision (6.4 a 1)

Less: Loans and Facilities extended to related parties and restricted lending

Additional Tier 1(AT 1)

Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Share Capital

Perpetual Debt Instruments

Stock Premium

Total (Tier 1) Capital

27,960,759

b) Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) capital and a breakdown of its components:

In Rs. ‘000

Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) Amount

Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share

Subordinated Term Debt 4,200,000
Hybrid Capital Instruments -
Stock Premium

General Loan Loss Provision 2,939,862
Exchange Equalization Reserve 69,832
Investment Adjustment Reserve 2,691
Accrued Interest Receivable on pass loan included in Regulatory Reserve 92,500
Interest Capitalized Reserve included in Regulatory Reserve 13,726
Other Reserves -
Total (Tier 2) Capital 7,318,612
Total Capital Fund (Tier | and II) 35,279,371
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Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components

Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts with information on the outstanding amount, maturity,
amount raised during the year and amount eligible to be reckoned as capital funds.

- Deductions from capital: 403,303 thousand

- Total qualifying capital: 35,279,371 thousand

- Capital adequacy ratio: 13.17 %

Summary of the bank'’s internal approach to assessing the adequacy of its capital to support current and
future activities

Bankassessestheadequacy of capitalonaregularbasistakingintoconsiderationthe presenttotalriskexposureand
expectedfutureincreaseinthisrespect. Bankaimstomaintainapropermixof differenttypesof capitalsothatthere
would not be pressure on dividend policy as wellasinadequacy of total capital funds against the risk exposure. Inthe
past, bank had issued convertible preference share of Rs. 20 crores at a premium of 100% convertible into ordinary
share at 20% on completion of each third year. The total preference share has been converted into ordinary shares.

Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments, especially in case of
subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments
As of 15" July 2025, Bank has the following capital structure:

Paid up ordinary capital

5.2.2 Risk Exposures

Rs. 1,294.47 crore (Previous Year Rs. 1,176.79 crore)

a) Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk

Rs. in‘000

Particulars Current year Previous year
1 Credit Risk 247,082,236 207,509,578
2 Market Risk 1,138,442 616,576
3 Operational Risk 11,766,746 9,787,726
4 Adjustment under Pillar Il 7,867,393 6,822,649

TOTAL 267,854,816 224,736,530

b) Risk weighted exposures under each of 11 categories of Credit Risk
Rs. in ‘000

Particulars | Current year | Previous year
1 Claims on Government and Central Bank - -
2 Claims on banks 4,436,438 4,159,354
3 Claims on Domestic corporate & securities firms 126,796,046 99,140,664
4 Claims on regulatory retail portfolio 27,57,312 24,472,329
5  Claims secured by residential properties 14,084,874 14,911,966
6  Claims secured by commercial real estate 1,868,496 1,793,749
7  Pastdueclaims 1,382,728 1,340,584
8  Highrisk claims 7,723,038 23,757,368
9 Investmentin Equity of Institutions 2,759,797 2,948,208
10 Otherassets 30,000,270 9,156,749
11 Off balance sheet items 30,459,238 25,828,605

Total 247,082,236 207,509,578
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c) Totalrisk weighted exposure calculation table
Enclosed as an Annexure

d)  Amount of NPAs (both gross and net) Rs.in ‘000
Category Gross Provision Net
Substandard Loan 133,568 - -
Doubtful Loan 209,148 104,574 104,574
Loss Loan 516,985 516,985 -
Total 859,701 859,701 859,701

. NPA Ratios

- Gross NPA to gross advances: 0.38%
- Provision to NPA: 76.18%

e) Movement in Non-Performing Assets

Rs.In‘000
Particulars ‘ Amount ‘ Provision
Opening balance 1,321,959 839,840
Addition during the year 1,472,686 847,720
Recovered during the year 1,934,944 1,034,364
Balance as on Ashadh end 859,701 653,196

f) Details of additional Loan Loss Provisions

Rs. in ‘000
Loan Category ‘ Amount
a. Substandard -
b. Doubtful -
c. Loan against PG -
d.  Deprived Sector Loan -
e.  Retail Lending -
f. Other -
Total -
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date:
Current year
Particulars Carrying amount (Rs.)
Level1 Level 2 Level 3
Derivative financial instruments (Assets) 3,577,723,753
Previous year
Particulars Carrying amount (Rs.)
Level1 Level 2 Level 3

Derivative financial instruments (Assets)

1,664,092,583

B. Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost

The following table contains detail of the carrying amount of the financial assets and liabilities as on reporting

date:

Current year

Particulars

Carrying amount (Rs.)

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Treasury bills

4,853,500,918

Government & other bonds

43,252,243,169

Loan and advances to B/Fls

9,880,565,119

Loans and advances to customers

216,628,076,934

Previous year

Particulars

Carrying amount (Rs.)

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Treasury bills

4,450,273,013

Government & other bonds

39,347,786,806

Loan and advances to B/Fls

7,745,610,760

Loans and advances to customers

181,578,285,495
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C. Financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
The following table contains details of the carrying amount and based on the hierarchy of fair value
measurement of financial assets as on reporting date:

Current year
Particulars Carrying amount (Rs.)
Level1 Level 2 Level 3

Investment securities
Quoted Equity

Sana Kisan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 55,897,700

Nirdhan Utthan Bank Ltd. 917,987,829

Taragaon Regency Hotel 48,958,000
Quoted Units of Mutual Funds

Citizens Super 30 Mutual Fund 5,040,000

Himalayan 80-20 6,030,000

Laxmi Value Fund - Il 10,130,000

NIBL Growth Fund 10,090,000

NIBL Stable Fund 10,040,000

Prabhu Smart Fund 5,775,000

RBB Mutual Fund 2 5,045,000

Sunrise Focused Equity Fund 10,040,000

Siddhartha Investment Growth Scheme 3 20,900,000

Garima Samriddhi Yojana 10,000,000

MBL Equity Fund 4,985,000

Muktinath Mutual Fund 1 19,880,000

NMB Hybrid Fund L-II 8,920,000

Reliable Samriddhi Yojana 4,985,000

Unquoted Units of Mutual fund

Sanima Flexi Fund 5,070,000
Unquoted Equity

Nepal Clearing House Ltd. 47,434,606

Credit Information Center Ltd. 119,182,904

National Banking Training Institute 11,608,054
Total 236,815,700 917,987,829 183,295,564
Previous year
Particulars Carrying amount (Rs.)

Level1 Level 2 Level 3

Investment securities
Quoted Equity

Sana Kisan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 162,808,800

Nirdhan Utthan Bank Ltd. 887,372,665

Taragaon Regency Hotel 41,964,000
Quoted Units of Mutual Funds

Citizens Super 30 Mutual Fund 5,000,000

Himalayan 80-20 4,995,000

Laxmi Value Fund - Il 9,240,000

NIBL Growth Fund 10,640,000

NIBL Stable Fund 10,000,000

Prabhu Smart Fund 4,805,000

RBB Mutual Fund 2 4,750,000

Sunrise Focused Equity Fund 8,240,000

Siddhartha Investment Growth Scheme 3 18,900,000
Unquoted Equity

Nepal Clearing House Ltd. 38,765,398

Credit Information Center Ltd. 105,873,451

National Banking Training Institute 29,944,908
Total 281,342,800 887,372,665 174,583,757
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As on 16 July 2025

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Loans and advances at amortised cost
Deprived Sector Terminating 10,189,888,110.78 61,817,228.26 36,802,396.57 10,288,507,735.61
Hire Purchase Loan 2,440,475,363.95 219,356,276.69 49,035,336.84 2,708,866,977.48
Long Term Personal Loan 10,280,708,449.10 827,821,672.78 348,833,006.19 11,457,363,128.07
Long Term Business Loan 52,369,457,763.45 | 2,665,494,469.04 552,397,829.36 55,587,350,061.85
Long Term Working Capital 8,798,516,814.62 193,726,139.37 99,455,844.48 9,091,698,798.47
Other Terminating 6,712,026,733.01 278,359,043.45 18,143,860.65 7,008,529,637.11
Personal Residential Loan 9,956,449,424.25 | 12,275,870,320.06 894,782,347.84 23,127,102,092.15
Real Estate Loan 5,571,105,659.07 2,587,322,441.56 115,688,631.51 8,274,116,732.14

Margin Lending

Deprived Sector Revolving 409,689,782.26 8,340,479.65 418,030,261.91
Cash Credit 47,540,97,427.55 139,693,308.39 421,599,814.02 | 48,102,264,549.96
Margin Lending Loan 3,181,170,538.00 3,181,170,538.00
Other Revolving 4,787,866,847.75 8,440,502.47 4,796,307,350.22
Overdraft - Personal 3,272,936,747.20 3,880,865.81 39,267,549.03 3,316,085,162.04
Short Term Working Capital 24,390,768,320.74 573,750,104.30 101,492,406.61 25,066,010,831.65
Trust Receipt 9,890,166,180.40 41,884,000.00 13,168,512.00 9,945,218,692.40
Bills Purchased 700,103,661.34 700,103,661.34
Staff Loans 3,629,005,126.10 3,629,005,126.10
Credit Cards 172,390,192.77 13,206,505.13 185,596,697.90
Virtual Credit Cards 12,403,338.98 12,403,338.98
204,541,442,897.35 | 19,871,707,420.84 2,721,086,917.07 | 227,134,237,235.26
Loss allowance 1,056,477,613.61 1,623,289,013.70 468,722,585.75 3,048,489,213.06
Carrying value 205,597,920,510.97 | 21,394,996,434.54 | 3,189,809,502.82 |230,182,726,448.33
As on 15 July 2024

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Loans and advances at amortised cost
Deprived Sector Terminating 8,071,918,991.96 244,988,536.00 70,193,974.36 8,387,101,502.32
Hire Purchase Loan 2,113,297,906.35 204,479,497.41 125,562,995.24 2,443,340,399.00
Long Term Personal Loan 9,752,457,358.07 1,005,424,298.07 418,972,797.24 11,176,854,453.38
Long Term Business Loan 46,706,670,350.79 2,202,72,970.42 3,775,831,183.90 52,685,214,505.11
Long Term Working Capital 9,416,036,867.08 206,693,069.26 84,667,691.67 9,707,397,628.01
Other Terminating 7,206,374,232.38 332,820,318.27 40,209,598.06 7.579,404,148.71
Personal Residential Loan 8,141,610,186.46 13.177,710,608.81 1,964,874,981.03 | 23,284,195,776.30
Real Estate Loan 4,073,411,041.44 | 2,336,820,866.08 216,467,059.87 6,626,698,967.39
Margin Lending 278,954,615.46 - - 278,954,615.46
Short Term Working Capital/Demand Loan 119,614,595.21 233,312.67 - 119,847,907.88
Deprived Sector Revolving 633,474,299.7 1,024,030.09 6,129,779.16 640,628,108.96
Cash Credit 52,234,684,908.17 24,930,633.99 639,199,803.60 | 52,898,815,345.76
Margin Lending Loan 1,733,595,512.51 - 78,352,817.10 1,811,948,329.62
Other Revolving 2,619,702,354.84 482,068.58 16,216,437.71 2,636,400,861.13
Overdraft - Personal 4,254,092,234.99 - 36,534,929.58 4,290,627,164.57
Short Term Working Capital 20,034,862,227.54 - 18,581,411.94 | 20,053,443,639.48
Trust Receipt 8,268,022,146.89 - 312,724,960.20 8,580,747,107.09
Bills Purchased 43,092,305.56 43,092,305.56
Staff Loans 3,405,169,279.51 3,405,169,279.51
Credit Cards 238,902,549.18 8,316,970.42 247,219,519.60
Virtual Credit Cards 12,213,294.63 - 1,143,840.31 13,357,134.94
189,358,157,258.74 | 19,738,320,209.65 7,813,981,231.39 | 216,910,458,699.78
Loss allowance 646,355,550.17 1,032,361,288.93 1,290,587,934.03 2,969,304,773.13
Carrying value 190,004,512,808.91 | 20,770,681,498.58 9,104,569,165.42 | 219,879,763,472.91
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As on 16 July 2025
Macro economic indicator 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
Consumer prices (% change pa; av) 4.20 3.80 B.47 5.83 5.97
Domestic credit growth (%) 9.30 8.90 16.57 17.67 17.88
Domestic demand (% of GDP) 118.70 118.60 122.40 123.66 124.09
Domestic demand (% real change pa) 9.40 5.00 5.82 5.04 5.38
Lending interest rate (%) 8.70 8.00 10.53 10.78 10.82
Private consumption (real % change pa) 5.40 5.20 4.46 4.18 4.20
Real GDP (% change pa) 4.30 4.0 4,38 4.03 4.13
Unemployment Rate 10.73 10.69 10.98 11.04 11.05
WP 139.34 145.08 138.39 132.19 126.50
National Consumer Price Index 6.50 6.56 5.59 5.72 5.70
National Salary and Wage Rate Index 631.57 648.03 628.67 607.32 583.80
Gross National Disposable Income .41 8.97 10.22 9.73 9.88
As on 15 July 2024
Macro economic indicator 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
Consumer prices (% change pa; av) 7.30 6.43 5.64 5.93 5.79
Domestic credit growth (%) 10.80 18.49 17.90 18.23 18.88
Domestic demand (% of GDP) 123.10 123.91 124.24 124.37 124.38
Domestic demand (% real change pa) 7.80 5.28 5.62 5.96 4.15
Lending interest rate (%) 12.50 11.58 11.04 10.60 10.62
Real GDP (% change pa) 3.90 3.91 3.51 2.94 478
Unemployment Rate 11.49 11.37 11.16 11.16 11.20
WP 129.77 123.34 Nn7.73 112.85 108.66
Private consumption (real % change pa) 4,50 5.53 447 4,43 4,85
Gross National Disposable Income 11.09 9.08 9.82 9.79 9.68
National Consumer Price Index 5.89 5.97 5.83 5.93 6.10
National Salary and Wage Rate Index 6.05 8.09 8.68 7.82 8.37
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Movements in the allowance for impairment in respect of loans, Investment in debt securities, trade receivables
and other financial assets

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of asset on finance, trade receivables and other financial
assets is as follows:

Loans and advances at amortised cost

Loss allowance Loss allowance measured at life-time expected losses

measured at 12 month
expected losses

Financial assets for which credit | Financial assets for which credit
risk has increased significantly | risk has increased significantly
and not credit-impaired and credit-impaired

Reconciliation of loss allowance

Loss allowance on 16 July 2025
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Net remeasurement of loss allowance
New financial assets originated or purchased
Financial assets that have been derecognised
Write offs
Unwind of discount
Changes in risk parameters

Loss allowance on 15 July 2024 822,594,034.20 1,032,361,288.93 1,290,587,934.03
Transfer to Stage 1 520,229,140.61 (36,990,322.70) (483,238,817.91)
Transfer to Stage 2 (11,882,545.65) 160,816,492.49 (148,933,946.85)
Transfer to Stage 3 (2,730,202.66) (28,463,521.82) 31,193,724.49

Net remeasurement of loss allowance (423,056,809.01) 334,256,718.15 91,306,572.79

New financial assets originated or purchased 599,815,102.46 290,294,750.77 119,785,710.28

Financial assets that have been derecognised (311,681,438.79) (228,986,392.11) (431,978,591.08)

Write offs

Unwind of discount

Changes in risk parameters

Loss allowance on 16 July 2025 1,193,287,281.16 1,523,289,013.70 468,722,585.75
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Loans & Advances to B/Fls and Customers have been valued under amortized cost as allowed under NFRS 9.
Separate Effective Interest Rate (EIR) has not been computed, and coupon interest rate is considered as EIR for
the computation of Expected Credit Loss. Also, Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) have provided
carve out on EIR till FY 2082/83.

Pursuant to adoption of ECL model, recognition of interest income has been based upon Guidance Note on Interest
Income Recognition, 2025 issued by NRB. As per the Guidelines, Interest income for stage 3 loan of previous
quarter must be recognized on a cash basis. Accordingly, the bank has derecognized NPR 143,587,145.22 for FY
2081-82 regarding accrued interest which has not been received in cash.

As per NFRS 9, an entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period if there is any objective evidence that
financial asset or group of financial assets measured at amortized cost is impaired.

The bank for the current financial year has assessed the impairment under para 5.5 of the NFRS 9 impairment
model and the NRB Directive. The Bank, following regulatory backstop as mentioned in Clause 16 of “NFRS 9-
Expected Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 2024” has recognize impairment on credit exposures as the HIGHER of
total ECL calculated as per NFRS 9 and existing regulatory provisions as mentioned in Unified NRB Directives no
02. Further, Bank has applied carve out issued by ICAN and has computed impairment loss. As per the carve-out
issued by ICAN as a mandatory treatment of impairment loss for banks and financial institution till FY 2082.83,
impairment loss to be measured at higher of amount derived as per norms prescribed by NRB for loan loss
provision and measured as per paragraph 5.5 of NFRS 9.

Details of such impairment are as mentioned below:
Amount in NPR

Particulars Year ended Year ended P/L Impact
16 July 2025 15 July 2024

Impairment (A) 3,185,298,881 3,145,543,257 -

Provision as per NRB(B) 3,296,276,884 3,455,834,103 -

Impairment to be considered (Higher of A or B) 3,296,276,884 3,455,834,103 -

Note: The Impairment for FY 2081-82 is calculated as per Expected Credit Loss model under NFRS 9, whereas for
the previous FY 2080-81, it was calculated based on the Incurred Loss Model under NAS 39.

Details of Collective and Individual Impairment:

Particulars Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
Collective Impairment

Stage 1 1,189,613,257
Stage 2 1,623,289,014
Stage 3* 468,722,586
Individual Impairment**

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Total Funded

Non-Funded Exposures™* 133,135,644
Total Expected Credit Loss 3,181,624,857

* Individual impairment has not been calculated for Stage 3 Loans

** Only collective impairment has been calculated for all the financial assets
** Non-Funded Exposures includes Letter of Credit, Bank Guarantee, Forward Exchange Contract Liabilities and
undrawn limit for short term and long-term loan with exposures of NPR 124,336,519,016
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Expected Credit Loss Summary:
Financial Statement ltems Gross Carrying Amount ECL Provision
(Stage) (Stage)

1 2 3 Total 1 2 3 Total
Loans and advances to customers 204,541,442,897 | 19.871,707.421 | 2721086917 | 227134,237.235 | 1066477614 | 15623,289,014 | 468,722,586 |  3,048489,213
Loan Commitments -
Financial guarantee contracts - - - -
Others 15,610,388, 794 - - | 133,135,844 - - 133,136,644
Total 220,161,831691 | 19871707421 |  2,721,086,917 | 242,744,626,029 | 189,613,257 |  1523,269,014 468,722,586 | 3,181,624,857

Regulatory Provision
o NRB Regulatory Provision ECL Coverage Ratio % Coverage Ratio %

Financial Statement ltems (Stage) (Stage) (tage

1 2 3 Total 1 2 3| Total 1 2 3| Total
Loans and advances to customers 2,260124,676 | 314,299,305 | 721852904 | 3,296,276,884 | 0.44% | 7.48%| 16.71% | 116% | 110% | 158%|2653%| 145%
Loan Commitments
Financial guarantee contracts
Others 0.85% 0.85%
Total 2,260,124,675 | 314,299,305 | 721,852,904 | 3,296,276,884 | 0.54% | 7.67% 11.23% | 131% | 1.03%| 158%|26.53%| 136%
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5.5 - Segment Analysis
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EVEREST BANK LIMITED

Consi Strong & D
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities
a. Revenue NPRin ‘000
Current Previous
Year Year
Total revenues for reportable segments 32,566,444 37,229,581
Other revenues - -
Elimination of intersegment revenues (9,326,132) (12,529,801)
Entity’s revenues 23,240,313 24,699,780
b. ProfitorLoss NPRin ‘000
Current Previous
Year Year
Total profit or loss for reportable segments 8,173,616 6,291,863
Other profit or loss - (494)
Elimination of intersegment profits
Unallocated amounts:
Bonus expenses (816,662) (628,792)
Other adjustments
Profit before income tax 7,356,954 5,662,577

5.6 Share option and share based payment
The bank doesn't have arrangements of share-based payment and share options as on reporting date.

5.7 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
The details of contingent liabilities and commitments have been presented in notes 4.28 above.

5.8 Related party disclosure

Entity with significant influence over the bank

Followings have been identified as related parties for Everest Bank Limited under NAS 24 Related parties:

1) Punjab National Bank Limited - this is the joint-venture partner of the investors who established the bank

2) Key Management Personnel of the Bank - Bank is managed by two expatriates from PNB group under a technical
service agreement and three higher level domestic employee of the bank including CEO to oversee the management
of the bank’s functioning.

3) Units and companies under PNB Group

4) Directors of the Bank

5) Relatives of directors and key management personnel

8) Forward Community Microfinance Limited

7) Nirdhan Utthan Bank Ltd.

8) EBL Employee Retirement Fund
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Transactions during the period

Rs.in'000
Particulars 32 Ashadh 2082 31Ashadh 2081
Directors:
Director's Sitting Fees 2,685 1,330
Interest Paid to directors on deposits 9,197 104,951
Key Management Personnel (KMP):
Remuneration and benefits Paid* 72,358 73,665
Interest on account balances 3,518 4,070
PNB Group
TSA Fees Paid 11,390 11,390
Dividend Paid 130,315 225,582
Bonus Share Paid (No. of Share) 2,356,512 2,142
Forward Community Microfinance Limited
Dividend Received - -
Bonus Share Received (No. of Share) 350,971 -

* Remuneration and benefits paid to CEO for the current year and previous year are Rs. 22,372,823 and Rs. 22,172,818

respectively.

Terms and conditions of transaction with related parties
The related party transactions are made at terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions.

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties during

the year.
Rs.in'000
Current Year Previous Year

Transactions Transaction Nature of Transaction Nature of

(RS.) relationship (RS.) relationship
Deposit 130,650 Director 177,476 Director
Deposit 36,914 KMP 34,983 KMP
Loan 18,673 KMP 32,025 KMP
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Details of Directors
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Chairman Dr. Bal Gopal Baidya Dr. Bal Gopal Baidya
Directors Mr. Santosh Kumar Mr. Rakesh Grover

Mr. Kiran Krishna Shrestha
Mr. Nabin Bhakta Shrestha
Mrs. Urmila Shrestha

Dr. Tarak Bahadur K.C.

Mr. Kiran Krishna Shrestha
Mr. Nabin Bhakta Shrestha
Mrs. Urmila Shrestha

Dr. Tarak Bahadur K.C.

Details of Key Managerial Personnel

PARTICULARS

CURRENT YEAR

PREVIOUS YEAR

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Sudesh Khaling

Mr. Sudesh Khaling

Dy. Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Vijay Kumar Sharma
(till June 2, 2025)
Mr. Yogendra Singh Udawat

Mr. Vijay Kumar Sharma

Dy. General Manager

Mr. Keshab Raj Paudel
Mr. Ashutosh Sharma
Mr. Gaurav Kumar

(till July 2, 2024)

Mr. Siddharath Rana

Mr. Keshab Raj Paudel
Mr. Ashutosh Sharma
Mr. Gaurav Kumar

5.9 Merger and acquisition

During the reporting period, there is no merger and acquisition.

5.10 Additional disclosures of non-consolidated entities
The bank has no subsidiary for consolidation.

5.1 Dividend

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025), the board of directors of the Company have recommended and
proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 14 per share amounting to Rs. 1,812,257,198 and Bonus issue in the ratio of 1:6
with par value of Rs. 776,681,656 (2080-81: Bonus issue in the ratio of 1:10 with par value of Rs. 117,67,90,388 and
final cash dividend of Rs. 5.53 per share amounting to Rs. 65,07,65,085)

Events after Reporting date

The events after the reporting date are all those events, whether favorable or unfavorable, which have occurred
between the reporting date and the date of preparation or approval of the financial statements for its disclosure.
During the review year there are no such events after reporting date.

Departure from NFRS

The management of bank has concluded that the financial statements fairly present the bank's financial position,
performance and cash flow. The bank has fully implemented NFRS 9 as per ECL guidelines issued by NRB from NAS
39.

Limitations of NFRS
During NFRS implementation, wherever the information is not adequately available and the cost to develop the
same would exceed the benefit derived, if any, has been noted and disclosed in respective sections.

Reclassification, Regrouping and rounding off:

Previous year’s figures have been reclassified and regrouped wherever necessary to make the same comparable
with the current year’s figure. Figures in financial statements are rounded off to the nearest rupee.
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY TABLE

As On 32 Ashadh 2082 (16 July 2025)

(RS. IN'000)

ASHADH 32, 2082

PREVIOUS YEAR 2080-81

1.1 RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURES

a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 247,082,236 207,509,578
b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 11,766,746 9,787,726
c Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 1,138,442 616,576
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (Before adjustments of Pillar II) 259,987,423 217,913,880
Adjustments under Pillar Il
SRPB.4a(5)  Adjustment as per SRP 6..4a(5}4 o .

Is Supervisor satisfied with ALM Policies and practices employed by the bank?
SRP6.4a(6)  Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a(6)
SRP6.4a(7)  Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a(7) .

Add RWE equvalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 3 % of Gross Income 2,667,645 2,464,372
SRP6.4a(9)  Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a(9) )

Overall risk management policies and precedures are not satisfactory. Add 2% of RWE 5,199,748 4,358,278
SRP6.4a(10)  Adjustment as per SRP 6.4a(10? ) )

Has the bank achieved desired level of disclosure requirement? - -
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (after bank's adjustments of Pillar II) 267,854,816 224,736,530

1.2 CAPITAL

ASHADH 32, 2082

PREVIOUS YEAR 2080-81

(A) Tier1Capital [Core Capital (CET 1+ AT 1)]
Common Equity Tier 1(CET 1)
Paid up Equity Share Capital
Equity Share Premium
Proposed Bonus Equity Shares
Statutory General Reserves
Retained Earnings
Unaudited current year cumulative profit/(loss)
Capital Redemption Reserve
Capital Adjustment Reserve
Debenture Redemption Reserve
Dividend Equalization Reserves
Bargain Purchase Gain
Other Free Reserve
Less: Goodwill
Less: Intangible Assets
Less: deferred tax assets- accumulated losses
Less: deferred tax assets- others
Less: Fictitious Assets
Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions
Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests
Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits
Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments
Less: Reciprocal crossholdings
Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized
Less: Cash Flow Hedge
Less: Defined Benefits Pension Assets
Less: Unrecognized Defined Benefit Pension Liabilities
aa Less: Other Deductions
Adjustments under Pillar Il
SRP6.4a(1)  Less:Shortfallin Provision (6.4 a1)
SRPB.4a(2) Less: Loans and Facilities extended to related parties and restricted lending
Additional Tier 1(AT 1)
a Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Share Capital
b Perpetual Debt Instruments
¢ Stock Premium

N'*<><§<E"*(/)ﬂ_Q'UO:JB_X‘_'_':}'\O_"CDQOO'm

27,960,759
12,944,694
238,470
7,716,968
4,893,096

1,116,408
1,365,794

88,630

191,980

23,804,288
11,767,904
238,470
6,748,987
3,302,369

1,116,408
768,575

88,637

25,381

(B) Supplementary Capital (Tier 2)

7,318,612

3,834,157

Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share

Subordinated Term Debt

Hybrid Capital Instruments

Stock Premium

General Loan Loss Provision

Exchange Equalization Reserve

Investment Adjustment Reserve

Accrued Interest Receivable on pass loan included in Regulatory Reserve
Interest Capitalized Reserve included in Regulatory Reserve

Other Reserves

" T oD Q hd® Q0 T g

4,200,000

2,939,862
69,832
2,691
92,500
13,726

1,600,000

2,161,844
69,622
2,691

Total Capital Fund (Tier | and Tier Il)

35,279,371

27,638,445

1.3 CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar I1)
Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar I1)
Tier Tand Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar Il)

10.44
10.44
13.17

10.59
10.59
12.30
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EVEREST BANK LIMITED

Consi: Strong & D dabl
RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURE FOR OPERATIONAL RISK
(RS.IN'000)
2082 Ashadh End

Particulars Fiscal year 3 Fiscal year 2 Fiscal year1
FY Start Date 2080/04/01 2079/04/01 2078/04/01
FY End Date 2081/03/31 2080/03/31 2079/03/32
1. Netinterestincome 7,648,325.49 7,412,440.19 5,181,416.38
2. Commission and discount income 1,638,316.13 1,347,521.41 1,284,957.64
3. Other operatingincome 160,337.29 94,188.17 294,287.55
4. Exchange fluctuation income 335,364.24 182,784.20 299,490.53
5. Addition/deduction in interest suspense during the period - - -
6. Grossincome(a) 9,782,343.15 9,036,933.96 7.070,152.11
7. Alfa(b) 15.00% 15.00% 15.00%
8. Fixed percentage of gross income [c=(axb)] 1,467,351.47 1,355,540.09 1,060,522.82
9. Capital requirement for operational risk (d) (average of c) 1,294,471.46
10. Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times (e) 9.09
11. Equivalent risk weight exposure [f=(dxe)] 11,766,745.58
12. SRP 6.4a(8) Adjustments under Pillar Il

(If Gross Income for the last three years is negative)

1. Total credit and investment (net of specific provision) of related month -

2. Capital requirement for operational risk -

3. Risk weight in times 9.09

4, Equivalent risk weight exposure (g) -
13. Equivalent risk weight exposure [h=f+g] 11,766,745.58

TABLE 1: NET LIQUID ASSETS TO TOTAL DEPOSIT RATIO

Particulars Amount
A. Total deposit & borrowing 308,858,780,957.63

1. Total deposits 301,154,367,957.63

2. Total borrowing 7,704,413,000.00
B. Liquid assets 118,363,899,051.01

1. Cash 2,384,590,818.75

2. Bank balance 16,780,883,928.38

3. Money at call and short notice -

4. Investment in government securities and NRB instruments 97,005,624,303.88

5. Placements upto 90 days 2,192,800,000.00
C. Borrowings payable upto 90 days 1,100,800,000.00
D. Netliquid assets(B-C) 117,263,099,051.01
E. Net liquid assets to total deposit 38.94%
F. Shortfall in ratio 0.00%
G. Percentage of deposit to be added to RWE 0.00%
H. Amount to be added to risk weighted exposures 0

Note (if any):
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EVEREST BANK LIMITED

Consi Strong & D
Unaudited Financial Results
Fourth Quarter Ending F/Y 2081/82
Unaudited Condensed Statement of Financial Position
As on Quarter ended 32 Ashadh 2082
Fig in NPR ‘000

Assets This Quarter Ending Immediate Previous

year Ending (Audited)
Cash and cash equivalent 6,691,912 8,370,599
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 13,661,353 40,768,261
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 7,843,200 6,482,025
Derivative financial instruments 4,953,600 1,664,093
Other trading assets - -
Loan and advances to B/Fls 9,771,879 7,652,663
Loans and advances to customers 213,623,545 178,215,399
Investment securities 100,524,625 44,143,620
Current tax assets 419,271 517,747
Investment in subsidiaries - -
Investment in associates 776,283 836,283
Investment property 564,286 522,293
Property and equipment 4,133,192 3,891,475
Goodwill and Intangible assets 116,696 25,381
Deferred tax assets - -
Other assets 2,125,512 2,653,862
Total Assets 365,205,354 295,743,700
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 2,335,968 1,071,805
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Derivative financial instruments 4,958,751 1,630,408
Deposits from customers 298,818,400 232,316,605
Borrowing 1,100,976 2,349,196
Current Tax Liabilities - -
Provisions - -
Deferred tax liabilities 121,050 125,808
Other liabilities 19,243,044 26,841,481
Debt securities issued 6,603,613 3,603,613
Subordinated Liabilities - -
Total Liabilities 333,181,802 267,938,917
Equity
Share capital 12,944,694 11,767,904
Share premium 238,470 238,470
Retained earnings 4,954,470 3,302,369
Reserves 13,885,917 12,496,041
Total equity attributable to equity holders 32,023,552 27,804,784
Non-controlling interest
Total Equity 32,023,552 27,804,784
Total Liabilities and Equity 365,205,354 295,743,700
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EVEREST BANK LIMITED

Consi Strong & D

UNAUDITED CONDENSED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the Quarter ended 32" Ashadh 2082

FIG IN NPR 000

Particulars Current Year Corresponding Previous Year

This Quarter | Upto This Quarter (YTD) This Quarter | Upto This Quarter (YTD)
Interest income 5,360,675 20,818,988 5,577,240 22,547,387
Interest expense 2,975,246 11,689,600 3,561,979 14,899,062
Net interest income 2,385,430 9,129,388 2,015,261 7,648,325
Fee and commission income 520,942 1,877,809 469,726 1,638,316
Fee and commission expense 88,405 348,866 104,662 295,238
Net fee and commission income 432,538 1,528,943 365,064 1,343,078
Net interest, fee and commission income 2,817,967 10,658,330 2,380,325 8,991,403
Net trading income 109,756 499,382 99,221 353,740
Other operating income 61,810 8,724 98,497 160,337
Total operating income 2,989,533 11,166,437 2,578,043 9,505,480
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses (434,670) (161,722) (354,782) 282,404
Net operating income 3,424,203 11,328,158 2,932,825 9,223,076
Operating expense
Personnel expenses 681,065 2,608,065 694,253 2,410,514
Other operating expenses 194,953 933,492 88,017 817.117
Depreciation & Amortisation 177,302 332,367 214,022 332,375
Operating Profit 2,370,882 7,454,235 1,936,532 5,663,071
Non operating income - - - -
Non operating expense 2,349 3,365 333 494
Profit before income tax 2,368,533 7,450,870 1,936,199 5,662,577
Income Tax expense
Current Tax expense 908,004 2,632,705 827,213 1,945,127
Deferred Tax expense/(Income) - - 14,225 14,225
Profit for the period 1,460,529 4,918,165 1,094,761 3,703,225
Condensed Statement of Comprehensive Income
Profit/(Loss) for the period 1,460,529 4,918,165 1,094,761 3,703,225
Other Comprehensive Income 13,658 (37,373) 28,519 (144,312)
Total Comprehensive Income 1,474,188 4,880,792 1,123,280 3,558,913
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 37.99 31.47
Diluted earnings per share 37.99 31.47
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 1,460,529 4,918,165 1,123,280 3,558,913
Non-controlling interest - - - -
Profit for the period 1,460,529 4,918,165 1,123,280 3,558,913
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EVEREST BANK LIMITED

Strong & D

COMPARISON UNAUDITED AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF FY 2081/82

(RS. IN'000)
Statement of Financial Position As per unaudited As per Audited Variance Reasons for Variance
Assets Financial Statement Financial Statement In amount In%
Cash and cash equivalent 6,691,912 6,720,639 28,728 0.43% Audit Adjustment
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 13,661,353 64,715,146 51,053,794 373. 1% 90 Days Mapping
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 7,843,200 7,996,585 153,385 1.96% Audit Adjustment
Derivative financial instruments 4,953,600 3,577,724 (1,375,876) -27.78% Audit Adjustment
Loan and advances to B/Fls 9,771,879 9,781,759 9,881 0.10% Audit Adjustment
Loans and advances to customers 213,623,545 213,438,490 (185,055) -0.09% Staff Loan
Investment Securities 100,524,625 49,443,437 (51,081,188) -50.81% 90 Days Mapping
Current tax assets 419,27 374,635 (44,637) -10.65% Audit Adjustment
Investment in associates 776,283 762,144 (14,139) -1.82% Equity Accouting
Investment property 564,286 564,295 9 0.00%
Property and Equipment 4,133,192 4,177,562 44,37 1.07% Straight Line
Goodwill and intangible assets 116,696 191,980 75,284 64.51% Straight Line
Deferred tax Assets - 0.00 0.00 -
Other assets 2,125,512 1,894,847 (230,665) -10.85% Staff Loan
Total Assets 365,205,354 363,639,245 (1,566,109) -0.43%
Capital and Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 2,335,968 3,436,943 1,100,976 47.13% Audit Adjustment
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - - -
Derivative financial instruments 4,958,751 3,598,404 (1,360,348) -27.43% Audit Adjustment
Deposits from customers 298,818,400 298,818,400 0 0.00%
Borrowing 1,100,976 - (1,100,976) -100.00% Audit Adjustment
Deferred tax liabilities 121,050 42,194 (78,857) -65.14% Audit Adjustment
Other liabilities 19,243,044 19,200,191 (42,852) -0.22% Actuary Report
Debt securities issued 6,603,613 6,603,613 - 0.00%
Total liabilities 333,181,802 331,699,745 (121,709) -0.04%
Equity
Share capital 12,944,694 12,944,694 - -
Share premium 238,470 238,470 - -
Retained earnings 4,954,470 4,893,096 (61,374) -1.24% Income Tax Adjustment
Reserves 13,885,917 13,863,240 (22,677) -0.16% Actuary Report
Total equity attributable to equity holders 32,023,552 31,939,500 (84,051) -0.26%
Total equity 32,023,552 31,939,500 (84,051) -0.26%
Total liabilities and equity 365,205,354 363,639,245 (205,761) -0.06%
Statement of Profit or Loss
Interest income 20,818,988 20,814,261 (4,727) -0.02% Audit Adjustment
Interest expense 11,689,600 11,7,937 22,337 0.19% Lease Accounting
Net interest income 9,129,388 9,102,324 (27,063) -0.30%
Fee and commission income 1,877,809 1,877,809 - 0.00%
Fee and commission expense 348,866 347,312 (1,554) -0.45% Audit Adjustment
Net fee and commission income 1,528,943 1,530,497 1,554 0.10%
Net trading income 499,382 468,682 (30,700) -6.15% Forward Contract
Other operating income 8,724 69,114 60,390 692.21% Associate Accouting
Total operaing income 11,166,437 11,170,617 4,180 0.04%
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses (161,722) (155,327) 6,395 -3.95% Audit Adjustment
Net operating income 11,328,158 11,325,943 (2,215) -0.02%
Personnel expenses 2,608,065 2,840,457 32,393 1.24% Actuary Revised
Other operating expenses 933,492 1,010,647 77,155 8.27% Lease Accounting
Depreciation & Amortisation 332,367 326,421 (5.946) -1.79% Lease Accounting
Operating profit 7,454,235 7,348,417 (105,817) -1.42%
Non Operating Income - 10,688 10,688
Non Operating Expense 3,365 2,152
Profit before tax 7,450,870 7,356,954 (116,505) -1.56%
Income Tax Expense
Current Tax Expenses 2,532,705 2,577,341
Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) - (60,291) (60,291) Security Deposit
Profit /(loss) for the period 4,918,165 4,839,903 (56,214) -114%
Other comprehensive income (37,373) (54,422) (17,049) 45.62% Audit Adjustment
Total comprehensive income 4,880,792 4,785,481 (73,263) -1.50%
Distributable Profit
Net profit/(loss) as per profit or loss 4,918,165 4,839,903 (78,262) -169% Audit Adjustment
Add/Less: Requlatory adjustment as per NRB Directive 36,305 53,193 16,888 46.52% Audit Adjustment
Free profit/(loss) after regulatory adjustments 4,954,470 4,893,096 (61,374) -1.24%
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EVEREST BANK LIMITED

Consi Strong & D
5 years - Financial Position

Assets 2081-82 2080-81 2079-80 2078-79 2077-78 | 4 Year CAGR
Cashand cash equivalent 6,720,639,482 8,412,01,302 15,378,247,980 14,024,363,708 9,163,408,289 -1.46%
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 64,715,146,228 41,182,606,399 13,933,794,413 11,105,032,243 28,838,572,178 22.39%
Placement with Bank and

Financial Institutions 7,996,585,181 6,630,271,586 5,980,975,000 2,875,500,000 2,144,700,000 38.96%
Derivative financial instruments 3,577,723,753 1,664,092,583 598,447,598 15,766,811 - -
Other trading assets - - - - - -
Loan and advances to B/Fls 9,781,759,468 7,652,663,431 8,076,881,203 9,5673,310,676 7,486,023,605 6.92%
Loans and advances to customers | 213,438,490,103 178,215,398,721 159,479,294,513 | 145,480,529,033 | 127,687,224,568 13.71%
Investment securities 49,443,437,467 44,143,619,543 40,201,725,289 36,181,863,745 31,460,033 444 1.97%
Current tax assets 374,634,507 517,746,655 520,852,132 565,316,995 440,301,707 -3.96%
Investment in subsidiaries - - - - - -
Investment in associates 762,144,319 836,283,158 727,809,952 685,427,120 502,315,696 10.99%
Investment property 564,295,086 522,293,275 - 2,202,745 2,202,745 300.07%
Property and Equipment 4,177562,454 3,891,474,615 3,619,402, 74 3,570,867,723 3,424,569,598 5.09%
Goodwill and Intangible assets 191,979,773 25,380,760 24,949,163 23,076,167 32,837,037 55.50%
Deferred tax assets - - - - - -
Other assets 1.894,847,469 2,01,570,349 2,146,560,300 1,107,800,395 1,163,939,649 13.20%
Total Assets 363,639,245,291 295,705,412,379 250,688,940,248 225,211,057,360 212,336,128,516 14.40%
Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 3,436,943,308 3,421,000,959 1,219,273,691 733,073,213 678,975,219 50.00%
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - 23,767,053 2,936,021,131 2,112,184,741 -100.00%
Derivative financial instruments 3,598,403,660 1,630,408,398 646,044,705 - 27,925,206 236.92%
Deposits from customers 298,818,400,190 232,231,779,134 198,007,807,066 172,739,184,905 | 160,220,256,940 16.86%
Borrowing - - 2,664,217,161 2,578, 11,778 - -
Current Tax Liabilities - - - - - -
Provisions - - - - - -
Deferred tax liabilities 42,193,593 125,808,362 173,207,361 91,497,212 196,687,607 -31.94%
Other liabilities 19,200,191,441 26,888,018,787 18,979,340,953 22,245,765,850 27,760,579,785 -8.81%
Debt securities issued 6,603,613,000 3,603,613,000 3,603,613,000 1,325,628,000 468,845,000 93.73%
Subordinated Liabilities - - - - - -
Total Liabilities 331,699,745,192 267,900,628,641 225,317,270,989 202,649,282,089 191,465,454,498 14.73%
Equity -
Share capital 12,944,694,268 11,767,903,880 10,698,094,436 9,467,340,209 8,933,717,178 9.71%
Share premium 238,469,884 238,469,884 238,469,884 238,469,884 238,469,884 0.00%
Retained earnings 4,893,096,198 3,302,368,763 4,110,487,506 3,632,754,853 2,511,991,875 18.14%
Reserves 13,863,239,749 12,496,041,21 10,324,617,435 9,223,210,326 9,186,495,082 10.84%
Total equity attributable to

equity holders 31,939,500,099 27,804,783,738 25,371,669,260 22,561,775,271 20,870,674,018 1.22%
Non-controlling interest - - - - - -
Total equity 31,939,500,099 27,804,783,738 25,371,669,260 22,561,775,271 20,870,674,018 1.22%
Total Liabilities and Equity 363,639,245,291 295,705,412,379 250,688,940,248 225,211,057,360 212,336,128,516 14.40%
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5 years - Financial Performance
Particulars 2081-82 2080-81 2079-80 2078-79 2077-78 | 4 Year CAGR
Interest Income 20,814,261,205 22,547,387,207 22,400,611,241 15,467,180,397 11,515,527,556 15.95%
Interest Expense 11,711,936,982 14,899,061,720 14,988,171,055 10,285,764,016 7,647,886,740 1.24%
Net interest income 9,102,324,223 7,648,325,487 7,412,440,186 5,181,416,381 3,867,640,816 23.86%
Fee and commission income 1,877,808,633 1,638,316,134 1,347,521,410 1,294,957,645 978,902,083 17.69%
Fee and commission expense 347,312,052 293,989,961 271,927,310 263,073,470 210,737,406 13.30%
Net fee and commission 1,530,496,582 1,344,326,173 1,075,594,100 1,031,884,175 768,164,677 18.81%
income
Net interest, fee and 10,632,820,804 8,992,651,660 8,488,034,286 6,213,300,556 4,635,805,492 23.06%
commission income
Net trading income 468,681,699 353,739,528 182,784,199 299,490,529 367,239,043 6.29%
Other operating income 69,114,163 160,337,285 94,188,165 223,321,550 214,281,809 -24.64%
Total operating income 11,170,616,666 9,506,728,474 8,765,006,650 6,736,112,636 5,217,326,344 20.96%
Impairment charge/(reversal)
for loans and other losses (155,326,618) 282,403,883 771,360,504 325,445,856 262,367,680 -
Net operating income 11,325,943,284 9,224,324,591 7.993,646,146 6,410,666,780 4,954,958,665 22.96%
Operating expense
Personnel expenses 2,640,457,450 2,410,513,670 2,129,930,956 2,045,469,854 1,611,061,794 13.15%
Other operating expenses 1,010,647,305 818,364,950 736,668,961 592,220,619 568,290,362 15.48%
Depreciation & Amortisation 326,421,064 332,374,868 309,475,169 293,187,113 253,127,663 6.56%
Operating Profit 7,348,417,465 5,663,071,103 4,817,571,059 3,479,788,594 2,522,478,847 30.64%
Non operating income 10,687,923 - - - - -
Non operating expense 2,151,515 494,175 1,286,183 2,513,362 86,688 123.20%
Profit before income tax 7,356,953,872 5,662,576,928 4,816,284,876 3,477,275,232 2,522,392,159 30.68%
Income tax expense
Current Tax Expenses 2,577,341, 444 1,945,126,787 1,447,574,533 1,055,443,879 791,021,882 34.35%
Deferred Tax Expenses/
(Income) (60,291,044) 14,225,054 6,594,905 (7,893,320 (226,637,773) -28.18%
Profit for the period 4,839,903,472 3,703,225,086 3,362,115,439 2,429,724,674 1,958,008,050 25.39%
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Main Indicators of last 5 years
S.No. | Particulars Financial Years
Indicator 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

1 Net Profit/Total Income % 13.54 14.29 13.99 14.99 20.83
2 Per share Earning (after tax income) Rs. 19.91 26.30 31.43 31.47 37.39
3 Market price per share Rs. 738.00 439.00 563.00 560.00 701.56
4 Price/Earning Ratio 37.06 16.69 17.91 17.80 18.76
5 Dividend on share- Bonus share % 6.00 13.00 10.53 5.53 -
6 Cash Dividend % 4.32 7.68 10.00 10.00 -
7 Interest Income/Loans & advances % 1.37 8.62 11.45 10.02 9.31
8 Employee expenses/Total operating expenses % 15.69 15.17 11.55 12.85 66.38
9 Interest expenses on deposit & borrowing % 4.62 5.79 7.39 6.29 3.79
10 Exchange Income/Total Income % 3.26 1.50 0.25 0.49 2.02
n Staff bonus/Total employee expenses % 21.32 31.29 33.54 35.29 30.93
12 Net Profit/Loans & advances % 1.29 1.67 1.97 1.96 2.16
13 Net Profit/Total Assets % 0.89 1.13 1.41 1.36 1.47
14 Total Loans & advances/Total Deposits % 85.30 90.77 85.70 81.12 77.48
15 Total operating expenses/Total Assets % 4.85 5.98 7.37 6.34 1.21
16 Capital Adequacy Ratio:

a)Core Capital % .24 10.78 .17 10.59 10.44

b) Supplementary Capital % 1.24 m 2.3 1.7 2.73

c) Total Capital Funds % 12.48 11.89 13.30 12.30 13.17
17 Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) % 18.15 6.50 JAl 4.56 4.39
18 NPAs/Total Loans & Advances % 0.12 0.12 0.79 0.7 0.38
19 Base Rate % 5.99 8.82 9.47 7.29 5.36
20 Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread % 3.24 4.06 3.97 3.98 3.48
21 Book Networth (Rs. in Lacs) Rs. 206,436 227546 253717 278,048 319,395
22 Total Shares Number 88937172 | 94273402 | 106980944 | 117679039 | 129446943
23 Total Employee Number 945.00 1,057.00 1,097.00 1,149.00 1,212.00
24 Others

Per Employee Business(Rs. in Lakh) Rs. 3,129.36 3,131.00 3,372.44 3,678.96 4,339.34

Employee expenses/Total Income % 12.32 11.79 8.87 9.76 1.37

Note : i) CRR have been calculated on the basis of year end figures.
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[ Particulas | 208182 2080-81 2079-80 2078-79 2077-78

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 4,839,903,472 3,703,225,086 3,362,115,439 2,429,724,675 1,958,008,050
Appropriations:
a. General reserve 967,980,694 740,645,017 672,423,088 495,880,175 391,601,610
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund 210,048 11,428,652 6,455,809 13,677,458 2,993,168
c. Capital redemption reserve 597,218,844 625,718,278 142,797,167 46,880,000 (553,115,000)
d. Corporate social responsibility fund 5,550,664 20,515,400 17,795,190 24,794,009 (10,669,561)
e. Employees'training fund 8,303,862 631,155 10,659,937 1217,707 (5,059,509)
f. Capital Adjustment Reserve - - - 600,000,000
g. Investment Adjustment Reserve - - - (71,813) (10,520)
h. Other - (188,190) - (473,227,651) (41,710,282)
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 3,260,639,359 2,304, 414,774 2,511,984,248 2,309,620,790 1573,978,143
Regulatory Adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued 233,835,798 (104,286,576) (162,143,937) (5,140,914) 195,308,247
interest received (+)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) - - - - -
c. Short provision for possible losses on
investment (-)/reversal (+) - - - - -
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking (38,651,811) (522,293,275) (1,147,255) 18,837,428 -
Assets (-)/reversal (+)
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+) (60,291,044) (140,974,595) 111,957,428 (59,848,077) -
f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+) - - - - -
g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/reversal(+) - - - - -
h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) (9,641,464) (80,911,446) (15,758,519) 5,114,023 (81,085,300)
i. Other-Interest Capitalization Reserve (13,726,116) - - - -
j. Other- Share of Profit/Loss of Associate 46,118,185 (67,748,837 (8,914,732) (35,303,479) (77,674,458)
Net profit for the year end .........uuusmusmesees 3,418,282,908 1,388,200,045 2,435,977,233 2,233,279, 1,610,526,633
Available for distribution
Opening Retained Earning as on Shrawan 1.......... 3,302,368,763 4,110,487,507 3,632,754,854 2,511,991,879 1,793,065,962
Adjustment (+/-) - - - (194,685,179) -
Distribution:
Bonus Shares Issued (1,176,790,388) (1,069,809,444) (1,230,754,227) (533,623,031) (423,510,342)
Cash Dividend Issued (650,765,085) (1,126,509,344) (727,490,353) (384,208,583) (468,090,378)
Distributable Profit 4,893,096,198 3,302,368,763 4,110,487,507 3,632,754,857 2,511,991,875
No of Share 129,446,943 117,679,039 106,980,944 94,673,402 88,937,172
Distributable Profit per share 37.80 28.06 38.42 38.37 28.24
Bonus share distributed 6.00% 10.00% 10.00% 13.00% 6.00%
Cash Dividend distributed 14.00% 5.53% 10.53% 7.68% 4.32%
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ABOUT US

Established in 1994, Everest Bank Limited (EBL)is a name you can depend on for professionalized & efficient banking services.
Everest bank Limited is a joint venture with Punjab National Bank, India and is a consistently growing commercial bank of
Nepal. The Bank has been rendering professionalized & efficient banking services to various segment of the society through
its widest domestic network and many correspondents across the globe. Deriving strength from joint-venture partner, it has
been steadily growing in size & operation and has established itself as one of the leading private sector bank of the country.
The Bank has recorded commendable performance with consistent growth in net-worth and profit having one of the lowest
non-performing assetsin the industry. The bankis asymbol of consistency strength and dependability in the Nepalese Banking

Industry.
. HAREHOLDING PATTERN
Shareholding Pattern _ SHAREHOLDING
unja ationa
Local Promoters 39.14% Bank, India
20.03%
Public Shareholders 40.83% e
Punjab National Bank, India 20.03% 39.14%
Public
Shareholders
40.83%
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Shareholding Structure of Everst Bank Ltd.
S.N. Name of Promoter Total number % of Total
of shares Shares

Group A (Promoter)
1 PRATIMA SHRESTHA 31,009,423.00 23.95
2 HOTEL SNOW LION P. LTD. 12,044,746.00 9.3
3 RAVI KRISHNA SHRESTHA 2,435,222.00 1.88
4 KIRAN KRISHNA SHRESTHA 2,435,222.00 1.88
5 SHANTA DEV PATHAK 1,522,280.00 1.18
6 ARUN MAN SHERCHAN 1,223,397.00 0.95

Total 50,670,290.00 39.14
Group B (Public)
Total Shares held by Public Shareholder 52,855,020.68 40.83
Group C (PNB)
PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK 25,921,632.00 20.03
Total 129,446,942.68 100.00

JOINT VENTURE PARTNER

Punjab National Bank (PNB), joint venture partner (holding
20.03% equity) is one of the largest Public Sector Bank in
India with Global Gross Business at INR 27.19 lacs crore.
With its presence virtually in all important centers in
India, PNB offers a wide range of banking services which
include corporate & personal banking, industrial finance,
agricultural finance, financing of trade & international
banking. Currently Bank has total 55,360 delivery channels
with a network of 10,189 domestic branches, 2 International
branches, 11,822 ATMs & 33,349 Business Correspondents
spread across India. As a joint-venture partner, PNB has
been providing top management support to EBL under
Technical Service Agreement.

CUSTOMER BASE

Everest Bank is one of the banks with largest customer
bases of more than 15.28 Lakh satisfied customers. With
clients from all walks of life, the Bank has helped the nation
to develop corporately, agriculturally & industrially.

31ST ANNUAL REPORT

NETWORK

Everest Bank provides customer-friendly services
through its widest network all connected through core
banking solution, which enables customers for operational
transactions fromany branches. The bank has 133 Branches,
7 Province Offices, 168 ATMs, 32 Revenue Collection
Counters, 4 Extension Counters & more than 8000 payout
agents across the country making it a very efficient &
accessible bank for its customers, anytime, anywhere.

HANDLING REVENUE ACCOUNTS
OF GOVERNMENT

Owing to its strong credibility, Everest bank has been
authorized to collect revenue of Nepal Government
through its 32 Revenue Collection Counter spread across
the country. It is the only private sector commercial bank
handling all kinds of accounts of Nepal Government and
having special counter inside Singhadurbar. Everest Bank
is responsible for collecting more than 50% of the total
government revenue of our country.
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VISION

Tobe alLeading Commercial Bank with Pan Nepal presence
and become a household name, providing wide range of
financial products & services under one roof.

MISSION

Growth through Banking for ALL

MOTTO

Consistent in term of Performance & Growth
Strong in terms of its System & Procedures
Dependable in terms of Return to all Stakeholders
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STRATEGIC FOCUS

The Bank has set itself the following broad goals:

»  Mobilize Deposits through Current, Savings, Term &
Call Deposit accounts and other instruments.

»  Grant loans & advances with special thrust on
Productive as well as the Retail Segment

»  Provide Treasury Services following best
international practices

»  Facilitate cross border payment services so as to
strengthen remittance inflow

»  Provide custody services

»  Provide cash management services and other
financial planning services

»  Provide any other service businesses that NRB
prescribes from time to time.
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Achievements & Awards
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Pioneering
Achievements

One of the first banks to introduce Any Branch
Banking System (ABBS) in Nepal.

EBL introduced Mobile Vehicle Banking system
to serve the segment deprived of proper
banking facilities through its Birtamod Branch,
which was the first of its kind.

The branchless banking system was introduced
first time in Nepal to cover the unbanked sector
of Nepalese society through the biometric
machine.

The first bank that has launched the e-ticketing
system in Nepal where customers can buy yeti
airlines ticket through internet.

EBL introduced online payment of Mobile/
PSTN/ADSL/NCELL bill or from the counter as
well.

The first bank to introduce agro-specialized
branch "KRISHI UDHYAM BIKASH SAKHA" at
Rajbiraj.

Cash Deposit Kiosk was introduced for the first
time in Nepal through which the Customers
can deposit Cash conveniently.

The first bank to introduce the Missed Call
alert service for balance inquiry through
Ph No.: 01-4543374, which was the first of its
kind.

©
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Awards

Everest Bank has been honored with the
titles of: “1. Best Bank 2. Best Performance in
Profitability” by Indian Chamber of Commerce
at the 3" ICC Emerging Asia Banking Award
Ceremony.

The Bank has been conferred “BEST MANAGED
COMMERCIAL BANK OF THE YEAR" by
9t NewBiz Conclave & Business Excellence
Awards 2025.

The bank has been conferred with the
“Corporate Bank of the Year 2025" by
17t CORPORATE BUSINESS Award 2025.

The bank has been conferred with the
“The Best Managed Commercial Bank” by
ASIAN PAINT NEWBIZ Award 2019.

The bank has been conferred with the “Second
Best Managed Commercial Bank” by ASIAN
PAINT NEWBIZ Award 2018.

The bank has been conferred with the “The
Best Managed Commercial Bank” by ASIAN
PAINT NEWBIZ Award 2013.

The bank adjudged as “Number 1 Bank” under
CAMELS (along with Customer Base & Branch
Network) rating conducted by KAROBAR
national daily (a leading business media house
of Nepal).

The bank has been conferred with “Bank of the
Year 2006, Nepal” by the Banker, a publication
of financial times, London.

The bank was bestowed with the “NICCI
Excellence award” by Nepal India chamber of
commerce for its spectacular performance
under the finance sector.
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PRODUCT AND SERVICES

MAJOR DEPOSIT PRODUCTS
1. NAARI BACHAT KHATA

With the objective to encourage the small savings of
women from household and professions, Naari Bachat
Khata has been introduced where the customer can
make small saving and get attractive rate of interest.
Attractive features include:

* Issuance and renewal of Debit Card at NPR 50/-
+ 259% Discount on Annual Locker Rent (Small

Locker Only)

2. FREEDOM SAVINGS ACCOUNT

A special saving scheme for minors, who have
attained 10 years of age but not crossed 16 years, can
open this saving account in their name singly. This
unique deposit product has been introduced with
an objective to inculcate saving habits in minors and
help them in becoming responsible by allowing them
to operate this account independently. No cheque
book will be issued to this Account holder; however
the minor is allowed to withdraw money from his/ her
account using ATM card or through withdrawal slip.

3. EVEREST SPECIAL SAVING
This scheme is designed to satisfy the need of
different customer groups having expectations of
wide range of facilities along with highly attractive
interest rate.

168 ® 315" ANNUAL REPORT 2081/82 (2024/25 AD)

Attractive featuresinclude:

* Medical (Hospitalization) Insurance of
Rs. 1.00 Lac. and Accidental Death Insurance
of Rs. 5.00 Lac.

+ Free ATM Card (Issuance)/ Mobile Banking /
DMAT Account Opening Charge.

* 50% Discount on- Rent of Small Size Locker
(One Time)/ Issuance of Credit Card (One Time).




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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4. HATEMALO SAVINGS ACCOUNT

The main objective of this deposit account is to bring
the people in rural areas into the banking arena. So,
as to join hands to the people residing in places other
than metropolitan and sub-metropolitan cities, 50%
of minimum deposit is contributed by the bank itself.
This deposit account is mainly focused on individuals
residing in rural places other than metropolitan and
sub-metropolitan cities.

Attractive features include:
« Freelssuance of Debit Card (One Time)and SMS
Banking.

5. SAVING GORKHA REGIMENT INSTANT
ACCOUNT
In order to cater instant service to Gorkha Regiment
Staff of Indian Army, Everest Bank has launched
this scheme with key objective to provide further
convenience in banking for the Gorkha Regiments.
The scheme offers some comprehensive benefits
with highly attractive interest rates.

Attractive features include:

* No Minimum Balance Requirement.

* Highly Attractive Interest Rate.

+ Free ATM Card (Issuance) and Remittance
Facility.

» Zero Transaction Fee for Using Debit Card in
ATMs of PNB and EBL.

6. MATRI-BHUMI SAVINGS ACCOUNT
Inorderto caterthe need of Nepalese migrant workers
living and working abroad, Everest Bank launched new
saving scheme with key objective to mobilize reqular
saving habit.

Attractive features include:

« No Minimum Balance Requirement.

- Highly Attractive Interest Rate.

« Accidental Death Insurance of Rs. 5.00 Lac.

« Free ATM Card (Issuance)/Mobile Banking/DMAT
Account Opening Charge.

«  50% Discount on- Rent of Small Size Locker
(One Time)/ Issuance of Credit Card (One Time).
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7. EBL CORPORATE SALARY ACCOUNT
In order to cater to the need of payroll management
of the profit-making business organization, bank has
launched saving scheme with key objective to mobilize
Salary Accounts from public/private institutions.

Attractive features include:

« Highly Attractive Interest Rate.

. Free ATM Card (Issuance)/SMS Banking/ DMAT
Account Opening Charge.

« Accidental Death Insurance of Rs. 5.00 Lac.

- 50% Discount on Issuance of Credit Card (One-
Time).

- One Month Advance Salary(Max Limit-Rs. 100,000).

8. EVEREST MAXI SAVINGS ACCOUNT
The Everest Maxi Savings Account continues to
stand out as a premium financial product designed to
cater to the diverse needs of our valued customers,
including individuals, businessmen, professionals,
self-employed individuals, and housewives.

Attractive features include:

« Highly attractive Interest Rate.

- Medical (Hospitalization) Insurance of Rs. 1.00 Lac.
and Accidental Death Insurance of Rs. 5.00 Lac.

» Freelssuance & Renewal of Debit Card/ Credit Card
(Initial 2 years).

« Free SMS/Mobile Banking including Alerts (Free for
2 years).

« Free DMAT Account Opening Charge.

« Drafts(NPR & INR)/ RTGS/SPEED Remit: Free for 2
years (other than business requirements).

. Free Balance Certificate (Reconfirmation)/
Standing Instructions/ Bank Statement (Free for 2
years).

« Small-sized Locker: Rental charge waived for the
1st year (subject to availability), with a full waiver on
locker margin for 5 years.

« Discounts for Debit/Credit cardholders at select
hospitals in Nepal, India, Thailand, Malaysia, and
Singapore.

« Privilege service in all EBL Branches.
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MAJOR FIXED DEPOSIT
PRODUCTS

1.

EVEREST PIZZA DEPOSIT

This scheme has been launched with an objective
to mobilize small and medium sized deposits from
individuals/ institutions intended to have liquidity
feature with flexibility in long-term investment.
Further, it also caters to the needs of persons/
entities who want to have higher returns than a
regular saving account with varying level of liquidity.
The main feature of this product is flexibility. It allows
withdrawal (up to 50% of original deposits, in multiple
of Rs. 10,000.00 not more than 5 times) even before
the maturity, without any penal charge. The interest
on such premature withdrawal will be paid at the rate
applicable to the period for which the deposit has
remained with the bank. Depositors may borrow up to
90% of their deposit at interest rate of 2% above the
deposit rate.
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EVEREST UNFIXED FIXED DEPOSIT
ACCOUNT

Unfixed Fixed Deposit Scheme allows benefits of
higher rate of interest with quarterly compounding
while allowing the facility of simultaneous overdraft
against 90% of the deposits. Customers get a cheque
along with the fixed deposit receipt and they can use
the money while earning interest on it. The scheme is
suited for all categories of depositors like individuals,
Sole Proprietorship firms, Trusts and Limited
Companies who wish to invest their temporary
surpluses in Fixed Deposits, thereby earning higher
rate of interest as well as withdraw or repay the
amount in between depending upon their needs.
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MAJOR LOAN SCHEMES

Everest Bank Limited is committed to empowering customers through a diverse range of loan products designed to meet
personal, business, and societal needs. Our offerings include retail loans, small and medium enterprise (SME) loans, and
corporate loans, each tailored to support financial aspirations with competitive interest rates and flexible repayment terms.

MAJOR RETAIL LOAN

1.

HOME LOAN

Everest Bank helps customers
achieve home ownership
by offering home loans at
attractive interest rates.
We provide comprehensive
financial assistance for
constructing or purchasing
houses or apartments, as well
as for repairs, renovations,
additions, alterations, or land
purchases, enabling customers
to turn their dreams into reality.

VEHICLE LOAN

Owning a vehicle is now more
accessible with Everest Bank's
Vehicle Loan. We offer financing
for purchasing cars, vans,
jeeps, multi-utility vehicles,
or sports utility vehicles (for
non-commercial use only) for
individuals and businesses.
With  competitive  interest
rates and repayment terms of
up to 7 years, we make vehicle
ownership
affordable.

convenient and
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FLEXI LOAN

Everest Bank's Flexi Loan provides individuals and businesses with financing
to meet personal or business needs, offered as an overdraft or term loan
against the mortgage of immovable property for up to 10 years. Loan limits
are determined based on the repayment method and net disposable income,
up to a maximum of 35-40 times the income.

4.

EDUCATION LOAN

Everest Bank supports students
in pursuing higher education
in Nepal or abroad through
our Education Loan. This loan
coversawiderangeof expenses,
including admission fees, books
and stationery, course-related
instruments, monthly or tuition
fees, examination fees, caution
deposits, building funds, or
refundable deposits (supported
by institutional bills or receipts).
Additional expenses, such as
study tours, project work, thesis
preparation, and boarding
and lodging, are also covered.
Repayment begins one year
after completing the course
or one month after securing
employment,  whichever s
earlier. Interest is payable
quarterly, and the principal is
repayable in up to 120 equal
monthly
course completion.

installments  after
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AGRICULTURAL LOAN

Everest Bank offers Agricultural Loans to support farmers’
credit and consumption needs for various agricultural and
allied activities, as defined by the Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB).
These loans finance production, investment, and other
activities, including:

. Cereal and cash crop cultivation, vegetable and fruit
farming, floriculture, and herb production.

. Post-harvest storage of food crops.

. Livestock, poultry, fishery, and insect farming.

. Animal husbandry and slaughterhouse operations.

. Irrigation and related equipment, such as culverts,

canals, hand pumps, captive generators, rotor pumps,
pipelines, and other pumps.

. Agricultural tools and machinery, including tractors,
threshers, harvesters, modern plows, hoes,
cultivators, rotovators, tillers, and other manually or
motor-operated equipment.

. Infrastructure and sheds for livestock, poultry, or
fishery.

. Infrastructure for advanced farming techniques, such
as tunnel farming or sprinkler irrigation.

. Cold storage construction and management.

. Other activities defined by NRB under the agricultural
sector.
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SME LOANS

Small and medium enterprises (SMEs) are the backbone of
a developing economy, driving employment and economic
growth. To foster SME development, Everest Bank provides
loans of up to NPR 10 crore at competitive interest rates.
These loans support manufacturing, trading, and service
sectors by financing working capital and fixed assets. Our
dedicated SME Cell, established to focus on this segment,
offersinnovative loan products and streamlined procedures
to meet the unique needs of SMEs.
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MAJOR CORPORATE LOAN

1.

WORKING CAPITAL FINANCE

Everest Bank provides working capital finance to
trading firms, industries, and other businesses
by assessing their current assets and liabilities.
Businesses can draw funds up to a limit based on
their assessed drawing power, which is regularly
reviewed. Our working capital solutions address
short-term funding needs for day-to-day operations
across industries, trade, and service sectors. Funded
facilities include cash credits, demand loans, bill
discounting etc., while non-funded facilities include
letters of credit and bank guarantees for advance
payments, bid bonds, performance bonds, and more.

PROJECT FINANCE AND

INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE

Everest Bank offers fund-based and non-fund-

based credit facilities for new projects, as well as

the expansion,

of existing projects in infrastructure and non-

infrastructure sectors. Key areas of focus include:

- Power sector, including renewable energy projects
in solar and hydro power.

» Aviation sector.

diversification, or modernization

« Telecommunications.

« Manufacturing units, such as cement,
beverages, pipes, and poultry or cattle feed.

« Hotelsandresorts.

« Hospitals.

steel,

TRADE FINANCE

Through an extensive global network, Everest Bank
facilitates domestic and trade by
offering services such as letters of credit, SWIFT
transfers, and guarantees. We also provide trust
receipt loans, pre-shipmentloans, and post-shipment
loans to support import and export activities in local
and foreign markets.

international

CONSORTIUM FINANCE

Everest Bank arranges financial closures for
capital-intensive projects, such as hydropower,
manufacturing, hospitals, and hotels,
either as a lead or member bank. We remain open to
exploring such financing opportunities to support
large-scale initiatives.

airlines,
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ATM SERVICES

Everest Bank has maintained anetwork of ATM terminals
in diversified locations, with 24/7 round services.

. Cardholders have privileges for regular services
like Cash withdrawal, Balance Inquiry, Account
Statement and PIN change through EBL ATM

terminals.

. EBL cardholders can generate own PIN number
through “GREEN PIN" option.

. EBL cardholders can withdraw cash without using
physical card by using “CARDLESS WITHDRAWAL"
option.

. E-Sewa Wallet users can withdraw cash from EBL
ATM terminals.

. Acceptance of major global card brands in EBL

ATM terminals.

DEBIT CARD

Everest Bank offers Alternate Payment Mode in the form of
“EBL Debit Card” to its valued customers. “EBL Debit Card”
actsasan electronic cheque, which enables cardholders to
have direct access to their bank accounts, to fulfil the daily
payment and cash requirements. The card is acceptable
in ATM terminals, POS outlets and online e-commerce
platforms.

The bank is serving two brands of card product, namely
Visa brand Debit Card and SCT - UPI co-brand Debit Card
to its customers, which can be used at ATM, POS networks
& online payment on e-commerce platform, affiliated
with Visa Worldwide & Smart Choice Technologies (SCT)
plus Union Pay International (UPI) respectively, scattered
throughout Nepal, India & Bhutan.

Acceptance of Visa brand Debit Card:

. Can be used to withdraw cash from all Visa
Network affiliated ATMs in Nepal, India & Bhutan.
. Accepted as mode of payment at all Visa affiliated

merchant locations (POS Qutlets) within territory
of Nepal, India & Bhutan.

. Canbe used for payment on Visa Network affiliated
online E-commerce platform.

Acceptance of SCT - UPI brand Debit Card:
. Can be used to withdraw cash from all SCT / UPI
Network affiliated ATMs in Nepal and India.

. Accepted as mode of payment at all UPI affiliated
merchant locations (POS Outlets) within territory
of Nepal & India.

Features of EBL Debit Card:

. Instant Issuance and economical charges.

. Round the clock service.

. No charges are levied for using EBL debit card at
EBL ATM terminals.

. No charges are levied for purchase of goods and

services from merchant (POS) outlets and online
transactions.

. Debit cards are issued free of cost to all Saving
Premium account holders.
. Offering of discount of variable percentages,

on shopping from selected stores, restaurants,
hotels, hospitals etc. using debit card.

. No need of Paper PIN, instead "GREEN PIN" are
self-generated by cardholders from EBL ATM
terminals or EBL Mobile Banking Touch24.

. Options of card Activate, De-activate, GREEN PIN,
Permanent Block etc. of debit card via EBL Mobile
Banking Touch24 platform.

CREDIT CARD

Everest Bank Credit Card is an electronic Cheque, which
enable you to pay on purchase of goods and services
from merchant outlets or draw cash from ATM outlets.
The bank creates a revolving account and grants a line
of credit to cardholder, from which the cardholder can
borrow money for payment to a merchant or as a cash
advance.

Everest Bank is serving "EBL VISA Domestic Credit
Card" to its customers, which can be used at ATM, POS
Networks & online payment on e-commerce platform,
affiliated with Visa Worldwide, scattered throughout
Nepal, India and Bhutan.

Features of EBL Domestic Credit Card

. EBL Credit Card can be used in POS and ATM
terminals in Nepal, India and Bhutan.

. Can be used for payment on online E-commerce
platform.

. Chip based card with CHIP verification method for
POS transactions.

. Accepted as mode of payment at Visa merchant
locations (POS).
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. Can withdraw cash from Visa accepting ATMs.

. Offering of discount of variable percentages,
on shopping from selected stores, restaurants,
hotels, hospitals etc.

. Flexible payment option of NPR 1,000 or 10% of
debit balance, whicheveris higher to 100% of debit

balance.

. Interest free credit period of minimum 15 days to
maximum 45 days for Purchase transactions.

. Competitive interest rate @ 2% per month.

. Credit limit between NPR 50,000 to 5 Lac.
. Cash limit of 10% of Credit Limit.

. Monthly E-Account Statement in customer’s
registered e-mail Id.
. Options of Transaction History and E-Account

Statement in e-mail of Credit card account via
EBL Mobile Banking Touch24 platform.

WORLD TRAVEL DOLLAR
PREPAID CARD

Everest Bank's "EBL World Travel Card" is VISA brand US
Dollar card for the purpose of using in foreign countries
(except India and Bhutan). The card enables cardholders
to use it worldwide (except Nepal, India & Bhutan), in
ATM / POS outlets affiliated under Visa Network for
drawing cash and purchasing goods and services.

. Individuals, who are eligible for foreign currency
exchange facility as per guidelines of the bank /
regulatory bodies can avail the card.

. The cardholders can use dollar cash balance pre-
loaded into card accounts, up-to the permitted
limits.

. The privilege of reloading the balance within the
expiry period is also allowed.

. The card is of great use to customers, who are

visiting to foreign countries (except India), for
the purpose of medical treatment, travelling,
pilgrimage, business, shopping etc. and residing
there for the purpose of pursing education,
employment etc.

. Options of Balance Inquiry and Transaction History
of card account via EBL Mobile Banking Touch24
platform.
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E-COM(VIRTUAL) DOLLAR
PREPAID CARD

Everest Bank's "EBL E-Com (Virtual) Dollar Prepaid Card"
is VISA brand Dollar Prepaid card for the purpose of
using in E-Commerce platform on payments of Dollar
currency.

. Cardholders can wuse it on E-Commerce
platform (i.e. online payments) affiliated with
Visa Worldwide, with payment enabled in Dollar
currency or equivalent to other foreign currency.

. The cardholders can use Dollar cash balance
pre-loaded in card accounts, up-to the permitted
limits.

. Options of Balance Inquiry and Transaction History
of card account via EBL Mobile Banking Touch24
platform.
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Corporate
Governance
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance is an underpinning factor for the
proper operation of the banking sector and the economy
as a whole. Effectiveness of the corporate governance
in an institution ensures financial stability and builds
social credibility which ultimately leads to the long-term
sustainability of the bank. Everest bank aims to strive for an
effective corporate governance, subsequently safeguarding
the interest of shareholders strengthening accountability to
its stakeholders, credibility of the bank, transparency and
trust. We are always conscious about the good governance
in Everest bank and always complied with the related
provisions of Acts, Rules and Directives issued by Nepal
Rastra Bank and the Government of Nepal.

The Board of Directors

The Board is being collectively accountable to stakeholders
for the long-term success and financial soundness of the
Bankaccordingly, approvingand overseeingimplementation
of the Bank's overall strategic direction, risk appetite,
strategies, and related policies to establish corporate
culture, values and a strong control environment.

Director’s Profile

1. Dr. Bal Gopal Baidya:
Dr. Baidya holds Ph.D in Economics from Philippines.
He is the former member of National Planning
Commission and was also the member of Board of
Trustee, Poverty Alleviation Fund of Nepal.

2.  Mr.KiranKrishna Shrestha:
Mr. Shrestha has completed MBA from Kings College,
Kathmandu and Diploma in export marketing and
market research from Helsinki School of Economics,
Finland. Currently, Mr. Shrestha is the Team Leader/
Chairperson of Publication Nepalaya Private Limited
and Event Nepalaya Private Limited.

Composition of Board of Directors:
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Mr. Santosh Kumar:

Mr. Santosh Kumar is a PNB Nominee Director.
Mr. Kumar has completed B.A (Hons.) and LL.B.
Mr. Kumar is currently the General Manager of PNB
and has expertise in FOREX and Integrated treasury
operation with deep understanding of foreign
currency and derivatives.

Mr. Nabin Bhakta Shrestha:

Mr. Shrestha has completed Bachelor in Commerce
from Tribhuvan University and has more than 21years
of experience in Business and Trade sector.

Ms. Urmila Shrestha:

Mrs. Shrestha holds Master’'s Degree in Economics
from Tribhuvan University. Mrs. Shrestha was the
Promoter/Chairperson of Mahila Sahayatra Laghubitta
Bittiya Sanstha Limited.

Dr. Tarak Bahadur K.C:

Dr. KC holds Ph.D, Master and Diploma in Development
Administration from the University of Birmingham,
UK; PG Diploma in HRM from IGNOU, India and MA and
MPA from Tribhuvan University, Nepal. He started his
career as a Civil Servant of Nepal in 1980. He worked
in Nepal Administrative Staff College at different
capacities since its inception in 1982 and retired
as Senior Director of Studies/Deputy Executive
Director in October 2017. Besides, he has served
as HR Specialist (ADB Grant Project), Agricultural
Development Bank Ltd.; Head, HR, Nepal Bank
Limited, ICC Consulting, Bank of Scotland (Ireland)
Limited, Nepal Bank Limited Restructuring Project,
and Executive Director/Member-secretary, National
Dairy Development Board. He is a life member of the
Public Administration Association of Nepal.

S.N. | Name of Director Address No. of Share Representation on Date of
Board Appointment

1 Dr. Bal Gopal Baidya Sitapaila, Kathmandu o Chairman 2080/07/23
2 Mr. Kiran Krishna Shrestha Bhaisepati, Lalitpur 24,35,222 Promoter Director 2080/01/08
3 Mr. Santosh Kumar PNB, India ok PNB Nominee Director | 2082/05/13
4 Mr. Nabin Bhakta Shrestha Bolachhen, Bhaktapur 3,099 Public Director 2081/06/20
5 Ms. Urmila Shrestha Sanepa, Lalitpur 2,662 Public Director 2081/06/20
6 Dr. Tarak Bahadur K.C. Kalanki, Kathmandu - Independent Director 2078/10/26

*kk

Dr. Bal Gopal Baidya has been representing Hotel Snow Lion in the Board. Hotel Snow Lion holds 12,044,746 no. of shares of the

bank.

Mr. Santosh Kumar has been representing Punjab National Bank in the Board. Punjab National Bank holds 25,921,632 no. of

shares of the bank.
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Details of Board Meeting

Director No of Meetings
Dr. Bal Gopal Baidya 15
Mr. Rakesh Grover 14
Ms. Urmila Shrestha 15
Mr. Nabin Bhakta Shrestha 15
Dr. Tarak Bahadur K.C 15
Mr. Kiran Krishna Shrestha 15

The Total expenditure on account of meeting fee was
incurred Rs. 2,560,000 and other expenses related to Board
meetings was Rs. 515,588.86.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

1. No director shall do anything to derive personal
benefit through the bank or financial institution or in
the course of performing the functions of the bank or
financial institution.

2. If any person who is appointed as a director has any
personal or financial interest in the business of the
bank or financial institution or in an agreement or
involvement with the bank or financial institution,
such person shall, prior to assuming the duties of his
or her office, disclose such matter to the Board.

3. If any director is found to have derived a personal
benefit in the course of business of the bank or
financial institution, the bank or financial institution
shall recover that amount from such director.

4. The bank or financial institution shall not be
responsible forany action taken or function performed
by any person working as its director by acting beyond
his or her jurisdiction.

5. If any person carries on any transaction with any
director or representative even while knowing
or having reasons to believe that the director or
representative is carrying on the transaction to serve
his or her personal interests or to cause any loss or
damage to the bank or financial institution, such
person shall not be entitled to make any claim against
the bank or financial institution in relation to such
transaction.

B. No director shall interfere with the routine business
relating to the management of the bank or financial
institution.

7. Every director of the bank or financial institution shall
comply with such directives issued by the Rastra Bank
from time to time as required to be complied with by
the directors of the bank or financial institution.

*As per BAFIA 2073
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Board Level Committees

The Board has delegated the authority to make decisions
to Board committees in line with NRB Directives and
prevailing market scenarios but bears the ultimate
responsibility. Major Sub committees of the Board to
oversee the bank's function are as under:

(i) Audit Committee of Board

(i)  Assets Laundering Prevention Committee

(iii)  Human Resource Management committee

(iv) Risk Management Committee

The terms of reference for the Board and the Board
committees are set out clearly. The Board has established
communication procedures between the Board and Board
committees, and across Board committees. The Board
committees are periodically reporting to the full Board on
aregular basisand as and when the need or urgency arises.

The Board has approved the Bank's organizational
structure and to ensure adequate corporate governance
frameworks and systems. The Board is also ensuring that
senior management formulates policies that promote fair
practices and professionalism, with respect to internal
dealings and external transactions, including situations
where there are real or potential conflicts of interests.

The Board level committee conducted 35 meetings during
the financial year which can be segregated as below:-

Committee No. of Meetings
Audit Committee 13
Human Resource Management

Committee 6
Risk Management Committee 10
Assets Laundering Prevention

Committee 6
Total 35

The senior management is bearing the general executive
responsibility for the day-to-day conduct of business and
affairs of the institution. It is responsible for creating an
accountability framework for the staff, but cognizant that it
is ultimately accountable to the Board for the performance
of the Bank. Senior management is providing the Board
with information on all potentially material risks the Bank
is facing, including those relevant to the Bank’s risk profile,
capital and liquidity needs.
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1. Main Role & Activities of Audit
Committee of the Board (ACB)

Nepal Rastra Bank, Directive No. 6, Point No. 7, Sub Point
No. (1), states that as per provisions of Banks and Financial
Institution Act, 2073, Sec 22, Sec 60 and Sec 61, the board
shall, under its accountability, constitute Committee/Sub
Committee with specific Roles, Rights and Responsibilities.
As such, the board has constituted Audit Committee of the
Board (ACB), a board level Committee to ensure that the
Audit Function of the bank is effectively and adequately
undertaken to maintain financial as well as organizational
soundness of the bank.

The ACB comprised of the following members for
FY 2081-82:

1. Ms. Urmila Shrestha - | Chairman of
(Member Director) Committee

2. Head- Accounts Department - | Member

3. Head-Internal Audit - | Member
Department Secretary

The ACB reviews periodical issues related to bank’s overall
financial condition, internal controls and audit program in
accordance with prevailing laws and provides necessary
suggestions to the management on actions to be taken
on the same. ACB reviews Quarterly Financial Reports of
the bank and guides the management in preparing Yearly
Financial Reportin a correct and realistic manner.

Board of Directors

Audit Committee

the Board
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ACB supervises and reports to the management whether
actions undertaken on managerial and operational
activities are as per the rules/ regulations/ guidelines/
policies and directives which are issued as per prevailing
Bank quidelines, directives of NRB and Bank and Financial
Institution Act (BAFIA) 2073.

ACB  discusses/reviews the  observations/remarks
contained in NRB Inspection & Supervision Report, audit
report of the external/ statutory auditors and Internal RBIA
(Risk Based Internal Audit) reports of branches and suggests
the management to take necessary corrective measures.
ACB reviews/prepares RBIA policy, RBIA guideline and
annual audit plan for carrying out effective and adequate
internal audit work on yearly basis. ACB ensures Internal
Audit Department of the bank is performing in line with the
Internal Audit Policy of the Bank.

Apart from above, ACB also recommends names of three
auditors for appointment of external/statutory auditor to
the Board.

The ACB reports progress of audit activities undertaken
to the board, including but not limited to, minutes of its
meetings on quarterly basis and any matter relating to the
Bank's affair as deemed necessary.

The ACB along with IAD forms the overall Audit Function
vertical of the bank under the following structure:

of

Management

Internal Audit
Department (IAD)

Audit

Desk Office H/O

Regular Audit
Team
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ACB Meeting

During the FY 2081/82, total 13 meetings of Audit Committee
of the Board were conducted, and major highlights are as
follows:

« FortheFiscal Year 2081-82, based on evaluation matrix,
on merit basis 3 proposals were recommended to
the Board to place in the Annual General Meeting for
appointment of Statutory Auditor and AGM has selected
M/s N. Amatya & Co. as the Statutory Auditor for fiscal
year 2081-82.

+  Reviewed Statutory Audit report of FY 2081-82.

- Reviewed Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) onsite Inspection
Report of FY 2081/82.

« Approved Internal Audit Scope/Yearly Audit Plan for FY
2081-82.

«  Reviewed RBIA policy and approved from the Board.

«  Conducted Revenue Audit of Letter of Credit functions
from outsourced company M/s NBSM & Associates.

«  Reviewed 4 quarterly financial statement and Annual
financial statement of the Bank.

«  Reviewed RBIA report of 85 branches.

« Reviewed audit report of 13 Revenue Counters, 6 head
office functional departments/units, 28 LC audit and 4
special audits.

«  Appreciation letters were awarded to 27 Branches for
closing RBIA Report within stipulated time.

Internal Audit Department

The bank has inhouse Internal Audit Department consisting
of 12 staff members in the department. Internal Audit
Department follows Risk Based Internal Audit approach for
branch audit. In this approach, risk profile of every branch
is drawn based on the audit outcome and appropriate
attention / support is provided as per their profile.

Overall Performance of Internal Audit Department for the
fiscal year 2081-82 is as follows;

Audit Activity

Department has conducted audit of following offices during
the fiscal year.

S.No. | Audit Assignments Completed/Running
1 RBIA of Branches 85
2 HO Departments/Units Audit 6
3 Revenue Counter Audit 13
4 Letter of Credit Audit 28
5 Special Audit 4

Total 136

The Department conducted total 136 Audit and other
assignment. Besides Audit of branches, Departments and
Revenue Counter, 4 special assignments were conducted
by the department.
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RBIA/ Audit Report Status

Out of total Internal Audit performed in the branches, status
of report of the branches are as follows:

FY Total Branches | Report Closed Yet to

Audited close
2079/80 97 92 5
2080/81 94 74 20
2081/82 85 33 52
Total 276 199 77

Recovery of Revenue Leakage

Position of revenue leakage reported and recovered by the
department during the year is as follows:

Particulars On-Site LC Total Including LC
Regular F/Y 2081-2082
Audit

a. Reported 174.29 22.15 196.44

b. Recovered 165.56 10.83 176.39

c. Remaining 8.73 1.32 20.05

Other Activity

«  Review of Financial Statement as well as Unaudited
Quarterly Financial Statements of the Bank.

« Audit scope has been widened, Audit report quality,
report marking off procedure etc. has smoothened.

« Department also supervise NRB Inspection every
year. The whole process is well coordinated by the
Department.

« Semi-annual comprehensive report is prepared by
the Department and submitted to the board. Notes on
Quarterly financial statement is also provided by the
department to the board.

« The department has Implemented Audit software and
after implementation, efficiency of the department has
improved.

« Review of loans under Subsidized Loan and report
submitted to the management as per the requirement
of NRB.

Value addition

The Department has been supportive of the management
for continuous improvement of the processes and internal
control system of the bank. As third eye of the institution,
the department has shown various weaknesses in the
system, processes and suggested measures for continuous
improvement. Major value additions made by the department
during the year are as follows:

« Common and repetitive observations have been
reported to the management showing the areas for
improvement and suggesting focussing on those areas.
Further, based on the reports, various suggestions
were made by the department to the management so
that the existing system and process is customized to
accommodate the emerging threats and risks.

« Department has given special thrust to revenue
checking during the fiscal year and has achieved
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commendable success in the recovery/accountability
of possible revenue losses. Further, system was
streamlined to arrest possible revenue losses in future.

« The department has developed and implemented
Audit software which has improved efficiency of the
department and branches.

«  Special assignments were carried out during the year
for examining the existing internal control system and
reported to the management.

«  Functioning of the department was improved during
the period. System has been streamlined and made
more efficient.

2. AssetsLaundering Prevention
Committee (ALPC)

Assets Laundering Prevention Committee (ALPC) of the
Board has been constituted under the chairmanship of a
non-executive director in line with the provision of Unified
Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank. The Committee oversees
implementation of Assets (Money) Laundering Prevention Act,
2064, Assets (Money) Laundering Prevention Rules, 2081, NRB
Unified Directives and other legal and regulatory requirements
related to Know Your Customer/Anti-Money Laundering (KYC/
AML)and combating financing of Terrorism (CFT).

Member Details of ALPC
The members of the ALPC as at the end of fiscal year 2081-
2082 were as below:

1. Mr. Nabin Bhakta Shrestha(Director) | Chairman

2. Ms. Jamuna Tamrakar Member
Head-Risk Management Department

3. Mr. Nar Bahadur Rawal Member
Head-Compliance Department

4. Mr. Sunil Raj Khanal Member
Compliance Officer Secretary

Meeting Count

During the fiscal year 2081-2082, the Assets Laundering
Prevention Committee (ALPC) convened six official
meetings to discuss and advance its mandate of preventing
and monitoring activities related to asset laundering. These
meetings focused on policy formulation, periodic reviews,
ongoing monitoring of AML/CFT activities and improvement
of overall AML/CFT compliance program.

The meeting of the ALPC during fiscal year 2081-2082 were
held as below:

S.N.| Meeting Number | ALPC Date(BS) | ALPC Date(AD)
1 TtALPC 07.05.2081 (23-08-2024)
2 2 ALPC 27.05.2081 (12-09-2024)

3 3 ALPC 21.08.2081 (06.12.2024)

4 4 ALPC 01.11.2081 (13.02.2025)

5 5t ALPC 15.11.2081 (27.02.2025)

6 6" ALPC 12.02.2082 (26.05.2025)
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Major Agendas

The major agendas discussed in the meeting of Assets

Laundering Prevention Committee during FY 2081-082 are:

1. Annual Review and Revision of KYC/AML/CFT Policy of
Everest Bank Limited.

2. Annual Risk Assessment of Bank related to Money
Laundering and Financing of Terrorism.

3. Review and approval of Annual Program and Budget
for AML/CFT activities for Fiscal Year 2081/2082.

4. Action taken by Nepal Rastra Bank Supervision
Department to Commercial Banks for violation of KYC/
AML/CFT Act and Directives.

5. Quarterly report on Implementation status of KYC/
AML and CFT Framework of the Bank

6. Regular follow up with the branches for timely periodic
review and customer due diligence.

7. NRB provisions to combat the Trade Based Money
Laundering practices.

8. KYC/AML/CFT Training provided to the staffs for
capacity enhancement

9. Independent testing of ALM/CFT program on a half
yearly basis.

10. The Committee advised to issue the public service
information (PSI) on Money Mule, the emerging
typologies in financial sector, to aware the staffs
as well as general public so as to discourage the
customer being the victim of money mule in
coordination with Marketing Department in Nepalese
as well as local languages of that province i.e
Madhesh, Bagmati, where the bank has identified
comparatively higher number of money-mule related
cases. The Bank has aired the PSI on money-mule in
local languages (Bhojpuri, Maithili and Nepali) during
the period 25 Kartik 2081to 24 Mangsir, 2081(30 Days)
on FM radios from Pathibhara FM, Jhapa; Saptakoshi
FM, Sunsari; Radio Birgunj, Parsa; Radio Today,
Dhanusha; Bhaktapur FM, Bhaktapur; Image FM,
Kathmandu; Radio Janata, Kathmandu; Radio Thaha
Sanchar, Makwanpur; Annapurna FM, Kaski; Butwal
FM, Rupandehi; Radio Bheri FM, Surkhet; Dinesh FM,
Kailali and Radio Bajhang, Bajhang

1. Regarding the improvement of the learning session,
the Committee suggested exploring the training
in a Training-of-Trainer (TOT) model, where the
Compliance Department provides training for regional
managers. The regional managers then train their
branch managers, who in turn train their staff at the
branches. The Compliance Department, with the
coordination of the HR Department, is in the process
of the arrangement of TOT program in coordination
with NBI.

12.  The Committee advised to take necessary steps in
AML/CFT observations raised by NRB, MLPSD and
there should not be any laxity in the AML control
measures and compliance of regulatory and bank's
procedural guidelines. The Compliance Department
has issued advisory through Compliance Department
Circular No. 25 dated 23.12.2024 to the branches
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highlighting the observations and necessary
quidelines for the branches to stop the recurrence of
the same in future.

Recommendations of the Committee to the Board:

1. The Committee reviewed KYC and AML/CFT Policy of
Everest Bank Limited and recommended the same to
the board for approval.

2. The Committee reviewed and approved the Annual
Risk Assessment of Bank related to Money Laundering
and Financing of Terrorism and appraised the same to
the Board.

3. The Committee reviewed and approved the
Institutional and Sector-wise Risk Assessment of
Bank related to Money Laundering and Financing of
Terrorism and apprised the same to the Board.

4. The Committee reviewed and decided to place the
Annual Program and Budget for AML/CFT activities
for Fiscal year 2081/2082 to the Board for approval.

5. The Committee reviewed and approved the Final
Replies of the Onsite AML/CFT Inspection Report
conducted by NRB, MLPSD and appraised the same to
the Board.

Centralized Account Block and Release Mechanism
Effective from 6 December 2024, the AML/CFT Unit under
the Compliance Department has started a centralized
system for blocking and releasing bank accounts based on
requests from various Law Enforcement Agencies (LEAs)
and the request received through Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB)
portal (URL https://acstatus.nrb.org.np).

This initiative aims to mitigate compliance risks and ensure
timely, consistent handling of account restrictions.

Types of Account Actions Handled Centrally:

1. Definite Account Block Release - Where the given
account is blocked/released as per instructions.

2.  Partial Account Block Release - Where only a portion
of the account balance is blocked/released as per
instructions.

3. Complete Account Block Release - Full block/release
of account restrictions after verification through:

- Core Banking System (CBS)
. Data Management System (DMS)

This centralized approach enhances transparency,
accountability and regulatory compliance in line with AML/
CFT obligations.
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3. Human Resource Management Committee
(HRMC)

Human Resource Management Committee has been
constituted under NRB Directive which governs policieslevel
plans, manuals, directions and amendments pertaining to
human resource aspects of the Bank. The main objective of
HRMC is to formulate Human Resource strategies, policies
and planning and provide congenial working environment
at the bank. It also recommends and provides suggestions
to the management and Board whenever required. The
composition of HRMC is as under:

Composition:

1. Tarak Bahadur K.C., Ph.D. Chairperson
(Independent Director)

2. Mr. Nabin Bhakta Shrestha, Director Member

3. Chief Executive Officer Member

4. Head - Human Resource Department Member

Secretary

5. Head - Finance Department Member

Responsibilities:

. HR Planning: Review the existing human resource

position of the Bank. Suggest management to
forecast future HR requirement as per corporate
strategies and business/expansion plan of the Bank.
Also, suggest management for optimization of staff
on the basis of branch categorization, horizontal and
vertical expansion requirement of the bank.

. Recruitment and Selection: Suggest management
to prepare the parameters relating to recruitment,
selection, appointment, placement, transfer,
promotion, skills development and submit to the
Board for approval.

. Performance Appraisal: Review the exiting promotion
policy and performance appraisal system of the Bank
by setting up the performance standard guidelines
to meet the productivity target of the bank and
recommend any changes for approval to the BOD.

. Career Development: Suggest management to
prepare career development plans and placement of
employee as per need of the Bank.

. Remuneration and Benefits: Review employee
remuneration and benefits, which may arise due
to various factors viz. changes in the structure of
remuneration in the industry, inflation etc.

. Training and Development: Review the training
policies and programs of the bank prepared by the
management to ensure increase in knowledge level,
skillsand changes in attitude of employees to improve
their performance level.
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. Organization Structure: HRMC provides guidelines
for preparing organization structure of the Bank
and recommend changes to the Board as and when
necessary. Also submit to the Borad the policies and
procedures relating to succession planning of all
employees/overall management level prepared by the
management in due course.

4. Risk Management Committee (RMC)

i) Risk Management Committee (RMC) is board level
committee chaired by Board of Director having overall
responsibility for managing the overall risk of the bank.
The committee supports the board in formulating
risk strategy policies, including risk tolerance and
appetite levels as per requirement in line with Nepal
Rastra Bank directives and other statutory bodies/
authorities. The meeting of the committee is being
conducted at least once in a quarter and as and when
required. The proceedings of the meetings and the
key reports discussed in the committee are placed
to Board. During FY 2081/82, 10 RMC meetings were
conducted in FY 2081/82.

The Composition of RMC of the bank is given here under:

Mr. Kiran Krishna Shrestha, Director Chairman

Ms. Urmila Shrestha, Director Ex-Officio
Member

Mr. Raj Kumar Shakya Member

Head-Operation Department

Ms. Jamuna Tamrakar Member

Chief Risk Officer Secretary

There are four management level sub-committees under
the RMC:

a.  Asset Liability Committee (ALCO)

b.  Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC)

c.  Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC)
d.  Information System Security Committee (ISSC)
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Responsibilities

Overall responsibility of formulating and reviewing
policies, guidelines, and procedures for managing
various risks, based on policies and guidelines as
issued by NRB and other statutory authorities.
Implementation of an Integrated Risk Management
System to facilitate efficient capital allocation,
optimize risk return portfolio and maintains adequate
liquidity to ensure financial stability and resilience.
Recommendation for approval of risk appetite and
tolerance limit to Board in order to achieve defined
risk strategies and risk goals consistent with bank’s
capital, liquidity and other requirements.

Review adequacy and effectiveness of developed
strategies, policies and guidelines along with risk
appetite and tolerance limit for the management of
inherent risks associated with business activities and
implementation of best risk management practices.
Assessment of risks through various reports like
Stress Testing, Credit Concentration, Industry
Analysis and placing recommendation to the board
for formulating requisite policy and decision making
process as a precautionary measures, as and when
necessary.

Analyzing the adequacy of Capital through Internal
Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP), in
consonance with business strategy and risk tolerance
of the bank and placing the report/recommendation
to the Board.

Recommend board for approval and review of the
various product papers.

Approve, review & validate existing credit rating model
with information to the Board.
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Risk
Management

Everest Bank focuses on risk management practices
that facilitate efficient capital allocation, optimize
risk return portfolio and maintains adequate liquidity
to ensure financial stability for sustainability and
resilience against the pace of evolving challenges.
Further, the bank has established sound Risk
Management System through proper structures,
rules, processes, and mechanisms which enable to
identify, assess, measure, monitor and mitigate the
inherent risk in the bank.
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1. DIMENSION OF RISK MANAGEMENT

1.1 Risk Management Organization Structure
Everest Bank has separate and Independent Vertical for Risk Management as presented in following Organization Structure
with clearly defined roles of responsibilities.

Risk Management Organization Structure

1.2 Risk Governance Structure
Therisk governance structure adopted by the bankis based on three lines of defense model whereby each functionimplements
the necessary measures to minimize potential risk or loss to the bank:

THREE LINES OF DEFENSE MODEL FOR RISK MANAGEMENT)
(A

A
« Branches
« Extension Counters
« Province Offices
« HO Departments
e

First Line of Defense: Business Functions
Second Line of Defense: Risk Management and Compliance
Monitor and ensure all business functions are operating in accordance with risk management
policies and standard operating procedures that have been established by the bank.

Ensures the conductive control environment throughout their
Third Line of Defense: Internal Audits
Conducts internal audit of the branches and departments on regular interval, depending
upon the level of risk under which the branches fall.

respective business functions, in the decisions and actions
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1.3 Risk Appetite

The bank has set aggregate level and threshold limit for various types of risks that it is willing to undertake or seeks to avoid, in
order to achieve defined risk strategies and risk goals consistent with applicable capital, liquidity and other requirements. The
Board has approved risk appetite of the bank within the ceiling of regulator, which is guiding risk-taking decisions & reinforcing
risk culture in the bank. The risk appetite is periodically reviewed & updated in line with the bank’s objectives, evolving industry
and market conditions so that established limits are aligned with overall governance and appropriate counter measures are
taken on time.

1.4 Risk Culture

The bank has implemented comprehensive framework for managing risk, which includes a defined range of acceptable risks,
as quided by risk appetite and specific risk limits which is aligned with the bank’s strategic objectives, thereby, reinforcing
the development of risk culture that priorities risk management. Further, the bank is continuously focusing on shaping and
strengthening risk culture throughout the organization by establishing commitment to risk management that is focused
on building risk awareness & communication that cascades down to employees at all levels to have sense of ownership &
responsibility for risk management. Documented policies and procedures, clear & transparent communication of roles and
responsibilities, & regular training & review programs are reinforced to strive towards incorporating effective risk management
culture across all levels in the organization.

1.5 Risk Management Procedure
Bank follows a structured risk management process through risk identification, assessment, measurement, mitigation,
monitoring, and governance to manage potential threats and enhance operational resilience in banking proactively.

Identification of the nature & sources of
risks as well as areas of their impacts 01

and potential consequences in the Risk
bank's business, process and system. Identification
Analysis of the potential impact and
02 likelihood of each identified risks
Risk through qualitative and quantitative
. methods
Analysis
Comparison of various risk identified
during the analysis process with the
bank's risk appetite, risk tolerance level 03
and requlatory limits and make decisions Risk
on the need and priority basis. Evaluation
04 Designing and implementing
Risk appropriate & adequate risk control
I . mechanisms that mitigates the
Mitigation jcntified risks
and
Control
Continuous monitoring & review of 05
the effectiveness of the risk Risk
mitigation & control process.  Monitoring
and Review
06
Risk
Reporting
) ) 07
Preparation of Actin Plan for control Prepare
and mitigation of the risks as well as “Action Plan”
track the progress of such actions.
° and Track the
Action
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2. RISKMANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The risk management framework includes risk management
policies, procedures, risk limits and control measures along
with boards’ active oversight, well defined organizational
setup as well as defined designation of authority along
with defined roles and responsibilities. The bank has also
developed tools and processes as well as formulated
policies for each risk area.

Risk Management Framework is supervised by Risk
Management Committee (RMC), a subcommittee of Board
and supported by management level committees namely
Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC)and Operational
Risk Management Committee (ORMC) along with Asset and
Liability Management Committee (ALCO). Further, banks
have separate Risk Management Department for identifying,
assessing, managing, mitigating and controlling different
kinds of risk.

3. ACTIVE BOARD AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT OVERSIGHT

The Board of directors has ultimate responsibility for the
risks taken by the Bank. They formulate risk policies and
risk strategies as well as fix risk appetite to ensure that
it is reflected in business strategies that are cascaded
throughout the organization. They are responsible for
understanding the nature of risks significant to the
institution and for ensuring that management is taking
necessary steps to implement those strategies and manage
accompanying risks.

While the overall responsibility for risk management is
recognized to rest with the board of directors, senior
management is responsible for transforming the strategies
into policies, procedures, and processes and implementing
the same for effective risk management.

4. RISKMANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT(S)
AND VARIOUS COMMITTEES

Bank has independent Risk Management Department for
identification, assessment, monitoring, and mitigating
various types of risk. The department has four functional
vertical units: Credit Risk vertical, Market Risk vertical,
Operational Risk vertical and Information Security Risk
vertical for
overseeing each
key risk area. The
department is
headed by Chief
Risk Officer (CRO)
whoisresponsible
for cultivating
risk culture in the
organization and
implementing the
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policies approved by the board in the bank. The functions
and responsibilities of RMC and its sub-committees are
presented below.

i) Risk Management Committee (RMC) is a 4-member
board level committee chaired by Board of directors
having overall responsibility for evaluating and
managing the overall risk of the bank. The meeting of
the committee is being conducted at least once in a
quarter or as & when required and the proceedings of
the meeting are placed in Board. Altogether, 10 RMC
meetings were conducted in FY 2081/82.

ii)  Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) is a management
level subcommittee chaired by CEO, which is
entrusted with the work of taking all policy decisions
related to market and liquidity risk. The committee
is responsible for pricing of assets and liabilities and
short/long term strategic decision on balance sheet
of the bank. The proceedings of the meetings are
quarterly placed to the Board through RMC. Altogether
24 ALCO meetings were conducted in FY 2081/82.

iii) Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC) is a
management level subcommittee chaired by DCEO
which is entrusted with the work of taking all policy
decisions related to credit risk. This committee is
empowered to oversee credit risk and overall credit
risk management function with implementation of
credit risk policy/strategy approved by Board. The
proceedings of the committee are reqularly placed to
RMC. Altogether 5 CRMC meetings were conducted in
FY 2081/82.

iv) Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC) is
a management level subcommittee chaired by DGM
which is commended with the work of implementing
policy/strategies for Operational Risk management.
The Committee is responsible for establishing,
maintaining and reviewing procedures on product
and services at operational and management level
to identify, monitor and mitigate Operational Risk
in accordance with the bank's risk oversight and
management policies. The proceedings of the ORMC
are placed to Risk Management Committee (RMC).
Altogether 10 ORMC meetings were conducted in FY
2081/82.

v) Information System Security Committee (ISSC) is a
subcommittee chaired by DCEO which is entrusted
for discussing information security initiatives and
providing strategic direction to the Bank's Information
System to protect the bank from risk associated. The
committee is responsible for providing oversight into
the development of information security, identifying
gaps and areas for improvement, and ensuring the
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necessary provisions are in place for the ongoing
protection of IT resources. The proceedings of the
committee are regularly placed to RMC. Altogether 4
ISSC meetings were conducted in FY 2081/82.

5. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

Bank has formulated policies and procedures, book of
instructions as well as operational instructions, etc.
approved by Board which directs/ supplements the risk
management framework. All the policies are reviewed on
yearly basis or as and when required. Different circulars are
also issued time and again to implement changes made by
regulators, to improve internal control system, to enhance
banks’ operational processes etc. Additionally, the bank
has defined clear roles of each functional/ business unit to
make the process simple and robust.

6. INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal Audit Department and Compliance Department
have been reinforcing on the effective implementation of
laid down Policies and Procedure for better Internal Control
System. Bank is having robust control structures with well-
defined control activities at every business level. Duties of
officials and staff members are properly defined at all levels
to avoid conflicting responsibilities. Code of Ethics and
Conflict of Interest Policy for Board of Directors as well as
Code of Conduct under Staff bylaws are in place. These laid
down systems are being monitored & reviewed periodically
to minimize Operational Risk at all levels.

Internal Audit Department independently evaluates the
adequacy and compliance of the bank's established
quidelines for internal control systems. Risk Based Internal
Audit (RBIA) of the branches is being followed. IT/ System
Audit is being conducted as per guidelines from expert
external agency. Further, Vulnerability Assessment and
Penetration Testing (VAPT) is also conducted to identify
existing vulnerabilities and areas for improvement in a
timely manner.

7. MONITORING AND REPORTING

Bank has developed and continuously improving the
robust MIS system that provides a reliable database for
identification, measuring, controlling, monitoring and
mitigating risk in all aspects of the bank.

Further, the department has been monitoring overall risk
that arise during regular course of business operation on
regular basis and ensures the limits are within regulatory
threshold and internal appetite. Similarly, various reports
are prepared on daily, monthly and quarterly basis and
submitted to Senior Management and the Board through
RMC and CRMC/ORMC/ISSC reflecting the present status of
the bank's risk and indicating how well the bank is managing
risk. The reports highlight instances for breaches of any
internal or external guidelines, circulars, procedures and
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limits along with any obligations arising for non-compliance
of same if any and submit the recommendations to mitigate
the identified and probable risk.

Risk Management Divisions of the bank
The bank's Integrated Risk Management Department
oversees the comprehensive management of various key
risk areas including credit, operational, market, information
security and environmental risks.

RESPONSIBILITY

Oversee the credit risk management function through setting
credit risk appetites, implementation of internal rating system
ensuring adherence and other aspects of credit portfolio
management.

Oversee identification and mitigation of operational risk resulting
from internal processes, system, external events or human errors.
Manage the risks resulting from the fluctuations of the market
variables like interest rates, foreign exchange rates & equity prices.
Oversees bank's information security risk against cyber and
technology threats.

Risk Management Divisions
Credit Risk

Operational Risk

Market Risk

Information Security Risk

Credit Risk Management

The bank’s credit risk management system covers risk
assessment, identification & measurement of credit risk at
the borrower level and portfolio level. The bank has in place
the policy to quide Credit as well as Credit Risk Management
function which is reviewed on annual basis. Proper
credit delivery channels are built for maintaining sound
credit portfolio, such as credit risk assessment, credit
facility assessment, analysis, approval, disbursement,
administration, monitoring and reporting.

A separate Credit vertical at Head Office, Regional Office
and Branches is established for assessment of borrowers,
settingappropriatecreditlimitsandimplementingstrategies
to mitigate potential losses through diversification and
collateral management.

Bank has Independent Credit Risk Management Division
operating under Integrated Risk Management Department
for identification, assessment and monitoring risk through
development and implementation of risk rating models
for the borrowers and separate models for determining
exposure limits for both domestic as well as international
counterparties. As of Ashad end 2082, the Risk Weighted
Exposure for Credit Risk was 92.29% of the total Risk
Weighted Exposures amounting to Rs. 24,895.25 million.
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Risk Type

Key Risk

Risk Assessment

Risk Control, Mitigation and Monitoring

Borrower Risk

¢ Default Risk

¢ Detailed Credit Analysis
+ Borrower credit risk
rating

* & & & o o

Loan covenants; Terms and conditions
inthe loan agreement

Insurance of financed assets
Mortgage/registration of Assets

Loan Pricing in reference to risk rating
Personal/Corporate Guarantee
Tracking Early Warning Signals

Timely monitoring & evaluation of
borrowers through visits and review
reports.

¢ Environmental, Social
and Climate Risk

¢ Environmental and
Social Due Diligence
(ESDD)

Periodic Monitoring and review

Counterparty
Risk

¢ Default Risk

+ Determination of ¢ Periodic review of the exposure limits.
exposure limits for both ¢ Monitoring of exposure limit.
domestic and

international
counterparties

Portfolio Risk

+ Concentration Risk

¢ Credit Concentration

Diversification into different

Report

sectors/categories
¢ Determininginternal risk appetite
¢ Risk Sharing through banking
arrangement

¢ Breach of regulatory
ceiling

¢ Impact on key
financial indicators

+ Gap Analysis
+ Stress Testing

¢ Monitoring of risk appetite assetinterms
of CAR, Credit Risk Weighted asset

+ Allocation of capital on the basis of bank's
risk profile of exposure

Environmental and Social Risk
The bank has defined Environment and Social risk
Management System which consists of a policy, guidelines
tools and internal capacity to identify, appraise, manage and
monitor exposure to the environment, social and climate
risks of its clients’ operations.

Aseparate focal personinthedivision hasbeenentrusted for
identification, assessment & management of Environment
and Social Risk inherent in the client’s business transaction
in accordance with the NRB's guidelines on Environment
and Social Risk Management.

Operational Risk Management

Operational Risk Management Policy is the guided document
for managing Operational Risk at the bank. Besides, different
frameworks have been developed to collect risk event/loss
data due to Operational Risk events, identify and assess
Operational Risk in various activities/services and products
for better management and mitigation of Operational Risk.

The bank has implemented a robust risk identification
process. Inherent risk in the activities, processes, system
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and the products are being identified and assessed
through Loss events/data reporting, Risk & Control Self-
Assessment, Key Risk Indicators, Scenario Analysis as well
as through historical data analysis of Risk Based Internal
Audit Reports and any other information. To enhance
Operational Risk Management, bank is operating a separate
application Operation Risk Management System (ORMS).
All loss risk events reported and recorded are classified
under Basel Event Type Level | & Il and mapped with 6 Basel
Business lines(Level I).

Besides experience, judgment, intuition, linked events and
regulatory requirement are also being considered for risk
identification. A separate "Product Committee” is in place
to assess the risk in products and process. Likewise, “24/7
Customer Care Center” at HO is in operation for collecting
and handling feedback, grievances and complaints of
customers. Further, Bank has focused on automation/
digitalization of work process to facilitate operational
activities in order to minimize the risk.

As of Ashad end 2082, the Risk Weighted Exposure for
Operational Risk was 4.36% of the total Risk Weighted
Exposures amounting to Rs. 1,176.67 million.
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INTERNAL EXTERNAL
PROCESSES EVENTS
PEOPLE SYSTEMS

Bank has adopted various measures to control and mitigate the risks arising from People, Process, System and External events
as under:

Sources of Key Risk Risk Mitigation and Monitoring
Risk
People ¢ Human Error ¢ Provide Trainings and inculcate risk culture
(Employee) ¢ Fraud ¢+ Delegation of authorities
¢ Lack of Training ¢ Segregation of duties

¢ High Employee Turnover ¢ Job Rotation

¢ Annual performance appraisal

¢ Enrollmentinto comprehensive certification banking course
¢ Reconciliation to prevent discrepancies

Process ¢ Insufficiency of Process ¢ Periodic review of the SOP in line with the evolving risks.
¢ Lack of control ¢ Periodic Internal Audit
¢ Unclear procedure ¢ Whistle blower culture
¢ Breach of process ¢ Legal & compliance review of product and processes
¢ Automation process for smooth workflow
System ¢ Breach of Confidentiality, | ¢ Use of Globally accepted Core Banking application

Integrity, Availability, | ¢ Strong Network Resilience

Non-Repudiation and | ¢ Secure Back up system

Authentication ¢ Periodic IS Audit and Vulnerability Assessment from independent
professionals

¢ Enhanced Cyber security System & tools

¢ Implementation of enhanced access control

¢ Separate Information Security team is operating to identify, assess
and mitigate IT risks

External ¢ Electricity Disruption ¢ Alternate energy sources in place
Events ¢ ISP Disruption ¢+ Circulation of Advisories for internal/public awareness as a proactive
¢ Legal Cases measure
¢ Cyber attacks ¢ Provide reqular Trainings
¢ Natural Calamities ¢ Conduct Disaster drill
¢ Requlatory Changes ¢ Insurance Coverage
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The bank has been implementing appropriate procedures
to address and control the legal risk that may arise, through
legal documents/agreements and dealing with lawsuits
on behalf of the bank, if any, as well as monitoring any
contingent liabilities arising due to legal risk. In case of
rise in legal and other risks, the stakeholders can have
a negative perception regarding the bank, increasing
the reputational risk. The Bank has been implementing
strong governance, compliance with regulatory guidelines,
minimizing operational failure, handling grievances properly
and reviewing emerging risks within the banking industry for
management of reputational risk.

Market Risk Management

Market risk refers to the potential for financial losses
resulting from adverse movement in market variables,
which may diminish the value of both on-balance sheet and
off-balance sheet assets of the bank. Market risk arises in
various forms such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risks. The Bank is exposed to market
risk mainly through its treasury operations, investment
portfolio, and the provision of customized products and
services to customers. As of Ashad end 2082, the Risk
Weighted Exposure for Market Risk was 0.42% of the total
Risk Weighted Exposures amounting to Rs. 113.84 million.

Bank has established and implemented “Asset Liability
Management Policy” and “Investment Policy” aligned
with regulatory guidelines issued by Nepal Rastra Bank
(NRB) which is reviewed annually to effectively manage
and mitigate market risk. The policy outlines risk limits,
valuation methodologies, and monitoring mechanisms.
Market Risk Management function of the bank is carried
out by dedicated Market Risk Management Division which
functions as the Treasury Middle Office.

The division regularly monitors exposures based on limit
set up by NRB, encompassing regulatory requirements,
prudential ceilings and internal thresholds related to
liquidity and market risk. Furthermore, as a part of control
mechanism, the division conduct daily monitoring of
transactions executed by treasury department. Daily
surveillance serves as a preventive measure to identify
any unusual or unauthorized transactions promptly and
to maintain integrity. Besides, division also evaluates
sensitivity of Bank's portfolio to changes in market
conditions using tools such as stress tests or scenario
analysis on quarterly as well as on need basis in order to
identify and quantify banks exposures to possible future
liquidity stresses, analyzing possible impacts of an event
or series of events on the bank’s liquidity position, capital
position, cash flow and solvency. In addition, the division is
also conducting various analyses as per requirements.

Components of Market Risk:
a) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the possibility of losing the
ability to fund assets or to meet obligations as they
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come due without incurring unacceptable costs or
losses. The prudent management of liquidity remains
a critical focus area due to increasing complexity of
the financial environment and competition in the
domestic banking sector. The bank has Contingency
funding plans in place to address unforeseen liquidity
stress scenarios.

The division monitors liquidity position, maintenance
of liquidity buffer and adherence to regulatory
liquidity ratios such as Cash Reserve Ratio, Statutory
Liquidity Ratio, Credit to Deposit Ratio, Liquid Asset
to Deposit Ratio, non-deliverable forward (NDF), total
institutional deposits and single institutional deposits
etc. The division monitors these ratios on daily basis to
ensure that NRB stipulated limit and internal appetite
are not breached.

The division performs Net Liquidity Gap analysis
(maturity wise structural liquidity table) on monthly
basis to assess the gap between inflows and outflows
over various time buckets which helps identify
potential liquidity stress points and take preemptive
corrective actions.

Liquidity stress testing is conducted periodically
(quarterly and on required basis)to evaluate the Bank’s
ability to withstand adverse scenarios, and the results
inform contingency planning and strategic decision-
making.

To reduce reliance on a single source of funding,
the bank actively diversifies its funding base across
customer deposits, interbank borrowings, and other
instruments so as to minimize concentration risk and
enhance funding stability.

The Bank has developed a robust Contingency
Funding Plan, which outlines the early warning signals,
the strategies and actionable steps to be taken to
address early warning signals including identification
of emergency/potential funding sources, roles and
responsibilities, and communication protocols.

Moreover, the Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) plays
a vital role in overseeing liquidity risk management,
ensuring optimal maturity profiling of assets and
liabilities, and proactively addressing potential
mismatches as it is the main factor of liquidity risk
origination. ALCO ensures that the Bank operates
within its defined liquidity risk appetite and responds
proactively to emerging risks.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk refers to the vulnerability of banks'
financial position to unfavorable fluctuations in
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interest rates. Such changes can impact both the
earnings and the market value of assets, liabilities,
and off-balance-sheet exposures.

Interest rate gap analysis of Rate Sensitive Assets
(RSA)and Rate Sensitive Liabilities (RSL)is performed
on monthly basis, which measures mismatches
between interest rate-sensitive assets and liabilities
across various time buckets. This helps identify
periods where the bank is most vulnerable to rate
movements, the impact of change in Interest Rate on
its assets and liabilities.

The Asset-Liability Committee (ALCO) plays a key
role in managing interest rate risk. ALCO reviews
interest rate trends, changes in interest rates
of the industry and peer banks, future liquidity
scenarios and its impact on earning and spread and
recommends appropriate strategies to manage re-
pricing and duration mismatches. The committee also
ensures that the interest rates on different product
as prescribed by the Nepal Rastra Bank has been
adhered.

c)

Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk, also known as currency risk,
refers to the potential for financial losses due to
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates which
arise when banks hold assets, liabilities, or conduct
transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Market Risk Management Division/ Treasury Middle
Office monitors foreign exchange positions against
internalandregulatorylimitsondaily basis, with oversight
from ALCO(Asset-Liability Committee). Division ensures
that NRB guideline on permissible net open position limit
is adhered. The division has set various risk appetite
related to Foreign Exchange Risk such as Net Open FCY
Position and Non-Deliverable Forward (NDF) exposure.
The bank endeavors to match foreign currency assets
and liabilities to reduce net exposure. Currency limit has
been set to avoid over-concentration in a single foreign
currency to reduce volatility impact which is monitored
on daily basis. The division also con ducts reqgular stress
tests to assess potential losses under adverse currency
movement scenarios.

Key Risk

Risk Assessment

Risk Control, Mitigation and
Monitoring

Governance Oversight by ALCO, RMC

4 Rapid asset growth, especially when
funded with portable volatile liabilities

4 Significant negative gap of net
cumulative financial assets

¢ Decrease in the weighted average
maturity of liabilities

4 Gap Analysis
4 Structural liquidity assessment

4 Breach of requlatory ceiling in terms of
ratios

4 Ratio Analysis

¢ Mismatch in interest rate sensitive
assets and liabilities

¢ Interest rate gap analysis of rate
sensitive assets and liabilities

4 Growing concentration in assets and
Liabilities

4 Increasing retail/wholesale deposit
outflows

4 Increase in off-balance sheet

products

4 Concentration Analysis
4 Exposure Analysis

4 Negative outcome of stress testing

4 Stress Testing

4 Stock price declines or rising debt
costs

4 Mark to Market Analysis

4 Uncovered FCY Open Position

4 Open Position Approach
4 Currency limit

4 Changes in economic conditions

4 Analysis of current market
scenario and liquidity position

& Board

4 Liquidity Planning

4 Monitoring and reporting of ratio,
limit, exposures

4 Setting Internal Risk Models &
internal appetite

4 Maintenance of Regulatory Liquidity
Standards

¢ Stress testing and integration into
ICAAP

¢ Funding source diversification

4 Capital Planning & Buffers

4 Analysis of portfolio

¢ Mark to market reports

4 Match foreign exchange
assets/liabilities

¢ Early warning indicators

4 Contingency Funding Plans

4 On/0Off-site Monitoring & Supervision
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Information system of the bank is continuously upgrading and in place to match with the increasing digital avenues as well as
to arrest cyber and technology threat to the bank. The bank has formulated Information Security (IS) Policy in line with the IT
Guidelines, Cyber Resilience Guidelines, Payment System Directive, ISO 27001:2022, and NIST CSF framework as applicable.
The bank follows a standard procedure for identifying and mitigating the information security risk.

Governance

Identification

Information Security Procedure Adopted by Bank

Information Security Governance

The Information System Security Committee (ISSC) has been
formed to discuss information security initiatives and provide
strategic direction to the bank's information system, and
the Change Advisory Board (CAB), is also in place to discuss
and approve the major changes in the IT infrastructure.
Information security team is working as an internal resource
team for handling information security issues and preparing
necessary policies, procedures, and guidelines related to
IT security. Team has been facilitating and conducting risk
assessments of information system assets used and has
been recommending mitigation controls.

Information Security Risk Management
The bank has implemented robust security systems to
manage the external and internal information security risk.
Reqular Vulnerability Assessment and Penetration Testing
(VAPT) is conducted to identify existing vulnerabilities
and areas for improvement in a timely manner which are
addressed at the early possible. The VAPTs and IS Audits
are carried out on demand basis also whenever there is a
major change in an application that impacts information
security or when an application is planned for production
deployment. Besides, Risk Management Department
performs self-assessment to identify the gaps and areas for
improvement on different controls placed in the bank and
has been providing necessary recommendations in the form
of monthly reports.
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Awareness on Proper Information
Security Practices

To strengthen the human aspect of information security
and minimize the associated risk, the bank has conducted
a comprehensive awareness program targeting both
internal and external stakeholders. Employees are regularly
engaged through physical sessions, virtual trainings, and
email communications to increase information security
awareness behavior. Similarly, external stakeholders are
informed and guided on safe practices through clearly
communicated security templates on the bank's website
and social media channels, promoting a culture of shared
responsibility in safeguarding information.

Continuous Monitoring

Toenhance detection of anomaliesand potential threats, the
Bank has deployed a modern SIEM system integrated with a
Security Operations Center (SOC) to monitor and respond
to adverse events. Additionally, a Digital Risk Management
tool tracks customer information leaks, detects phishing or
fake sites/apps using the Bank's intellectual property, and
identifies vulnerabilities in public-facing systems, enabling
proactive threat monitoring and mitigation.
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Incident Response and Recovery

To strengthen the incident response and recovery process, the bank has developed internal communication processes and
Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) to contain incidents and enable immediate recovery. Similarly, internal Business
Continuity Plans (BCPs) and Disaster Recovery Plans (DRPs) facilitate the bank in recovering its critical business functions
during severe incidents.

Key Risk

Risk Assessment

Risk Mitigation and Monitoring

Cybersecurity
Risk

1. Review of internal and external controls
to preserve confidentiality, integrity,
and availability through regular
assessments.

2. Conduct reqgular Vulnerability
Assessments and Penetration Testing
(VAPT).

1. Strong governance and insights from the Board, Risk
Management Committee, Information System
Security Committee, and senior management.

2. Implementation of strong ICT controls and multi-
layered security controls

3. Training employees on cybersecurity best practices.

4. Implementation of Next Generation SIEM and 24x7
Security Operations Center (SOC).

5. Implementation of external cybersecurity and digital
risk protection platform.

Compliance and
Regulatory Risk

1. Internal and external audits.
2. Regularreview of ICT practices

1. Follow-up and closure of Audit Observations.

Network and
Infrastructure
Risk

1. Identification of single points of failure in
the network and infrastructure.

2. Review of internal network and
infrastructure capacity reports.

1. Implementation of robust network and infrastructure
monitoring tools.

2. Increase in network and infrastructure capacity and
implementation of redundant systems and sites to
eliminate bottlenecks and single points of failure.

Software and
Application Risk

1. Review the security of applications and
software on a regular basis.

2. Identify vulnerabilities in software and
applications.

1. Conduct reqular security patching and updates on all
applications and software.

2. Implementation of secure software development
practices.

3. Implementation of a Web Application Firewall (WAF)
to protect against application-layer attacks.

Technology
Obsolescence
Risk

1. Evaluate the compatibility and
supportability of current IT infrastructure
and software.

2. Assess the potential impact of outdated
systems on security and operational
efficiency.

1. Development and execution of internal plans to
refresh obsolete hardware and software.

2. Assessand invest in emerging technologies to
support business needs.

3. Implementation of compensating controls where
immediate replacement is not possible.

Social
Engineering Risk

1. Evaluate the knowledge against social
engineering attacks through controlled
Phishing Simulations.

1. Implementation of a comprehensive information
security awareness training program for all
employees, new recruits, and knowledge-sharing
templates, messages and videos for customers.

Compliance Risk

Compliance risk is the current and prospective risk to earnings or capital arising from violations of or non conformance with
laws, rules, regulations and prescribed practices and it exposes the bank to fines, penalties and payment of damages etc. The
bank has a separate department “Compliance” which oversees the compliance function and the risk associated with it of the
bank and develops the policies, guidelines for its mitigation upon approval of the board.
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22.38%

m Agricultural and Forest Related

M Agriculture, Forestry & Bevarage
Production Related

H Construction
m Consumption Loans
H Fishery Related

® Finance, Insurance and Real
Estate

N Local Government

m Metal Products, Machinary &
Electronic Equipment &
Assemblage

H Non-food Production Related

H Mining Related

m Other Services

H Others

m Power, Gas and Water
Tourism Service

B Transport, Communication and
Public Utilities

Wholesaler & Retailer

Productwise Credit Concentration of Bank

Other Retails

Bills Purchased

FDR Loan / NSB

Hire Purchase Loan
Share Loan

Flexi OD/Personal Loan
Education Loan

Real Estate Loan
Deprived Sector Loan
Housing Loan

Term Loan

0.05%
| 0.31%
o 0.89%
N 1.44%
m 1.54%
e 1.84%
o 261%
e 3.16%
e 4.83%
P 10.88%

T 31.15%

Working capital (CC/TR/DL/PWC) I, 41.31%

0.00%  5.00%  10.00% 15.00% 20.00% 25.00% 30.00% 35.00% 40.00% 45.00%  50.00%
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Disclosure of Compliance Risk Reporting

Compliance with Regulatory Parameters

REGULATORY PARAMETERS REGULATORY TARGET AS AT ASHADH END, 2082
Minimum Capital Fund Core Capital =8.5% 10.44%
Capital Fund =11.00% 13.17%
Leverage Ratio 4% 6.00%
Net Liquidity Ratio Minimum 20% 38.94%
Liquidity Coverage ratio (LCR) Minimum 70% 163.55
Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) Minimum 100% 135.64
Margin Lending Up to 40% of Core Capital 12.30
Real Estate Loan Up to 25% of Total Loan 14.04
Other Real Estate (Including Land Purchase & Plotting) Up to 10% of Total Loan 1.71
Daily Net Position of Foreign Exchange Maximum 30% of Core Capital 8.82
Credit to Deposit Ratio Upto90% 77.48
Invest in Share/Securities/Mutual Funds of any one corporate body Up to 10% of Core Capital 0.27%
Up to 10% of paid-up capital of that 10%
particular corporate body
Total investment in Share/Securities Up to 30% of Core Capital 1.05%
Investment in Company with Financial Interest Up to 20% of Core Capital 0.19%
CRR 4% of Total Deposit/90% to be maintainedin | 4.39
Daily Basis
SLR 12% of LCY Deposit 32.12
Interest Spread Rate 4% 3.48
Difference in interest rate of saving accounts Maximum 2% 0.05
Difference in interest rate (highest and lowest between deposit accounts) Maximum 5% 3.55
Limits for Institutional Deposit Collection Up to 50% of Total Deposit 43.73%
Limit for Call Account Maximum 10% of LCY Deposit 1.79%
Debenture Issuance (in %) Minimum 25% of Paid-up Capital 51.01%
Deprived Sector At least 5% of Total Lending 5.03%
Prescribed Sector Lending - Agriculture 11% of Total Loan by Ashad end 2082 13.01
Prescribed sector - Hydropower, Energy 7% of Total Loan by Ashad end 2082 8.50
Prescribed sector - SME (Up to 10 million) 11% of Total Loan by Ashad end 2082 9.36
Except Agriculture
Disclosure of Liquidity Risk Reporting
Resource Mobilization
PARTICULARS REGULATORY ASHADH ASHADH ASHADH
REQUIREMENTS END 2082 END 2081 END 2080
CD Ratio (%) Maximum 90 77.48% 80.29% 82.32%
LD Ratio (%) Minimum 20 38.94% 31.77% 33.23%
CRR(%) Minimum 4% 4.39% 4.56% 4.20%
% of Top 20 Individual Depositors to Total Deposit Not Specified 2.66% 3.21% 3.28%
% of Top 20 Institutional Depositors to Total Deposit Not Specified 32.84% 26.79% 20.7M%
% of Top Single Institutional Depositor to Total Deposit | Maximum 10% 6.15% 4.40% 3.33%
% of Institutional Deposit Maximum 50% 43.73% 33.15% 27.07%
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OVERVIEW

Human Resource Management (HRM) is the cornerstone of
any organization's success, especially in the banking sector,
where employee performance, skills, and engagement
directly impact service delivery, customer satisfaction, and
operational efficiency. At Everest Bank, we are committed
to cultivating a high-performing workforce by aligning HR
strategies with organizational goals, fostering a culture

of innovation, and ensuring the continuous development
of our employees. This report provides an overview of the
key initiatives, achievements, and challenges faced in HRM
throughout the past year.

1. WORKFORCE COMPOSITION

As of the end of Ashad 2082, Everest Bank employs adiverse
workforce of 1213 employees across 133 branches, Extension
Counters and Representative Offices. Our employees are
categorized as follows:

1. Executive Level

Managerial Level

Officer Level

Assistant Level

Support Level

ok onN

Staff Strength

Male
67% (811)

800 761
700
600
500
400
300 256
6
. T I
Senior Managerial Officer Assistant Support
Executive Level Level Level Staff (B)
Gender Ratio (Ashad 2082)
Female
33% (402)

H Female ®m Male
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AGEWISE EMPLOYEE PROFILE

ABOVE 50 TO 60

YEARS YEARS

ABOVE 40 TO 50 ABOVE 30 TO 40

ABOVE 20 TO 30
YEARS

YEARS

-
-
-

&
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2. EMPOYEE POLICY

Recruitment

The Bank believes in recruiting people based on merit who
have the ability or potential to meet higher standards of
performance. Human Resource for succession planning is
managed through following means:

1. Open competition

2. Internal competition

3. Talent hunt

Talent Acquisition and Recruitment

At Everest Bank, attracting and retaining top talent is
critical to maintaining our competitive edge. Over the last
year, we focused on recruiting professionals with expertise
in digital banking, cybersecurity, risk management, and
fresh Chartered Accountants/ MBAs for business growth.

31ST ANNUAL REPORT

PROVINCEWISE EMPLOYEE
626

Placement and Transfer

The bank believesin continuous development of the skill and
abilities of its employees to maximize their contribution and
to give them the opportunity to enhance their skill, realize
their potential and advance their careers. For this, HRD aims
to provide knowledge, tools, planned training, education,
and staff development activities as an investment for the
mutual benefit of individuals and the bank.

Performance Evaluation and Recognition

The bank hasadopted KRA/KPItoreview the performance of
each employee and guide them to enhance their personality
which helps to progress in their career.

To enhance employee engagement and drive performance,
we adopted a more agile and transparent performance
management system. Review of the Performance Evaluation
Mechanism is done to make it more fair and objective.
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Westrengthenedourinternalrecognitionprograms,includes
quarterly and annual awards for outstanding contributing
branches/employees. The recognition of employees’ efforts
has led to a more motivated and committed workforce.

Promotion

The bank believes in timely recognizing the performance
of its employee through regular promotion within the bank
based on their banking knowledge, skill, past performance
etc. which help the bank to meet its goals.

Equal Opportunity

Positive affirmative action is being implemented
continuously to ensure equal opportunity and treatment is
being given each employee irrespective of marital status,
caste, creed/religion, color or race.

Code of Conduct, Ethics and Discipline

Rights and duties of employees are clearly laid down
and governed by EBL Staff Service Bylaws/Regulatory
Guidelines. Code of conduct and strict discipline is being
maintained in the Bank.

Grievance Handling

Employees grievance is being handled systematically to
ensure employees have the right to raise their grievances
with their supervisor, and to appeal to a higher level if they
feel that their grievance has not been properly addressed/
handled.

Health and Safety

Occupational health and safety of employee is the major
concern of the Bank. Good working condition is being
provided to each employee and all employees are covered
under health as well as life insurance scheme.

Employee Engagement and Well-being

Employee engagement is a critical factor in achieving high
levels of productivity and retention. Our HR team rolled
out several initiatives to improve engagement and foster a
positive work environment.
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Employee Turnover Ratio:

Employee turnover ratio signifies the strength of Human
Resource Management of any organization. Everest Bank
has one of the lowest staff turnover ratio in the industry as
reflected below:

Staff Turnover Ratio

4.80% 4.72%
4.60%
4.40%

4.20%
4.06%
3.99%

4.00%
3.80% l
3.60%

FY 2079/80 FY 2080/2081 FY 2081/2082

3. Employee Development and
Training

Employee development is central to our HR strategy,
ensuring that our staff remains equipped to navigate the
rapidly changing banking environment. In 2025, Everest
Bank implemented several training and upskilling programs
to improve employee capabilities and foster leadership.

. Technical and Digital Training: We launched courses
in digital banking tools, cybersecurity awareness,
and data analysis, to ensure our employees are well-
versed in the latest banking technologies.

. Leadership Development Programs: In collaboration
with external leadership training partners, we enrolled
mid-level managers in leadership programs designed
to equip them with the skills to manage teams
effectively and make right decisions.

In FY 2081/82, 220 training programs (In-house, External,
Exclusive, International and Certification Courses) were
conducted focusing on various areas of banking and
essential soft skills with the total number of 1778 employee
participants. Along with the training, Everest Bank also
emphasizes job rotation, transfer, and job enlargement for
the enhancement of knowledge and development of the
employees.
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FY 2081-82
N £ traini No. of No. of
ype ot training Trainings participants
In-house 19 594
Exclusive 20 319
International
Certification 7 40
Courses
Total 220 1778
Total Trainings
3%
H In-house
H Exclusive
External/
International
79% Certification
Courses
Total Participants
2%
H In-house

H Exclusive

0,
46% External/

International

Certification
Courses
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4. Succession Planning and

Leadership Development

Everest Bank has developed Succession Planning for
strategic leadership development and to fill critical position
by most competent human resources in case of retirement,
resignation and/or sudden accidents. Succession plan will

act under the following objectives.

To ensure fulfillment of future leadership/critical
position gap in the Bank.

To identify those with the potential to assure greater
responsibility of the bank and provide them with
essential development experiences.

To build a data base that can be used to make better
staffing decisions for critical positions of the Bank.
To nominate suitable candidates to fill possible
vacancies that arises in the key positions of the bank
as a contingent plan.

5. Compensation and Benefits

To remain competitive in the industry, we continuously
review and adjust our compensation and benefits packages
and Everest Bank has remained one of the best in the
industry.

Competitive Salary and Benefits: Market comparison
studyis conductedandaccordingly salary and benefits
are adjusted to remain competitive in the market and
attract and retain quality human resources.

Health, Life and Retirement Benefits: Each employee
is covered under Health, Life and Accidental Insurance
to cover the risk of employee and retirement plan
contributions to support employees in their long-term
financial security.

Performance-Based Increments: We introduced
a more robust performance system tied directly
to individual and team performance, which helped
motivate employees to meet and exceed their targets.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Corporate social responsibility(CSR), inrecent times, has
become an integral part of business. The contribution
of banks in this regard is of paramount importance
considering their unique position in the economy. It
is believed that through CSR, the Bank's business will
grow consistently and responsibly, benefiting those who
directly serve while also promoting the conservation
of natural environment and the community at large.
The objective of the banks is to pro-actively support
meaningful socio-economic development in the country
and enable a larger number of people to participate in
and benefited through the bank’s CSR activities.

CSR has evolved as an important tool to increase
competitive advantage through enhanced reputation,
raise brand awareness and build trust with customers
and other stakeholders. Besides, NRB through its
circular has advised for the allocation of 1% of Net Profit
towards the CSR activities.

The Bank has been conducting different activities for
CSR related activities. Those CSR activities helped the
community for betterment of living standard of the
people. The CSR activities enhanced the brand visibility
of the bank as well as help to create a strong bonding
with the community.

During the year, CSR Fund of Rs. 48,399,035 (Previous
year Rs. 37,032,251) has been appropriated being 1%
of net profit and the CSR expenses incurred during
the year amounting to Rs. 42,848,370 (Previous year
Rs. 16,516,851) has been reversed from CSR fund. Hence,
CSR fund during the year has been increased in total by
Rs. 5,550,664 (Previous year 20,515,400).

The detail of expenses incurred during the period are as
follows:

S.N. | Head Budget for Expenditure till
FY 2081-82 17 July, 2025

A | Opening CSR Fund 33,694,840

B | Amount Credited in the Fund (1% of Net Profit) 37,032,251

C | CSRFund(A) 70,727,091

Expenses During Year as per Province Wise

1 PROV1 7,072,709 3,773,019
2 | PROV2 7,072,709 1,295,232
3 | PROV3 28,290,837 26,324,074
4 | PROV4 7,072,709 2,761,460
5 | PROV5 7,072,709 5,810,592
6 | PROVE 7,072,709 1,151,404
7 | PROV7 7,072,709 1,732,589
Expenses During Year as per Activities Wise 70,727,092 42,848,370
1 Education 8,921,590.14
2 | Health 12,118,558.00
3 Relief Fund 7,531,274.00
4 Environment 6,401,845.00
5 Financial Literacy 7,258,538.83
6 | SGD 416,004.52
7 | Others(COVID 19 Related) 200,560.00
D | Total Budget/ Expenditure during Chaitra End 2081year (D) 42,848,370
E | Commitment of CSR expenditure as per earlier CSR Meeting -
F | Balance in the fund (C-D) 27,878,721
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Contribution at PM Relief Fund

Support to Produce Prosthetic Hand

CCTV Installation Support Construction of Eco Friendly Crematorium

Wheelchair Support Roof Construction of Prakash Tamang Home
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Financial Literacy to Daily Wage Earners

Financial Literacy

Furniture Support at Public School Handover of Computers at School
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Compliance, Risk Management
and Governance

Everest Bank Limited is steadfast in its commitment
to compliance, risk management, and exemplary
corporate governance, which form the cornerstone of
our operations. These priorities ensure we uphold the
highest standards of integrity, regulatory adherence,
and ethical conduct across all levels of the organization.

Robust Compliance Framework

The bank maintainsanindependent and well-established
Compliance Function dedicated to ensuring adherence
to reqgulatory guidelines, applicable laws, and internal
policies. This function plays a pivotal role in fostering a
culture of compliance throughout the organization. Our
internal policies are reqgularly reviewed and updated to
align with evolving regulations, guidelines, and industry
best practices, ensuring the bank remains agile and
compliant in a dynamic regulatory environment.

To strengthen this commitment, the bank has
established a dedicated Compliance Department, led by
an experienced Head of Compliance. The department is
structured into two specialized units:

« General Compliance Unit: Directly overseen
by the Head of Compliance, this unit ensures
comprehensive adherence toregulatory andinternal

policy requirements across the organization.

« KYC/AML/CFT Unit: Led by the Designated
Compliance Officer under the supervision of Head
of Compliance, this unit focuses on Know Your
Customer (KYC), Anti-Money Laundering (AML),
Countering the Financing of Terrorism (CFT) and

Proliferation

Countering Financing measures,

ensuring robust safequards against financial crime.

A network of designated compliance officers extends
the reach of the Compliance Department, ensuring
meticulous oversight across all Head Office functions,
Province Offices, branch offices, and Representative
Offices. Thebank'sboard-approved ComplianceandKYC/
AML/CFT/CPF Policies are reviewed at least annually
or as per requirement to maintain their relevance and
effectiveness.
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Whistleblower Policy: Fostering Transparency

A cornerstone of our governance framework is the
board-approved Whistleblower Policy, which promotes
a culture of openness and accountability. This policy
provides a secure and confidential mechanism for
employees to report concerns about unethical behavior,
fraud, or violations of laws, policies, or procedures
without fear of retaliation. By encouraging transparency,
the policy reinforces trust and integrity within the
organization.

Oversight of AML/CFT Compliance
The Assets
a board level sub-committee chaired by a Non-

Laundering Prevention Committee,
Executive Director, plays a critical role in overseeing
the implementation of the Assets (Money) Laundering
Prevention Act, 2064, and related regulations. Guided by
a board-approved Terms of Reference, the Committee
meetsregularly toreview quarterly reports on the bank's
AML/CFT framework. During the fiscal year 2081/2082,
the Committee convened six times, thoroughly
assessing KYC/AML/CFT compliance and providing

strategic recommendations to the Board.

Corporate Governance Excellence

The bank is committed to maintaining robust corporate
governance practices. A monthly corporate governance
status report is presented to management, ensuring
ongoing oversight and timely resolution of issues.
Additionally, a comprehensive half-yearly governance
Board,
transparency and accountability at the highest levels of

report is submitted to the reinforcing

leadership.

Through these measures, Everest Bank Limited
continues to uphold its commitment to compliance and
corporate governance, ensuring sustainable growth and
stakeholder trust.
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BRANCHLESS BANKING

Bank is providing Branchless Banking (BLB) facility based
on Internet and Mobile Banking service through agents.
Main objective of the bank under this product is to provide
banking services through business correspondents as per
NRB guidelines to the most remote, low bank segment and
unbanked areas where potentiality of financial activity is
high. EBL has always envisioned serving its customers with
new and advanced technologies. Therefore, we always strive
to incorporate and reflect the interests of our customers in
the products and make it more efficient and convenient.
EBL currently provides BLB services in all provinces via 49
Business Correspondents (BCs).

Further, with a view to reach the rural/semi-rural areas as
well as to increase our customer base and core deposit, we
have started a mobile/tab-based service under the name
“Branchless Banking” or “MOBILE ATM” for our customers.
Currently, we have more than sixteen thousand customers
who have benefited from this service. The Account holder
after registering his/her mobile in the system can
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transfer funds within the Bank without visiting the Branch.
Besides, the customer can also withdraw cash from our
Business Correspondents by generating coded transfer
message in places where the branch network is not available
in order to upgrade the Bank’s product and provide efficient
service to the customers through Branchless Banking, we
have introduced the Tab based Banking under Branchless
Banking during this year. Tab banking device is integrated
with following features:

1. Biometric authentication
2. Card Reader

3. Printer

4 Camera & Scanner

By using the Integrated Tab Device, customers can initiate
the account opening process, withdraw cash and deposit
cash in the concerned Everest bank account.
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DIGITAL EVEREST

BUILDING A FUTURE READY DIGITAL BANK FOR NEPAL

In today’s rapidly evolving banking landscape, digital banking is a transformative force propelling Everest Bank's growth and
future-readiness. Our strategic focus is on harnessing innovative technologies and digital tools to amplify the distinctive
strengths of our institution, while architecting a forward-thinking digital ecosystem that meets the needs of tomorrow. This
vision is realized through two core pillars:

1. Digital Transformation: We are driven to develop new digital capabilities and platforms that redefine customer experience
and streamline bank operations. This includes launching cutting-edge, customer-centric banking solutions and delivering
seamless end-to-end digital journeys, all underpinned by a robust, scalable, cloud-native core infrastructure.

2. Bank Operations Enhancement: We are modernizing legacy systems to boost operational efficiency and elevate service
delivery standards, ensuring agility and responsiveness in all banking functions.

Despite ongoing progress, we have already witnessed the benefits of these investments through the successful digital
launches of Robotic Process Automation, Contact less payments, Digital lending, mobile banking app. These advancements
underscore our dedication to fostering a future-ready digital environment.

Our Merchant Acquiring business is fundamental to delivering comprehensive banking and payment solutions, tailored for
Small and Medium-sized Enterprises (SMEs). This segment is integral to our acceptance and issuance operations, offering
funding solutions for pre-purchase and post-purchase transactions. Innovative solutions like Virtual Credit Card and pre-
approved digital loans are cornerstone of our strategy to empower SMEs and enhance financial inclusion.

In summary, technology and digital innovation are central to charting our growth trajectory. We remain committed to retaining
our leadership position in technological advancements, fostering an innovative culture, and cultivating the appropriate talent
to propel our technology and digital initiatives. By doing so, we are well-positioned for sustained success, enabling us to deliver
unparalleled value and experiences to our customers within an increasingly digital landscape.

WAY FORWARD

Looking ahead, our strategic priorities focus
on several key areas:

Market Expansion: Accelerating growth
in assets and deposits, focusing on CASA
markets to strengthen our customer base and
liquidity position.

KEY PERFORMANCE

46% Growth in OR Code Merchants:
Demonstrating rapid adoption of convenient,
contactless digital payment methods.

Customer-Centric Digital Solutions:
Delivering comprehensive, end-to-end digital
services that address diverse customer
needs, enhancing convenience while reducing

operational load on branches. Our goal is
to offer comprehensive digital solutions
that address all customer servicing needs,
thereby streamlining processes and reducing
operational burdens on branches

Operational Efficiency: Boosting back-office
efficiency through optimized Straight-Through
Processing (STP), continuous automation,
and process simplification to elevate overall
customer experience and operational aqility.

Our unwavering commitment to technological
innovation is at the heart of our strategy for
sustainable success. By embracing emerging
digital trends and continually evolving
our capabilities, we stand ready to deliver
exceptional banking experiences and create
lasting value for our customers as we navigate
the future with confidence and agility.

30% Growth in Corporate Banking Users:
Reflecting stronger digital engagement and
deeper relationships with corporate clients.

27% Growth in Daily Average Digital
Transactions: Signifying increased transaction
volumes and customer trust in digital channels.

24% Growth in Mobile Banking Users:
Highlighting the expanding reach and growing
preference for mobile-enabled
banking services.
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REMITTANCE

Our Bank is providing web based online remittance facility
through its own product “Everest Remit”. Presently, this
remittance facility is available to all the Nepalese migrants
working in UAE, Qatar, Bahrain, Oman, UK, USA, Malaysia,
South Korea, Japan, Hong Kong, Australia and Seychelles.
This facility will be extended to other corridors too in due
course. In order to facilitate inward remittance and foreign
trade, we have tied up with various foreign banks/agencies
in different countries.

Likewise, services from instant money transfer products
have already been started through Xoom Corporation, EZ
Remit, MoneyGram and Western Union Money Transfer.
Customers can get easy access to these agencies and will
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contribute toincrease in inward remittance from worldwide.
Further, we are trying to penetrate existing markets deeper
to provide services to our customers in a more convenient
way.

Similarly, our joint venture partner Punjab National B(PNB),
India has already launched its’" own remittance product
“INREMIT”. Under this facility Nepalese who are working/
residing in India can instantly remit money from PNB India
to our bank through any branch of PNB or Mobile/Internet
banking facility of PNB and through Business Correspondent
locations for further payment to beneficiary either by direct
credit into A/c maintained with banks in Nepal or cash
payment through our 9000+ payout locations.
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Arrangement with Exchange Houses for Remittance/Draft

Country

Name of Principal/Agent for Inward Remittance

UAE Al Rostamani International Exchange Co. Index Exchange Company
Dubai, UAE Abu Dhabi, Hamdan Street, UAE
Tel: 009714 2951996 Tel: 0097102 6272656
Al Ahalia Money Exchange Bureau Lari Exchange
Abu Bhabi, UAE Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates
Tel: 009712 6229666 Tel: 009712 622 3228
Al Ansari Exchange Al Razouki International Exchange Co.
Dubai, UAE Dubai, UAE
Tel: 009714 3772677 Tel: 00971 4 3932331
Lulu International Exchange LM Exchange
Abu Dhabi, UAE Dubai, UAE
Tel: 009712 6547009 Tel: 00971 4 3540191
Bahrain Bahrain Finance Company
Manama, Bahrain
Tel: 00973-17223501/17228888,
17506103
Qatar Al Zaman Exchange Eastern Exchange
Doha, Qatar Doha, Qatar
Tel: 00974 44441448 Tel: 00974 44412655
Al Jazeera Exchange Global For Exchange and Money Transfer Service
Doha, Qatar Doha, Qatar
Tel: 00974 44363595 Tel: 00974 44515159
Kuwait Bahrain Exchange Company
Safat, Kuwait
Tel: 00965 2452057, 1824000
UK Punjab National Bank (International) Ltd. Transfer To Mobile Financial Services
London, UK Limited
Tel: 0044 2077969600 London, UK
Tel: 0044 7885536758
Hums Remit Limited (AYO Remit) M A Fastmove Limited (Shpun Remit)
London, UK The Colmore Building, 20 Colmore Circus,
Tel: 0044 7863 900493 Birmingham, B4 6AT, United Kingdom.
Tel: +44 121328 0011
IFast Global Bank Limited Xpress Money Services Ltd.
9" Floor, South Quay Building, F10 Church Lane, Kingsbury London
77 Marsh Wall, London, England, E14 United Kingdom
9SH
Tel: 00442081813670
Oman Unimoni Exchange LLC

Sultanate of Oman
Tel: 00968 24794127

United States

Mastercard Transaction Services
(US)LLC

150 Fifth Avenue, N.Y., N.Y. 10011
Tel: 00918360823064

India Punjab National Bank,
New Delhi, India
Tel: 23328894/237199094
Malaysia Tranglo Sdn. Bhd. MoneyMatch Sdn. Bhd.

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.
Tel: 00603 2241 4188, 00603 2241 4189

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.
Tel: 00603 2770 0073
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Japan

Japan Remit Finance Co. Ltd.
Tokyo, Japan
Tel: 008135733 4337

South Korea

Finshot Inc.
Seoul, South Korea
Tel: 0082 70 7728 5618

Cross EnfInc
Seoul, South Korea
Tel: 0082 02 6275 4131

Hong Kong Harbour and Hills Financial Services Wirease Limited
Limited Kowloon, Hong Kong
Kowloon, Hong Kong Tel: 00852 23664470
Tel: 00852 35801722, 00852 35807438

Singapore Paypal Pte. Ltd. Tranglo Pte. Ltd.
5 Temasek Boulevard Singapore
#09-01Suntec Tower Five Tel: +6565497536, +6565497537
Singapore 038985

Australia Lumbini Group Pty. Ltd.
Sydney, NSW 2000
Tel: 00614350 22761

Syechelles Cash Plus Co. Pty. Ltd.

Victoria, Seychelles
Tel: 00248 250 1048

Global Products

Paypal (Xoom)

Market Street Floor, San Francisco
Tel: 0014157774800

Please visit www.xoom.com for
further detail.

Transfast Remittance

2000 Purchase St, Purchase NY, 10577, USA
Please visit www.transfast.com

for further detail.

Moneygram International Money Transfer

Western Union Money Transfer

EzRemit Global (BFC Bank Ltd.)
Manama, Bahrain
Tel: 00973-17201826

Nepal

IME Remit Pvt. Ltd.
Panipokhari, Kathmandu
Tel: 0097714217600

City Express Money Transfer
Kamaladi, Kathmandu
Tel: 0097714431900

CG Remit Pvt. Ltd. (CG Money)
Tripureshwor, Kathmandu
Tel: 0097714252987

Esewa Money Transfer Pvt. Ltd.
Pulchowk, Lalitpur
Tel: 00977 159700377
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Remittance Payout Locations

Province District No of Province District No of
agents agents
1 JHAPA 426 4 KASKI 37
MORANG 374 NAWALPARAS| 253
SUNSARI 297 TANAHU 159
ILAM 80 SYANJA 133
UDAYAPUR 78 BAGLUNG 128
DHANKUTA 64 LAMJUNG 104
PANCHTHAR 45 MYAGDI 72
BHOJPUR 44 GORKHA 67
SANKHUWASABHA 43 PARBAT 83
KHOTANG 43 MUSTANG 10
OKHALDHUNGA 40 MANANG 8
TERHATHUM 28 5 RUPANDEH 334
SOLUKHUMBU 20 BANKE -
TAPLEJUNG 18 DANG 8
2 DHANUSHA 213 KAPILVASTU 115
SIRAHA 173 BARDIYA 86
BARA 159 PALPA 83
SAPTARI 129 GULMI 65
PARSA 128 PYUTHAN 48
SARLAH| 128 RUKUM 40
MAHOTTARI m ARGHAKHACHI 35
RAUTAHAT 110 ROLPA 27
3 KATHMANDU 1806 6 SURKHET 98
CHITWAN 379 SALYAN 46
LALITPUR 241 DAILEKH 29
KAVREPALANCHOWK 124 JAJARKOT 25
BHAKTAPUR 19 KALIKOT 15
MAKWANPUR 116 DOLPA 1
NUWAKOT 87 JUMLA 1
DHADING 72 MUGU 7
DOLAKHA 71 HUMLA 3
SINDHULI 59 7 KAILALI 162
SINDHUPALCHOWK 59 KANCHANPUR 78
RAMECHHAP 4 DoT| 26
RASUWA 22 ACHHAM 23
DADELDHURA 21
BAJHANG 15
BAJURA 15
DARCHULA 12
BAITADI 10

Total Payout Location: 9055
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The bank also provides the remittance inflow facility from Wire transfer through SWIFT. Remitters can transfer funds from
any part of the globe to their accounts maintained at EBL or other Banks in Nepal through SWIFT. EBL has tie up with 13
correspondent Banks for swift in and out transfer facility. The details of our Correspondents Banks are as under:

USD Nostro Account

1

2)

3)

4)

5)

Standard Chartered Bank

NY 10048, New York, USA
SWIFT: SCBLUS33

Our USD A/C # 3582-059378-001

Habib American Bank
99 Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10016
Swift: HANYUS33

Woori Bank

Seoul, South Korea
Account: W1021001US
Swift: HVBK KR SE

Mashreq Bank New York
Account No: 70009908
Swift Code: MSHQUS33

KOREA EXCHANGE BANK(KEB), SEOUL
Account No: 0963-THR-051110011
Swift Code: KOEXKRSE

GBP Account

1)

Standard Chartered Bank

1Basinghall Ave London EC2V 5DD, United Kingdom
SWIFT: SCBLGB2L

IBAN No: GB71 SCBL 60910412 6794 85

A/C: 01267948501

EURO Account

1)

Standard Chartered Bank
Frankfurt, Germany
SWIFT: SCBLDEFX
Our Euro A/C #017043206

INR Account

1

Punjab National Bank

New Delhi, India

Tel: 23328894/237199094
SWIFT: PUNBINBBDOB

Our INR A/C # 2254002100011251

2)

3)

4)

Standard Chartered Bank

Kolkotta 700 001, India Tel: 22205271/22200829
SWIFT: SCBLINBBCAL

Our INR A/C# 32205019343

HDFC Bank Ltd.

Manekji Wadia Bldg. Nanik Motwani Marg Fort, Mumbai,
India

Swift: - HDFCINBB

Tel: 28474900/4902884 Fax: 28569271

Our INR A/C# 00600390000146

ICICI Bank

ICICI Bank towers, Bandra Kurla Complex,Bandra East,
Mumbai -400051

Swift: ICICINBB

Tel: 055505075024

JPY Account

1)

Standard Chartered Bank
Tokyo, Japan

SWIFT: SCBLJPJT
Account No.: 23079361110

AED Account

1.

Mashreq Bank PSC

Dubai, UAE

IBAN No: AE400330000019030000404
Swift: BOML AE AD

Account No: 19030000404

AUD Account

1.

CNY

Standard Chartered Bank
Singapore

Swift: SCBLSG22
Account No: 0107355388

Standard Chartered Bank

China (XIAMEN BRANCH)

Swift: SCBLCNSXIMN

Account No: 000000501511740215
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Customer Excellence:
Feedback, Queries,
and Grievance Handling

In a competitive landscape, customer feedback and
addressing concerns of customers aren't just an important
service—they're an invaluable asset for growth. By actively
listening to our customers and transforming their insights
into actionable strategies, we enhance our offerings and
ultimately secure a stronger market position.

Building Trust and Competitive Advantage

Trust and reliability are the bedrock of the banking
sector. In this environment, exceptional customer
service transcends a simple support function; it is a key
differentiator that fuels competitive advantage. Whether
it's navigating complex financial processes, resolving a
grievance, or simply offering a supportive voice during a
stressful moment, every interaction positively impacts our
ability to attract and retain customers through our unique
products and services.

Our Comprehensive Grievance Handling
Framework

In alignment with NRB Unified Directives No: 20, Sub-
Point 9, and to ensure maximum accessibility, we operate
a strengthened and dedicated, 24/7 Customer Care Center.
This serves as our primary "Grievance Handling Desk" for
promptly addressing all customer queries, suggestions,
and complaints. Customers can reach us through multiple
integrated channels, including telephone, SMS, email, the
bank's online portal, and social media.

Structured Governance and Oversight

Our grievance handling mechanism is designed for
efficiency and accountability. It is overseen by a senior-level
Grievance Handling Officer and a five-member Grievance
Management Committee, which is led by the Deputy Chief
Executive Officer. This committee ensures that grievance
management activities are performed with promptness and
efficiency, guaranteeing superior customer service.

We have also implemented several technological
enhancements to streamline the process:

« A dedicated "Grievance Hearing" portal on the bank's
website.

« Focused measures to reduce the Turn Around Time
(TAT) for complaint resolution.

Reports detailing customer queries and grievances are
systematically reviewed by both Senior Management and
the Board to drive continuous improvement.

Trend Analysis: Increased Queries, Declining Complaints

The data presented below tracks customer complaints and
grievances for FY 2081/82 and the preceding two fiscal years:

(in numbers)
2081/82 | 2080/81 | 2079/80 | 2078/79 | 2077/78
Queries/Feedback 75960 46983 28946 23191 27749
Complaints 4656 3510 5380 4232 2448
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Based onthis, consecutive three-year data, we observe a positive and notable trend: the number of proactive queries and general
feedback from customers is increasing, while the number of formal complaints is steadily declining during the same period.
This increasing Queries-to-Complaints ratio strongly indicates the enhanced effectiveness of the steps taken to improve our
grievance handling mechanism. Notably, all formal grievances lodged within Fiscal Year 2081/82 were fully resolved.
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Banking Operation

Everest Bank Limited (EBL), founded in 1994, has
established itself as a premier financial institution, serving
diverse customers across the country. Our commitment
to nationwide accessibility is underpinned by a robust
infrastructure: a network of 133 branches, 168 ATMs, 4
extension counters, and 32 revenue counters. Through
our fully interconnected ABBS system, we ensure efficient
and customer-friendly banking services are available
everywhere our customers are.

Banking Operations servesasacore organizational function,
overseeing the essential daily activities and processes that
keep the Bank running smoothly, efficiently, and effectively.
The department plays a crucial role in achieving strategic
objectives by ensuring consistent delivery of high-quality
products and services across all branches. In addition, it
remains focused on process refinement, operational risk
management, and productivity enhancement, thereby
fostering organizational growth and sustaining service
excellence.

Key Operational Pillars at EBL:

Our operational strategy focuses on maximizing efficiency,
mitigating risk, and enhancing the customer experience.

1. Driving Process Improvement and Oversight

The Central Operations Department at the Head Office
plays a vital role in enhancing our services and products
to precisely meet customer needs. This includes
overseeing and coordinating operational affairs across
all branches, managing inter-branch transactions,
and refining systems and procedures to boost overall
operational effectiveness.

2. Enhancing Efficiency and Mitigating Operational Risk

We maintain tight control over operational tasks by
establishing centralized units for critical areas like Trade
Finance including Bank Guarantee, Inward and Outward
Remittance and Central Credit Operations. Furthermore,
the development of robust policies and procedures is key
to mitigating risks—such as human error, fraud—thereby
and also significantly improving overall operational
efficiency.

31ST ANNUAL REPORT
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3. Investing in Seamless Customer Support

A cornerstone of our service is the Customer Care
Center, which offers 24/7 assistance through multiple
channels. We ensure support is respectful, prompt, and
personalized by employing user-friendly technology and
maintaining a team of knowledgeable staff who undergo
ongoing training to address and resolve all customer
queries and grievances effectively.

4. Promoting Self-Service Channels:

To provide convenience and encourage self-transactions,
we have adopted cutting-edge technology for customer
service. This includes implementing cheque and cash
deposit machines in key branches, launching an online
account opening portal, and deploying information
kiosks. These self-service options efficiently address
customer needs both before and after they use our
products.

5. Cultivating Operational Excellence

Regular and focused training on both operations and
operations risk management is crucial. This ensures
all employees are consistently informed of the latest
policies and quidelines. The proper implementation of
these policies is not only essential for risk mitigation but
also fundamentally important for enhancing the overall
customer experience at Everest Bank.
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Date: August 04, 2025

Mr. Sudesh Khaling

Chief Executive Officer
Everest Bank Limited
Lazimpat, Kathmandu, Nepal

Confidential

Dear Sir,
Issuer Rating

Please refer to your request for assigning an Issuer rating to your company.
1. The following rating has been assigned by CARE Ratings Nepal Limited's (CRNL) Rating Committee:

Particulars Amount Rating Rating Action

Issuer Rating NA CARE-NP AA (ls) Assigned
[Double A (Issuer Rating)]

2. The rating is only an opinion on the general creditworthiness of the company and not specific to any
particular debt instrument.

3. The above rating is valid till July 02, 2026 (linked to the date of our initial communication of rating).

4. The explanatory notes regarding the rating symbols of CRNL for Issuer Rating are given in Annexure 1.
The rationale for this rating will be communicated to you separately.

5. CRNL reserves the right to undertake a surveillance/review of the rating from time to time, based on
circumstances warranting such review, subject to at least one such review/surveillance every year.

6. CRNL reserves the right to revise/reaffirm/withdraw the rating assigned, as a result of periodic review/
surveillance, based on any event or information which in the opinion of CRNL warrants such an action. In
the event of failure on the part of the entity to furnish such information, material or clarifications as may be
required by CRNL so as to enable it to carry out continuous monitoring of the rating, CRNL shall carry out
the review on the basis of best available information. CRNL shall also be entitled to publicize/disseminate
all the afore-mentioned rating actions in any manner considered appropriate by it, without reference to you.

7. Users of this rating may kindly refer our website www.careratingsnepal.com for latest update on the
outstanding rating.

8. CRNL ratings are not recommendations to buy, sell or hold any securities of the issuer.

If you need any clarification, you are welcome to approach us in this regard. We are indeed, grateful to you for

entrusting this assignment to CRNL.

Thanking You. Yours faithfully,
e
a?
[Santosh Pudasaini] [Monika Rawal]
Group Head Senior Analyst

CARE RATINGS NEPAL LIMITED

Star Mall, 2nd Floor, Putalisadak, Kathmandu
Tel.: +977-1-4012628/29/30 | Email: care@careratingsnepal.com | Website: www.careratingsnepal.com
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Department Heads

P P P
Dharma Prasad Gauli Jamuna Tamrakar Raju Gauli Janak Prasad Chapagain
Legal Chief Risk Officer Internal Audit Human Resource
P P P
Kiran Mahat Nar Bahadur Rawal Rajan Kayastha Raj Kumar Shakya
Information Technology Compliance Chief Financial Officer Operation
P P
Vijay Kumar Singh Nikhil Shrestha Yadav Bhandari Madhu Sudan Shrestha
General Administration  Correspondent Banking & Remittance ~ Trade Finance Service Digital Banking & ATM Cell
P P
Anju Poudel Suman Raj Shrestha Rishikesh Thapa
Marketing & Institutional Deposit Central Clearing Cell Treasury
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Provincial Heads

Sudhir Gautam
Koshi Province

P
Chandra Bahadur Gurung
Gandaki Province

P
Puspa Raj Uprety
Madhesh Province

P
Niranjan Karki
Lumbini Province

Yagya Raj Upadhyaya (Timilsina)

Sudur Paschim Province

Anju Sharma
Bagmati Province

Ujwal Kumar Pokharel
Karnali Province
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OUR BRANCHES

Koshi Province

1

Bhojpur Branch

Mr. Khagendra Nepal

Bhojpur - 7, Dandagaun, Bhojpur
Phone: 029-420721

Email: bhojpur@ebl.com.np

Biratchowk Branch

Mr. Prabhat Guragain

Sundarharaicha - 9, Biratchowk, Morang
Phone: 021-548168, 548169

Email: biratchowk@ebl.com.np

Biratnagar Branch

Mr. Binay Prasad Upadhaya

Dharan Road, Biratnagar - 6, Morang
Phone: 021-570527/28, 517645
Email: eblbrt@ebl.com.np

Birtamod Branch

Mr. Suraj Subedi

Mayadevi Complex, Birtamod - 5, Jhapa
Phone: 023-533805, 534880

Email: ebl_btm@ebl.com.np

Damak Branch

Ms. Deepti Rajbanshi

Damak - 8, Jhapa, East-West Highway
Phone: 023-575956, 575957

Email: damak@ebl.com.np

Dharan Branch

Mr. Shiva Kumar Poudel

Putali Line, Dharan - 10, Sunsari
Phone: 025-570971

Email: dharan@ebl.com.np

Dhulabari Branch

Mr. Laxman Acharya

Bhadrapur Road, Mechinagar - 10, Jhapa
Phone: 023-591002/03

Email: dhulabari@ebl.com.np

Duhabi Branch

Mr. Mahesh Prasad Sharma
Duhabi - 5, Sunsari

Phone: 025-542628, 542625
Email: eblduh@ebl.com.np

Fikkal Branch

Mr. Alok Dahal

Fikkal Bazar, Suryodaya - 10, llam
Phone: 027-540546

Email: fikkal@ebl.com.np

10 Gaighat Branch

1

Mr. Shib Kumar Karki

Triyuga - 11, Gaighat, Udayapur
Phone: 035-422079, 422080
Email: gaighat@ebl.com.np

1 Inaruwa Branch
Ms. Biva Joshi
Inaruwa - 1, Sunsari
Phone: 025-565012/13
Email: inaruwa@ebl.com.np

12 Itahari Branch

Mr. Shashank Koirala

Itahari - 6, Sunsari

Phone: 025-586411/12, 587136
Email: eblith@ebl.com.np

13 Kanchanbari Branch
Mr. Santosh Sigdel
Biratnagar - 4, Morang
Phone: 021-466766, 464089
Email: kanchanbari@ebl.com.np

14 Khandbari Branch
Ms. Reetu Joshi
Khandbari - 1, Buddha Tole, Sankhuwasabha
Phone: 029-563121, 563131
Email: khandbari@ebl.com.np

15 Mahakulung Branch
Mr. Bhisma Raj Bhandari
Mahakulung - 01, Bung, Solukhumbu
Phone: 9749935070
Email: mahakulung@ebl.com.np

16 Okhaldhunga Branch
Mr. Madan Kumar Shrestha
Siddhicharan -12, Okhaldhunga
Phone: 037-520504
Email: okhaldhunga@ebl.com.np

17 Pathari Branch
Mr. Saurav Singh Maharjan
Pathari Sancischare - 01, Morang
Phone: 021-555081
Email: pathari@ebl.com.np

18 Silichong Branch
Mr. Siddhartha Subedi
Silichong - 03, Tamku, Sankhuwasabha
Phone: 9852058667
Email: silichong@ebl.com.np

19 Phidim Branch
Mr. Suresh Basnet
Phidim-01, Hospital Mode, Panchthar
Phone: 024-590209, 590210
Email: phidim@ebl.com.np

20 Phungling Branch
Mr. Lava Kumar Timilsina
Kopche, Phungling - 4, Taplejung
Phone: 024-593109, 593110
Email: phungling@ebl.com.np

Madhesh Province

1 Birgunj Branch
Mr. Sunil Giri
Adarshanagar, Birgunj-10, Parsa
Phone: 051-527163, 523048
Email: eblbri@ebl.com.np

2  Chandranigahapur Branch
Mr. Krishna Chandra Karn
Gaur Road, Chandrapur-4, Rautahat
Phone: 055-540642, 540690
Email: chapur@ebl.com.np

3  Garuda Branch
Mr. Bishnu Paudel
Garuda Chowk, Garuda-10, Rautahat
Phone: 055-565068/69
Email: garuda@ebl.com.np

4  ICD (Dry Port) Branch
Mr. Sampurna Maharjan
Birgunj-25, Sirsiya, Parsa, Birgunj Customs
Office, Dry Port Operations Division
Phone: 051-590013, 527825
Email: eblicd@ebl.com.np

10

11

12

13

14

15

Janakpur Branch

Mr. Bikrant Sharma

Mills Area, Janakpur - 1, Dhanusa
Phone: 041-590364

Email: ebljnk@ebl.com.np

Kalaiya Branch

Mr. Bikas Giri

Bariyarpur Road, Kalaiya - 4
Phone No: 053-551482
Email: kalaiya@ebl.com.np

Kanchanpur Branch
Mr. Pradip Katuwal
Kanchanrup - 8, Beriyar, Saptari
Phone: 031-560571
Email: kanchanpur@ebl.com.np

Lalbandi Branch

Mr. Surya Bahadur Thapa
Lalbandi - 6, Sarlahi

Phone: 046-590002/03
Email: lalbandi@ebl.com.np

Mahendranagar-Dhanusha Branch

Mr. Aditya Kumar Jha

Chhireshwornath - 5, Dhanusa

Phone: 041-540151/53

Email: mahendranagar.dhanusa@ebl.com.np

Mirchaiya Branch

Mr. Rajeeb Sigdel

Thana Chowk, Mirchaiya - 5, Siraha
Phone: 033-550866

Email: mirchaiya@ebl.com.np

Murali Chowk Branch

Mr. Shravan Kumar Pandit
Janakpurdham - 4, Dhanusa
Phone: 041-591117, 591516
Email: muralichowk@ebl.com.np

Pipra Branch

Mr. Saroj Bhandari

School Chowk, Pipra - 4, Mahottari
Phone: 044-548053

Email: pipra@ebl.com.np

Rajbiraj Branch

Mr. Prakash Maharjan

Gajendra Narayan Chowk, Rajbiraj-7, Saptari
Phone: 031-533570

Email: rajbiraj@ebl.com.np

Simara Branch

Ms. Sagun Nepal

Simara Chowk, Jeetpur Simara - 2, Bara
Phone: 053-520506

Email: eblsim@ebl.com.np

Bardibas Branch

Mr. Bimal Bhusal

Bardibas - 1, Mahottari
Phone: 044-590903/4

Email: bardibas@ebl.com.np

Bagmati Province

1

Bagbazar Branch

Mr. Nabin Pandit Chhetri
Bagbazar, Kathmandu - 28
Phone: 01-5342712, 5347262
Email: bagbazar@ebl.com.np
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2 Bagdol Branch
Mr. Sujeet Jnawali
Bagdol, Lalitpur - 4
Phone: 01-5424066/5448620
Email: bagdol@ebl.com.np

3 Balaju Branch
Mr. Chhitij Parajuli
Nayabazar, Kathmandu - 16
Phone: 01-4980301, 4980381
Email: ebl_blj@ebl.com.np

4 Banepa Branch
Mr. Kishor Palikhel
Banepa - 7, Kavre
Phone: 011-664182
Email: banepa@ebl.com.np

5  Baneshwor Branch
Mr. Pranay Pradhan
New Baneshwor, Kathmandu - 10
Phone: 01-4790018/434/578/587/671
Email: eblban@ebl.com.np

6  Battar Branch
Mr. Dinesh Acharya
Battar Bazar, Bidur - 2, Nuwakot
Phone: 010-561955
Email: battar@ebl.com.np

7  Bhaisepati Branch
Mr. Ganesh Prasad Ghimire
Lalitpur -18, Bhaisepati
Phone: 01-5909771/5909772
Email: bhaisepati@ebl.com.np

8  Bhaktapur Branch
Mr. Jagadish Karki
Pandu Bazar Gate,
Suryabinayak - 6, Bhaktapur
Phone: 01-5092061, 5092151
Email: eblbkt@ebl.com.np

9  Budhanilakantha Branch
Mr. Mukunda Bhandari
Budhanilkantha - 3, Chapali Chowk
Phone: 01-5900093/94
Email: budhanilkantha@ebl.com.np

10 Chabahil Branch
Mr. Dhurba Prasad Acharya
Chabahil, Kathmandu - 7
Phone: 01-4564895, 4564914
Email: eblchab@ebl.com.np

11 Dhading Branch
Mr. Maheshwor Pudasaini
Neelkantha - 3, Bich Bazar, Dhading
Phone: 010-520631
Email: dhading@ebl.com.np

12 Dharke Branch
Mr. Dhawa Lama
Dhunibesi - 6, Dharke Bazar, Dhading
Phone: 010-414149/52
Email: dharke@ebl.com.np

13 Dupcheshwor Branch
Mr. Shyam Chandra Rupakheti
Dupcheshwor - 6, Samundratar, Nuwakot
Phone: 9851241518
Email: dupcheshwor@ebl.com.np

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Golfutar Branch

Ms. Prerana Rajbhandari

Golfutar, Budhanilkantha - 7, Kathmandu
Phone: 01-4650793, 4379705

Email: eblgol@ebl.com.np

Gongabu Branch

Mr. Shyam Bahadur Pandit

Samakhusi Chowk, Tokha - 10, Kathmandu
Phone: 01-4963076

Email: gongabu@ebl.com.np

Gwarko Branch

Gwarko, Mahalaxmi - 2, Lalitpur

Phone: 01-5440348, 5439066, 5437705
Email: eblgwk@ebl.com.np

Hakim Chowk Branch

Mr. Mrigesh Shrestha

Hakim Chowk, Bharatpur - 10, Chitwan
Phone: 056-590328, 590428

Email: hakimchowk@ebl.com.np

Hetauda Branch

Mr. Surit Sharma

Ajar Amar Road, Hetauda - 4, Makwanpur
Phone: 057-527003, 527004

Email: hetauda@ebl.com.np

Jadibuti Branch

Mr. Subash Budhathoki

Jadibuti, Koteshwor, Kathmandu - 32
Phone: 01-5149273

Email: jadibuti@ebl.com.np

Jamal Branch

Mr. Bhagwan Kumar Thapa
Nachghar Building, Kathmandu - 27
Phone: 01-5913375, 5913376
Email: jamal@ebl.com.np

Jarankhu Branch

Ms. Rajita Shrestha

Tarkeshwor - 8, Jarankhu, Kathmandu
Phone: 01-4025680, 4025685

Email: jarankhu@ebl.com.np

Jorpati Branch

Mr. Rajiv Prakash Dhar
Gokarneshwor -13, Kathmandu
Phone: 01-4914935

Email: jorpati@ebl.com.np

Kadaghari Branch
Mr. Bibek Bikram Uperaty

Kageshwori Manohara - 9, Birendra Chowk,
Kathmandu

Phone: 01-4993272
Email: kadaghari@ebl.com.np

Kalimati Branch

Mr. Purushottam Luitel
Kalimati, Kathmandu - 13
Phone: 01-5378556, 5378557
Email: eblkimt@ebl.com.np

Kamalbinayak Branch

Mr. Ganesh Tamang

Bhaktapur - 10, Bhaktapur

Phone: 01-6620281/82

Email: kamalbinayak@ebl.com.np

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

Kirtipur Branch

Mr. Amir K.C.

Nayabazar, Kirtipur - 9

Phone: 01-4336423, 01-4336424

Email: eblkrt@ebl.com.np

Lagankhel Branch

Mr. Saajan K.C.

Lagankhel Bus Park, Lagankhel, Lalitpur - 12
Phone: 01-5451470/71

Email: ebl_Igkl@ebl.com.np

Lazimpat Branch

Ms. Sunita Basnet

EBL House, Lazimpat, Kathmandu - 3
Phone: 01-4543377, 4543863

Email: ebllaz@ebl.com.np

Maharajgunj Branch

Mr. Subas Ghimire

Near Chappal Karkhana, Kathmandu - 4,
Phone: 01-5910714, 5910715

Email: maharajgunj@ebl.com.np

Maitidevi Branch

Mr. Nabin Regmi

Maitidevi, Near Seto Pool, Kathmandu - 29
Phone: 01-4545172, 4545173, 4541127
Email: ebimtd@ebl.com.np

Narayangarh Branch
Mr. Prakash Gyawali

Shahidpath, Narayangarh, Bharatpur - 1,
Chitwan

Phone: 056-596565, 596465, 596827
Email: eblngd@ebl.com.np

Naxal Branch

Mr. Lal Bahadur Bogati

Naxal, Gairidhara, Kathmandu - 1
Phone: 01-4543241, 4543242
Email: naxal@ebl.com.np

New Road Branch

Mr. Lava Prasad Kuikel

2" Floor, New Road Complex, Kathmandu - 22
Phone: 01-5322230, 5345782/84

Email: eblnr@ebl.com.np

Parsa Branch

Mr. Ganesh Kumar Shrestha

Parsa Bazar, Khairahani - 8, Chitwan
Phone: 056-582960

Email: parsa@ebl.com.np

Pulchowk Branch

Mr. Bibhuti Neupane

Pulchowk, Lalitpur - 3

Phone: 01-5449738, 5449739, 5449736
Email: eblpul@ebl.com.np

Sanogaun Branch

Mr. Gopal Lamichhane
Mahalaxmi - 6, Siddhipur, Lalitpur
Phone: 01-5709305/06

Email: sanogaun@ebl.com.np

Satdobato Branch

Mr. Krishna Prasad Acharya
Lalitpur - 15, Lalitpur

Phone: 01-5151820, 5151040
Email: satdobato@ebl.com.np
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38 Satungal Branch 3
Mr. Arun Sharma Poudel
Chandragiri - 11, Satungal, Kathmandu
Phone: 01-4311080, 01-4313573
Email: eblsat@ebl.com.np

39 Sitapaila Branch 4
Mr. Shyam Sundar Pandey
Sitapaila, Nagarjun - 4, Kathmandu
Phone: 01-5233287, 5233304
Email: sitapaila@ebl.com.np

40 Sundarbasti (Bhangal) Branch 5
Mr. Shrawan Kumar Bista
Budhanilkhantha - 8, Kathmandu
Phone: 01-5911937, 5911938
Email: sundarbasti@ebl.com.np

41 Tandi Branch 6
Mr. Ajay Bhandari
Ratnanagar - 2, Tandi, Chitwan
Phone: 056-5620000
Email: tandi@ebl.com.np

42 Taukhel Branch 7
Mr. Arun Sanjel
Godawari - 3, Lalitpur
Phone: 01-5560314/15
Email: taukhel@ebl.com.np

43 Teku Branch 8
Ms. Dina Dhaubhadel
Teku, Kathmandu - 12
Phone: 01-5343337, 5343124, 5343305
Email: ebltk@ebl.com.np

44 Thamel Branch 9
Mr. Bishnu Prasad Gautam
A One Business Complex, Thamel, Kathmandu - 26
Phone: 01-4533037, 01-4536117
Email: eblthml@ebl.com.np

45 Thimi Branch 10
Mr. Ujwal Prajapati
Madhyapur Thimi - 4, Naya Thimi, Bhaktapur
Phone: 01-5910445, 5910446
Email: thimi@ebl.com.np

46 Tokha Branch 11
Mr. Beeky Kadel
Tokha - 6, Opposite of Grande Hospital
Phone: 01-4970013, 4970212
Email: tokha@ebl.com.np

47  Sindhuli Branch 12
Mr. Nilesh Shakya
Kamalamai - 6, Sindhulimadhi, Sindhuli
Phone: 047-590600, 590602
Email: sindhuli@ebl.com.np

Gandaki Province 13
1 Amarsingh Chowk Branch
Mr. Suvaraj Kafle
Uttam Chowk, Pokhara - 10, Kaski
Phone: 061-435124
Email: amarsingh@ebl.com.np

2  Baglung Branch 1
Mr. Ramesh Prasad Bhandari
Aawa Road, Baglung - 2
Phone: 068-522185, 522186
Email: ebl_bgl@ebl.com.np

Besisahar Branch

Mr. Anil Gurung

Besishahar - 7, Lamjung
Phone: 066-520771/772
Email: eblbeshi@ebl.com.np

Birauta Branch

Mr. Subash Bhattarai
Pokhara - 17, Kaski

Phone: 061-590073/76
Email: birauta@ebl.com.np

Biruwa Branch

Mr. Mekh Bahadur Khadka
Biruwa Bazar, Biruwa - 1, Syangja
Phone: 9856030180

Email: biruwa@ebl.com.np

Daldale Branch

Mr. Sunil Kumar Bhusal

Devchuli - 13, Daldale, Nawalparasi
Phone: 078-590978/79

Email: daldale@ebl.com.np

Damauli Branch

Ms. Meenu Maharjan

Padam Chowk, Vyas - 2, Damauli, Tanahu
Phone: 065-590598/99

Email: damauli@ebl.com.np

Gorkha Branch

Mr. Chola Kant Sharma
Haramtari Chowk, Gorkha - 6
Phone: 064-420414

Email: gorkha@ebl.com.np

Kawasoti Branch

Mr. Sovit Karki

Kawasoti -3, Nawalparasi
Phone: 078-540671

Email: kawasoti@ebl.com.np

Kushma Branch

Mr. Sanjib Man Shrestha

Shahid Chowk, Kushma - 5, Parbat
Phone: 067-421173

Email: eblkus@ebl.com.np

Lekhnath Branch

Ms. Suman Khatri

Pokhara - 27, Taal Chowk, Kaski
Phone: 061-563777, 563977
Email: ebl_lekh@ebl.com.np

Pokhara Branch

Mr. Ujjwal Raj Sharma

Pokhara - 9, New Road, Pokhara
Phone: 061-544491/552291
Email: eblpok@ebl.com.np

Syangja Branch

Mr. Binod Shrestha

Sahidchowk, Putalibazar - 1, Syangja
Phone: 063-425174/75

Email: syangja@ebl.com.np

Lumbini Province

Bansgadhi Branch

Mr. Mahesh Pyakurel

Bansgadhi - 5, Bansgadi Bazar, Bardiya
Phone: 084-400169

Email: bansgadhi@ebl.com.np

10

11

12

13

Bardaghat Branch

Mr. Chiranjivi Paudel

Bardaghat - 4, Nawalparasi West
Phone: 078-590520, 590521
Email: bardaghat@ebl.com.np

Bhairahawa Branch
Mr. Joshan Joshi

Prahari Tole, Siddharthanagar - 12,
Bhairahawa, Rupandehi

Phone: 071-587360/61
Email: eblbhw@ebl.com.np

Butwal Branch

Mr. Prabhat Raman Uprety

Palpa Road, Butwal - 4, Rupandehi
Phone: 071-533661, 533662, 535661
Email: eblbtw@ebl.com.np

Chandrauta Branch

Mr. Manoj Rimal

Shivaraj - 5, Chandrauta, Kapilvastu
Phone: 076-540446, 540447

Email: chandrauta@ebl.com.np

Ghorahi Branch

Mr. Shiva Krishna Shrestha
B.P. Chowk, Ghorahi - 15, Dang
Phone: 082-564244/245
Email: ghorahi@ebl.com.np

Gulariya Branch

Mr. Deepak Kumar Jha

Narayangopal Chowk, Gulariya - 6, Bardiya
Phone: 084-420038

Email: gulariya@ebl.com.np

Jeetpur Branch

Mr. Sharad Pratap Singh

Banganga - 1, Char Number, Kapilvastu
Phone: 076-550134, 550171

Email: jeetpur@ebl.com.np

Khaireni Branch

Mr. Raju Bhusal

Devdaha - 7, Rupandehi
Phone: 071-577474, 577480
Email: khaireni@ebl.com.np

Kohalpur Branch

Mr. Prabin Subedi

Kohalpur Mainroad, Kohalpur - 11, Banke
Phone: 081-541816/815

Email: kohalpur@ebl.com.np

Krishnanagar Branch

Mr. Paban Koirala

Krishnanagar - 2, Kapilvastu
Phone: 076-520428

Email: krishnanagar@ebl.com.np

Lamahi Branch

Mr. Devendra Aryal

Bank Road, Lamahi - 5, Dang
Phone: 082-540802

Email: lamahi@ebl.com.np

Lumbini Branch

Mr. Sandip Sapkota

Lumbini Sanskritik Municipality-10,
Mabhilwar Bazar, Rupandehi

Phone: 071-580297

Email: lumbini@ebl.com.np
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14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

Manigram Branch

Mr. Thaneshwor Bhandari
Tilottama - 5, Rupandehi
Phone: 071-590026, 590027
Email: manigram@ebl.com.np

Murgiya Branch

Mr. Hiraman Shrestha
Sainamaina - 3, Rupandehi
Phone: 071-440009

Email: murgiya@ebl.com.np

Nepalgunj Branch

Mr. Raju Kumar Bhagat

Surkhet Road, Dhamboji, Nepalgunj - 2, Banke
Phone: 081-525804/805

Email: ebl_npj@ebl.com.np

Parasi Branch

Mr. Deepak Kumar Bajimaya

Ramgram - 5, Ghantaghar Chowk, Nawalparasi
Phone: 078-590661, 590662

Email: parasi@ebl.com.np

Rajapur Branch

Mr. Ravi Adhikari

Rajapur - 4, Bardiya

Phone: 084-460104, 254
Email: rajapur@ebl.com.np

Sandhikharka Branch

Mr. Rabindra Subedi

Sandhikharka - 2, Chutrabeshi, Arghakhanchi
Phone: 077-420801

Email: eblsandhi@ebl.com.np

Taulihawa Branch

Mr. Shankar Ghimire

Kapilvastu - 1, Nayatole, Taulihawa
Phone: 076-561148

Email: ebltauli@ebl.com.np

Tulsipur Branch

Mr. Suraj K.C.

JCI Chowk, Tulsipur - 5, Dang
Phone: 082-521620, 521621
Email: ebltul@ebl.com.np

Yogikuti Branch

Ms. Susma Gyawali
Tilottama - 3, Rupandehi
Phone: 071-437028

Email: yogikuti@ebl.com.np

Karnali Province
1 Rukum Branch
Mr. Saroj Atreya
Musikot - 1, Khalanga, Rukum West
Phone: 088-530336
Email: rukum@ebl.com.np

2  Surkhet Branch 9
Mr. Ujwal Kumar Pokharel
Birendra Chowk, Birendranagar - 6, Surkhet
Phone: 083-523552/53
Email: eblsur@ebl.com.np

Sudur Paschim Province
1  Attariya Branch 10
Ms. Gauri Kumari Regmi
Attariya, Godawari - 2, Kailali
Phone: 091-550007
Email: attariya@ebl.com.np

2  Bajhang Branch 11
Mr. Kumar Thing Tamang
Jayaprithivi - 10, Chainpur, Bajhang
Phone: 092-421398
Email: bajhang@ebl.com.np

3  Bauniya Branch 12
Mr. Dharmananda Joshi
Bardgoriya - 2, Kailali
Phone: 091-404140
Email: bauniya@ebl.com.np

4  Dhangadhi Branch 13
Mr. Ramesh Shakya
Dhangadhi - 2, Kailali
Phone: 091-523641, 523642
Email: ebldhn@ebl.com.np

5  Dipayal Branch
Mr. Saroj Maharjan 14
Pipalla Bazar, Dipayal Silgadhi - 4, Doti
Phone: 094-412168
Email: dipayal@ebl.com.np

6  Jhalari Branch
Mr. Amit Thapa Magar
Shuklaphanta - 10, Jhalari, Kanchanpur
Phone: 099-540287
Email: jhalari@ebl.com.np

7  Lamki Branch
Mr. Sanim Maharjan
Lamki Bazar, Lamki Chuha - 1, Kailali
Phone: 091-540527
Email: lamki@ebl.com.np

Mahendranagar Branch

Mr. Tejendra Bahadur K.C.

Bheemdatt - 18, Galli No. 5, Mahendranagar,
Kanchanpur

Phone: 099-525389

Email: mahendranagar@ebl.com.np

Shikhar Branch

Mr. Lokesh Joshi

Shikhar - 8, Gopghat, Doti
Phone: 094-590335

Email: shikhar@ebl.com.np

Sukkhad Branch

Mr. Saroj Prasad Yadav
Ghodaghodi - 1, Sukkhad, Kailali
Phone: 091-403224

Email: sukkhad@ebl.com.np

Surma Branch

Mr. Pushpa Raj Ojha

Surma -1, Daulichaur, Bajhang
Phone: 9858485772

Email: surma@ebl.com.np

Talkot Branch

Mr. Laxman Kumar Singh
Talkot - 5, Khaula Bazar, Bajhang
Phone: 9801709290

Email: talkot@ebl.com.np

Tikapur Branch
Mr. Rajan Pokharel

Tikapur - 1, Block No.14, Khakraula Road,
Kailali

Phone: 091-561357
Email: tikapur@ebl.com.np

Saipal Branch

Mr. Prakash Bahadur Bist
Dhalaun, Saipal - 1, Bajhang
Phone: 9858433390

Email: Saipal@ebl.com.np
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Everest Bank Branches
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1. Bhojpur 2. Biratchowk 3. Biratnagar 4. Birtamod 5. Damak 6. Dharan 7. Dhulabari

8. Duhabi 9. Fikkal 10. Gaighat 11. Inaruwa 12. Itahari 13. Kanchanbari 14. Khandbari

15. Mahakulung 16. Okhaldhunga 17. Pathari 18. Silichong 19. Phidim 20. Phungling

Madhesh Province

1. Birgunj 2. Chandranigahapur 3. Garuda 4. 1CD (Dry port) 5. Janakpur 6. Kalaiya 7. Kanchanpur

8. Lalbandi o gﬂ: hendranagar- 10. Mirchaiya 11. Murali Chowk 12. Pipra 13. Rajbiraj 14. Simara
anusha

15. Bardibas

Bagmati Province

1. Bagbazar 2. Bagdol 3. Balaju 4. Banepa 5. Baneshwor 6. Battar 7. Bhaisepati

8. Bhaktapur 9. Budhanilkantha  10. Chabahil 11. Dhading 12. Dharke 13. Dupcheshwor 14. Golfutar

15. Gongabu 16. Gwarko 17. Hakim Chowk 18. Hetauda 19. Jadibuti 20. Jamal 21. Jarankhu

22. Jorpati 23. Kadaghari 24. Kalimati 25. Kamalbinayak 26. Kirtipur 27. Lagankhel 28. Lazimpat

29. Maharajgunj 30. Maitidevi 31. Narayangarh 32. Naxal 33. New Road 34. Parsa 35. Pulchowk

36. Sanogaun 37. Satdobato 38. Satungal 39. Sitapaila 40. Sundarbasti 41. Tandi 42. Taukhel

43. Teku 44. Thamel 45. Thimi 46. Tokha 47. Sindhuli

Gandaki Province

1. Amarsingh Chowk 2. Baglung 3. Besishahar 4. Birauta 5. Biruwa 6. Daldale 7. Damauli

8. Gorkha 9. Kawasoti 10. Kushma 11. Lekhnath 12. Pokhara 13. Syangja

Lumbini Province

1. Bansgadhi 2. Bardaghat 3. Bhairahawa 4. Butwal 5. Chandrauta 6. Ghorahi 7. Gulariya

8. Jeetpur 9. Khaireni 10. Kohalpur 11. Krishnanagar 12. Lamahi 13. Lumbini 14. Manigram

15. Murgiya 16. Nepalgunj 17. Parasi 18. Rajapur 19. Sandhikharka 20. Taulihawa 21. Tulsipur

22. Yogikuti

Karnali Province

1. Rukum 2. Surkhet

Sudur Paschim Province

1. Attariya 2. Bajhang 3. Bauniya 4. Dhangadhi 5. Dipayal 6. Jhalari 7. Lamki

8. Mahendranagar 9. Shikhar 10. Sukkhad 11. Surma 12. Talkot 13. Tikapur 14. Saipal

Corporate Office: EBL House, Lazimpat, P.0.Box 13384, Kathmandu, Nepal
Tel: 4543377 (Hunting), Fax: 4543160, E-mail: info@ebl.com.np, SWIFT: EVBLNPKA

Representative Office: 414, 4th Floor Antriksh Bhawan, KG Marg, New Delhi - 110001
Tel: 91-11-23710327, Fax: 91-11-23710326, E-mail: -eblrepdelhi@ebl.com.np








